
( 

( 

.• _J14 

-==::::'--

STATE EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 
2 THE UNIVERSITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK 

3 
-------------------------------------------x 

4 
In the Matter of' 

5 
BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CITY SCHOOL 

6 DISTRICT OF NEW YORK, 

7 Complainant, 

8 vs. 

9 DAVID K. ROEMER, 

10 Respondent-Tenured Employee. 
---------------------------------------------x 

II Education Law Section 3020-a Proceeding 
File No.: 3318 

12 

13 

14 

15 BEFORE: 

110 Livingston Street 
Brooklyn, New York 
June 13, 1997 
2:30 p.m. 

16 HOWARD EDELMAN, ESQ. 

17 
Hearing Officer 
119 Andover Road 
Rockville Centre, New York 11570 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

DOROTHY E. PETRUCELLI 
Board Panel Member 
192 Oakland Avenue -
Eastchester, New York 10709 

DORIS SHAFFER 
Union Pane-I Member 
799 Park Avenue 
Apartment 14A 
New York, New York 10021 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE (516) 689-0 II I 

1 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

AP£E~R~N~E~ 
OFFICE OF LEGAL SERVICES 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

BY: 

BY: 

110 Livingston Street 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 
MICHAEL MAZZARIELLO, ESQ. 

Deputy General Counselor 
to the Chancellor 

KAY CLARK-TURNER, ESQ. 

JOEL FIELV, ESQ. 
Attorney for Respondent 

230 Park Avenue 
New York, New York 10169 

11 DORIS SHAFFER, Panel Member 
799 Park Avenue 

12 New York, New York 10021 

13 DOROTHY E. PETRUCELLI, Panel Member 
160 Summerfield Street 

14 Scarsdale, New York, 10583 

15 ALSO PRESENT: 
David K. Roemer 

16 Laura C. Gonzalez 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICES 
(516) 689-0111 

2 



3 

1 HEARING 

2 S A U L B R U C K N E R, after having first been 

3 duly sworn testified as follows: 

4 MR. EDELMAN: We're here today for the 

5 cross-examination of Mr. Bruckner as per our prior 

6 stipulation in this regard. 

7 Mr. Fielv, you may proceed. 

8 MR. FIELV: Mr. Bruckner, turning your 

9 attention to 1994, I guess it would be September, 

10 1994, when Dr. Roemer came to the school. The science 

11 department at Murrow was comprised of how many 

12 teachers, if you remember? 

13 A. That would be approximately 25. 

14 Q. How many of them were physics teachers, if 

15 you know; or are these better questions for Mr. Cohen? 

16 A. Possibly two. 

17 Q. Now, is physics a requirement for all 

18 students? 

19 A. No. 

20 Q. It's an elective course? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Do you have any knowledge whatsoever of 

23 test taking in the physics department: How the tests 

24 are given. Are they tests by computer or does each 

25 teacher design his own test? 
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1 HEARING 

2 A. What type-- well, if you're talking about 

3 Regents examinations or classroom tests. 

4 Q. Classroom tests. 

5 A. Classroom tests teachers will usually have 

6 a combination of mUltiple choice, short answer, essay. 

7 Q. Would they make their own tests up or would 

8 they be tests that might be in the department gotten 

9 off of computers? 

10 A .. No, they are not taken off computers, 

11 although teachers may model questions based on Regents 

12 exams, previous questions which appeared on Regents 

13 examinations. 

14 Q. Let me just change shift for a second. You 

15 observed Dr. Roemer several times? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. Approximately how many times was that? 

18 A. I believe approximately seven. 

19 Q. In observing Dr. Roemer seven times, was 

20 the class ever disruptive? 

21 A. There was audible sounds which wasn't 

22 necessarily directed toward what Dr. Roemer was doing. 

23 Q. What do you mean by audible sounds? 

24 A. That there were youngsters who were talking 

25 who were not paying attention to what was going on. 
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1 HEARING 

2 They were withdrawn from the lesson, in essence, and 

3 were conversing amongst themselves. 

4 Q. Was that disruptive to the class or did Dr. 

5 Roemer have control of the class? 

6 A. The class was in reasonable good order. 

7 Q. On most occasions Dr. Roemer would lecture 

8 first in the class for several minutes? 

9 A. Dr. Roemer would come in. He would speak 

10 briefly, yes. 

11 Q. How long would the lectures be? 

12 A. It would vary. Without referring to 

13 observations reports, I couldn't give you a specific 

14 time. 

15 (Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

16 record) . 

17 Q. Mr. Bruckner, I'm sorry. In the various 

18 observations that you made of Dr. Roemer's classes, 

19 was there much change in the format he used? 

20 A. No. 

21 Q. Could you briefly describe the format that 

22 he used in his classes? 

23 A. Your asking me to summarize seven different 

24 observations. 

25 Q. No, I'm not asking you to summarize seven 
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1 HEARING 

2 visits. 

3 MR. EDELMAN: Not the content, the 

4 format? 

5 MR. FIELV: The format, yes. 

6 A. Essentially, Dr. Roemer, again without 

7 referencing numbers, essentially Dr. Roemer would come 

8 into the class and ask if there were any questions 

9 from the homework. Then, depending upon the number of 

10 questions that were raised, he would go over the 

11 questions. 

12 Then he might briefly speak, and then 

13 without fail, he would distribute a work sheet which 

14 he called a student lesson plan. And at that point 

15 the youngsters were expected to work either on their 

16 own or in groups in order to answer the questions 

17 which appeared on the work sheet. 

18 Q. Now, he would go over the homework from the 

19 day before that he had--

20 A. Not necessarily. It might have been three 

21 days before or there are reports which will indicate 

22 he'd ask for any questions from lesson; what he called 

23 student lesson plan 12, 13, or 14. It might or might 

24 not have been the day before's homework . 

25 Q. . The homework of a prior lesson, relating to 
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1 HEARING 

2 a prior lessons, he would go over? 

3 A. If they raised their hands and asked any 

4 questions. 

5 Q. And he certainly answered the questions 

6 that were posed to him? 

7 A. He answered the questions most of the 

8 time. There were times he didn't. 

9 Q. Would he clarify problems that the children 

10 raised with respect to the homework problems that they 

11 had, if they raised their hands and asked questions? 

12 A. I believe observation reports will show 

13 that on occasion it didn't clarify even if he did 

14 respond. He had no way of knowing whether the 

15 youngsters understood or not since he didn't try to 

16 involve them in the lesson and there are times, I 

17 believe, when the kids either spoke to me in the room 

18 or I would overhear them saying things to the effect 

19 that they didn't understand what he was saying. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

... 24 

) 
25 

Q. Isn't there a number of times, and there 

are some references made in your observations, that 

the children spoke to you and that they were confused 

or they didn't understand. 

Weren't they referring to the lesson that 

was being given that day as opposed to the homework 
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1 HEARING 

2 assignments and questions they were raising with 

3 respect to the homework? 

4 A. I'm certain that there were references to a 

5 lesson to given that day. I'm uncertain without 

6 referring whether there were comments as to the 

7 homework. 

8 Q. I just wanted to clarify. You do make 

9 mention in your observation reports that at the end of 

10 the day, children indicated to you or you felt that 

11 the children did not understand exactly what was going 

12 on with respect to that lesson. 

13 A. On occasion and I specifically said so. 

14 Q. Yes. Now, the lesson plan or the handout 

15 that Dr. Roemer gave the children had a number of 

16 problems and a number of questions on there? 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. And those problems and questions, some of 

19 it was done in class and some of it was done at home, 

20 am I correct? 

21 A. If they didn't finish he would tell them to 

22 finish it at home. 

23 Q. Finish it at home. And if they had 

24 questions when they came back after finishing at home, 

25 were the questions that you heard being raised about 
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1 HEARING 

2 homework, was that not homework from the questions 

3 that Dr. Roemer has given in the handout? 

4 A. To the best of my knowledge, the answer is 

5 no, because he would often ask for given specific 

6 numbers of the questions that appeared in the Regents 

7 review book that he was using; therefore, the specific 

8 mention of question in the book indicated that he 

9 .wasn't entirely referring to the questions that grew 

10 out of the handouts. 

11 Q. But were they questions relating to-- I'm 

12 talking about questions the children raised on 

13 homework when they came in the next day or that you 

14 heard, and they would look at the homework and 

15 somebody would say, I have question about a homework 

16 question, was it relating to the homework-- was it 

17 relating to the homework of the previous lesson? 

18 You don't necessarily, you're not--

19 A. To the best of my knowledge, the answer 

20 would be no because he would ask them what numbers 

21 they were. And the numbers that would be given: 12, 

22 13, 8--

23 Q. That's enough. 

24 A. -- were not numbers which were appearing on 

25 the work sheets that he distributed. 
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1 HEARING 

2 Q. Let's look at-- you don't have the 

3 observation reports. 

4 MR. EDELMAN: We'll give it to him. 

5 (Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

6 record) 

7 Q. Mr. Bruckner, I believe you testified that 

8 in your opinion and on direct examination, Dr. Roemer 

9 had exhibited incompetency as a teacher? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. And how do you measure incompetency? Would 

12 you agree that incompetency would be that there is no 

13 valid educational experience occurring? 

14 A. I would certainly say that is part of what 

15 would be involved in not being an effective teacher. 

16 Q. What other-- we're not saying effective, 

17 incompetent. What else would be involved in 

18 incompetency? 

19 A. The lesson has to have some sort of 

20 structure. It has to have a beginning. It has to 

21 have an end. It should involve the students. There 

22 should be effective instruction. There should be a 

23 relationship that takes place between the teacher and 

24 the youngsters during this time that they're sharing 

25 together. 
o.°L---

L-__________ ~----------------------------------------~ 
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HEARING 

Dr. Roemer's lessons lacked structure, 

since they were essentially unplanned. There was no 

relationship with the student since he didn't call on 

them by name. He didn't seem to know their names. 

His quote "lessons" had no beginning, a middle, or an 

end. I think the documentation will show there are 

occasions when the kids simply got up and left without 

any indication on Dr. Roemer's part that they were 

dismissed. 

Q. Are you saying, sir, even if the lesson had 

a valid educational experience, the teacher would 

still be incompetent if he was not giving a structured 

lesson? 

A. Youngsters are going learn--

Q. That's not the question. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm going to object 

to the question as compound and vague. 

THE COURT: Rephrase it. 

Q. Are you saying that even if there's an 

effective educational experience occurring in the 

class, and the teacher is teaching-- let's assume the 

teacher has control of the class and decorum is 

satisfactory in the class, the teacher still would be 

incompetent in your opinion if he did not present a 
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1 HEARING 

2 structured lesson as you described just now? 

3 A. The extent and validity of what the 

4 youngsters would learn would depend upon the extent of 

5 the planning, preparation, and involvement that took 

6 place. Youngsters are always learning something in 

7 class. Is it the maximum amount the teacher could 

8 help them learn or not. 

9 In Dr. Roemer's case there were youngsters 

10 learning things often despite the things he was doing 

11 in class, or in spite of what he was doing in class. 

12 Undoubtedly there were things they learned from Dr. 

13 Roemer as well. That doesn't change the fact in my 

14 mind that his lack of preparation and his lack of 

15 effectiveness makes him an incompetent teacher. 

16 Q. Then you're measuring his competency or 

17 incompetency not on whether there was a valid 

18 educational experience occurring in class, but rather 

19 whether his lesson was a structured lesson of a 

20 beginning and end as you describe it? 

21 A. There's some validity in every lesson. 

22 Whether it's the maximum amount of validity that could 

23 be obtained and had you adequately prepared and did an 

24 effective job is in question. 

25 Q. Are you measuring-- I understand your 
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1 HEARING 

2 conclusion that in your opinion Dr. Roemer is 

3 unsatisfactory. I respect your conclusion, sir. But 

4 I am now taking your conclusion and measuring it as to 

5 the standard of incompetency? 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object. This 

7 sounds more like a speech than a question. 

8 MR. EDELMAN: Let's take the question. 

9 Q. I'm asking this question: Are you 

10 measuring and concluding that Dr. Roemer was 

11 incompetent based on his lesson or based on the fact 

12 that there was not a valid educational experience? 

13 A. I'm basing it on the fact that the lessons 

14 were so poor because they lacked planning, they were 

15 not effectively involving youngsters, he did not 

16 obtain feedback; therefore, the amount of valid work 

17 that was taking place would be minimal or marginal and 

18 certainly wouldn't be that which a teacher who had 

19 done effective preparation would be able to provide to 

20 those youngsters. 

21 Q. Are you saying that Dr. Roemer could have 

22 given more valid work in the class and'because he 

23 didn't give more valid work in the class, he was 

24 incompetent; is that what you're saying? 

25 A. Dr. Roemer has the intellectual ability to 
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HEARING 

provide youngsters with a much more valid educational 

experience then he was providing. He didn't draw upon 

his knowledge effectively. He didn't plan; therefore, 

what he was providing those youngsters based on what 

he could have provided and based upon what he was 

actually was providing was unsatisfactory and 

incompetent. 

Q. Aren't with holding Dr. Roemer to a higher 

standard than you would to perhaps another physics 

teachers who did not have a Ph.D.? 

A. Not at all. If you go back to our first 

meeting, all new teachers met our principal. At that 

time, all teachers were given a sheet that they 

signed-- I believe there is a copy of it here. 

The expectation of a teacher in terms of 

their planning, preparation, pupil involvement; the 

extent of questioning, nature of questioning. They 

were given some materials which were designed to help 

them teach as well. Dr. Roemer was either unable or 

unwilling to take advantage of the suggestions that 

were given on that sheet at that meeting. 

Q. Let me ask this question, sir: Dr. Roemer 

and you, I believe, had several conversations on 

methodology; am I correct? 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICES 
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1 HEARING 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. I've heard the phrase and I think you may 

4 have used it, there are three types of methodology: 

5 lecture methodology, developmental methodology, and 

6 constructivist methodology. I believe you feel very 

7 strongly, correct me if I'm wrong, in developmental 

8 methodology? 

9 A. I believe it's an effective device, but as 

10 it appears in one of these reports, I can certainly 

11 accept and praise a teacher for an effective lecture 

12 or for an effective lesson in constructivism, which is 

13 encouraged within the department of the 

14 superintendents. 

15 Dr. Roemer has no idea what either of them 

16 really means, because if we look at these Dr. Roemer 

17 has referred to himself as refer both a constructivist 

18 and lectured demonstrator and these are polar 

19 opposites. He can't be doing the same thing and yet 

20 calling them two different things. 

21 Q. Isn't it possible-- let's call it the 

22 Roemer methodology for the want of a better term that 

23 the methodology that a teacher would use would not 

24 necessarily fit compactly into one of the three? 

25 A. It is conceivable that a teacher can draw 
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HEARING 

upon elements of each and have a satisfactory lesson. 

Q. You describe that Dr. Roemer would give a 

lecture and explain, go over, a concept in which 

basically he would talk to the children and the but 

not have enough interplay with the children during 

that part? 

A. Talking isn't necessarily lecturing. Dr. 

Roemer gave me a book review or an excerpt or an 

advertisement which described a modern lecture. A 

modern lecture, as per the materials Dr. Roemer gave 

me, calls for a teacher to have an effective plan, to 

involve youngsters even in the lecture, and to have 

materials of instruction. What Dr. Roemer was doing 

at the beginning of a lesson was not a lecture. It 

may have been talk, but it wasn't a lecture. 

Q. Are you saying, sir, a teacher that does 

not involve children in the lecture-- or talking part, 

when I say involving children, does not invite 

questions. When questions were raised during when Dr. 

Roemer was talking to the children, would he respond 

to the questions? 

A. At times, yes; at times, no. 

Q. Would you say, would he mostly respond to 

the children to the questions that were raised? 
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HEARING 

A. I really couldn't say. 

Q. Are you saying that a teacher who talks to 

the children, you don't want to use the word lecture, 

I won't use the word lecture, who talks to children 

and doesn't involve the children in that part of 

class, is not being effective? I'm not talking about 

Dr. Roemer, I'm just talking generally. 

A. Generally, yes, because that teacher has no 

way of knowing whether the talk that he is giving has 

been understood by the youngsters. 

Q. Let's take it a step further. Assuming, 

for argument's sake, I may refer to Dr. Roemer, I'm 

just talking in a general fashion, in that talk that 

he gives to the children he talks about concepts that 

are covered by that class that day. I believe you 

were a social studies teacher? 

A. I was, I am. 

Q. Let's say a social studies teacher talks 

about the causes of World War I as a lecture, not 

inviting questions though responding to questions that 

may be raised. And supposing at the end of that part 

of the class, there's a half hour left or whatever the 

break is and he has the children answering questions 

or working on questions at their desks and circulating 
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1 HEARING 

2 amongst the children, answering questions that they 

3 may raise and helping the children. Couldn't that 

4 teacher be an effective teacher? 

5 A. That abstract teacher could be, but 

6 Dr. Roemer--

7 Q. That's not my question, sir. I just want--

8 MR. EDELMAN: Next question. We'll 

9 come back on redirect. We know that. 

10 Q. Now, during the second part of class, if 

11 Dr. Roemer would have the children primarily 

12 independently in the class, sometimes in groups but 

13 primarily independently, what would he be doing? 

14 A. Often he would be standing behind the 

15 laboratory table. There were times that he would 

16 circulate among them as well. There were times when I 

17 was there and kids would ask questions when he was 

18 circulating that he didn't respond to or he gave 

19 answers that the kids didn't understand. 

20 Q. How did you, if he was circulating, how did 

21 you hear what he was saying to the children? 

22 A. The lab tables are rather close together, 

23 and I would be sitting at one of them, so I was with 

" 24 at least one group of youngsters. It was not very 

25 difficult to listen to youngsters who may be four or 
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2 five feet away at other lab tables. 

3 Q. Was he trying to shirk his students in any 

4 way or manner trying just to not teach. Did you get 

5 that feeling-- I understand you didn't accept his 

6 methodology and didn't like it--

7 A. Methodology isn't the issue. The duty of a 

8 teacher is to come to class prepared to teach a 

9 lesson. And to be prepared to teach a lesson, you 

10 have to have planned for it. The plan should include 

11 specific materials and instruction and should 

12 represent organized thought on the part of the teacher 

13 to the extent that Dr. Roemer didn't plan lessons, to 

14 the extent that he wasn't organized in class, Dr. 

15 Roemer was shirking his duties. 

16 Q. Dr. Roemer did have lesson plans, did he 

17 not? 

18 A. That is a matter of dispute. The answer is 

19 no, Dr. Roemer did not have a lesson plan. The 

20 observation reports at the beginning will say in his 

21 own words that he didn't have a lesson plan. At a 

22 later date, he then took these work sheets and called 

23 them student lesson plans. 

" 24 There was no indication as to how he 

25 planned to use them, and certainly, even if we look at 
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2 some of those sheets, they weren't effectively used, 

3 because he might have an aim or motivation on them, 

4 but he never paid any attention to them. It was 

5 simply giving the kids something to do to answer 

6 problems. 

7 Q. Now, take the lesson plans, the student 

8 lesson plan, isn't it true there was a grievance about 

9 one of those student lesson plans? 

10 A. There was. 

11 Q. In which you had put down, I believe in 

12 your observation report, that there was no lesson plan 

13 for that day, and the result of that grievance it was 

14 either agreed upon or it was found there was a lesson 

15 plan, being the student lesson plan? 

0 6 

b--
18 

[

19 

20 

21 

22 

A. Almost everyone of these has been 

grieved. The statement that he didn't have a lesson 

plan has not been removed from any of these but for 

one. Where, although the words "didn't have a lesson 

plan" was taken out, the statement to the effect that 

he didn't plan the lesson or the lesson was 

unsatisfactory because it was poorly planned 

23 remained. The documentation will support, and has 

24 been upheld, that he did not plan lessons. 

25 Q. Under the union contract, don't teachers 
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2 have the right or discretion on lesson plans? 

3 A. Once a teacher is a tenured teacher--

4 Q. As Dr. Roemer was--

5 A. -- the lesson plan is for their purpose, as 

6 long as it is a written lesson plan. However, once a 

7 supervisor says a lesson is unsatisfactory, under the 

8 contract, that supervisor my prescribe the standard or 

9 historically standard lesson plan. Dr. Roemer's work 

10 was unsatisfactory. Dr. Roemer refused to plan 

11 lessons as directed. 

12 Q. Then were you telling Dr. Roemer to teach 

13 under a certain methodology? 

14 A. As an unsatisfactory teacher, under the 

15 contract, a principal or an assistant principal are 

16 permitted to direct the teacher to teach in a specific 

17 manner, and Dr. Roemer refused to, which is why 

18 charges also of insubordination rather than 

19 philosophy. 

20 Q. Could you show us-- are you familiar with 

21 the contract? 

22 A. I'm familiar with the contract. 

23 Q. Where you're referring to--

24 THE COURT: Stop. This is not a 

25 hearing involving contract interpretation. He's 
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2 testified to what he's done or not done. At an 

3 appropriate time you can argue that was or was not 

4 correct. We are not getting contract interpretation 

5 from this witness or any witness. Go on. 

6 Q. So you were directing Dr. Roemer to use a 

7 particular methodology? 

8 A. Once he was found, once I described his 

9 performance as unsatisfactory, the answer is yes. 

10 Q. Can you tell us when that occurred? The 

11 second year or the first year? 

12 A. It was probably in the first year as well 

13 although--

14 Q. Looking through, can you tell us, pinpoint 

15 where he was directed to use a particular methodology? 

16 A. If we look at October 31. 

17 THE COURT: '94 or '95, sir? 

18 THE WITNESS: October 31, 1994. 

19 THE COURT: Okay. 

20 A. "The lesson was unplanned. At the end of 

21 the period I asked if there was a lesson plan. He 

22 said he had planned to go over the problems in the 

23 review book and if there was time he would begin the 

.. 24 lessons described on the sheet which had previously 

25 been distributed. 
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2 You made a similar statement during our 

3 conference, but you had no written lesson plan which 

4 described what you planned to do. Just asking 

5 students if they had problems with questions is not 

6 effective planning. There was no grouping of 

7 questions by topics. During explanations, you would 

8 stop as if--" 

9 Q. Where were you reading from? 

10 A. Paragraph 3 in the one dated October 31st. 

11 "There was no grouping of questions by topics. 

12 During explanations you would stop as if lost in 

13 thought. During our post-observation conference, I 

14 asked why you stopped and you indicated that you were 

15 thinking of the best way to explain the answer to the 

16 problem. If you had planned this lesson and devoted 

17 adequate thought to what you wanted to do before the 

18 class meeting, you would not have had to think of 

19 approaches during the lesson." Then we go on in 

20 brief--

21 Q. That's not the question I was asking. 

22 A. There was no clear finding, ·no motivation, 

23 no demonstrations, no materials of instruction, 

24 student participation was limited. 

25 "During my next visit I will be looking for 
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2 a lesson plan which is planned effectively, maximizing 

3 instructional time, and provides the students with an 

4 opportunity to be actively involved in the development 

5 of the lesson." 

6 Q. That's not the question. 

7 A. I'm telling him what I am looking for in 

8 conference. 

9 Q. But what I'm asking you is, because the 

10 question is of insubordination? 

A. That's the next year. 

Q. Please, I want to know when he was directed 

13 to use a particular methodology. That's what I 

14 thought you were responding to? 

15 A. He was directed to have a lesson plan that 

16 included certain aspects and did certain things. He 

17 was never directed not to be a constructivist, not to 

18 be a lecture demonstrator, or not to be a 

19 developmental teacher, nor was he directed to do 

20 them. What he has always been directed to do is plan 

21 written lessons and that's what Dr. Roemer didn't do 

22 and refused to do. 

23 Q . If I understand you're correct that-- are 

... 24 you saying that his lesson plans were unsatisfactory 

25 and is that the reason why he was an incompetent 
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teacher? 

A. Because his lesson plans were 

unsatisfactory the lessons were unsatisfactory. Time 

was wasted. Kids were not involved. Effective 

instruction did not take place; therefore, the lack of 

planning contributed or was the cause of the lack of 

effectiveness in the classroom. 

Q. But there was-- kids were learning, maybe 

not as much as you would want them to learn, but they 

were learning, am I correct? 

A. Some kids are always learning. 

Q. How do you measure-- is there any way of 

measuring whether effective learning is occurring? 

A. Quite honestly, outside of a psychologist 

coming up with some tool of effective measurement for 

a specific individual at a specific time, probably 

not. 

Q. Well what about tests? 

A. Tests, you could have good a test or a poor 

test. A test may not be an effective measure of what 

a kid has learned. A teacher may make·a test which 

includes questions which weren't taught, in which case 

the grades would be very poor. It may be a test which 

is very easy. It may be a test which grows out of 
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2 something that was taught three minutes ago and most 

3' youngsters were learning. Tests are not necessarily 

4 effective means of measurement. 

5 Q. What about tests that the teacher doesn't 

6 make up but tests that are taken out of the department 

7 themselves and questions that are made by the 

8 department that have been used in the past? 

-----:> 9 A. There were no department-made tests. There 

---1 10 were no uniform exams. 

11 Q. I didn't say uniform. There are no tests 

12 that are given. There were no tests gotten off of 

13 Exam-gen? 

14 A. This is the first time I've heard the 

15 phrase. 

16 Q. You have--

17 A. I have no idea. 

18 Q. Obviously, you can't respond to it. All 

19 right. But, certainly that could be a measurement of 

20 learning-- of an exam? 

21 A. If it's an effective exam. A teacher may 

22 not be testing what they're teaching. 

23 Q. An effective exam could be a measurement of 

24 learning? 

-V25 A. An effective exam can be a measurement of 
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learning or some types of learning. 

Q. Is a summary a necessary part of effective 

lessons? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. Which 

lesson are we talking about, developmental, 

constructivist? 

Q. All right. Is a summary necessary part a 

constructivist lesson? 

A. I would say it's one of the few ways you 

have of knowing to what extent the youngsters have 

learned something in a constructivist lesson and 

therefore, I would say yes. 

Q. What about lecture demonstration? 

A. I would say yes. 

Q. How about in developmental? 

A. I would say yes. 

Q. Can a summary also take place the following 

day of a lesson? 

A. It wouldn't give the teacher any instant 

feedback. It wouldn't be an effective way of testing 

what the youngsters learned at that exact moment, by 

then forgetting has set in as well, which affects 

learning; therefore, to say it's summary beginning the 

following day is not an effective way of winding up a 
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2 lesson the previous day. 

3 Q. In your mind and in your determination of 

4 whether a teacher is incompetent, are you equating 

5 effectiveness and competency? 

6 A. I think they are synonymous. Ineffective 

7 is to be incompetent. 

8 Q. SO, are you saying if a teacher is not 

9 effective, then a teacher is ineffective and if a 

10 teacher is ineffective, a teacher is then incompetent? 

11 A. I would say that. 

12 Q. Are you saying also that a teacher who has 

13 unsatisfactory observations is incompetent? 

14r~· If the supervisor is saying lessons are 

15 

16 

/17 

18 

19 \---

20 

21 

22 

23 

'. 24 

25 

unsatisfactory and if the appeal procedure~ uphold 

them as being accurate and fair, then the supervisor 

who has training and experience is saying, can say and 

should say, that the teacher is incompetent. 

Q. So at no time in determining whether a 

teacher is incompetent, measuring it as to whether 

there's any effective learning, if there is an 

effective educational--

THE COURT: I don't understand the 

question. 

Q. In determining incompetency or competency, 
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2 you're at no time measuring it as to whether or not 

3 the teacher is able to provide a valid educational 

4 experience to students? 

5 A. Because there are all sorts of loaded words 

6 there. 

7 MR. EDELMAN: Answer the question as 

8 best you can. You're not restricted. 

9 THE WITNESS: Can you read back the 

10 question, please. 

11 (Whereupon the requested question was read 

12 back) . 

13 A. Not at no time. 

14 Q. Well, can a teacher, in your mind, can a 

15 teacher who has unsatisfactory observations who you 

16 concluded unsatisfactory in your observations, yet be 

17 competent because in his or her class there has been 

18 and continues to be a valid educational experience? 

19 A. There's no way of fully measuring that. 

20 honestly couldn't given you an answer to it. 

21 MR. FIELV: Let's take a break for a 

22 few minutes. 

23 MR. EDELMAN: Off the record. 

24 (Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

25 record) 
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2 Q. Mr. Bruckner, before we got sidetracked a 

3 little bit, can you tell us by looking at the 

4 observation reports at what point did you direct 

5 Dr. Roemer to use a particular methodology? 

6 A. He was never directed to use a specific 

7 methodology. He was always directed to have a written 

8 lesson plan in which had components of lessons no 

9 matter what the--

10 Q. Could you show us where you are looking? 

11 A. Well, certainly we have the one that I 

12 cited before, "During my next visit I will be looking 

13 for a lesson which is planned, effectively maximizes 

14 instructional time, and provides the students the 

15 opportunity to be actively involved in the development 

16 of the lesson." 

17 Q. You're referring to the next to last 

18 paragraph on October 31, 1994? Is that what you're 

19 reading? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 MR. EDELMAN: Your question was where 

22 did he ask him, again, for a--

23 MR. FIELV: Where there was the 

24 direction. 

25 A. November 18, "In· close, I urge you to meet 
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2 with Mr. Cohen frequently so you can obtain assistance 

3 in planning lessons which will be satisfactory," but 

4 we get more detailed, I believe, in the following--

5 Q. Was he ever given an order that he must 

6 have a lesson plan that has X, Y, Z in it? 

7 A. Possibly it says A, B, C but many of 

8 these--

9 Q. I'll take A, B, C. I want to know, was he 

10 ever given specific orders of what--

11 A. The order over and over is that he have a 

12 lesson plan, and that the lesson plan should provide 

13 materials for instruction and should provide 

14 beginnings, endings and have materials of instruction. 

15 Q. Now, his definition of a lesson plan, is it 

16 fair to say, was slightly different than yours? 

17 A. What he called a student lesson plan was 

18 not a teacher lesson plan. The teacher is required to 

19 have the lesson plan for their use. Even if you're 

20 giving the kids something you say is a student lesson 

21 plan, the teacher has to have some ideas as to how 

22 he's going to use it, how much time he's going to use 

23 it, what materials he's going provide. Dr. Roemer 

24 never had that kind of lesson plan. 

25 Q. Is it fair to say Dr. Roemer had been rated 
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2 a satisfactory teacher, as a tenured teacher? The 

3 first year he was there, he was not unsatisfactory? 

4 A. He was rated unsatisfactory. 

5 Q. At the end of year. 

6 A. Right. That's when teachers are rated. 

7 Q. But during that year as a tenured teacher, 

8 isn't it fair to say that Dr. Roemer had the right to 

9 have whatever he wanted as a lesson plan? 

10 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. That was 

11 asked and answered. 

12 MR. FIELV: I don't think it was. 

13 THE COURT: I'll take it again. It 

14 may have been. Answer it again. 

15 A. The answer is no because when a teacher is 

16 told his performance is unsatisfactory or needed 

17 improvement, a supervisor can prescribe a specific 

18 lesson plan. 

19 Q. Even though he's not been rated 

20 unsatisfactory? 

21 A. As long as the supervisor says so in an 

22 observation report, the teacher is then on notice and 

23 can be directed. And to return to your previous one, 

24 "the lesson was unsatisfactory, did not have a 

25 written lesson plan, failed to teach science, there 
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2 was neither motivation effective questioning, 

3 summaries-- II 

4 Q. Where are you reading from, sir? 

5 A. This is April 4th. "Your failure to 

6 implement supervisory suggestions stems from your 

7 belief and your method of, quote, 'independent study.' 

8 Individual student recounting should be enforced in 

9 every lesson, but so should group activities which 

10 give students an opportunity to share ideas and 

11 develop concepts for the entire group. Your failure 

12 to implement suggestions and improve your approach to 

13 classroom instruction may lead to an unsatisfactory 

14 rating at the end of the year." 

15 Q. But there's no specific direction in that--

16 A. The direction--

17 Q. Let me finish, please. I'm not trying 

18 argue, sir, please. I really am not. 

19 A. I apologize if I sound that way. 

20 Q. I respect you very much and I respect your 

21 abilities on it. What I'm pointing out here is, you 

22 would agree with me, that there is no direction in the 

23 April 4th letter, at least what you read, that 

24 Dr. Roemer may have not had what you feel he should 

25 have, but there was no direction that: Have it or 
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2 else. We're talking at insubordination here, sir. 

3 A. The answer is, and I think certainly is 

4 understood in what I just read, that your failure to 

5 implement suggestions and improve your classroom 

6 approach may lead to unsatisfactory rating. The 

7 suggestions are here. 

8 Q. Well, yes, it may lead to an unsatisfactory 

9 rating, I understand that question. But it's not a 

10 direction that, if you don't do it, you're going to be 

11 disciplined because of failure to obey my order. 

12 That's what I'm talking about now, insubordination. 

13 I'm not talking about incompetency. 

14 A. The issue of insubordination is raised as a 

15 result of his failure to improve by the end of his 

16 first year and therefore the following year when we 

17 meet we had a, and I don't see--

18 Q. You're talking about the letter of 

19 September 14? 

20 A. That famous letter. 

21 (Whereupon there is a knock on the door) 

22 MR. MAZZARIELLO: It's right here. 

23 That's the one in evidence, sir, Mr. Edelman's copy is 

24 that what you're referring to September 14, 1995? 

25 A. That September 14th one begins: "On 
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September 13 we met to discuss your professional 

development for 1995-1996 school year." I stated that 

a satisfactory evaluation would depend upon the 

following: certainly, it is quite clear that a 

satisfactory evaluation depends upon his doing the 

four items which appear and he refused to do that in 

the course of the year. 

Q. I understand that and I understand in your 

opinion he did not comply with this and, therefore, in 

your opinion you concluded he was an ineffective 

teacher. 

(Whereupon Ms. Gonzalez entered the room) . 

MR. FIELV: Would you read the 

question back? 

(Whereupon the requested question was read 

back) . 

Q. Does that also make him insubordinate? 

That's the question. 

A. The answer is if he fails to-- I stated 

that a satisfactory evaluation would depend upon the 

following: His refusal or failure to implement or to 

follow the suggestions that were made in items one to 

four. Then that makes him insubordinate and that's 

what happened. 
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Q. Then in your mind, this letter of September 

14 was a direction to do it or else? 

A. It clearly states that. "I strongly urge 

you to comply to the instructions which I have 

listed--" 

Q. I wanted to get your opinion. This then 

was an order for him to do it or else? 

A. "However, what is at stake is the basis for 

your individual evaluation. for the 1995-1996 school 

year." He has been notified that he is in danger of 

receiving an unsatisfactory rating. 

Q. Was he notified in any manner or form that 

his failure to do this he would also be deemed to be 

insubordinate? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm going to object. 

MR. EDELMAN: We've been through 

this. Stop. Sustained. 

Q. Do you have any other places where you 

could point to? 

A. I would have to look at the following 

year. I don't have the ones for the following year. 

Q. I think you do, sir. 

MR. EDELMAN: I believe you do. 

A. These are not observation reports. They 
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2 are letters then which deal with his failure to attend 

3 departmental conferences and his failure to attend pre 

4 and post observation conferences with the department 

5 supervisor. 

6 Q. Pre-observation or only the post? 

7 A. With the supervisor, pre and post. There 

8 are letters in this documentation. 

9 Q. Well, do you have any independent 

10 recollection sitting here now of any direction that 

11 you gave him to attend particular conferences that he 

12 refused to do that? 

13 A. He was specifically directed to meet the 

14 department supervisor in pre and post observation 

15 conferences and he refused to, and there are letters 

16 to that effect in the documentation. 

17 Q. Going back to 1994, September or October 

18 1994, did there come a time when Dr. Roemer and you 

19 had a discussion about methodology? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. And there were suggestions that Dr. Roemer 

22 was trying to-- was he trying to resolve this, or was 

23 he trying resolve to teach in a way to be acceptable 

24 you? 

25 A. I think the documentation shows that a well 
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2 planned and well executed lecture or a well planned 

3 and executed lesson would be satisfactory and would be 

4 acceptable. But Dr. Roemer had no idea as to what he 

5 was doing and therefore the same action he labeled as 

6 constructivist and as lecture demonstrator--

7 Q. That's not the question. 

8 THE COURT: The question is in your 

9 opinion was he trying to be conciliatory to do the 

10 things you wanted him to do? 

11 A. The answer the no. 

12 Q. Was he trying to be conciliatory in trying 

13 to work out his differences between you? 

14 A. No. 

15 Q. Do you recall conciliation set up a 

16 meeting? 

17 A. Conducted by the superintendent of Brooklyn 

18 High Schools, yes. 

19 Q. What was the name of the superintendent? 

20 A. Joyce Coppin. 

21 Q. Did she make a decision in that 

22 conciliation? 

23 A. She advised Dr. Roemer, based upon what he 

24 gave her and he said was his failure to follow 

25 supervisory instruction, it could lead to an 

• 
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unsatisfactory rating. 

Q. So she made a decision? 

A. She didn't make decision but she did give 

some advice to Dr. Roemer. 

Q. Based on what she heard from yourself and 

Dr. Roemer that day, she came to a conclusion, did she 

not? 

A. I wouldn't say she came to a conclusion, 

but she did give him advice. 

Q. Was that a proper role if you know? 

MR. FIELV: I'm going to object. 

MR. EDELMAN: Sustained. I don't care 

what her role was. This is what happened. 

Q. Was Dr. Roemer very much interested in 

pursuing conciliation? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. 

MR. EDELMAN: Overruled. He asked 

about Dr. Roemer. 

Q. Was Dr. Roemer--

A. He appealed to the union's conciliation 

process and a conciliator was sent to the building and 

the conciliator and Dr. Roemer and I met. The 

conciliation failed because Dr. Roemer insisted upon 

getting an apology from the superintendent before he 

• 
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would talk about anything concerning the issues-- at 

least, the issues as he perceived them. Therefore, 

the arbitration and conciliation didn't take place. 

Q. Are you sure that's the reason the 

conciliation didn't take place? Or did the 

conciliator withdraw because of other reasons? 

A. To the best of my knowledge the conciliator 

stated the conciliation was ineffective because Dr. 

Roemer-- again, I don't have access to this record. 

Q. Well, isn't it--

(Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

record) . 

I'd like to have this marked. 

Do you know Mr. Howard Solomon? 

A. He's the UFT I believe--

Q. Was the conciliator Howard Mathis? 

A. I believe so. 

THE COURT: Mark Respondent's 1 for 

ID. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I was not privy to 

this. Trial by surprise is not good fiiith. 

MR. FIELV: This is not--

MR. EDELMAN: Let me say this, the 

general rule of any document that either party intends 

• 
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2 to introduce frankly it should be expected and known 

3 that it would be introduced and should be forwarded to 

4 opposing counsel prior to the hearing. 

5 I'll have this marked for 10 now, but 

6 basically, this is a directive for the future, if 

7 there's any chance that you're going to introduce 

8 something, give it to opposing counsel. 

9 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Even on 

10 cross-examination? 

11 MR. EDELMAN: Sure. 

12 MR. FIELV: I have no problems making 

13 available-- I have a host of documents. 

14 MR. EDELMAN: Give it to him. 

15 MR. FIELV: Then I would like to make 

16 that easier. Let's go off the record 

17 (Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

18 record) 

19 (Letter from Mr. Howard Solomon was 

20 marked as Respondent's Exhibit 1 for 

21 identification, as of this date.) 

22 MR. EDELMAN: I've never seen this 

23 before. 

" 24 Q. Do you recall what's been marked as 

25 Respondent's 1? Have you ever seen a copy or received 

• 
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2 a copy of it? 

3 A. As is indicated, there's no cc to anyone. 

4 MR. EDELMAN: If you have never seen 

5 it, tell him. 

6 MR. BRUCKNER: I have never seen it. 

7 Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

8 record.) 

9 MR. EDELMAN: Back on the record. 

10 Q. Do you recall hearing-- you're saying you 

11 didn't receive a copy of that letter, the reason why 

12 the conciliator withdrew was because Ms. Coppin had 

13 improperly acted? 

14 A. The only reason that-- I don't believe I 

15 had any notification except for the fact a conciliator 

~ was terminated and that came many months after that. 

17 The only thing I'm aware of during that conciliation 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

.. 24 

25 

process, Dr. Roemer refused to discuss any issues 

unless he received an apology from the 

superintendent. 

Q. When you say the conciliation process ended 

several months after, that was March of '95, am I 

correct? 

A. I don't recall the dates offhand . 

Q. Do you recall some time in November 1995 

. 
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the conciliation ended? 

3 A. I would have to refer to documentation. I 

4 don't recall. 

5 Q. Well, I apologize once again for--

6 MR. EDELMAN: That's not in evidence. 

7 It's not come in evidence through this witness, so 

8 you've got to wait until another day. 

9 Q. All right. Did Dr. Roemer consider his 

10 conciliation process to be very important as per a 

11 conversation that you had with him? 

12 A. He constantly referred to the conciliation 

13 process, even after that first meeting was 

14 inconclusive and there was never a resumption of it--

15 Q. You're talking-- are you referring to the 

16 first meeting? Are you referring to Mr. Mathis or Ms. 

17 Coppin? 

18 A. Mr. Mathis. In fact, I believe, I don't 

19 know, I believe he sought union intervention in order 

20 to get it to be reopened or continued or somehow 

21 modified. 

22 Q. What was your position with respect to the 

23 conciliation process? 

" 24 A. I was willing to discuss philosophy, if 

25 that's what Dr. Roemer wanted, as long as my bottom 

• 
ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICES 

(516) 689-0111 



44 

1 HEARING 

2 line was recognized; and my bottom line was that Dr. 

3 Roemer had to come into his class with a written 

4 lesson plan which explained and described what he was 

5 going to do. 

c: Q. Are you saying now that if Dr. Roemer had 

~ had these written lesson plans as you describe them, 

~ he would have gotten satisfactory ratings? 

_9 ____ "/ A. If he had planned lessons, his lessons 

~ would not have been unsatisfactory; therefore, there 

_11~would have been no basis for unsatisfactory ratings-
./ 

\ 

~ certainly the first year. In the second year 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

.. 24 

25 

insubordination became an issue. 

Q. Let's talk about the first year. If I 

understood you correctly now by your last answer, 

insubordination was not an issue in the first year? 

A. It became a very clear issue in the second 

year, yes. It was not--

Q. It was not an issue in the first year. 

That's what I'm trying to (indicating). 

And by having the lesson plans that you 

described, he would not have had an unsatisfactory 

rating? 

A. If he had lesson plans--

Q. I'm talking the about the first year, too, 

• 
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sir. 

A. If he had lesson plans, he would have more 

effective lesson; therefore, there would be no basis 

for the unsatisfactory lesson. We would then be 

talking about areas that needed improvement. However, 

his failure to plan meant that he was coming into 

class unprepared, essentially, and the lack of 

effective teaching which is described here was then 

taking place. 

Q. Are you equating in your mind effective 

lesson plans as-- by having effective lesson plans, 

would you automatically have an effective lesson? 

A. No, not necessarily, but you have a better 

chance of having one than not having a lesson plan. 

Q. Can you have effective lessons without 

effective lesson plans? 

A. I've seen very few lessons, in some 30 

something years of supervision, that have been 

effective in which the teacher did not have an 

effective lesson plan. 

Q. In your many years as a supervisor and 

observing teachers, does the vast majority of, or the 

majority of, the lessons that you've observed, were 

the lesson plans developmental? 
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2 A. Probably. 

3 Q. Could you tell us about what percentage? 

4 Just-- I understand you're ballparking here. 

5 A. The New York City school system 

6 historically is the home to developmental lessons. 

7 It's also known as a socialized recitation. It 

8 probably goes back to some point in the late '20s or 

9 early '30s. Because it's an approach which involves 

10 youngsters in the lesson so they are not there merely 

11 as passive listeners. 

12 It gives them an opportunity to be involved 

13 by going to the board, doing recitations, reading 

14 source material, and answering questions. Therefore, 

15 historically, and that continues to this day, most 

16 teachers probably are teaching some variation of a 

17 developmental lesson. It is effective device for 

18 large group instruction and our classes tend to be 

19 large. 

20 Q. What about teachers who are not 

21 comfortable? 

22 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm going to object 

23 to the hypothetical. 

'. 24 MR. EDELMAN: It's a little vague. 

25 ask you, can you qualify. 
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2 Q. Are you aware that Dr. Roemer was not 

3 comfortable with the developmental method of teaching? 

4 A. Dr. Roemer wasn't effective with any 

5 method. 

6 Q. That's not what I'm asking you. Are you 

7 aware that he was not--

8 A. He certainly called himself something other 

9 than a developmental lesson teacher. He called 

10 himself either lecture demonstrator or constructivist. 

11 Q. Did he also indicate to you that he felt 

12 more comfortable teaching children and responding to 

13 children on a one on one basis? 

14 A. Or on a no and one basis. I believe, I'm 

15 not sure whether it's the first year or the second 

16 where, I think Ira Cohen mentions it, that based upon 

17 what you're doing with these sheets there's no need 

18 for a teacher. Dr. Roemer's response was that would 

19 be wonderful, that would be his goal. Dr. Roemer's 

20 approach was such that he didn't really see himself as 

21 having a role in the classroom except distributing 

22 these sheets. 

23 Q . Isn't it true that students told you that 

.. ·24 he could explain to individuals? 

25 A. There is documentation which indicates that 

• 
ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICES 

(516) 689-0111 



48 

1 HEARING 

2 a student said: I think he knows what's going on, he 

3 can explain one to one, but he can't teach a class. 

4 Q. Now, the second year, you say that the 

5 issue of insubordination became an issue? 

6 A. Because of his refusal to implement the 

7 suggestions on that September something meeting and 

8 his failure to attend pre and post observation 

9 conferences with the supervisor. 

10 Q. Is that why he was removed from the class? 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. So he was removed from the class because of 

13 insubordination? 

14 A. Yes. 

15 Q. And you pointed the September 14 letter as 

16 one letter and what was the direction on the 

17 conference that was given to him? 

18 A. There is documentation which will indicate 

19 meetings were set up and he indicated in writing, 

20 which also appears in the documentation, that he would 

21 not attend them without a chapter chairperson or he 

22 felt nothing would be accomplished by them. And there 

23 are others he simply refused to attend, and I believe 

" 24 there is documentation to support that. 

25 Q. So he was removed because of those two 

• 
ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICES 

(516) 689-0111 



49 

1 HEARING 

2 reasons. Those two instances of--

3 A. It's more than two instances. The 

4 insubordination was a refusal to attend conferences 

5 that were designed to help him improve his teaching. 

6 His refusal to attend them indicated he had no desire 

7 of implementing suggestions for improving what he was 

8 doing. Therefore, he was insubordinate for reasons 

9 that he wasn't willing to improve as defined by his 

10 supervisors. 

11 Q. Apart from what you described here today of 

12 the lesson plans and improvements, were there any 

13 other problems with Dr. Roemer's teaching? 

14 A. Those were the problems. 

15 Q. Those were the problems. I'm just trying 

16 to find out--

17 A. If we look at the rating forms where he was 

18 rated unsatisfactory, the new ratings in those areas 

19 go to the heart of what teaching is all about: 

20 The use of methodology, the use of 

21 planning, involvement of the students in the lesson, 

22 providing for individual needs and differences, making 

23 lessons interesting. Those are the things that he 

... 24 

25 

could not or would not do and therefore, he was an 

unsatisfactory teacher who became an insubordinate 
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2 teacher. 

3 Q. So you're equating insubordination and 

4 effectiveness? 

5 A. I equate insubordination as his refusal to 

6 attend pre and post observation conferences with his 

7 department supervisor. 

8 Q. Are you equating insubordination with 

9 anything else? 

10 A. His failure to follow to supervisory 

11 instructions before he stopped going to pre and post 

12 observation conferences. 

13 Q. Well, if a teacher disagrees with.an 

14 instruction, is the teacher insubordinate if he 

15 doesn't follow the instruction? 

16 A. The answer is yes. It is a teacher's 

17 obligation to follow the direction of their supervisor 

18 or their principal. If they disagree with it after 

19 complying, they have the right to grieve it as being 

20 unprofessional, unfair or whatever and then the 

21 appeals process would evaluate it. But it is the 

22 teacher's obligation to follow the direction. 

23 Q. 

... 24 A. 

25 Q. 

Well, is instruction direction? 

Yes . 

Is there is difference between direction 
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2 and instruction or are they the same? 

3 A. They are very closely related. I'm 

4 instructing you to do something is the same as 

5 directing you to do something. It may be slightly 

6 different. 

7 Q. I'm giving an instruction on how to teach a 

8 class. Is that direction on how to teach a class? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. SO is it fair to say that after you 

11 concluded, at the point that you concluded that 

12 Dr. Roemer was, in your mind, was being an ineffective 

13 teacher, an unsatisfactory teacher, you were directing 

14 him now to teach developmental and to teach and have 

15 developmental lesson plans? 

16 A. I think these observation reports will 

17 indicate at several points that whether he was a 

18 constructivist or lecture demonstrator could be done 

19 effectively and there were ways of making it 

20 effective. He refused to make any changes in the 

21 quote ,"constructivist approach," which he really 

22 didn't follow or a lecture demonstrator approach, 

23 which he also didn't follow. There were suggestions 

.. 24 for improvement in either. He made no changes at all. 

25 Q. Let me ask you this question: In your 
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2 opinion, was Dr. Roemer interested in teaching? 

3 A. In my personal opinion? 

4 Q. Yes. 

5 A. I think Dr. Roemer was afraid of teaching. 

6 Q. That's not the question I'm asking you. 

7 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Ask an open-ended 

8 question. 

9 MR. EDELMAN: Forget that. Ask it 

10 another way. 

11 Q. Was he interested in being a teacher? 

12 A. I don't think so. 

13 Q. What do you base that on, sir? 

14 A. I think he had a fear of children. I think 

15 he had a fear of the classroom situation. I don't 

16 think he demonstrated any interest by devoting time to 

17 plan lessons which would express his own interest in 

18 the subject with the hope that he could communicate 

19 that to a class. I honestly do not believe Dr. Roemer 

20 was interested in teaching. 

21 Q. Did you come to that conclusion at any time 

22 during the first year or is that a conclusion you 

23 reached later? 

.. 24 A. The question was never asked until now. I 

25 don't think I ever really thought of it much until 
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now. Certainly, and I got the impression that he was 

afraid of kids or afraid of the classroom situation by 

his refusal, after it was suggested to call kids by 

name, he seemed to have no interest in the kids as 

human beings. 

Q. Is the fact that he would-- that a teacher 

would not call a child by his name, does that make it 

unsatisfactory? 

A. By itself? 

Q. Yes. 

A. No. But it can be an ingredient which 

enhances or leads to an unsatisfactory rating. 

Q. Is that important? 

A. It is very important because it humanizes a 

classroom and shows that value you the kids that you 

thought enough of them to learn their name. But it is 

also an element in control of the class, since it 

breaks the anonymity because a youngster knows he is 

accountable to a name. It makes it possible for a 

teacher to praise the youngster by calling him or her 

a name. It removes him really from any human contact 

with the kid. 

Q. Do you know whether there was an 

appreciable difference-- Dr. Roemer's students 
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basically passed the Regents by the same ratio of 

students passed the Regents? 

A. There is a letter from Ira Cohen, it may be 

his second year, which indicates that there were lower 

passing percentages and a higher percentage of 

youngsters not showing up for the exam from Dr. 

Roemer's classes than the classes of some of his 

clients. 

Q. It's a letter that--

A. A letter that Mr. Cohen wrote to Dr. Roemer 

early in the second year I believe. 

Q. I've never seen it. 

A. Or it's late the first year. Do you want 

me to take the time? 

MR. EDELMAN: No. Wait. Let me make 

this point and I know Mr. Fielv and Mr. Mazzariello 

and I had this discussion in camera and I'll put it on 

the record now: 

As I understand this case, the Board is not 

seeking to demonstrate incompetence by Regents scores 

or passing scores of the students. 

It's based on that representation that I 

indicated to Mr. Fielv and prior counsel that I would 

not require them to furnish student records. That's 
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2 not what this case is about. 

3 I recognize this matter is first raised on 

4 cross examination, but it clearly wasn't raised on 

5 direct examination. For our purposes, we're not 

6 interested in that as it relates to this case. We are 

7 not interested in how they did at a greater or lesser 

8 rates than students of other teachers. 

9 MR. FIELV: The only question I'm 

10 raising, sir, is this: I'm going by the understanding 

11 of what the commissioner has said incompetency is. 

12 MR. EDELMAN: I understand the phrase 

13 "valid educational experience." I understand the 

14 commissioner uses it. The purpose of this hearing, to 

15 put it very directly, is on what Dr. Roemer gave to 

16 the students and not what the students gleaned from 

17 the teacher. If you think about it, that's what this 

18 case is about. 

19 MR. FIELV: Well, except for the 

20 charge of incompetency, and incompetency being defined 

21 by the commissioner several times as valid educational 

22 experience. Now I recognize and understand that that 

23 can be a subjective situation. I do think it can be 

24 possible objectively to determine by test results 

25 depending on the tests . 
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2 THE COURT: I understand. We can 

3 spend an hour on tests and they wouldn't be defined. 

4 I don't believe that's what this case is about. I'm 

5 not precluding you from calling students to testify. 

6 MR. FIELV: I have no intention of 

7 calling students. 

8 MR. EDELMAN: I'm not precluding 

9 evidence whether from students or others to indicate 

10 that Dr. Roemer did, in fact, to use your phrase, 

11 promote a valid educational experience by doing 

12 certain things in class. This case is not about test 

13 scores. It is not about the rate at which students 

14 passed or failed or the rate at which students passed 

15 or succeeded. It's not about that. Let's move on. 

16 Q. By your observations, sir, you go into a 

17 lot of details about what happened in class. Is it 

18 fair to say that in your observation what you did 

19 tells us is exactly what happened in class, basically 

20 nothing is left out of the report? 

21 A. They are snapshots. It doesn't include 

22 everything that took place in the 45 minutes or one 

23 hour period, but I think they give the essence of what 

24 went on in the 45 minute or one hour period. 

25 Q. If somebody was to look at those things, 
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2 they would have a good picture of what happened on 

3 that day in that classroom? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 MR. FIELV: May I ask for couple of 

6 minutes. I'm almost finished. 

7 THE COURT: Sure. 

8 (Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

9 record) . 

10 MR. EDELMAN: Back on. Mr. Fielv, 

11 anything further? 

12 Q. Mr. Bruckner, in evaluating Dr. Roemer as a 

13 teacher, you are evaluating him as a physics teacher 

14 at Murrow High School, am I correct? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Now, when Dr. Roemer came to you, he came 

17 as a tenured teacher? 

18 A. He did. 

19 Q. Which would be indicative that he had three 

20 plus year's of satisfactory service? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. And satisfactory observations and 

23 evaluations that he had them both as a probationary 

24 teacher and after? 

25 A. Not necessarily. 
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2 Q. When you say not necessarily, he didn't 

3 have any "U's· did he? 

4 A. I would have no way of knowing. 

5 Q. If I was to tell you that he had no ·U's,· 

6 is it possible for a teacher not to be satisfactory 

7 and be incompetent in your eyes-- and I respect your 

8 eyes, sir, but yet to be a competent teacher under 

9 other circumstances in other places and circumstances? 

10 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object. 

11 Anything's possible Mr. Edelman. 

12 MR. EDELMAN: I sustain. Rephrase it. 

13 Q. Can a teacher, by your standards, I'll use 

14 any definition you use, be incompetent at Murrow 

15 teaching physics and be competent teaching physics or 

16 a science in another school? 

Yes. 

18 Q. And is that not true because supervisors 

19 and principals-- it's a subjective science, am I 

20 correct, and its various variables? 

21 A. There are varying various variables and it 

22 is subjective within a range. 

23 Q. What's that range? 

24 A. The range is contract grievance procedures, 

25 appeals and review, and therefore, unsatisfactory 
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2 ratings probably tend to hover around some type of 

3 middle area rather than going allover the place. The 

4 range is subject to be as narrowed. 

5 Q. But Dr. Roemer, and I use the Roemer-- I 

6 don't label it any other methodology but the Roemer 

7 methodology, had used that Roemer methodology at the 

8 previous school he had taught Erasmus-- not in physics 

9 but in another subject, I think it was Diagnosis of 

10 Science. 

11 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm going to object 

12 at this point. It calls for speculation. 

13 MR. EDELMAN: I want to hear the whole 

14 question. 

15 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Fielv is not the 

16 principal. 

17 MR. EDELMAN: I'll entertain the 

18 objection. Let him get the whole question out. 

19 Q. Can Dr. Roemer be a competent teacher at 

20 Erasmus teaching that subject, even though he would be 

21 incompetent by your standards to teach physics at 

22 Murrow? 

23 A. In the light of the situation at Erasmus, 

24 which is a school under review, it's possible he 

25 wasn't effective there either, but I would have no way 
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2 of knowing. 

3 THE COURT; Anything further? 

4 Q. He also taught at Midwood for several 

5 years, did he not? 

6 A. He has indicated so. 

7 Q. Is Midwood considered a--

8 A. Midwood is considered a superior school. 

9 Q. And the same level as Murrow? 

10 A. Possibly it surpasses it. 

11 Q. And he became tenured there as a physics 

12 teacher, right, at Midwood, am I correct? 

13 A. I don't know. 

14 Q. But you would agree that Midwood is a 

15 school in the same range or if not better than Murrow? 

16 A. Midwood is a fine school. 

17 Q. Midwood is a school which-- is that an open 

18 school or do you have to take a test? 

19 MR. EDELMAN; No test. 

20 A. Midwood is a bipolar school in that it has 

21 screen programs in science, math, and humanities which 

22 draws superior students from throughout the city. The 

23 primary group probably come from Brooklyn, but it also 

24 has a neighborhood youngster who is quite different in 

25 terms of his ability and success . 
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2 Q. When you say bipolar, what is that? 

3 A. That youngsters tend to hover around the 

4 poles. There is a very superior group and a there is 

5 a very weak group. 

6 Q. What you just described as Midwood, was 

7 that the situation at Midwood-- when did you start? 

8 DR. ROEMER: '84. 

9 Q. 1984-- in the mid eighties, if you know? 

10 A. To the best of my knowledge, the medical 

11 science program was not as large in those days as it 

12 is now but I couldn't give you specifics. 

13 Q. You say medical science. 

14 A. That's the name of the science program 

15 there. 

16 Q. I see. Now, looking at the evaluation or 

17 observation for October 5, 1994, Dr. Roemer did not 

18 get an unsatisfactory observation on that day, did he? 

19 A. I stated that the lesson was in great need 

20 of improvement. 

21 Q. You didn't rate him unsatisfactory? 

22 A. No. 

23 Q. Can you tell us, was Dr. Roemer attempting 

24 to have the children themselves determine the 

25 differences between Newton and Aristotle laws? 
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2 A. Without guidance, without any background, 

3 he was asking them to. 

4 "Can everyone see what Aristotle said? Can 

5 you see the Aristotelian statement? If you read it 

6 carefully, it looks the same as the Newton statement. 

7 So if you read it carefully, it looks the same, but 

8 are really different." 

9 Then he told the class to break up into 

10 groups of two, three, and four. A student said she 

11 didn't understand. And he said, "Does anyone see the 

12 difference? I want you to make the observation here." 

13 There were no observations here. The kids were being 

14 asked to compare two paragraphs and there was no 

15 background that they necessarily had to make it 

16 possible for them. 

17 Q. Were the students being asked to compare 

18 the paragraphs also being asked to do certain 

19 movements and experiments? 

20 A. "I want you to make the observations. If 

21 they both say the same things, the observations are 

22 correct." Therefore, at that point, all he's asking 

23 them is to read and compare. You've told the class 

24 that you would do the first experiment and they would 

25 do the force diagrams. 
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2 A student asked what was the answer to the 

3 first experiment and you said, "I'd rather you discuss 

4 it with your group." Well, certainly it's apparent 

5 that she's asked a question that the group wasn't able 

6 to deal with. 

7 Another student asked if you wanted the 

8 calculations or just true false. You then gave a 

9 demonstration. This is the complete opposite of the 

10 constructivist approach. The teacher is doing. The 

11 kids aren't doing. He's demonstrating. He's 

12 telling. 

13 A student asked the meaning of the word 

14 "net" as used in your law of inertia. A student 

15 challenged your statement that the rolling ball did 

16 not create friction. And you agreed that it created 

17 some friction but you wanted them to pretend it 

18 doesn't stop and agreed that a small amount does 

19 exist. He was asking them to contradict what they 

20 see. 

21 Q. Would it possible that this is exactly what 

22 Dr. Roemer wanted the children to do ln order to get 

23 the point across? 

24 A. There is no point that he is getting across 

25 here because there's nothing that the kids are being 
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asked to do and if they have any understanding of, and 

they have limited understanding, except to compare two 

statements: One of Aristotle, one from Newton. 

And then he is demonstrating and then when 

the kids are raising questions which seem to indicate 

that it's not what it says it is, and so he concedes 

at that point that there is some friction, but you 

wanted them to pretend it doesn't stop. 

Well, constructivism in science is not 

based upon pretense. It's based upon observation. 

It's based upon a hypothesis. It's based upon 

testing, but it is not asking the kids to pretend it 

doesn't stop. That's not effective science teaching. 

Q. Can I see it, sir. 

A. (Handing) . 

Q. All right. Now, the lesson that day--

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can he have the 

lesson back please, sir. 

Q. (Handing)·. On paragraph six, isn't it true 

that the children who completed the lesson early, at 

11:05, a number of children did, isn't' it true that 

they achieved the objective? 

A. They may have given up. 

Q. Or they may have achieved the objective. 
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2 A. Or they may have tuned out since there was 

3 no effective instruction taking place. 

4 Q. Or they may have achieved--

5 MR. EDELMAN: Let's not go on with all 

6 this. Let's move on. 

7 Q. You don't know? 

8 A. What is factual that with 20 minutes left 

9 of the period, three groups were no longer engaged on 

10 the assignment. 

11 Q. And for what reason? 

12 A. What we do know, and certainly what the 

13 principal who was the observer noted, is these kids 

14 were no longer engaged in science education for at 

15 least-- I don't know if this is an hour or 45 minute 

16 period, but for either a half a or a third of a 

17 period, these kids were no longer receiving science 

18 education. 

19 MR. FIELV: May I have that again, 

20 sir. I'm sorry. (Handing) 

21 (Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

22 record) 

23 I have no further questions at this time. 

24 THE COURT: Mr. Mazzariello? 

25 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 
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2 BY MR. MAZZARIELLO: 

3 Q. Dr. Bruckner when Dr. Roemer started 

4 school, did you give instructions on what was required 

5 of your teachers in your school? 

6 A. All teachers who are newly assigned meet 

7 with me. I give them a handbook, guide, a book on 

8 questioning techniques. They are told what the time 

9 schedule is. They are told that they must have 

10 written lesson plans. 

11 They are told that students should be 

12 involved, that the teacher guide which is given 

13 contained several pages on methodology and the teacher 

14 receipts for it as well. The.refore, all teachers new 

15 to the building know what is expected of them. 

16 Q. Okay. I'd like to have marked for 

17 identification as Board's number--

18 MR. EDELMAN: Board's 5. 

19 (Document dated September 19 was 

20 marked as Board of Education's Exhibit No. 

21 5 for identification, as of this date.) 

22 Do you recognize that document that was 

23 just handed to you? 

'··24 A. 

25 Q. 

Yes. 

What do you recognize it to be? 
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2 A. This is the summary of the meeting with new 

3 teachers which is held the first, second day that 

4 they're in the building and that they're asked to sign 

5 for which indicates that they have received and are 

6 aware of what is stated here and what transpired at 

7 the meeting. 

8 Q. Did you sign the document, Mr. Bruckner? 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. Did Dr. Roemer sign that document? 

11 A. It's hard to read the signature. 

12 MR. FIELV: Your Honor, we'll concede 

13 that. 

14 MR. EDELMAN: Okay. You're offering 

15 that--

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Into evidence. 

17 MR. EDELMAN: Yes. 

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Thank you. 

19 (Board's 5 for identification was 

20 marked as Board's 5 in evidence as of this 

21 date.) 

22 Q. Mr. Bruckner, is there anywhere stated in 

23 that document about lesson plans? 

... 24 A. 

25 Q. 

Item number two clearly states . 

Can you slowly read it for the panel and 
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the arbitrator? 

A. "A written lesson plan is required for each 

and every lesson, although the specific format of the 

plan is not prescribed, it should provide a 

motivation, specifics for the development of the 

lesson, pivotal questions, summaries, applications, 

the homework assignment, and the materials and 

instruction and the activities to be employed." 

Q. During the 1994-95 school year, did Dr. 

Roemer follow those instructions? 

A. No. 

Q. During the 1995-96 school year did Dr. 

Roemer follow those instructions? 

A. No. 

Q. At any point did he follow those 

instructions under your supervision? 

A. No. 

Q. To your knowledge, how about Ira Cohen's? 

A. No. 

Q. Mr. Fielv wanted to bring out the point 

that maybe Dr. Roemer could go to another school and 

be effective. Do you have an opinion as to that, Mr. 

Bruckner? 

A. I've been in five schools. I've been in a 
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2 school-- I've been in schools at polar ends of the 

3 spectrum. I've been in Bushwick High School, I've 

4 been in John Dewey High School. I do not believe that 

5 Dr. Roemer would be an effective teacher in another 

6 school. 

7 The distribution of work sheets is busy 

8 work, and even in a school where the youngsters may 

9 have severe academic deficits, it's not helping them 

10 learn in any way, it's merely keeping them busy. 

11 Q. Dr. Bruckner-- are you Dr. or Mr.? 

12 A. It's an honorary doctor. 

13 Q. Dr. Bruckner, when you first met Dr. 

14 Roemer, did you have any preconceived notions about 

15 him? 

16 A. None at all. 

17 Q. Did you know that he was a constructionist? 

18 A. No. 

19 Q. Were you told by any of your supervisors to 

20 watch him? 

21 A. No. 

22 Q. So pretty much it was a tableau rosa when 

23 you first met him? 

" 24 A. 

25 Q. 

Yes. 

The first observation you did you rated him 
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2 neither satisfactory nor unsatisfactory? 

3 A. Except the lesson was in need of 

4 improvement. 

5 Q. Why did you do that? 

6 A. Because the lesson was in need of 

7 improvement. But you don't say a lesson is 

8 unsatisfactory when a teacher comes into the building, 

9 because the hope is that the teacher is going to 

10 respond to supervision and therefore is going to 

11 improve. Therefore, you don't want to give them any 

12 type of very harsh, negative message. 

13 Just like when we deal with kids in the 

14 classroom. We want them feel that they can succeed. 

15 We want teachers to feel they can succeed as well. 

16 Q. Mr. Bruckner, it was brought out on cross 

17 examination about meetings for pre and post 

18 observation conferences. Is that an important step in 

19 teacher evaluations? 

20 A. It is an important step. 

21 Q. What was Dr. Roemer's attitude towards the 

22 pre and post observation conferences? 

23 

., 24 

25 

A. He felt they were useless because he could 

not accept any of the suggestions that were being 

made. 
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Q. Mr. Edelman, at this time I'd like to 

direct another document that goes towards 

specifications 2-C. I'd like to have it marked for 

identification. 

(Document was marked as Board's 6 for 

identification, as of this date.) 

MR. EDELMAN: Admission into evidence 

is what you're seeking? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Right. 

MR. EDELMAN: Any objection to its 

introduction, Mr. Fielv? 

MR. FIELV: What are we introducing, 

just one letter? You gave me three documents. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: They are all 

related. There is the letter, there is your client's 

response, then there is the rebuttal. 

MR. FIELV: Do you want to introduce 

all four of these. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Sure. They're all 

related but I'm specifically going to talk to this 

witness about the first page. 

MR. FIELV: I'll stipulate the first 

pages, concede the first page. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Fine. 
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MR. EDELMAN: Separate them. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'll just rip off 

the first page. 

MR. EDELMAN: So we're introducing the 

first page without objection in evidence? 

(Board's 6 was marked in evidence as 

of this date.) 

MR. EDELMAN: What is the date on that 

Mr. Bruckner? 

THE WITNESS: 9/28 1995. 

MR. EDELMAN: From who to whom. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: From Mr. Bruckner to 

Dr. Roemer. 

MR. EDELMAN: Okay. Mr. Mazzariello, 

you may proceed. It's in evidence 

BY MR. MAZZARIELLO: 

Q. Dr. Bruckner, you wrote that document 

that's been admitted into evidence. Tell the three 

panel members and the arbitrator what you wrote and 

why you wrote it? 

MR. FIELV: I object. The document 

speaks for itself. 

THE COURT: He can tell us why he 

wrote it. Why did you write it? 
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2 A. I wrote the letter because Dr. Roemer was 

3 refusing to meet with the supervisor for post 

4 observations conference and instead of meeting with 

5 him, Dr. Roemer sent a letter indicating why he would 

6 not meet with him. 

7 Therefore, his failure to meet with the 

8 department supervisor, which is a professional 

9 obligation, was such that I notified him that his 

10 failure to meet the supervisor would be considered and 

11 act of insubordination and he was directed to meet 

12 with his supervisor in three days. 

l3 Q. To your knowledge, did he do so? 

14 A. To the best of my knowledge, I'm not 

15 certain of that without referencing to documents. I 

16 believe the answer is no. 

17 Q. Approximately how many times, if you know, 

18 did Dr. Roemer refuse to meet for his pre or post 

19 observation conferences? 

20 MR. FIELV: Objection. This is only 

21 addressing post. 

22 MR. EDELMAN: He is asking him about 

23 

'. 24 

25 

pre and post. The questions are permissible. If he 

only has knowledge about post he will answer to that. 

A. As the year progressed, he refused to 
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2 attend pre as well as post observation conferences. 

3 Q. For someone that was rated "U" for 94-95 

4 school year, Mr. Bruckner, why would it be important 

5 to meet for pre and post observation conferences for 

6 the 95-96 school year? 

7 A. The role of the supervisor is to help the 

8 teacher improve instruction. 

9 Q. Is it your testimony that you tried to help 

10 him improve his instruction? 

11 A. We sought to help Dr. Roemer improve his 

12 instructional techniques by meeting with meeting with 

13 him, by planning, by observing and Dr. Roemer refused 

14 from September 28 on to be involved in the process of 

15 improvement. 

16 Q. Mr. Bruckner, I know you testified a while 

17 ago on direct examination why-- do you feel under your 

18 experience as an educator and supervisor that your 

19 afforded him every opportunity at remediation? 

20 A. Yes, I do. 

21 Q. Do you feel in your professional opinion 

22 there is anything else you could have done for Mr. 

23 Bruckner? 

.. 24 A. 

25 Q. 

No I do not . 

I have no further questions. 
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2 MR. FIELV: I have a few. 

3 THE COURT: Sure 

4 RE-CROSS EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. FIELV: 

6 Q. Did there come a time early in the second 

7 year that Dr. Roemer where-- let me categorize that. 

8 When did Dr. Roemer, in your opinion, become 

9 insubordinate? 

10 A. As early as September 28 when he was 

11 warned--

12 Q. Was any consideration? 

13 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can he answer the 

14 question. 

15 MR. EDELMAN: Go ahead. 

16 A. He was warned that his failure to attend 

17 meetings with his supervisor would be considered 

18 insubordination. 

19 Q. It reached a point where Dr. Roemer was not 

20 working effectively, either in the view of you or Mr. 

21 Cohen, am I correct? 

22 

23 

" 24 

25 

A. Yes. 

Q. Was any consideration given to possibly 

have Dr. Roemer transferred to another school? 

A. Transfers take place at specified times as 
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a result of the contract and other regulations. 

Q. I understand that, but transfers do occur 

at times during the school year? 

A. For exceptional and extraordinary reasons, 

but it would be up to Dr. Roemer to initiate a 

request. 

Q. I understand that. Now, Dr. Roemer 

certainly there was not a-- Dr. Roemer being licensed 

in physics, there is not a dearth of physics teachers? 

A. There is a shortage. 

Q. Was there a shortage in 1994-95? 

A. (Witness nodded) . 

MR. EDELMAN: Witness just nodded yes. 

Q. And any discussions of possibility that 

maybe-- things weren't work out at Murrow but possibly 

would work out better someplace else also in the 

system? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. Mr. 

Edelman, this is just so farfetched. I don't even 

understand the question myself. 

MR. EDELMAN: Overruled. He was 

asking on redirect about Mr. Bruckner's about any 

school that relates--

MR. MAZZARIELLO: which was brought 
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2 out on cross. 

3 MR. EDELMAN: Overruled. 

4 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. Could you 

5 repeat it? 

6 MR. FIELV: Read back the question for 

7 us. 

8 (Whereupon the requested question was read 

9 back) . 

10 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm going to object 

11 again. Mr. Edelman, the Board of Education's policy 

12 is not to remove bad apples from one school and put 

13 them in another. I don't really appreciate the 

14 question. I don't really understand it. 

15 MR. EDELMAN: Overruled. Answer the 

16 question. 

17 THE WITNESS: No thought was given to 

18 a transfer since it was my understanding of transfer 

19 regulations would preclude any transfer except for 

20 specified periods. 

21 Q. Did you have any specific conversations in 

22 the second year, 1995-96, with Dr. Coppin's office 

23 about Dr. Roemer yourself? 

'" 24 A. 

25 Q. 

No. 

Do you know whether Mr. Cohen did? 
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A. He wouldn't have. 

Q. They would have been strictly with your 

office? 

A. Let me modify that. The only contact I 

would have in reference to Dr. Roemer would be 

requesting the supervisory visit in order to determine 

whether my impressions of Dr. Roemer's effectiveness 

were shared by the superintendent. 

Q. Did you request such visits? 

A. I requested such a visit by the 

superintendent--

Q. I'm not talking about the first year-- the 

second? 

A. In both years. 

Q. Apart from letters that went back and forth 

about the post observation conferences, did you have 

any discussions with Dr. Roemer as to why he refused 

to go to the post observations conferences? 

A. We discussed them at times, I believe in 

the previous years as well. 

Q. Well, do you recall what he'said? 

A. Yes. Dr. Roemer felt that it was worthless 

to attend meetings with Mr. Cohen and myself because 

we could not accept what he felt was the Roemer 
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2 method, and we could not the accept the Roemer method 

3 because it was unsatisfactory instruction. 

4 (Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

5 record) 

6 MR. FIELV: I have no further 

7 questions. 

8 MR. EDELMAN: Anything further, Mr. 

9 Mazzariello. 

10 MR. MAZZARIELLO: No, I have nothing 

11 further. 

12 MS. PETRUCELLI: I have a question 

13 just to clarify the question of transfers or 

14 appointments. Do you or any member of the 

15 administrative staff have an opportunity to meet with 

16 potential transfers or newly appointed teachers prior 

17 to their taking a position at your school? 

18 A. Transfers do not require interviews, and 

19 therefore the answer no. Sometimes a teacher, when 

20 applying for a transfer, might ask for a meeting in 

21 order to determine the climate in the school to see if 

22 they really want to transfer. 

23 When it comes to appointees, there's really 

.. 24 no place for an interview. Dr. Roemer was not 

25 interviewed and did not seek an interview before his 
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2 transfer. He exercised his contractual rights BY MR. 

3 FIELV: 

4 Q. When Dr. Roemer transferred in was he 

5 transferred to your school specifically or was he just 

6 transferred anywhere? 

7 A. He was transferred specifically to the 

8 Edward R. Murrow High School. 

9 Q. There's a vacancy in physics announced at 

10 Edward R. Murrow? 

11 A. No. The vacancy circular simply will list 

12 the school, the vacancy, and in parentheses the number 

13 off vacancies in that subject area. 

14 Q. So when a teacher is applying it is to go 

15 to Edward R. Murrow? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

" 24 

25 

A. If they have enough seniority--

Q. I assume--

A. Compared to the others who are applying. 

Dr. Roemer may have been in a somewhat different 

circumstance because Erasmus was a school under review 

and was being changed from a large high school to 

three smaller schools; and therefore, 'teachers and 

schools under reorganization had the right to transfer 

outside seniority. 

WIN I F RED M. R A DIG A N, after having 
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2 first been duly sworn by a Notary Public of 

3 the State of New York, was examined and 

4 testified as follows: 

5 MR. EDELMAN: State your name, 

6 please, . 

7 THE WITNESS: Winifred M. Radigan. 

8 MR. EDELMAN: Would you spell that. 

9 THE WITNESS: R-A-D-I-G-A-N. 

10 MR. EDELMAN: Thank you. You may 

11 proceed. 

12 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

13 BY MS. CLARKE-TURNER: 

14 Q. Good afternoon, Ms. Radigan. 

15 A. Good afternoon. 

16 Q. Where are you employed now? 

17 A. New York City Board of Education. 

18 Q. In what capacity are you employed? 

19 A. I am currently the director of priority 

20 schools in the office of school programs and support 

21 services. 

22 Q. How long have you been empl'oyed by the New 

23 York City Board of Education? 

' .. 24 A. For 16 years with the Board of Ed in 

25 various capacities . 

. 
ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICES 

(516) 689-0111 



82 

1 HEARING 

2 Q. Tell us a little bit about your educational 

3 background. 

4 A. I've been a teacher for-- I've been in 

5 education for 27 years. I've been-- I came to the 

6 Board as I said, 16 years ago. I have been a 

7 supervisor for 11 of the 16 years. I was supervisor 

8 of English at Erasmus High School. I was supervisor 

9 of all academic subjects at Brooklyn College Academy, 

10 which was an alternative school, for four years. I 

11 was instructional supervisor for all academic subjects 

12 for six years. 

13 I worked at the Brooklyn superintendent's 

14 office as her executive assistant for instruction. I 

15 directed the development of the science program in the 

16 borough and the math program in the borough as well as 

17 directly supervising the development of professional 

18 development programs and curriculum. 

19 Since August 18, I have been working for 

20 Dr. Harrington and my job is to improve instruction in 

21 the low performance high schools. 

22 Q. 

23 Roemer? 

: .. 24 A. 

25 Q. 

Ma'am, are you familiar the respondent, Dr. 

Yes, I know Dr. Roemer. 

How are you familiar with Dr. Roemer? 
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2 A. In my capacity as executive assistant to 

3 Joyce Coppin, I observed Dr. Roemer teach. I also 

4 read a proposal he had made on some curriculum issues 

5 and I attended some conciliation hearings, as I 

6 recall, that's how I know him. 

7 Q. Do you know the respondent socially? 

8 A. No. 

9 Q. Do you hold any ill will to the respondent? 

10 A. No. 

11 Q. Did you ever teach physics, ma'am? 

12 A. No, I never taught physics. 

13 Q. Directing your attention to approximately 

14 May 17, 1995. Did you do an observation of the 

15 respondent? 

16 A. Yes, I did. 

17 Q. Do you have an independent recollection of 

18 the observation? 

19 A. No, I don't, not at this point. 

20 Q. Did you document the observation? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. And is this it? 

23 MR. EDELMAN: I think it's in 

··24 evidence. 

25 MS. CLARKE-TURNER: 1R . 
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2 MR. EDELMAN: Then it's in evidence. 

3 May 17, 1995. 

4 MS. CLARKE-TURNER: Yes. The 

5 observation is May 17, the date of the report is May 

6 19. (Handing) . 

7 THE COURT: Thank you. 

8 Q. Would you take a look at this, ma'am. 

9 (Handing). Do you recognize this document? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. What do you recognize it as? 

12 A. A report of my observation of Dr. Roemer's 

13 B-band, second period class. 

14 Q. Can you tell us what you observed on or 

15 about May 17, 1995 in Dr. Roemer's class? 

16 A. Yes. I observed--

17 MR. EDELMAN: If it's simply-- if I 

18 may. If it's simply what's in the report, especially 

19 since she indicated she wanted to look, I think the 

20 report stands for itself and I take her past 

21 recollection accordingly. 

22 MS. CLARKE-TURNER: Okay. Ms. 

23 Radigan, did you come to a conclusion after you 

24 observed Dr. Roemer's class? 

25 A. Yes. 
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Q. What was that conclusion? 

A. That Dr. Roemer was an incompetent teacher 

and that the lesson was unsatisfactory. 

Q. In your professional opinion, can Dr. 

Roemer teach a class in a school other than Edward R. 

Murrow? 

A. No, no. 

Q. I have nothing further. 

MR. EDELMAN: Thank you. Mr. Fielv? 

EXAMINATION BY 

MR. FIELV: 

Q. Is it Dr. Radigan? 

A. No, I haven't done my dissertation yet, but 

thanks for asking. 

MR. EDELMAN: ABD. 

MR. FIELV: Excuse me? 

MR. EDELMAN: All but the 

dissertation. 

Q. Ms. Radigan? 

A. Ms. is fine, thank you. 

Q. Ms. Radigan, is that the only time that you 

observed Dr. Roemer? 

A. I believe I observed him before, but I 

really don't remember too well. I believe I had been 
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2 in his classes in another school on an informal 

3 capacity to give feedback to him on his teaching. 

4 Q. Your recollection as you sit here today is 

5 you may have observed Dr. Roemer before? 

6 A. Urn hum. 

7 THE COURT: If you're giving assent, 

8 you must say yes. 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. In observing in Dr. Roemer at the other 

11 schools, do you have any opinion at that time whether 

12 he was an ineffective or incompetent teacher? 

13 A. My recollection is that the class I was in 

14 for a short period of time, that not a lot was going 

15 on and that there needed to be improvement and I gave 

16 those recommendations to Dr. Roemer and to the 

17 assistant principal at the time. 

18 Q. Do you remember what school it was? 

19 A. I believe it was at Erasmus when we were 

20 preparing for restructuring of the school into new, 

21 smaller schools. 

22 Q. In what capacity were you at that time? 

23 A. At that time I would still have been-- that 

24 would have been a few years previously, I would still 

25 have been at Joyce Coppin's office . 
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2 Q. And was he an incompetent teacher? 

3 A. I can't come to a conclusion. As I said, I 

4 went to several classes, his was among them, for a 

5 short period of time. He was not as effective as he 

6 should have been but I was not there long enough to 

7 make a judgement. 

8 Q. In concluding that Dr. Roemer was 

9 incompetent, you're basing it strictly on the one 

10 observation you made on May 17? 

11 A. As I said previously, I sat with Dr. Roemer 

12 in conference after that observation and I saw the 

13 results of his student work. I certainly reviewed 

14 what the principal had recommended; and in my capacity 

15 as the superintendent's exec, I concurred with the 

16 principal and the assistant principal that there was a 

17 great deal of intervention given and no improvement 

18 had taken place; and, yes, Dr. Roemer was incompetent 

19 on all of that. This was the final observation. 

20 Q. Incompetent or unsatisfactory? 

21 A. The lesson was unsatisfactory. The total 

22 body of evidence, including Dr. Roemer's comments at 

23 conciliation hearings when we tried to work with him 

24 regarding what he was being directed to do as a 

25 teacher, all of that indicates he is incompetent, 
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2 unfortunately, as a teacher. 

3 Q. Are you equating-- when you say a teacher 

4 is incompetent, are you looking at where the teacher 

5 is satisfactory or unsatisfactory? 

6 A. I'm looking at the fact, and this 

7 observation report bares it out, of the May lesson as 

8 one example, that students were not able to be 

9 controlled in the classroom, that there was a lesson 

10 for 12 minutes. I think I wrote of the activity, that 

11 when I looked at the curriculum that Dr. Roemer said 

12 was a two day lesson, which he explained to me that 

13 this was a two day lesson as a student-- which he 

14 explained to me was a student lesson sheet. 

15 Attached was a two day lesson, that in the 

16 curriculum was supposed to be a 20 minute suggested 

17 activity as motivation, that Dr. Roemer, in his 

18 response to me, wrote he was teaching the science 

19 syllabus from middle and junior high schools and the 

20 directed syllabus for the course was something called 

21 Foundations of Science. 

22 There was a mandate in the district that 

23 what was to be taught was completely different from 

'" 24 this course. This course was not to be taught. The 

25 fact that Dr. Roemer could not take suggestions, 
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2 direction; that this observation occurred after 

3 intervention with a peer intervener from the UFT, with 

4 a number staff development opportunities, this 

5 observation as a concluding piece of work says to me 

6 that Dr. Roemer is unable to teach. 

7 Q. Were you aware, was there any learning 

8 going on in the class? 

9 A. Learning of new material, my observation 

10 was that there was none, since the students all knew 

11 the answers immediately and had came to no new 

12 conclusions about any information. I believe, and I 

13 would need to look here. 

14 MR. EDELMAN: You may. 

15 A. One young woman answered when they were 

16 asked how to measure an angle, one young woman 

17 answered-- and my memory is she answered sort of 

18 exasperated: Yes, I've known how since the 6th 

19 grade. In fact, the curriculum that was being taught 

20 was 6th grade curriculum and it was a high school 

21 class. 

22 Q. By the way, did Dr. Roemer,'after you had 

23 this observation, did you meet with him? 

" 24 A. Yes, in the principal's office with the 

25 Foundations curriculum in front of both of us. 
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2 Q. Did you receive a letter from Dr. Roemer 

3 thereafter? 

4 A. I did. It's attached to the observation 

5 report. 

6 Q. Did you ever respond to that letter? 

7 A. No. There was a grievance, as I recall, on 

8 this letter, a superintendent's grievance, and at that 

9 time I responded to the matter. 

10 Q. That was several months later? 

11 A. I don't remember exactly when that was. 

·12 Q. Well, more than six months later, December. 

13 Dr. Roemer, in his letter, takes issue with you about 

14 this not being part of the curriculum; am I correct? 

15 A. Yes, he does. Can I read it to you? It 

16 says the--

17 MR. EDELMAN: Don't read. 

18 THE WITNESS: I apologize. I'm an old 

19 English teacher. 

20 Q. Dr. Roemer felt that this lesson was 

21 important for the students to have the Foundations of 

22 Science? 

23 A. 

.. 24 Q. 

25 A. 

Yes. I understood that's what he felt. 

These where 9th graders, am I correct? 

I believe they were 9th graders. 
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2 Q. There was some questions-- Foundations of 

3 Science, was that given to all 9th graders? 

4 A. Foundations of Science was the course that 

5 was offered to students who were not yet ready for the 

6 Regents level course. 

7 Q. These would be the poorer students? 

8 A. That's correct. 

9 Q. Is it not unusual that students in the 9th 

10 grade in the beginning who haven't had the Foundations 

11 course, to have a course on how to use these materials 

12 and have lessons on how to use these materials, what 

13 you call 6th grade? 

14 A. A course was designed specifically for 

15 those students. That course was called Foundations of 

16 Science. 

17 Q. And this was Foundations of Science? 

18 A. Dr. Roemer indicated he was not following 

19 that curriculum. He was following blocks A and J of 

20 the science syllabus for the middle and junior high 

21 schools and the curriculum that was given was to 

22 bridge the gap between middle school and high school. 

23 If in May, in a yearlong course, a student 

24 is doing basic 6th grade work, that student is not 

25 going to be ready in September to take the Regents 

• 
ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICES 

(516) 689-0111 



92 

1 HEARING 

2 course. So the syllabus was not being followed as 

3 prescribed and also as demonstrated to Dr. Roemer. 

4 Q. You said-- was the class controlled? 

5 A. No. 

6 Q. Throughout the whole class it was not 

7 controlled? 

8 A. That is correct. The presence of two other 

9 adults in the class, and the students were not 

10 violent, that's not the nature of Murrow or anything 

11 like that, but the students were drinking soda, eating 

12 lunCh, having side conversations. One was playing 

13 with a hand held Game Boy. 

14 There was no effort at having any kind of 

15 academic control in the class. Students got up and 

16 walked around. They were quelled, if you will, by my 

17 presence and by Dr. Bruckner's presence, but Dr. 

18 Roemer at no time called students to attention or in 

19 any way intervened with behavior that was lacking any 

20 instructional purpose. 

21 Q. What was the instructional objective? 

22 A. The instructional objective? Dr. Roemer's 

23 stated aim was, what was path of light rays. 

24 Q. 

25 objective? 

Did the students achieve the instructional 
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2 A. The students knew it before they started 

3 the lesson based on the first two questions he asked 

4 the students. 

5 Q. In judging Dr. Roemer, in judging the 

6 appropriateness of this lesson, did you consider at 

7 all the students who were taking the lesson, what 

8 their reading scores were, what their general ability 

9 was? 

10 A. I considered the responses that the 

11 students made to questions that were asked. When they 

12 were given the opportunity to the make them, the 

13 students understood and responded accurately without 

14 the need of further demonstration. In spite of that, 

15 Dr. Roemer asked them to do the exercises. 

16 As I pointed out in the report, he asked if 

17 everyone knew how to measure an angle. The response 

18 was, yes. The students, without direction, measured 

19 all the angles and labelled them. 

20 They were not learning in this case. 

21 

22 

23 

" 24 

25 

Q. Now, isn't it possible at various times a 

teacher might give a lesson which new materials were 

not presented for whatever reasons and that teacher 

makes the assumption the students do not know the 

material but, in fact, they do know the material? 
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2 A. That's true. But a competent teacher, when 

3 reviewing, asks to find out and does student 

4 assessments and finds the lessons may need 

5 adjustment. If the students know the materials, he 

6 does not then proceed in teaching it as though they do 

7 not. A competent teacher then adjusts to that by also 

8 teaching something new, another application, another 

9 level in the lesson. Where student were asked to 

10 guide the angles and measure them, there was no 

11 application. There was nothing new. There was no new 

12 law. They simply spent their time going over other 

13 things, doing homework and other things. 

14 Q. Now you mentioned something about 

15 conciliation meetings? 

16 A. Sure. 

17 Q. What's your recollection of the 

18 conciliation meetings? 

19 A. That was a different issue. My 

20 recollection was that Dr. Roemer was taking issue with 

21 the direction given to him that he needed to have a 

22 lesson plan at every lesson. His contention was that 

23 he used student lessons, and therefore did not need a 

24 lesson plan. 

25 My recollection of the conciliation hearing 
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2 is that a report was furnished to Dr. Roemer telling 

3 him that he must have a lesson plan, that yes, he was 

4 arguing-- I remember very clearly, for a 

5 constructivist method and it in fact it was unclear 

6 what that meant. 

7 He was provided with a book that explained 

8 constructivist method and it was suggested and he was 

9 reminded that he must comply with the supervisor's 

10 request as well. So there was an effort to understood 

11 his point of view, an effort to give him material to 

12 elucidate it further, what constructivism in science 

13 does mean, and then a reminder, in general, that he 

14 must have a lesson plan. 

15 Q .. Who was acting as the conciliator? 

16 A. The superintendent, Joyce Coppin. 

17 Q. She was the one who gave Dr. Roemer the 

18 things you just described what he was to do; am I 

19 correct? 

20 A. She was the one who gave the final 

21 disposition in the report, yes. 

22 Q. Isn't it true that in conciliation the 

23 conciliator does not give directions but rather the 

24 conciliator tries to bring the parties together with 

25 some sort of agreement but doesn't make a decision? 
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2 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm going to object 

3 at this time as conciliation has nothing to do with 

4 this 3020-a proceeding. It's outside the charges. If 

5 I had brought this up, it would have been objected 

6 to. Mr. Edelman, this has nothing to do with a 

7 3020-a. 

8 MR. FIELV: It came up in her--

9 MR. EDELMAN: Just let me give a 

10 ruling. It was mentioned briefly by the witness on 

11 direct. I think it's part of the whole issue and it 

12 has some value. 

13 Overruled. 

14 MR. FIELV: Would you read that back, 

15 please. 

16 (Whereupon the requested question was read 

17 back) . 

18 A. As I thought I replied, but maybe I wasn't 

19 clear, it is true than an effort is made to bring the 

20 parties together. Both parties were listened to. 

21 When I said an effort was made to understand what Dr. 

22 Roemer was trying to do with, what I· recall was 

23 defined as "I am using a constructivist approach to 

24 science." 

25 Given that, and in further conversations, 
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2 material was supplied to him as a support to kind of--

3 because, as I recall, Mr. Ira Cohen, who was also 

4 talking about what constructivism meant, so that there 

5 was a common definition, a document that was provide 

6 on staff development, a constructivist approach, and a 

7 ANCD bulletin. 

6 What the superintendent did was to say that 

9 every effort was to support Dr. Roemer to pursue a 

10 constructivist approach. At the same time, Dr. Roemer 

11 was required to follow the directives of Board of 

12 Education and the supervisors. 

l3 Q. So out of that conciliation meeting, the 

14 superintendent was acting as a conciliator at that 

15 level? 

16 A. Yes. 

17 Q. The superintendent directed Dr. Roemer to 

16 do certain things? 

19 A. I'm using that word. I do not recollect 

20 what was in that letter. If the letter is somewhere, 

21 we can check. 

22 MR. EDELMAN: Put it 'aside. You may 

23 introduce it through Dr. Roemer if you wish. I'll 

24 permit it at that point. However it comes in through 

25 the appropriate witness. 
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2 Any other questions? 

3 Q. Is it true in determining whether a teacher 

4 is incompetent, do you consider whether there is a 

5 valid educational experience occurring? 

6 A. Of course. 

7 Q. Is it possible for a teacher-- would you 

8 consider a teacher incompetent and yet there could be 

9 a valid educational experience occurring? 

10 A. No. I would say that what could happen is 

11 that you have well-directed, self-directed students 

12 who will learn in spite of an incompetent teacher. 

13 That's different from a valid educational experience, 

14 which in our society would be called value added. 

15 If you're very bright and capable of 

16 learning on your own, that's fine; but it's my job as 

17 an educator to bring you to another level. 

18 Q. How would you determine whether there was a 

19 valid education experience occurring? 

20 A. If there was some way in a lesson the 

21 cumulative experience of the students where they had 

22 been bought to a level of understanding, insight, 

23 application-- any of those terms that you wish to use, 

24 that showed that they had come to some new 

25 understanding through the direct intervention of their 
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2 teacher. 

3 Q. Would testing determine that? 

4 A. Not necessarily. 

5 Q. But could it? 

6 A. If they were a good assessment, as the 

7 State is attempting to do now, yes, it could, but not 

8 necessarily. 

9 Q. How about the tests that are created by 

10 persons other than the teacher himself? 

11 A. Again not necessarily. May I gave an 

12 example? 

13 Q. Yes. 

14 A. I said when you asked what my credentials 

15 were. 

16 Q. I think Ms. Turner did. 

17 A. Well, when I was asked about what my 

18 credentials were, I said I directed the science 

19 program, the development of the science program in the 

20 Brooklyn superintendency. I also said I was not a 

21 physics teacher, that I was an English teacher. 

22 The science educators who were working with 

23 a me on the biology curriculum challenged my 

24 credentials and asked me to take the Biology Regents, 

25 which I did. I have not have had biology in 20 
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2 years. I got an 84 on the test. 

3 Would you say that I had had a valid 

4 educational experience? My response was, I'm a good 

5 test taker. I'm a smart woman and I know what the 

6 vocabulary is. My point is, if I had had a valid 

7 educational experience, I would certainly know what 

8 myosis is and be able to explain it. I can't, but I 

9 can get an 84 on the test. 

10 Q. So you're saying that testing does not 

11 necessarily determine educational experience? 

12 A. I am answering your question. Testing is 

13 not necessarily the measure of whether the student had 

14 a valid educational experience. 

15 Q. Could it to be? 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. The 

17 question has been asked and answered. It's going 

18 around and around. 

19 THE COURT: Stop. Let's go on. 

20 Q. Okay. But as far as actually seeing Dr. 

21 Roemer teach? 

22 A. Yes. 

23 Q. And in concluding he was an incompetent 

24 teacher, it's based strictly on this one--

25 A. You asked me, and I believe I responded, 
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2 that this was an observation on the superintendent's 

3 behalf. As her representative, I also looked at the 

4 body of material presented by the principal, the 

5 assistant principal, the interventions. 

6 I brought up the conciliation hearing and 

7 other things, other capacities in which I knew Dr. 

8 Roemer, only because those were all other intervention 

9 and supports that were given in an effort in other 

10 arenas. 

11 Q. Was--

12 A. But that had nothing to do-- I based my 

13 testimony on the issue of competence on the body of 

14 material that was presented by the principal, the 

15 assistant principal, and the evidence of staff 

16 development and support and the final observation at 

17 the end of the school year that showed nothing had--

18 no growth or learning had taken place. 

19 Q. Was Dr. Roemer required to teach by a 

20 particular methodology? 

21 A. No, he was not required to teach by a 

22 particular methodology. He was required to deliver 

23 instruction. As I recall, there is flexibility, and 

24 flexibility was given. There had to be a lesson 

25 plan. He could use whatever methodology would engage 
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2 students and provided an opportunity for students to 

3 learn. 

4 Q. When you say there had to be a lesson plan, 

5 could there be a variety of different lesson plans? 

6 A. A lesson plan is a road map that goes from 

7 where the students are at the beginning of the period 

8 or block of time and where you want them to be at the 

9 end. It has a series of activities, questions, 

10 assessments, whatever is going to move from that 

11 beginning point to the end. 

12 How that is written up or defined is not 

13 important, but a lesson plan has to have clearly a 

14 beginning, a series of how you're going to get to the 

15 end, and how you know. whether the students have 

16 achieved the stated goal. It is developmental in 

17 nature. It does not have to have a particular format, 

18 but it does have to have--

19 Q. By the way, a developmental lesson plan is 

20 the same as a constructivist lesson plan? 

21 A. The constructivist method would be employed 

22 in a developmental lesson. A plan, every lesson is 

23 developmental. If you wrote a developmental lesson 

24 plan in which you establish as the activity: A 

25 question, a problem, an open ended experiment where 
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2 students had to observe and draw conclusions, you 

3 would have a constructivist lesson but the plan would 

4 be developmental. 

5 Q. What about lecture demonstrator? 

6 A. There are appropriate times for lecture 

7 demonstration and they could be in any lesson plan. 

8 Again, I reiterate that there should be some method of 

9 assessment, and I don't mean an exam. Some way of 

10 knowing whether the students had, in fact, learned. 

11 Some things are better presented by 

12 lecture. 

13 Q. In a lecture demonstration situation, 

14 there's very little interplay between the lecturer, 

15 the teacher, and the children while the lecture is 

16 going on; am I correct? 

17 A. Well, I don't know what you mean by 

18 interplay. I think everybody is listening right now. 

19 It's clear--

20 Q. What I mean by interplay, I mean is the 

21 teacher openly engaging a particular student in an 

22 interchange of ideas? 

23 A. No. At a moment of time in a lecture, 

24 there may not with an interchange of ideas. 

25 know it until I ask a question . 
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2 Q. Right. Exactly. 

3 A. If I am a competent teacher, I observe the 

4 students listening and I get a sense of whether 

5 they're listening or not. 

6 Q. Now, after the lecture, after a period of 

7 20 minutes, there is a period where the students have 

8 work to do at the desk, questions to answer, and the 

9 teacher circulates around to see what the students are 

10 doing. 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. At that time, the teacher should be able to 

13 determine whether the students got anything out of the 

14 lecture; am I correct? 

15 A. He should. 

16 Q. So that a methodology. and I'm not-- we'll 

17 call it the Roemer methodology for want of a better 

18 word, the methodology in which the teacher would spend 

19 25 minutes presenting a concept--

20 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object to 

21 hypotheticals. I've allowed it to go on. I would 

22 like a specific question. 

23 MR. EDELMAN: Let me hear. 

24 Q. In which a teacher spent 25 minutes 

25 explaining the concept and then had the students do 
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2 some work at the desk based on the concept, problem 

3 solving, et cetera, circulating around and answering 

4 questions which individual students pose, could be an 

5 effective way of teaching, could it not? 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. This is 

7 a hypothetical having nothing do with what this 

8 witness observed, having nothing to do with what we 

9 heard testimony about. 

10 If there's a specific question with regard 

11 to specific observation, particularly what this 

12 witness observed, I think would be acceptable. 

13 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Overruled. Answer 

14 the question? 

15 A. Is it possible-- are you asking me on 

16 occasion, on one lesson to--

17 Q. No. As a method of teaching. 

18 A. As a method of teaching, I would find it a 

19 little bit suspect that for 25 minutes of a 40 minute 

20 period on a routine basis there is lecture allowing 

21 for fewer than ten minutes or twelve minutes of 

22 student work. On a regular basis, I would find that 

23 suspect because it would not allow enough time for 

--24 students to develop an understanding of the 

25 experiments. 
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2 Q. Little more lesson and more time working on 

3 the problems. Would that be--

4 A. It is possible that on an occasion, it 

5 could be an effective lesson. As a regular method, I 

6 repeat, over a body of time, I do not see it as a 

7 method. 

8 Q. What about students working in dyads, 

9 students discussing between themselves, two people? 

10 A. Dyads are very effective, again, on 

11 occasion. If a teacher, again, I have seen in my 

12 experience an incompetent teacher say: Discuss that. 

13 If they have nothing to discuss or if they don't know 

14 what it is they are supposed to do, that particular 

15 method could be weak. 

16 As Spence and Cavan and Johnson and 

17 Johnson, as researchers in cooperative learning would 

18 say, that when you have dyads or triads with a real 

19 question, you have 50 per cent of the students engaged 

20 and thinking and listening rather than only one. 

21 If the teacher asked this question of the 

22 whole group and only one responds. So as a method well 

23 done, truly understood, cooperative learning dyads, 

24 triads, well done truly understood constructivism is a 

25 superior method to whole group lecture. 

t 
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2 Q. What about writing activities or reading 

3 activities, would that be an effective way? 

4 A. Yes. Of course. 

5 Q. There are very many different effective 

6 ways of teaching, is there not? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. And independent study could also be another 

9 way? 

10 A. Could be. 

11 Q. Ms. Radigan, would it be unusual for a 

12 teacher who had been satisfactory for a number of 

13 years, and then all of a sudden be rated 

14 unsatisfactory? 

15 A. Would it be unusual? 

16 Q. In a new school after being in two other 

17 schools. Dr. Roemer's been in two other schools, 

18 Midwood and Erasmus. At Midwood he became tenured and 

19 taught there for four or five years and then taught at 

20 Erasmus, I think for four years with satisfactory 

21 observations when he became tenured. 

22 Now all of a sudden for one year to be 

23 unsatisfactory, would that also be possible for a 

24 teacher to be satisfactory and be a competent in one 

25 place? Does that make him incompetent as a teacher by 
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2 being incompetent at another place? 

3 A. Does it make him incompetent as a teacher 

4 if he were-- I don't understand the question. 

5 MR. EDELMAN: I believe he is asking, 

6 is it unusual to be rated satisfactory at School A and 

7 B and then unsatisfactory at School C? 

8 A. I guess it's relatively unusual. I don't 

9 know. 

10 Q. I'm trying to ask this, Ms. Radigan. Dr. 

11 Roemer is charged with incompetency. The charge means 

12 he's an incompetent teacher, but yet he was 

13 satisfactory elsewhere, was he not? 

14 A. I can't answer to his performance 

15 elsewhere. 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman. I'm 

17 going to have to object. I'm very--

18 MR. EDELMAN: Sustained. It's too 

19 speculative in terms of his prior experience versus--

20 MR. MAZZARIELLO: We haven't heard any 

21 testimony that he was satisfactory in his other 

22 schools. 

23 MR. EDELMAN: Stop. That objection is 

24 sustained. 

25 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I want to know if 
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2 that door is open now. 

3 MR. FIELV: I'd be happy to open that 

4 door. 

5 MR: MAZZARIELLO: This is the fifth 

6 time we heard that he was satisfactory. 

7 MR. EDELMAN: Let's go off the 

8 record. 

9 (Whereupon a discussion was held off the 

10 record) 

11 Back on. Next question. 

12 Q. By the way, when you observed Dr. Roemer, 

13 there was no questions of insubordination? 

14 A. I was not aware of any, no. 

15 Q. Were you ever aware of any questions of 

16 insubordination with Dr. Roemer? 

17 A. Personally, no. 

18 Q. Were you involved, in December of 1995, in 

19 a superintendent's conference with Dr. Roemer? 

20 A. What I said earlier was I was involved in 

21 conciliation around instructional matters. That's all 

22 my function in the office was as director of 

23 instruction and professional development. So I would 

24 only be called in to assist in an instructional issue 

25 or to offer some professional development opportunity. 
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2 Q. So specifically being involved with Dr. 

3 Roemer directly yourself during this period of time 

4 would have been this observation in May of '95 and the 

5 conciliation session? 

6 A. Whenever that was. I don't know when it 

7 was. 

8 Q. And there were no other times with respect 

9 to Dr. Roemer directly? 

10 A. I did say I had read, I remember Dr. Roemer 

11 sending a proposal about a curriculum at some point 

12 that I did read and respond to and send it back to 

13 him. That's it. 

14 Q. What do you recall about it? 

15 A. I don't recall very much about it, other 

16 than that when I was asked what contact I had had, 

17 those are the contacts I had had. 

18 Q. Was that while he was at Murrow or before? 

19 A. I don't even remember, but it was while I 

20 was at the superintendent's office. 

21 MR. FIELV: No further questions. 

22 THE COURT: Ms. Turner, any further? 

23 MS. CLARKE-TURNER: Just two 

24 questions. The defense counsel mentioned many 

25 effective ways of teaching. For example, he 
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2 mentioned, dyads, triads, independent study, lecture. 

3 In your observation of Dr. Roemer, did you witness any 

4 of these methods present in his classroom? 

5 A. No. 

6 Q. My final question: In your opinion, the 

7 Roemer method as it was described here by defense 

8 counsel, is that an effective method of teaching? 

9 A. No. 

10 Q. I have nothing further. 

11 MR. EDELMAN: Mr. Fielv? 

12 MR. FIELV: Just one thing more. In 

13 your observation that you had in May of 1995? 

14 A. Right. 

15 Q. You have no independent recollection of 

16 that observation at this point, it's just what's 

17 written in that observation report? 

18 A. I have the kind of recollection that this 

19 might jog and remind me of something, but I would not 

20 say, I would say that this is what I remember. 

21 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have one 

22 question. Ms. Radigan, based on your 27 some odd 

23 years experience teaching, when you walked into Dr. 

24 Roemer's class on May 17, 1995, is this what you 

25 expected to see from a tenured teacher? 
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2 A. Absolutely not. 

3 Q. Thank you. No further. 

4 MR. EDELMAN: Mr. Fielv? 

5 MR. FIELV: I have no questions. 

6 MR. EDELMAN: Panel members? 

7 MS. PETRUCELLI: Was Dr. Roemer aware 

8 that you were coming in to observe him? 

9 A. I believe so. I do not know for sure. 

10 Q. I'm just curious. I didn't know whether a 

11 teacher was told in advance or not. 

12 A. I believe so. 

13 THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. 

14 MR. EDELMAN: Reaffirming October 29 

15 at 1:30 and November 30 at 9:30. 

16 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: On the record. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

Good afternoon. This is a proceeding 

pursuant to Section 3020-a of the Education Law; and while 

there has been a transcribed,pre-hearing conference in this 

matter, I note that there is a substitution of counsel and 

apparently that he is not prepared, so I am just going to ask 

those present to introduce themselves for the record. 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

This is the matter of the Board of 

Education of the City School District of New York vs. David 

Roemer, State Education Department No. 3318. 

My name is Howard Edelman, the Hearing 

Officer and the Chairman chosen to conduct these hearings and 

adjudicate the matter. I would like the panel members to 

introduce themselves for the record, please. 

MS. PETRUCELLI: Dorothy E. Petrucelli, 

16 Board Member. 

17 MS. SHAFFER: Doris Shaffer, Employee 

18 Member. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: I would like 

20 counsel to introduce themselves for the record, please. 

21 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Michael Mazzariello, 

22 Deputy Counsel to the Chancellor. A very good afternoon to 

23 you, Mr. Edelman, Panel Members . 

24 MR. FIELD: For the Respondent, Joel 

25 Field, 230 Park Avenue, 23'" Floor, New York: New York. 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: We are taking 

2 into evidence, as Board Exhibit 1, a copy of the Charges in 

3 this matter. 

4 (Copy of Charges was marked as Board 

5 Exhibit 1, in evidence, as of this date.) 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: At this point, I 

7 would like to ask Mr. Mazzariello if he wishes to make an 

8 opening statement on behalf of the Board. 

9 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Yes, I do. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: You may proceed. 

II 

12 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Okay. 

Mr. Edelman, Panel Members, what you 

13 are going to hear is the case of incompetence. The New York 

14 City Board of Education is going to prove to you that during 

15 the 1994/95, 1995/96 school years, David Roemer performed 

16 incompetently in his performance at Edward R. Murrow High 

4 

17 School in Brooklyn. You are going to hear testimony from the 

18 principal of the school, Saul Bruckner, who has . .peen in the . .. 
19 system for almost 40 years, and regarded by Chancellor Crew 

20 as the finest principal in the school system. He will tell 

21 you that he had no problem with Mr. Roemer's substantive 

22 teaching of physics, but he just could not teach the subject; 

23 although what good is something if you don't know how to 

24 teach. 

25. Then you are going to hear from Mr. Ira 
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5 

Cohen. Ira Cohen has been in the system approximately 29 

2 years, also regarded by the Chancellor as the number one 

3 assistant principal in the system. 

4 You are going to hear testimony from 

5 both these gentlemen about observations they conducted over a 

6 two'-year period of time, observing Mr. Roemer. You are going 

7 to hear them testify as to their observations. as to their 

8 post-observation conferences with Mr. Roemer and the 

9 remediation -- most importantly -- the remediation that they 

10 afforded Mr. Roemer to better his teaching ability. 

11 The man just cannot teach. So what 

12 they tried to do is, they have afforded him the opportunity 

13 to learn how to get better. You are going to hear testimony 

14 about the philosophical approach. Mr. Roemer wanted to use a 

IS constructivist approach to teaching. Mr. Bruckner and Mr. 

16 Cohen are going to testify that they didn't have a problem 

17 with that; they preferred the developmental lesson, but they 

18 didn't have a problem with the constructivist a~roach. used 

19 correctly. You are going to hear that it wasn't used 

20 correctly. 

21 You are also going to hear from 

22 superintendent's designee. Ms. Joyce Coppin. Everyone is 

23 going to come in and testify, with over 80 year's experience . 

24 that Mr. Roemer can't teach his subject, that he is 

25 incompetent and should not be teaching in the New York City 
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School System; and I intend to prove that to you beyond a 

2 reasonable doubt, never mind the preponderance' of the 

3 evidence. 

4 

5 

6 Mr. Mazzariello. 

7 

Thank you. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, 

Mr. Field, do you have a statement on 

8 behalf of the Respondent? 

9 MR. FIELD: I am probably going to 

10 reserve the greater part of my opening statement for putting 

lion my case, except that I would like to note that the issue 

12 here was framed by the Board of Incompetency. 

13 Mr. Roemer, Dr. Roemer, has been 

14 teaching for many years for the Board of Education of the 

15 City of New York. He taught at Midwood High School, he 

16 taught at Erasmus High School and he taught at Edward R. 

17 Murrow. 

18 There is no question there~were .. 
19 differences of opinion between Dr. Roemer and the principal 

20 and the assistant principal on the methodology of teaching; 

6 

21 and I will concede and Dr. Roemer will concede also, that his 

22 methodology differed from their methodology. There are many 

23 more facts in this case than just this difference in the 

24 methodology. 

25 Dr. Roemer is a man who is dedicated to 
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teaching children. He is dedicated to teaching not only 

2 physics, but also sciences, and he taught general sciences at 

3 Erasmus for four or five years in more than a satisfactory 

4 fashion. We will have observation reports and evaluations 

5 showing his teaching of that subject, with the same 

6 methodology that he was using at Murrow. 

7 Now, perhaps his methodology that he 

8 was using at Murrow for physics should perhaps not 

9 necessarily be the same methodology that was used for science 

10 or general science at Erasmus. There are, perhaps, two 

II differences and perhaps Dr. Roemer was incorrect in adopting 

12 automatically the same methodology. That, however, may be a 

( 13 mistake, but it doesn't create incompetency. It certainly 

14 does not create a situation where a man should be brought up 

15 on charges and his livelihood threatened. 

16 You are also going to hear the 

17 testimony of Dr. Roemer's attempts to rectify the situation 

18 through the Union Contract Conciliation, and yo~ are going to 
~ 

19 hear testimony of the superintendent who is supposed to 

20 conciliate between the teacher and the principal becoming 

21 judgmental, and after becoming judgmental, unfortunately, 

22 positions solidify. In many ways, there is a history of 

.- .. --...-~ 23 unfortunate occurrences and programs and some obstinacy on 

24 the parts of everybody concerned. After all, he is not going 

25 to be the first man that did not say that he has not made 
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some mistakes. He did make some mistakes, but this is a 

2 situation that we ask you to look at with an open mind, a 

3 complete open mind. This is not a case of a teacher who is 

4 in there incompetently, not wanting to teach, not wanting to 

5 carry out his assignments and not wanting to teach the 

6 children, not wanting to help the children; it is just the 

7 opposite. 

8 This is a man who is dedicated to his 

9 job, dedicated to teaching, dedicated to his profession as a 

\0 physicist. 

II THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

12 Off the record. 

13 (Discussion held off the record.) 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: On the record. 

15 All right, call your first witness. 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Gentlemen, what the 

17 Board did in preparation for its case is, we marked two 

18 evidence folders, one for Specification One, dealing with 
4 

19 Charges A through S, and the other folder is Specification 

20 Two, dealing with Specifications A through J. I would like 

21 to move those into evidence, Mr. Edelman. 

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: Do you have 

23 copies for Mr. Field? 

24 MR. MAZZARIELLO: He has copies. 

25 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the record. 
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(Discussion held off the record.) 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: On the record, it 

3 is my understanding, Mr. Mazzariello, that Charge 1-D is 

4 withdrawn inasmuch as it has been duplicated by 1-H, correct? 

5 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Yes, sir. 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: It is also my 

7 understanding that with respect to Charge 1-Q, the date in 

8 the charges referred to an observation date of May 17 bllt not 

9 May 30, but the class itself remains the same, which is, 

10 i.e., May 15; is that correct? 

II MR. MAZZARIELLO: That's correct. 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: In addition, also 
, 
\ 13 counsel has had an opportunity to review the exhibits, and I 

14 will describe them as follows --

15 MR. FIELD: When you are saying you are 

16 admitting them into evidence --

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Why don't you let 

18 me finish. You are going to hear it, I promise·. __ ... 
19 That Evidence Packet Number One, which 

20 contains essentially documents which will be referred to as 

21 I, and then a dash with reference to the specific charge, so 

22 the document will refer to Charge I-A, Charge 1-B on to Nand 

.. -"'~ 23 so on; and so in addition, in Packet Number Two, document 

24 2-A, 2-B, 2-C, et cetera, referring to Charge 2 and varying 

25 specifications, these will be admitted into evidence. 
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It is understood that their admission 

2 into evidence does not constitute an acknowledgment by 

3 Respondent that the comments, allegations, observations, et 

4 cetera, contained therein are necessarily true. It merely 

5 means that these are the reports, letters. observation 

6 reports and the like, the authors of those documents, 

7 presumably certainly Principal Cohen and Principal Bruckner, 

8 and perhaps others I don't know, and that they are being 

9 admitted under the concept of past recollection recorded with 

10 respect to these witnesses. 

II Respondent's counsel still is free to 

12 challenge these in any manner that he deems fit and 

13 appropriate. 

14 Off the record. 

15 (Discussion held off the record.) 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: On the record. 

17 Mr. Field. 

18 MR. FIELD: We have no obj~ction to .. 
19 them coming in, that these were documents that were given to 

20 Dr. Roemer on particular dates, and we will concede that this 

21 is his signature on whatever it is on those documents. We 

22 will not concede the accuracy of what is state.d in the 

. '.-- ." '. 
23 documents except as documents that were not opposed by 

24 Dr. Roemer. We reserve our rights to object to those 

25 documents as to the accuracy and the truth of those 
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documents, other than those that were picked by Dr. Roemer. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I understand. 

MR. FIELD: There were some documents 

4 that were written by Dr. Roemer. 

S THE HEARING OFFICER: Of course, you 

6 deem those to be accurate, I understand. 

7 (Folder containing Specification 1, 

8 dealing with Charges A through S, was marked in evidence as 

9 Board Exhibit 2, as of this date.) 

10 (Folder containing Specification 2, 

II dealing with Charges A through J, was marked in evidence as 

12 Board Exhibit 3, as of this date.) 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Mazzariell0, 

14 do you want to call your first witness? 

IS MR. MAZZARIELLO: Yes, I am ready to 

16 call my witnesses. Would the Arbitrator like to have my 

17 witnesses testify to each and everyone of the 

18 specifications? ·4 

11 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: If the witness is 

20 simply going to indicate that, yes, I observed Dr. Roemer's 

21 class on a particular occasion and, yes, these are my 

22 observation reports, the answer is no, I don't think that 

23 that is necessary. 

24 MR MAZZARIELLO: That is what the 

2S testimony would be. 
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I THE HEARING OFFICER: That is 

2 absolutely unnecessary. 

3 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Okay. 

4 MR. FIELD: I will stipulate that on 

5 each 

6 day that those witnesses said he had an observation of 

7 Dr. Roemer's class, he was there, he had that observation. 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: I appreciate 

9 that. 

10 MR. FIELD: He had that observation of 

I I Dr. Roemer's class. 

12 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Okay, I am ready for 

13 my first witness. The first witness will be Assistant 

14 Principal Ira Cohen. 

15 * * * * 

16 I R A C 0 HEN , being called as a witness by the Board, 

17 having been duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, 

18 was examined and testified as foLlows· ... . 

19 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, may I 

20 inquire? 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, you may. 

22 DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. MAZZARIELLO: 

23 Q Mr. Cohen, by whom are you employed? 

24 A The New York City Board of Education. 

25 Q In what capacity? 
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5 

6 

Cohen - Direct 

A Assistant Principal, Science. 

Q Where? 

A The Edward R. Murrow High School. 

Q For how long? 

A I have been at Murrow since 1988. 

Q Prior to becoming an assistant principal, 

7 where were you? 

8 A I was a teacher of science. 

9 Q For how long? 

10 A Since 1969, all told, 28 years. 

I I Q In the New York City Public School System? 

12 A Right. 

J3 Q Tell Mr. Edelman and the Panel exactly what 

13 

14 some of your duties and your responsibilities or as assistant 

15 principal at Edward R. Murrow High School. 

16 A Supervise the department of 28 teachers. It 

17 involves training teachers, performing staff development, 

18 writing variances for new curriculum to the Staee, providing ... 
19 equipment for the teachers to do their jobs, providing all 

20 the equipment for the teachers to do their jobs. In addition 

21 to that, I participate on a task force for the Brooklyn High 

22 School Superintendent where I co-authored a document that is 

23 currently being used to teach biology. It is called 

24 "Biological Science , Constructivist Approach." 

25 Q Mr. Cohen, tell us a little bit briefly about 
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I your educational background. 

14 

2 A I attended Brooklyn College and graduated with 

3 a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Biology. 

4 I attended Long Island University and 

5 graduated with a Master's of Science Degree in Physiology. 

6 I attended the College of Staten Island and 

7 graduated with degrees in Professional Administration. 

8 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

\3 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Dr. Roemer? 

A 

Q 

A 

September. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

basis? 

A 

Did you ever teach physics? 

I have. 

Do you know Mr. Roemer? 

Yes. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Dr. Roemer. 

I am sorry -- Dr. Roemer. Do you know 

Yes, I do. 

Tell us how you know him. 

Dr. Roemer began teaching at Murrow in 1994, 

":3 

Did you know him prior to that? 

No, I did not. 

Do you know him socially? 

No. 

You never went out with him on a personal 

No. 
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Q Do you hold any ill will towards Dr. Roemer? 

2 A No. 

3 Q When was the first time that you encountered 

4 Dr. Roemer? 

5 A When he first came to Murrow, the first day 

6 the teachers reported, in September of 1994. 

7 Q Did you have a conversation with him about 

8 what you would like in your department? 

9 A I meet with all new teachers and distribute a 

10 packet of material instructing teachers how to go about 

II ordering materials, how to go about planning a lesson, what 

12 kind of things were expected at Murrow. 

13 Q When you say ·planning a lesson," what do you 

14 mean? 

15 A That points that would normally be expected to 

16 be found in a lesson. A lesson should have an aim, a lesson 

17 should have motivation, a lesson should have a development, 

18 should have activities for the students to be involved in and 

19 should have a summary. 

20 MR. FIELD: May I hear that answer read 

21 back, please. 

22 (Requested portion of the testimony 

23 read by the reporter.) 

24 Q Is that what a lesson plan is called? 

25 A That is what a developmental lesson is. 
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Q Is that a requirement of your department? 

2 A Those aspects of the lesson are required, but 

3 how that are presented can be done in numerous ways. 

4 Q Did there come a time where you had an 

5 opportunity to observe Dr. Roemer? 

6 

7 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

And do you remember those observations? 

No, I do not. 

As to those observations that have been 

10 stipulated into evidence already, did there come a time where 

II Dr. Roemer told you about his constructivist methodology? 

12 

13 

14 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, he did. 

Are you familiar with that methodology? 

I presented workshops to teachers in my school 

15 -- I am sorry -- to members of my department and to teachers 

16 throughout the Brooklyn High School District on 

17 constructivism. I am a New York State Biology Mentor where I 

18 am trained in constructivism. 

19 Q You will have to excuse my ignorance, because 

20 I do not know anything about that. Would you tell us all 

21 what it is. 

22 A Constructivism bases its technique on the fact 

23 that students do not come to class with an open mind, with a 

24 blank slate, but they come with preconceived ideas about how 

25 things work. A teacher has to deal with that. A teacher 
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cannot simply say something and expect the students to accept 

2 it, learn it, remember it. 

3 Constructivism involves attacking or making 

4 students approach their ideas about how the world works 

5 through demonstrations, through experiences that you provide 

6 in a classroom. The students then have to look at their 

7 preconceptions versus the experiences that they have had in 

8 the classroom and then make those changes. 

9 The idea of constructivism comes about in that 

10 a student is being asked to construct his own knowledge based 

II upon activities and experiences that he has in the classroom. 

12 Q So there is nothing wrong with that, is there? 

13 A No, absolutely not. 

14 Q So what was the problem with Dr. Roemer using 

15 that methodology? 

16 A Dr. Roemer was not using that methodology. 

17 Q What methodology was he using, if any? 

18 A Dr. Roemer had prepared worksheet& which he .. 
19 would bring to class, he would distribute the worksheets to 

20 the students. Sometimes he would spend some time at the 

21 beginning of the lesson, five minutes, asking the students, 

22 "Do you have any questions about yesterday's lesson?" Which 

23 was also from a worksheet. If not, if they had a question, 

24 he would explain the problem that they were referring to. 

25 Otherwise, he would spend about five minutes introducing the 
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documents, then distribute worksheets and then tell them to 

2 work on answering the problems on the worksheet. 

3 Q Mr. Cohen, what is wrong with that, if 

4 anything? 

5 A The students who have no background, no 

6 information to answer questions, can't answer the questions. 

7 So they look around at each other, they flounder, they go to 

8 each other and they say, "'Do you understand what he is 

9 talking about?" 

10 "No." 

II They can't answer those kinds of questions. 

12 They are. not doing any experimenting with anything, they are 

( 13 not testing out their ideas about what they came into the 

14 classroom with. They are just given a problem. It's as if I 

15 was given a problem in calculus to answer. I don't know 

16 calculus. I can get that worksheet, I can look at that 

17 problem and I can turn to the person next to you and say, "Do 

18 you know how?" And if he knows how to do it, I.~will copy the .. 
19 answer from him. But have I learned anything from that? No. 

20 Q Approximately how many times have you observed 

21 Dr. Roemer? 

22 A Over a year and-a-half, almost two years, 12 

23 times. 

24 Q And did you rate any of your observation 

25 reports satisfactory? 
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A No, I did not. 

2 Q Do you mean to tell me, under oath, that not 

3 once out of those times, out of that year and-a-half that you 

4 went into Dr. Roemer's class, you observed as something 

5 positive or satisfactory? 

6 A No, I did not. Students never, in my opinion, 

7 carne out of that classroom with anything positive, anything 

8 learned or any positive outcomes from the lesson. 

9 Q In your observation reports, which the Board 

10 Panel Member and the Respondent's Panel Member could read, 

II did you hold - - I am sorry -- did you hold pre-observation 

12 conferences with Dr. Roemer? 

13 A Not on every one. 

14 Q When did you start, if you remember? 

IS A I believe it was in the spring of 1995. 

16 Q So that would be a year after he started? 

17 A That was less than a year. It was before the 

18 end of the first year. 

19 Q Why did you start holding the pre-observation 

20 report conferences? 

21 A Because I told him I thought it might be 

22 useful for us there to sit down prior to the lesson to go 

23 through an outline of what a lesson should look like, the 

24 types of procedures he should be following. 

25 Q And after you did your observation, did you 
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hold pGst-observation conferences? 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes, I did. 

And what was the purpose of those? 

A post-observa~ion conference is made to 

5 review the lesson with the teacher. 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: Excuse my 

7 interjecting, I just want to distinguish between them. Did 

8 you not hold post-observation conferences for every lesson? 

9 

10 

I I 

THE WITNESS: Yes, for every lesson. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I am sorry? 

THE WITNESS: I am sorry, I held post-

12 observation conferences up until a point where Dr. Roemer 

13 refused to.attend the post-observation conference, which 

14 didn't happen until the second term. 

15 Q We are going to get to that. 

16 When you held the post-observation 

17 conferences, what was the purpose of them? 

18 A We discussed the lesson, we discu~ed the 

20 

19 

20 

21 

strategies that Dr. Roemer used in the lesson, and I offered 

suggestions for otherwise achieving the outcomes that he said 

he wanted for the students. 

22 Q So you made some remediation? 

23 A Absolutely. 

24 Q Now please, Mr. Cohen, tell the Panel Members 

25 and the Arbitrator what you did afford, if anything, to 
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'- Mr. Roemer in the way of help or remediation. 

2 A We recommended visitations, where Mr. Roemer 

3 could I encouraged Dr. Roemer to visit with other 

4 teachers, to visit my own lessons. We spoke at length about 

5 physics, physics syllabus, about the skills that New York 

6 State suggests that students should have when they take 

7 physics. 

8 Later on in the year, we had pre-observation 

9 conferences that I mentioned, at which we discussed 

10 strategies that could be used. 

11 Q Did Dr. Roemer implement any of your 

12 suggestions? 

( J3 A No. 

14 Q Was anyone else at the school working with 

15 Dr. Roemer or trying to help him improve? 

16 A There were other teachers that he spoke with, 

17 but he never spoke to them in my presence; so what went on 

18 between them, I couldn't tell. I think he inte~isited with .. 
19 other teachers on two occasions, and to my understand, he 

20 stopped that because he felt that their approach was not 

21 satisfactory to him. 

22 Q Did you see any improvement from the time that 

23 you saw him in 1994 going .... -~ into the 1995 school year? 

24 A There was no improvement. 

25 Q At all? 
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A At all. 

2 Q Ever? 

3 A Well, Dr. Roemer had stated in writing that he 

4 disagrees with all of my suggestions for improvement and he 

5 would not implement them. 

6 Q Was there a personality clash, Mr. Cohen? 

7 A I think all of our conversations were always 

8 amicable and never a shouting match. We never argued. 

9 Q There was never heated.--
", . 

10 A Never heated. 

II Q And you guys never even called each other 

12 names? 

( 13 A Never called each other names. In fact, at 

14 some of our conferences when I would make a suggestion at the 

15 conference, he would tell me, "That's a good idea," 

16 regardless of what he may have written in his comments 

17 afterwards. 

18 Q Have you ever testified in a 30204a Proceeding 

19 before? 

20 A No, I have not. 

21 Q Are you nervous? 

22 A Absolutely. 

.... -~ 23 Q Do you like being here? 

24 A No. Instead of being in Shea Stadium, no. 

25 Q It rained out, don't worry about. 
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6 Q Try to tell the Panel Members and the 

7 Arbitrator what you observed over your 12 or so observations 

8 over a year and-a-half period of time when you entered 

9 Dr. Roemer's classroom. 

10 Q When I entered Dr. Roemer's classroom, either 

II he was distributing worksheets or students were coming to the 

12 front of the room because they had already been trained to 

13 pick up a worksheet when they first entered the room. 

14 As I said, he would go through five to ten 

15 minutes --

Slow down, please. 16 

17 

Q 

A As I said, he would then go through 

18 approximately five or ten minutes of an explana~ion as to 

19 what they would do or how to solve one of the problems on the 

20 sheet, and then the students would be told to complete the 

21 sheet. On several occasions, at the end of the lesson, 

22 students would come up to me and they would say, "Mr. Cohen, 

23 please do something. Take me out of this class." 

24 We are talking about two students on one 

25 occasion, eight students marching into my office on a second 
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occasion. This is not an isolated incident. 

2 Q But was there any learning going on, in your 

3 professional opinion, with 29 years in the service? 

4 A In my opinion, there was no learning going on 

5 based upon the fact that students were complaining to me that 

6 they didn't understand what was going on in the classroom; in 

7 their opinion, there was no learning going on. 

8 Q Corne on, Mr. Cohen, there had to be 

9 MR. FIELD: Objection to the sarcasm. 

10 That is not --

I I THE HEARING OFFICER: All right, 

12 rephrase. 

\3 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will withdraw it. 

14 Q Mr. Cohen, that is a pretty heavy thing for 

15 me, what you just said, what was going on in the .classroom. 

16 What were the students complaining, that· there was no 

17 learning going on? 

18 A Other than coming over to me, ask~ng for help? ... 
19 Q Yes. 

20 A They were looking at each other occasionally 

21 and Dr. Roemer would be walking around to the students, they 

22 would question him and he would try to work with them at a 

23 table or with the student that he was standing at. They 

24 would move around and talk to each other. It was Dr. 

25 Roemer's intention that by the students moving around and 
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trying to find out answers from each other, in that manner 

2 they were participating in the constructivist approach. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

Q 

A 

A 

Q 

A 

And since you wrote the book on it -

Well, I didn't write the book on it. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Rephrase. 

(Continuing) I wrote a document. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will rephrase. 

Withdrawn. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

Was he using a constructivist approach? 

No. 

Q Based on what do you say that? 

A Based upon my expertise in constructivism, as 

a an author of a document that. was titled, "Biological 

25 

15 Science: Constructi vist Approach," by workshops that I have 

16 given, by workshops that I have attended in Albany and in New 

17 York City. 

18 MR. FIELD: I am going to~ove to 

19 strike part of the answer as to his expertise. I will accept 

20 that in his opinion that the role was not using 

21 constructivism, but he is not qualified as an expert. 

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: The motion to 

23 strike is overruled. I recognize that he has not been 

24 qualified as an expert, but certainly he has the right to 

25 give his opinion in that regard, even though he doesn't have 
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that expertise. 

2 MR. FIELD: Just that 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Overruled. 

4 Q Mr. Cohen, did you have any problems with Dr. 

5 Roemer using a constructivist approach in your department? 

6 A Yes, I have raised teachers in my department 

7 to use the constructivist approach. I would have had no 

8 problems had he been doing that. 

9 Q Can Dr. Roemer teach? 

10 A Nothing I saw at Murrow gives me any 

II indication that he can teach science. 

12 Q Is he incompetent to teach? 

( \3 A Absolutely. 

14 Q Did you have a problem with his substantive 

15 knowledge of physics? 

16 A No, I never questioned his understanding of 

17 physics or concepts of physics. I never argued with him 

18 about that or disagreed with anything relating ·~o content . .. 
19 Q What did you have a problem with, if anything? 

20 A How he presented information, how he taught 

21 the lesson or how he claims he taught the lesson. 

22 Q Mr. Cohen, did you have any input into Dr. 

23 Roemer's annual professional performance review report, you 

24 know. his annual review? 

25 A The annual review is based upon observation 
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reports that I wrote based upon my observations of the 

2 lessons. 

27 

3 Q And how was he rated during the 1994-95 school 

4 year? 

5 A Unsatisfactory. 

6 Q And the 1995-96 school year? 

7 A To my knowledge, unsatisfactory. 

8 Q In your 29 years experience in the New York 

9 City Public School System and as an assistant principal, 

10 should Dr. Roemer be allowed back in the classroom to teach 

II any student? 

12 A Well, if I had my own son in his classroom, 

13 then I wouldn't want any child in his classroom. 

14 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have no further 

15 questions at this time. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: All right, I have 

17 previously instructed Mr. Field to withhold cross at this 

18 time, but if a Panel Member has a question, tha! is fine. If 

19 there is anything that the panel would like to know, the 

20 witness may expand on that. I understand we will deal with 

21 the charges later on. Thank you, sir. 

22 (Witness was excused until a later 

23 date. ) 

24 MR. FIELD: Would you instruct Mr. 

25 Cohen that he may have to be called back. 
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6 record. 
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8 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, that is 

Off the record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Back on the 

Call your next witness, please. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I call Saul Bruckner. 

* * * * 
10 S A U L B R U C K N E R , being called as a witness by the 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

please. 

Board, having been duly sworn by the Hearing Officer, 

was examined and testified as follows: 

THE HEARING OFFICER: State your name, 

THE WITNESS: Saul Bruckner (spelling) 

B-R-U-C-K-N-E-R. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: May I inquire, Mr. 

Edelman? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, you may, 

sir. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Thank you. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. MAZZARIELLO: 

Q Mr. Bruckner, by whom are ,you employed? 

A New York City Board of Education at Edward R. 

Murrow High School. 
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Q In what capacity? 

2 

3 School. 

4 

5 

6 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

7 met you, sir. 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

10 if anything? 

I am the principal of Edward R. Murrow High 

For how long? 

Twenty three years. 

I have to tell you it is a privilege to have 

Thank you. 

Prior to becoming a principal, what were you, 

II A Assistant Principal, Supervision, Social 

12 Studies at Bushwick and John Dewey High Schools. 

13 

14 

IS 

Q 

A 

Q 

16 did you do? 

17 

18 

A 

Q 

For how long? 

Nine years. 

Prior to being an assistant principal, what 

I was a teacher of social studies. 

Mr. Bruckner, what is your total ~ployment 

19 with the Board of Education? 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

Forty years, since 1957. 

Tell us a little bit about your educational 

22 background, please. 

23 A Bachelor's Degree from Brooklyn College, a 

29 

24 Master's Degree and all but the dissertation from Teacher's 

25 College, Columbia; and Honorary Doctor of Humane Letters from 
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the State University of New York at Oneonta. 

2 

3 today? 

4 

S 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

case, 

Edward 

Q 

A 

Q 

Dr. 

A 

Q 

A 

R. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Mr. Bruckner, do you know why you are here 

Yes. 

Are you familiar with the Respondent in this 

Roemer? 

Yes. 

How are you familiar with Dr. Roemer? 

Dr. Roemer was appointed, transferred to 

Murrow in September of 1994. 

Did you know him prior to that? 

I did not. 

Do you hold any ill will towards him? 

I have no ill will towards Dr. Roemer. 

30 

IS Q Are you here because the Superintendent of the 

16 Brooklyn High Schools, Joyce Coppin --

17 

18 

19 Q 

20 I am sorry 

21 A 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: . Sust'!;ined. 

When was the first time you met Mr. Roemer 

Dr. Roemer? 

In September of 1994 I held a meeting with all 

22 newly appointed assigned or transferred teachers a day or so 

23 before rhe start of school term. 

24 

2S 

Q 

A 

What was the purpose of that meeting? 

To familiarize the teachers with basic school 
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procedures, to give them some materials which will be of 

2 assistance to them, to let them know the nature of 

3 supervision in the building. 

4 Q Mr. Bruckner, how is your high school, the 

5 Edward R. Murrow High School, ranked in New York State, do 

6 you know? 

7 A There is no official ranking of schools. 

8 However, if one takes the State Report Card and starts 

31 

9 comparing schools, my guess is we would number eighth in the 

10 City of New York. 

II Q For high schools? 

12 A For high schools. 

13 Q I must compliment you guys. Out of how many? 

14 A There are well over 150 high schools at this 

15 point. 

16 MR. FIELD: We will concede, Mr. 

17 Edelman, that Mr. Bruckner is one of the most able principals 

18 and that Edward R. Murrow is a very fine high s~1001, and 

19 certainly Mr. Bruckner is a credit to the New York City Board 

20 of Education. 

21 

22 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: But I would also like 

23 him to know that he is the best principal in New York City. 

24 MR. FIELD: I am not going to get into 

25 that. 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Back on the 

5 Q Mr. Bruckner, did you have an opportunity to 

6 observe Dr. Roemer teach? 

7 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

A 

I observed Dr. Roemer teach, yes. 

Approximately how many times? 

In the year and-a-half, I observed him, I 

10 believe, seven times. 

I I 

12 

Q 

A 

What were your findings in those observations? 

For the first observation, I found a lesson 

13 which was in need of improvement. For the other six, I rated 

14 the lessons as unsatisfactory. 

15 Q Did you hold pre-observation'conferences 

16 before these observations? 

17 

18 

19 

A 

Q 

A 

I did not have pre-observation conferences. 

Why not? 

The nature of my job is such that it is very 

20 difficult to control all of my time and they are not 

21 required, and as an experienced teacher, I felt that I 

22 observed him and I would see what I had to see. 

23 Q Approximately how many observations, in your 

24 years of supervisory capacity, have you conducted? 

25 A I have been a supervisor since 1965. I do 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE (516) 689-0111 



Bruckner - Direct 33 

well over 100 observation reports a year, so I would say at 

2 least 3,200 formal observations. 

3 Q I will cut right through this case and ask you 

4 if this person, Dr. Roemer, can teach? 

5 A Dr. Roemer is an unsatisfactory teacher. 

6 Q Is he incompetent to teach? 

7 A Dr. Roemer is incompetent. 

S Q Would you want your children in his classroom? 

9 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: . Sustained. 

I I Next question. 

12 Q Would you tell us why you say that? 

( 13 A Dr. Roemer is either unable or unwilling to 

14 plan a lesson. He comes into a classroom, therefore, without 

15 any clear sense of purpose of aim, without any sense of 

16 direction or development of the lesson. He is not prepared 

17 to involve the youngsters in the development of the lesson. 

18 Often, or more frequently, he doesn't have the ·~aterials that 
~ 

19 he says he needs and, therefore, what happens in the class is 

20 Dr. Roemer is essentially speaking and then gives the 

21 youngsters worksheets to do. 

22 Questions are not responded to. Youngsters 

'.-'1<' 
23 are not called on by name. 

24 Science is a process of learning as well as a 

25 body of knowledge. There is no sense of science as a 
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process. I saw there was one lesson in which he asked the 

2 youngsters to state what they saw. When they stated what 

3 they saw, he told them that's not what they saw. 

4 In another lesson, he asked youngsters to 

5 observe and tell what they saw, and then again he told them 

6 that is not what they saw. 

7 It violates not only effective teaching, but 

8 the whole principle of science, which we begin with 

9 observation and, therefore, the development of a hypothesis. 

10 Dr. Roemer is a habituate of worksheets. He 

II loses control of the time that is involved in a lesson. 

12 Since there is no planning, he begins by asking, "Are there 

( 13 are questions?" The questions may not have any thematic 

14 unity. And then he distributes the worksheets. 

15 If the youngsters are capable of finishing 

16 early, the lesson answers, therefore, instructional time is 

17 wasted, there is no sense of ending or closure. Kids are 

18 given no opportunity to review what they learned in the 
~ 

19 course of the lesson. 

20 Dr. Roemer refuses, or is unable to respond to 

21 supervision. Suggestions have been made. He does not 

22 implement them. Therefore, there is no possibility for 

.. -- 23 improvement or growth . 

24 For those reasons, I believe Dr. Roemer is an 

( 25 unsatisfactory and incompetent teacher. 
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MR. FIELD: I hate to ask this. but 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I can't hear you. 

3 MR. FIELD: I missed good chunks of the 

4 answer. Obviously, I would like to have the answer repeated. 

5 I know it is going to take some time to repeat the answer, 

6 but please do so. 

7 

8 the reporter.) 

9 

10 

I I 

12 

Q 

A 

Q 

(Requested portion of testimony read by 

Mr. Bruckner, did you ever teach science? 

I have never taught science. 

Are you totally clueless to science? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. I don't know 

\3 what that means. 

14 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will withdraw the 

15 question. 

16 

17 

Q 

A 

Do you know a lot about science? 

I am not a scientist. I wouldn't say that I 

18 am capable of being a teacher of science. 

19 

20 

Q 

A 

So what is your criticism of Dr. Roemer? 

I am a supervisor, a teacher, and, therefore. 

21 I know what goes into a lesson, I know and understand you can 

.22 change teachers to employ effective teaching techniques. 

23 Therefore, what I observe in a subject area in which I have 

24 no background -- and that can be language, it can be music. 

25 it can be math, it can be many areas -- my emphasis is upon 
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seeing that teacher's employing an effective technique which 

2 is going to help the youngsters learn and which is going to 

3 involve the youngsters so that they do learn. 

4 Q When you stated before that Dr. Roemer did not 

5 implement any of the suggestions that you made, can you 

6 elaborate a little bit on the suggestions that you made 

7 personally to Dr. Roemer? 

8 A Well, certainly the basic suggestion was, and 

9 it was more than a suggestion, it was a direction, that he 

10 plan lessons. Dr. Roemer feels that these worksheets are his 

II lesson plan. He calls them a student lesson plan, yet they 

12 do not provide him with any guidance as to how he is going to 

( 13 use them, when he is going to use them, what he hopes to 

14 accomplish when using them; and there are times when the 

15 student lesson plan was not in harmony with what he said the 

16 lesson was. 

17 I suggested that he visit his colleagues so 

18 that he could observe them, so that he can get ·a sense of ... 
19 effective science teaching. Dr. Roemer has refused to do 

20 that. 

21 I directed Dr. Roemer to seek methods of 

22 involving students in the lesson plan. He refused to do that 

23 because he doesn't believe that that is necessary or an 

24 effective aspect of teaching. 

25 I directed him not to base his instructions 
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solely on those worksheets. He refuses to accept that. 

2 Q So he implemented none of your suggestions? 

3 A He has implemented none of the suggestions nor 

4 directives that I have given. 

5 Q Is it safe to say there is no learning going 

6 on in his classroom? 

7 A Undoubtedly there is some learning taking 

8 place in every classroom. It may not be what the teacher has 

9 planned, but certainly from the questions that students 

10 asked, from the remarks that students made, from the remarks 

II that kids came up to make to me at the end of the lesson, 

12 remarks that kids made when I walked around, when they were 

( 13 working either individually or in groups, they expressed the 

14 feeling that they weren't learning anything. And I would 

15 agree that certainly effective instruction wasn't taking 

16 place and, therefore, the amount of learning which was a 

17 resul t of Dr. Roemer's teaching was minimal. 

18 Q What were the students telling you] -
19 A That he didn't answer questions, that he may 

20 have understood the material but he couldn't communicate it; 

21 that he may be able to explain it to an individual, he could 

22 not explain it to a group, or that he simply refused to 

.- .... -~ 23 answer and told them it will come to them and they will see 

24 what it's all about at the end of the lesson or at a later 

25 date. 
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Q Is that the constructivist approach? 

A Constructivism, that is not. That is not a 

constructivist approach. 

Q Did he consider himself a constructivist? 

A On at least two occasions which are cited in 

observation reports, Dr. Roemer identified himself once as a 

constructivist and then another time as a lecture

demonstrator. 

Q Okay, let's take those two items. What is a 

lecture-demonstrator? 10 

II A Dr. Roemer came in with an excerpt from a book 

12 or magazine which describes the modern lecture. He began by 

13 saying that the lecture has fallen into disrepute because 

14 kids are turned off by it because they are uninvolved and 

15 that a successful or modern type of lecture is one which 

16 grows out of careful planning which involves kids that it 

17 gets feedback which uses the material for instruction. Or 

18 lecture, too, is a formal teacher presentation ~ich grows 

19 out of planning which is designed to carry a specific 

20 message. 

21 Constructivism 

22 Q Wait a minute. Do you have a problem with 

23 that at all? 

24 A I have no problem with an effective lecture. 

25 It is very difficult to prepare an effective lecture, but a 
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lecture is a very effective means for providing students 

2 quickly with information. 

3 Q Would you describe Dr. Roemer's teaching as 

4 that? 

5 A Not the -- Dr. Roemer never lectured in the 

6 sense of having a formal lecture. He spoke to kids for a 

7 portion of the period. 

8 Q Okay, let's now talk about the constructivism 

9 approach. What is that? 

10 A Constructivism approach would probably be on 

II the other end of the scale in terms of teaching techniques. 

12 It is the sense that youngsters are capable of taking their 

( 13 own knowledge and that, rather than the teacher coming in and 

14 making a formal presentation, the role of the teacher would 

15 be to provide the youngsters with experience, with materials, 

16 with demonstrations so that with that guidance, with that 

17 structure, which the teacher is setting up, youngsters are 

18 capable to obtain information, to formulate hYPQthesis and to -
19 reach conclusions. 

20 At one point -- I am not sure if it is in 

21 response to one of my observations or Mr. Cohen's Dr. 

22 Roemer said that he was providing the youngsters with the 

23 interest to study -- it may have been in Mr. Cohen's report 

24 -- and Mr. Cohen said, ·Well, why would be need a teacher?" 

25 And Dr. Roemer's response was, ·Well. we 
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wouldn't need teachers and that's really the goal." 

And I think when Dr. Roemer went into a 

classroom, he didn't see himself as a teacher in either sense 

of an advisor or a lecture demonstrator. 

Q Do you have a problem with the constructivist 

approach? 

A The district's formal commitment was the 

constructivist approach, and I have no problem with a teacher 

using a constructivist approach. 

Q So if Dr. Roemer opted for that, you would 

allow him to do it? 

A I would encourage him to do it because I think 

13 it is a more effective means of involving a kid in a lesson 

14 and, therefore, developing a learning; but it is not to give 

15 a worksheet or to tell them to disregard what· they see or 

16 what they heard or what they observed, because it is not to 

17 what he expected them to. And there is an observation report 

18 which indicates that I would encourage him to u~ either of 

19 those methods if he could plan for them so they would be 

20 effective. 

21 MR. FIELD: Excuse me a second, can I 

22 hear the answer? 

23 (Requested portion of testimony read by 

24 the reporter.) 

25 Q Did you ever tell your teachers in your school 
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how to teach? 

2 A When teachers come into the building on the 

3 very first, at the beginning orientation, they hear and they 

4 sign for a document which indicates they must plan lessons 

5 and that although a specific format cannot be ascribed toa 

6 lesson, the lesson plan 

Why not? 7 

8 

Q 

A Because of the contract between the Board and 

9 the UFT, that an effective lesson is going to include an aim, 

10 the motivation, summary questions, activities, et cetera. 

II They are also given a publication which deals 

12 with effective methods of teaching, which I believe has been 

13 published by Phi Delta Kappa; so in that sense, the teachers 

14 are encouraged to use a basic developmental lesson. 

15 Q Did you request to see Dr. Roemer's lesson 

16 plan at all? 

17 A With every lesson after the first, I asked to 

18 see a lesson plan. 

19 Q Tell the Panel Members and the Arbitrator what 

20 you observed in his lesson plan, if anything. 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's just ask: 

22 Did he give them to you? 

23 THE WITNESS: Dr. Roemer would display 

24 something which I called a student lesson plan, which is 

25 essentially the worksheet, or he would say that he didn't 
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have a lesson plan, so that both of those statements will 

2 appear in the observation report. 

3 Q Is that acceptable to you? 

4 A It provided hi~ with no sense of direction or 

5 guidance and, therefore, he was unable to provide the kids 

6 with the sense of direction or guidance. A lesson plan is 

7 like a trip ticket when you travel: you just don't set out 

42 

8 for ohio and hope to get there. You may, but you don't know 

9 how long it is going to take; you don't know where you are 

10 going to stop off for food or for rest. 

II Dr. Roemer's lack of having a lesson plan of 

12 any type that would be a teacher lesson plan made it 

13 impossible for him to have a sense of direction to know where 

14 he was going, what he was going to do to get there and to 

15 make it possible for him and the class to know that he had 

16 arrived. 

17 Q Do you do the evaluations at the end of the 

18 year for teachers? 

19 A The principal is the rating officer in the 

20 school. 

21 Q The rating officer. I could learn a lot from 

22 you. At the end of the 1994-95 school year, how did you 

23 rate Dr. Roemer? 

24 A I rated Dr. Roemer as unsatisfactory and he 

25 received a "u" rating. 
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Q For all the reasons that you stated today? 

A 

Q 

Essentially for these reasons. 

Is there anything else that you would like to 

4 tell the Panel Members or the Arbitrator? So you rated him 

5 unsatisfactory? 

6 A The categories in the rating form may be a 

43 

7 little finer than the areas that I mentioned, but essentially 

8 they are subsumed by this; therefore, his rate is 

9 unsatisfactory in core elements of teaching, such as 

10 effective use of teaching resources, effective use of 

II materials, ability to involve students, professional growth. 

12 There may be certainly effective planning. 

13 Q During the 1995~96 school year, how did you 

14 rate Dr. Roemer? 

15 A Dr. Roemer I rated Dr. Roemer 

16 unsatisfactory that year as well. 

17 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Field, do you 

18 have a problem with me putting the evaluations ~to evidence? 

19 MR. FIELD: Let me see them. I have no 

20 objection to the evaluations coming in, subject to later 

21 cross-examination. 

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank YOIl. We 

23 will mark the 1994-95 Rating as Board Exhibit 4. 

24 (1994-95 Evaluation of Dr. Roemer was 

25 marked as Board Exhibit 4, in evidence, as of today's date.) 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: And then you want 

2 the 1994-95 Rating to be marked as Board Exhibit 5? 

3 MR. FIELD: I think the record should 

4 show that the 1995-96 Evaluation is through February 29 of 

5 1996. 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: All right, that 

7 is fair. 

8 (1995-96 Evaluation of Dr. Roemer was 

9 marked as Board's Exhibit 5, in evidence, as of this date. ) 

10 Q Mr. Bruckner, are you familiar with Ira Cohen? 

I 1 A I am. 

12 Q Who is he? 

13 A Ira Cohen is assistant principal-supervision 

14 science at Edward R. Murrow High School. 

15 Q Does he report to you? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q How would you describe his performance as 

18 assistant principal? 

19 A He is an exceptional assistant principal who 

20 has a leadership role both in the Borough and in the City. 

21 He is also past president of the New York City Biology 

22 Supervisor's Association. 

23 Q Are you aware that Mr. Cohen observed 

24 Dr. Roemer numerous times also? 

25 A Yes. 
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Q Did you have an opportunity to read his 

2 observations of Dr. Roemer? 

3 A I read all of the observations written by the 

4 supervisory staff. . . 
5 Q Did you concur- with Mr. Cohen's conclusions as 

6 to his observations? 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

I concurred with his conclusions. 

Saul, in your heart, do you feel that 

9 Dr. Roemer was afforded an opportunity to get help in 

10 improving his teaching? 

11 

12 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Overruled. "In 

\3 your heart," is a little emotional, but it is a proper 

14 question. Answer it. 

15 A I believe that I and Mr. Cohen provided 

16 Dr. Roemer with the opportunity to improve and to succeed and 

17 that he failed to take advantage of the opportunity. 

18 Q Saul, are you familiar with your ·~chool's 

19 Regents scores? 

20 

21 

A 

Q 

Reasonably. 

Do you know if the Regents grades under 

22 Dr. Roemer went up or down? 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Don't answer that 

24 right now. Off the record. 

25 (Discussion held off the record.) 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: Back on the 

2 record. 

3 Read back the question. Mr. Bruckner, 

4 answer it. 

5 MR. FIELD: Were your comments for the 

6 record? 

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: No, they weren't. 

8 MR. FIELD: I ask that your comments be 

9 put on the record. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sure. As I 

II indicated off the record, if the Board seeks to establish the 

12 charges in part at least through a presentation of Regents 

13 scores of Dr. Roemer's, I indicated off the record and I 

14 reiterate now, that Mr. Field has a right to have access to 

IS students' records to the extend that he may wish to know that 

16 indeed students in Dr. Roemer's class were of a different 

17 nature or ability to learn or anything else of that nature, 

18 so as to demonstrate reasons other than those related to 
~ 

19 Dr. Roemer's teaching, as to why Regents scores were poor, 

20 if, in fact, they were. 

21 MR. MAZZARIELLO: All right, 

22 Mr. Edelman, since he is not charged with this, then I am not 

23 going to inquire; but based upon the prior conversation with 

24 two other attorneys, it was brought to my attention that this 

25 may be a possible defense. So I will just leave it in the 
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defense's hands if they want to continue with that. 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Are you 

3 withdrawing the question? 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Right. 

5 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: The question is 

7 withdrawn. Any other questions, Mr. Mazzariello? 

8 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Actually, no. 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

10 As I previously indicated, we are going 

II to -- I have permitted Mr. Field to reserve cross-examination 

12 and, therefore, Mr. Bruckner, I thank you. You are excused. 
I 

\ 13 Off the record. 

14 (Discussion held off the record.) 

15 (Whereupon said hearing was adjourned 

16 without date.) 

17 

18 * * * * 
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I, THOMAS P. FOLEY, Official Court Reporter, do 

hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate 

transcript of my stenographic notes taken on June 13, 

1997. 

~_1~/ 
Thomas P. Foley 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: We will begin with 

3 the examination of Joyce Coppin. 

4 JOY C E COP PIN, the witness herein, after 

5 having been first duly sworn by a Notary 

6 Public of the State of New York, was examined 

7 and testified as follows: 

8 DIRECT-EXAMINATION BY MR. MAZZARIELLO: 

9 Q State your name for the record. 

10 A Joyce Coppin. 

11 Q By whom are you employed? 

12 A New,York City Public School System. 

13 Q In what capacity? 

14 A Superintendent of Brooklyn high schools. 

15 Q For how long? 

16 A How long have I been employed or how long 

17 have I been the superintendent? 

18 Q Both. 

19 A I have been employed since September of 

20 1958 and I have been the superintendent for ten and 

21 a half years. That is right:: It's nearly 40 years, 

22 correct. 

23 Q You don't look a day over 30, I might 

24 add. 

25 Tell us briefly about your educational 
• 
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2 background? 

3 A Well, I have an advanced certificate, 

4 which is the year beyond the Master's Degree, of 

5 administration and supervision, curriculum 

6 development and a Bachelor's Degree from City 

7 College of New York. 

8 Q Did you ever teach? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q What subject area did you teach? 

11 A I was an elementary school teacher. 

12 Q Did you ever teach physics? 

13 A No. 

14 Q Do you know anything about physics? 

15 A I know the basic scope and the domains of 

16 the physics' curriculum. 

17 Q Do you know anything about how one should 

18 prepare for teaching a lesson? 

19 A Yes, I do. 

20 Q Approximately how many schools are in 

21 your jurisdiction as superintendent of Brooklyn high 

22 schools? 

23 A Twenty-seven. 

24 Q Tell the panel members and the arbitrator 

25 a little bit about your duties and responsibilities? , , 
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A Among my duties is, of course, a 

professional curriculum development, observation of 

teachers, monitoring of classrooms, classroom 

instructions, supervisory duties, gathering and 

reviewing data relating to student achievement, 

attendance, suspensions, meeting with members of the 

central board. Of course, I am employed directly by 

the Chancellor and so, therefore, it's my 

responsibility to implement the policies and 

programs initiated by the Chancellor as well as to 

initiate policies and programs that address the 

needs of the students and the schools in my 

superintendency. 

Q Do you know Dr. Roemer? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q How do you know him? 

A He has been a teacher in two of my 

schools. 

Q Which schools? 

A He was a teacher ~t Murrow and he was a 

teacher at the former Erasmous Hall High School. 

Q Do you know him in a social way at all? 

A No, not at all. 

Q Do you hold any ill will toward Dr. 
t 
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Roemer? 

A Absolutely not. 

Q Do you know Saul Bruckner? 

A Yes. 

Q How do you know him? 

A He is the principal of Edward R. Murrow, 

one of the schools under my supervision. 

Q How would you rate his performance as a 

principal? 

A Extraordinary. 

Q Do you know Ira Cohen? 

A Yes. 

Q How? 

A He is the assistant principal of Edward 

R. Murrow High School. 

Q How would you rate his performance in 

your school? 

A Excellent. 

Q Do you know Winifred Radigan? 

A Yes. Ms. Radigan:was the director of 

instructions for the Brooklyn high schools 

superintendency. She reported directly to me. 

Q How do you rate her performance? 

A Excellent, so good that the chief 
• • 
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2 executive for our program and support K~12 took her 

3 and gave her a promotion. 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Ms. Coppin's observations 

5 will go toward Charge 2G. 

6 Q Did there come a time that you did a 

7 formal observation of Dr. Roemer? 

8 A Yes, I did. 

9 Q Do you remember that that took place on 

10 November 16, 1995? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Do you remember that observation? 

13 A I don't know all the details. That was 

14 two years ago. 

15 Q What would help you refresh your 

16 recollection? 

17 A If I could look and refer to the 

18 document. 

19 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Field, can I have a 

20 stipulation of this observation into evidence? 

21 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It's all in 

22 evidence. 

23 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Oh, okay. Here's a copy for 

24 everybodY here. 

25 Q 
, ' 

Ms. Coppin, just take a second and review 
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the document that's already been admitted into 

evidence. 

Ms. Coppin, first tell us, how did this 

come about? Why did you go and observe Dr. Roemer 

on this day? 

A It's a policy of the school 

superintendency that before receiving an adverse 

rating, could be doubtful if it's a first year 

teacher or unsatisfactory, executives go in to 

observe the teacher, look at the teacher's record of 

assistance provided for the teacher. We review the 

observation reports, speak to the principal and the 

assistant principal and all of that was done. I was 

satisfied that attempts have been made to ask Dr. 

Roemer and the last step is go in myself or Ms. 

Radigan went in on one occasion as well. 

Q She was acting as your executive? 

A Yes. 

Q To verify? 

A To verify or to g~t a firsthand look at 

the teacher's teaching myself before I will agree if 

it's a satisfactory rating or unsatisfactory rating. 

Q Is this the first time you had observed 

Dr. Roemer? 
• • 
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A You know, I have been in and out of the 

buildings, both at the former Erasmous Hall High 

School and Murrow and, franklY, I think this is the 

ohly time that I have had a formal sit down, you 

know, full period observation. 

Q Did he know you were coming on November 

16th? 

A No, he did not. Not that I am aware of. 

Q Is that part of normal procedures, a 

surprise attack like that? 

A It was not a surprise attack, if you 

don't mind me rephrasing the statement a bit. I go 

in on many, many, many occasions announced, so that 

I can see and be part of a classroom situation that 

kids are in every single day. 

Q Prior to going in on November 16, 1995, 

did you, Ms. Coppin, review Dr. Roemer's prior 

service history including all the observations 

compiled during the two years in question here? 

A Yes. 

Q When you went in and did the observation, 

tell the panel members and arbitrator what, if 

anything, you observed? 

A Basic.lly, it's in the observation report 
• • 
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here. 

Q So then did you come to a conclusion as 

to what you observed? 

A Yes. 

Q What was that? 

A That the lesson I observed was 

unsatisfactory. 

Q Based on your observation and your 40 

years experience, Ms. Coppin --

A It's 39 and a half. 

Q -- is he competent to teach? 

A No. 

Q Would he be competent to teach in another 

school? 

A Absolutely not. 

Q Why do you say that? How do you kriow? 

A I say that because he refuses to accept 

suggestions. He refuses to teach in a manner in 

which all youngsters can master the material. He 

uses only one style of teaching and there is no way \ 

that one style of teaching is going to be suitable 

for as many as 150, 170 kids, which a teacher would 

have if he would have a full program of five 

classes. 
• 
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observation, I personally conducted a 

post-observation conference with him and had a 

discussion on why we have got to vary teaching 

methods because all of us don't learn the same way 

and at the same .rate. There is research. There is 

practical field experience. There were others in 

the department who use other methods and they were 

successful. There was no reason why he could not at 

least try these. If you don't want to listen and if 

if you don't want to get away from the teaching 

method that you were used to, if you were not 

interacting with kids, if you are not paying 

attention to the learning styles then, no, I don't 

think he is competent to teach. 

Q Ms. Coppin, do you have a problem with 

the constructivist approach to teaching? 

A I don't have a problem with the 

constructive approach to teaching, but he didn't use 

that. 

Q You are aware tha~ Dr. Roemer received a 

satisfactory rating in Erasmous High School? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q He received two consecutive views at 

Murrow? 

• • 
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2 A Yes. 

3 Q Can you explain? 

4 A Erasmous Hall High School was not a 

5 successful school. It was cited by the State 

6 Education Department for failure to provide a 

7 program that was educationally sound, so 

8 effectively, the school was closed and reopened as 

9 three smaller schools and it's been that way for the 

10 last, I think, three years now, but it was the fact 

11 that its program, its instructional program was so 

12 poor and the kids did so poorly and the teaching was 

13 not successful, that the school was closed. As a 

14 matter of fact, when the school, as it was known 

15 then, was closed, we asked teachers to voluntarily 

16 leave the school so that we could bring in people to 

17 improve teaching and learning at the school. One of 

18 the people who left at that time was Dr. Roemer. 

19 Q Ms. Coppin, are you satisfied, as 

20 superintendent of the Brooklyn high schools, that 

21 Dr. Roemer was afforded reme~iation? 

22 A Absolutely, or I would not have agreed to 

23 the unsatisfactory rating. 

24 Q 

25 seriously? 
• • 
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2 A Absolutely. That's why I am here. 

3 Q Do you have a problem with Chancellor 

4 Crew (phonetic) recommending to the panel and the 

5 arbitrator Dr. Roemer's termination from the Board 

6 of Education? 

7 A Absolutely not. I believe that's fair. 

8 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have nothing further. 

9 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD:. 

10 Q Ms. Coppin, my name is Joel Field. I am 

11 representing Mr. Roemer. 

12 A How do you do? 

13 Q Good, thank you. I believe you testified 

14 that you were called in in November for possibly 

15 being given an unsatisfied or unsatisfactory rating 

16 to observe him. When were you called to come in to 

17 see him? 

18 A I don't recall the exact date. 

19 Q Approximate date? 

20 A Oh, I don't recall, but somewhere within 

21 that period. 

22 Q Sometime in the later part of October, 

23 beginning of November? 

24 A 

25 Q 

•• 

More than likely. I am not sure. 

Isn't it unusual, with school starting in 
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2 September, that within two months you would be 

3 called in to observe a teacher for possible 

4 unsatisfactory for the whole year? 

5 A No, because Dr. Roemer had been observed 

6 many times before and there were documents from 

7 previous years and since there was no evidence that 

8 this year was going to be any different from the 

9 previous year, the principal called me in. 

10 Q Well, the prior year he had received an 

11 unsatisfactory? 

12 A Correct. 

13 Q By the way, are you aware of the fact 

14 that Midwood High School is in your jurisdiction? 

15 A Yes, it is. 

16 Q And Midwood High School, how does that 

17 rate as a high school? 

18 A Highly. 

19 Q That is known for' a particularly good 

20 science department? 

21 A Yes, it does. 

22 Q Are you aware of the fact that Dr. Roemer 

23 taught at Midwood for four, five years? 

24 A 

25 Q , 

It may have been more of before my time. 

I believe from 1984 to 1989. 
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2 A I came in in February of 1987. 

3 Q So you would have been teaching there 

4 during that time? 

5 A Yes, I guess so. Yeah. No, I was not 

6 made aware of that. 

7 Q In fact, he became tenured at Midwood of 

8 a satisfactory rating each year? 

9 A I don't know of his record. 

10 Q When you gave Mr. Roemer unsatisfactory, 

11 did you ever check his full record? 

12 A That was quite a while ago. The recent 

13 history is what you have to count on. There are 

14 people who do well for 15, 20 years and the last 

15 five or six years, they are not satisfactory. Prior 

16 history, immediate prior history, is what you look 

17 at. 

18 Q That's not the question I asked. You did 

19 not check 

20 A No, I did not go back that far simply 

21 because in the regulations, three years is as far 

22 back as you go. 

23 Q 

24 what year? 

25 A 

, ' 

When did Erasmous change? Do you know 

I beli~ve it was -- now, I could be off a 
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year or so, about 1983, 1984, 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Do you mean 1993? 

A Yes, 1993, 1994, 

Q So Dr. Roemer, when he was teaching at 

Erasmous for the 1993, 1994 school year, would have 

been teaching in Erasmous in the new setup? 

A We had a transition year. He took 

advantage of the voluntarily transfer, I would have 

to look up whether it was 1992 or 1993 or 1994, I 

don't remember. 

Q Dr. Roemer would have been teaching in 

the transition? 

A Yes. We had one year, you see, it was a 

plan that was phased in and 1993, 1994 was the 

transition year. The board resolution closing the 

old Erasmous Hall, didn't come until the spring of 

that year and then he was part of the group that 

left the school. 

Q Now, you say that there was indications 

that Dr, Roemer was not going to change his method 

or his methods were unsatisfactory in the second 

year by the time that you came in to observe him? 

A Correct. 

Q Which; I believe, was on November 16th. 
t 

t 
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Do you know how many observations there would have 

been of him prior to that year? 

A I know there was at least that entire 

year. I don't recall. 

Q I am only addressing myself to the second 

year. 

A Okay. 

Q I am addressing myself to the 1995, 1996 

school year. 

A Right. 

Q And you came in on November 16th, I 

believe, of 1995, which was a little over two months 

after the start of school? 

A Correct. 

Q And it's my understanding by your 

testimony, a decision had been made at the time, 

subject to your approval, that Dr. Roemer was going 

to get an unsatisfactory? 

A Absolutely not. That's not what I 

stated. 

Q What did you state? 

A I stated that there were unsatisfactory 

observations and before a principal -- it's been a 

policy long-standing, before any consideration of an 
• • 
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adverse rating, I remember using that term, that a 

principal will consult with me and that's what he 

did. There were at least two observations by the 

time I walked into his class and these observations 

were very similar to the observation of the previous 

year and, furthermore, the problem which really 

motivated Dr. Bruckner to call me in was that he 

refused to meet with Dr. Bruckner. He refused to 

meet with Mr. Cohen and he basically said that I'm 

not going to meet with you and I'm not going to pay 

attention, so how long can you let that go on? You 

can't let that go on. 

Q A~e you familiar with a conciliation? 

A Yes. 

Q What is conciliation? 

A It's an effort to get both parties to 

mediate an issue and to work out a solution to a 

problem. 

Q Now, Dr. Roemer I believe asked for a 

conciliation? 

A Yes, he did. 

Q And he asked for conciliation shortly 

after he came to Murrow; am I correct? 

A 
• • 

He asked for a conciliation . 
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know the date. I don't recall. 

Q Do you know what the issue was in the 

conciliation? 

A It was basically the same issue. 

Q The issue was, Dr. Roemer wanted to teach 

in a certain method? 

A Correct. 

Q And Mr. Bruckner disapproved? 

A Correct. 

Q And it was tried to work this out between 

the two of them as to the method to be taught? 

A That was not the issue. 

Q What was the issue? 

A The issue was that Dr. Roemer only wanted 

to teach his method and no other method. Period. 

Nothing else. That was the issue. If there were 

any indications that he would consider anything 

else, then the conciliation would have moved 

forward, but he came in he said this is the way I 

have been teaching and this ~s the way I intend to 

teach. I'm not going to change and that's the end 

of that. 

Q Well, are you saying -- you acted as a 

conciliator, did you not? , , 
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A Correct. 

Q You came down with a decision? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q In the role as conciliator, was it proper 

for you to come down with a decision or pass it on? 

A No. My role as a conciliator is you try 

to bring the parties together and figure out a way 

of settling the issue, but Dr. Roemer refused to 

change. He doesn't even want to discuss anything 

else. That's not conciliation. Both parties have 

to sit and talk about an issue, but if you refuse, 

absolutely refuse to do anything, you can't 

conciliate. 

Q Well, were you the final conciliator? 

Was there another person who was to come in? 

A The conciliation was addressed to me as 

the superintendent. 

Q Are you aware of the fact that if you, as 

a conciliator, as a superintendent, cannot bring the 

parties together, there is another person that comes 

in? 

A If I, as a conciliator, cannot bring the 

parties together, yes, you can always appeal. 

Absolutely. 
• • 
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Q And are you aware of the fact that the 

person who came in as conciliator after you, stated 

that because you came down with a decision, you 

ruined the conciliation process? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection to the 

characterization and I don't have that report which 

I was supposed to have, which I couldn't show my 

witness, which I don't appreciate. This is no way 

to handle a case. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Objection sustained. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: It would have been nice to 

have this document to show my witness. I briefed 

Ms. Coppin on it. I was told I would be given a 

copy of it, so it's like watching Matlock on TV, Mr. 

Edelman, and I don't appreciate it and it doesn't 

matter to anyone around here. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Unless I 

misunderstood, a report was issued by the Board of 

Education, so it's in the file of the Board of 

Education. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: It's not. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: That's life. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: We have not substantiated it 

was correct. , , 
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HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: That is correct. We 

will find out. 

MR. FIELD: May I have a second, please? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN:. Sure. Off the 

record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

MR. FIELD: I have the letter. This was marked 

at the previous session. I happen to have the 

actual one that was marked. I would like to have 

some other documents marked. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let me see them. 

Respondent's 2 for identification is a request for 

conciliation dated November 3, 1994. Respondent's 3 

for identification is a letter dated December 2, 

1994 from Joseph Loschiavo to Joyce Coppin. 

Respondent's 4 is a letter dated February 3, 1995 

from Joyce Coppin to David Roemer. 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibits 2, 3 and 4, 

request for conciliation and letters were marked for 

identification.) 

MR. FIELD: Can we have a stipulation? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: On what? 

MR. FIELD: To the conciliation process was 

down pursuant toa selective bargaining agreement , , 
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between the Board of Education and the UFT and 

specifically pursuant to --

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Whatever provision. 

We stipulate to that. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I don't stip to anything. I 

don't know anything about the contract. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: So stipulated. 

Q NOW, under the UFT contract, the 

superintendent acts as conciliator, does she not? 

A Correct. 

Q Is your understanding of the role as the 

superintendent that if the super cannot bring the 

parties together in an agreement, the superintendent 

doesn't make any rulings either way? 

A Absolutely not. That is not my 

understanding. 

Q It's your understanding that the 

superintendent then acts asa fact finder? 

A Correct. It is my understanding that the 

role of the conciliator woul~ be; A, to bring the 

• parties to the table; B, to listen to both sides of 

the issue; 3, to try to find a middle ground which 

both can agree, and 4, to fashion an agreement which 

everyone would then follow. 
•• 
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Q Okay. Now, in fashioning an agreement, 

you used the word, "Agreement," do you mean to 

fashion an agreement between the parties to fashion 

a decision? 

A Fashion an agreement between the parties. 

Q So that when you wrote your letter on 

February 3, 1995, Respondent's Exhibit 4, you did 

this as a conciliator, did you not? 

A I most certainly did. 

Q That was the agreement that the parties 

had? 

A No, the parties could not come to an 

agreement because Dr. Roemer refused to move. 

That's the issue. You can't make an agreement I 

attempted to -- we sat in my office for the better 

part of two hours trying to bring an agreement. 

What is it he kept saying? This was a 

constructivist approach. It·s not -- he kept 

talking about how he always worked. He refused to 

me.et wi th his supervisors as: ·long as they rated him 

unsatisfactory. He refused to change his method 

that he always used and he will continue to use it, 

so how can you move. He refused to do anything. 

Q 
• • 

Let me understand something. 
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2 refused to meet with the supervisors. We are not 

3 talking about 1995 now. We are talking about the 

4 meeting that you had as a conciliator and I believe 

5 that meeting was on January 5, 1995. Was there any 

6 complaint at that time, I don't mean in October of 

7 1995, I mean in January of 1995, about Dr. Roemer 

8 refusing to meet with --

9 A Yes. 

10 Q What were the complaints? I want to know 

11 specifically what complaint you had in December of 

12 1994 or January of 1995 of Dr. Roemer refusing to 

13 meet with his supervisors? 

14 A The complaint I had following 

15 post-observation conferences, he would -- it's been 

16 so long ago now. It's nearly three years ago, but 

17 the complaint that I remember receiving, it's my 

18 memory at this time, that when there were 

19 conferences, he refused to listen. He refused to be 

20 moved. He refused to accept suggestions and he had 

21 told Mr. Bruckner that if h~ was going to hear the 

22 same thing over and over and over again, there would 

23 be no use to come to the meetings. That's what I 

24 recall hearing. 

25 Q 

• • 
Dr. R6emer came into the school, I 
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believe, in September of 1994 and is it your 

testimony, sitting here today, that from the time he 

came into that school, in September of 1994, he 

refused to go to conferences with Mr. Bruckner and 

Mr. Cohen, he refused to listen to them, he refused 

to follow any of their instructions; is that your 

testimony? 

A No. You put words in my mouth, I didn't 

put in there. You said from the moment he came into 

the school. I never said that. I said he was 

observed by Mr. Cohen and by Dr. Bruckner and as a 

result of their several observations, they described 

to me his unwillingness to accept suggestions and to 

implement their recommendations. That's why he, 

himself, asked for the conciliation, but he asked 

for it, not Dr. Bruckner, not Mr. Cohen, but he 

asked for it. 

Q Prior to that cOhciliation meeting that 

you had as an impartial third-party, had you had 

conversations with Mr. Bruck~n'er and Mr. Cohen about 

Dr. Roemer? 

A First of all, it's Dr. Bruckner because 

he does have his doctrine. Secondly, I had only the 

briefest conversation with Mr. Cohen and Dr. 
• 
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Bruckner and I had not even officially observed him 

at that time, so that I was really coming into this 

with an open mind, but he kept saying things that 

were improper, that were not based on experience or 

research and he did not seem to want to listen. 

That's the issue. That's the basis of conciliation, 

that people sit down and listen to each other and he 

refused to even get off the dime, so earlier, as you 

mentioned in his new assignment, you would think if 

a person is in an assignment four, five, six months, 

that you would listen to the people, but he refused 

to, at that time, to listen. 

Q I show you what has been marked as 

Respondent's Exhibit 1 for identification, were you 

aware of this letter prior to today? 

A Of course not. That is not a Board of 

Education document and I was not given a copy. 

Q Are you a aware of the fact that after 

your letter came out, it went onto another 

conciliator? 

A No, I was not involved in that. 

Q You are not aware of the fact that that 

conciliator said that it was impossible 

MR. MAZZARTELLO: I will object . 
• • 
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HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. She 

previously said she was not aware of it. 

Q Have you read now Respondent's Exhibit 1? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Are you in agreement with it or 

disagreement? 

A No, sir. Remember, this is a document 

that is written for the UFT, by the UFT and sent to 

the UFT, so when you present this as an official 

document 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The question is 

whether you agree or disagree. That was the 

question. 

A Okay. The answer is no, I don't agree 

with it. 

Q What don't you agree with? 

A For the reasons I just stated. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. She has not been 

provided with the document. She doesn't know who 

wrote it or why it was writt~n. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. 

can't comment, she will let me know. 

A In a sense -- give me a moment. 

not seen this document. 
• 
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Q I understand that. 

A The document is an internal UFT document. 

The document is addressed to Saul Solomon who is the 

UFT coordinator and, of course, this is part of 

their job, so, therefore, I would not have seen 

this. 

Q That's not the question I asked you. 

A I think it is. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The question is 

whether you agree or disagree. 

A I disagree. 

Q I am asking what you disagree with in the 

letter? 

A "Was so restrictive that it had 

effectively made it impossible for the meeting to 

have any hope of success." I disagree with that. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, you are aware of 

the fact that the witness i~ reading a document not 

in evidence into the record. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMA~: We will take it in, 

if we have to. Anything else, Mr. Field? 

Q What else do you disagree with? 

A "This letter describes a process which is 

not consistent with what is expected of an attempt , , 
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2 at conciliation. It is clear from the letter that 

3 no effort was made to have the two sides attempt to 

4 reach a common ground. At one point, Mrs. Coppin 

5 suggests -- while she doesn't say it in so many 

6 words the structure and tone of Mrs. Coppin's 

7 letter sends the message to Dr. Roemer and Mr. 

8 Bruckner that she had weighed the argument and 

9 decided that Dr. Roemer is wrong and Mr. Bruckner is 

10 right," and so on. You know, without going through 

11 the whole thing, those are the major points. 

12 Q Do you agree with the statement where the 

13 conciliator says, "That with this type of letter in 

14 his pocket, there would be no reason for the 

15 principal to even form such a conciliation"? 

16 A No, I do not agree with that. 

17 Q "The superintendent already said the 

18 principal is right on expecting the teacher to adopt 

19 the principal's suggestions"? 

20 A Actually, if you look at the last 

21 sentence on the first page, ~t says, "While she 

22 doesn't say it in so many words," so this is his 

23 instrumentation. 

24 Q In your letter of February 3rd, 

25 Respondents's Exhibit 4, did you not tell Dr. Roemer , , 
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in this letter at the conciliation that he was in 

danger of an unsatisfactory evaluation unless he 

changed? 

A Yes, I certainly did. That's the process 

that is used. That is the process that must be used 

before you can rate someone unsatisfactory. 

Q Well, is the purpose of a conciliation 

meeting to determine whether a teacher is 

unsatisfactory or not? Is that the purpose of it? 

A No, the process is to try to bring the 

sides together to establish a common ground. Dr. 

Roemer refused to budge. 

Q Would you tell us what Dr. Bruckner was 

prepared to do to bring the sides together? 

A It's my recollection that Dr. Bruckner 

wanted him to use a variety of teaching strategies, 

not use only one method, but a variety of teaching 

strategies. 

Q What variety did he want him to use? 

A Well, certainly strategies that would 

engage youngsters, much more activity in the 

teaching and learning process and constructiveness. 

Q What was the method Dr. Roemer was using? 

A Dr. Roemer's method consisted solely of 
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the use of worksheets. 

Q Did Dr. Roemer give a lecture to the 

kids? 

A A few minutes. 

Q Did Dr. Roemer then give individual 

instructions to the children? 

A He answered a question, if they took the 

opportunity to come up to him. Sometimes youngsters 

don't even know what to ask because they're so 

confused. 

Q Do you know whether Dr. Roemer walked. 

around amongst the children to give help? 

A From the lessen I saw, he walked around 

among the few kids in the front. I was sitting in 

the back. He never even came near the place where I 

was sitting. 

Q You are talking about the lessen you saw 

in November of 1995? 

A Yes. 

Q I am talking abou:t· back in 1994. 

A Remember, at the time of the 

conciliation, I stated quite clearly, I had not 

officially observed him. That's why I was willing 

to serve as a conciliator and I wanted to hear what 
• • 
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2 Dr. Bruckner had to say. I wanted to hear what Dr. 

3 Roemer had to say. I wanted to bring the parties 

4 together. 

5 Q What did Dr. Roemer say about his 

6 lessons? 

7 A He thought they were more than 

8 satisfactory. He thought the youngsters could learn 

9 best by this method. 

10 Q How did he describe the method? 

11 A He described he would give a few minutes 

12 of a lecture and then he would hand out the 

13 worksheets because he wanted to focus teaching on 

14 the kids and not on him and that if he taught the 

15 kids the lesson, they would be focused on him and 

16 not the youngsters. 

17 Q You say that Dr. Roemer is a totally 

18 unsatisfactory teacher and should be terminated? 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 teacher? 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 is? 

25 A 
, ' 

Correct. 

Would you call him an incompetent 

Yes. 

Do you know what an incompetent teacher 

Yes. 
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2 Q What is that? 

3 A An incompetent teacher is one that fails 

4 to provide satisfactory instructions for the 

5 students in her class. 

6 Q Unsatisfactory instructions is the one 

7 that learning does not take place? 

8 A No satisfactory instructions as well as 

9 learning not taking place. 

10 Q Is there a difference in unsatisfactory 

11 instructions and learning not taking place? 

12 A Absolutely. 

13 Q Is it your testimony that you consider a 

14 teacher incompetent if he does not provide 

15 satisfactory instructions? 

16 A That's one of the ways. There are 

17 several ways in which a teacher can be incompetent. 

18 Q what other ways? 

19 A That he doesn't provide satisfactory 

20 instructions. That he does not actively engage 

21 youngsters in the learning p:rocess. He doesn't 

22 address the learning styles of the students. He 

23 doesn't recognize the individual needs of students. 

24 Instruction is not departmented in such a way and 

25 only that way. You have to address the individual 
• • 
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needs of the students in your class. You can't have 

one lesson that is going to be satisfactory for 150 

students. 

Q You rate a teacher? 

A That's not a curriculum. 

Q I presume you consider Dr. Roemer 

incompetent? 

A Yes. 

Q Is it your test, if I understand 

correctly, that the teacher is not teaching 

satisfactorily, that is your test that you provide? 

A Repeat that question. 

Q In considering Dr. Roemer incompetent, 

was your test limited to that he was not teaching 

satisfactorily? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Asked and answered. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. 

Q You named other methods or other things. 

If a teacher doesn't do one of those things, is the 

teacher incompetent? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. It's too vague. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Don't bother. Did 

you say that other issues are actively engaging 

youngsters? Now he is asking if a teacher fails to 
• • 
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do one of those things that you listed, does that 

constitute incompetence? 

A If he does it consistently, over a 

period. Of course, we are not looking at one 

lesson. If he fails to do it consistently, over and 

over and over, and refuses to rectify that mistake, 

the answer is yes, plainly incompetent. 

Q Okay. So to summarize your testimony, is 

it your testimony, that even if learning takes place 

within the classroom, the teacher can be 

incompetent? 

A No, that's not what I said here. I am 

saying that if the teaching and the learning process 

are not satisfactory, the teacher is incompetent. 

There are some kids that might learn in spite of the 

teacher. Some kids have parents that teach them at 

home. There are some young people who come to 

school who already know the .ubject or are very 

familiar with it. My testimony is that if you have 

youngsters in your class tha£:you are responsible 

for teaching all of the children, you are to use the 

various repertoires of teaching methods to give all 

youngsters an opportunity to learn. That is my 

testimony. 
• • 
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Q There was no problem with Dr. Roemer with 

the class being disruptive, was there? 

A It was noisy. The kids drifted off. By 

the end of the period, the kids had just plain given 

up and they started to chat. 

Q You are talking about the class that you 

observed? 

A Absolutely. 

Q Do you state anything in your observation 

or in your letter of December 12th about the kids 

drifting off and chatting and noisy? 

A It's in the second paragraph on the 

bottom, "Some of the students began to help each 

other and to answer their questions. While you talk 

to the board, speaking to a few students at the 

front of the room, you almost totally ignored the 

side of the room where Dr. Bruckner and I was 

sitting. Two students raised their hand for 

questions or to respond to you and you never 

recognized them." 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Field, next 

question please. 

Q Is there anything else iri that report 

where you indicate that? 
, ' 
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A No, that's basically it. 

Q Now, how do you measure whether there is 

learning? Is there any way of measuring objectively 

whether learning takes place? 

A There are several methods. First of all, 

a good lesson embeds assessment as part of the 

lesson. In other words, you don't go and teach 45 

minutes without having some bench marks along the 

way so that there are medial summaries. The~e are 

some strategies; one would be to check for 

comprehension and understanding. That did not take 

place in the lesson I observed. 

Q That's not the question I am asking. I 

am asking is there any way of 

A Yes, learning assessment should be 

embedded within the lesson itself. The summary of a 

lesson should ask questions or so that the teacher 

will know whether youngsters:bave understood the 

concepts learned. Homework that is based upon the 

lesson, would give youngsters:and the teacher an 

indication that the students have learned. There 

are quizzes. There are what we call authentic 

assessments that would give an indication, anything 

from portfolios to producing a product writing 
• • 
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2 research paper or even having youngsters write in a 

3 journal what they have learned, having youngsters 

4 pose questions. The youngsters pose questions and 

5 having the students answer those questions. 

6 Q Looking at your letter of December 12th, 

7 isn't it true that the opening part of that class, I 

8 believe for at least fifteen minutes, Dr. Roemer 

9 went over the homework and answered questions and 

10 corrected some mistakes with the students from the 

11 last class, the homework being from the class that 

12 you did not observe, but the homework that the 

13 children had done from that class? 

14 A Dr. Roemer? 

15 Q No. The question I asked --

16 A The answer to your question is no. 

17 Q Well, in the second paragraph of your 

18 letter of December 12th, did he not ask the students 

19 were there any questions fro~yesterday's lesson and 

20 there was a discussion about one particular 

21 question, that was question four from yesterday's 

22 lesson, and Dr. Roemer gave an illustration on the 

23 board of that? 

24 A That was one question asked by basically 

) 25 one child which he responded to. That's not what 
• • 
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one would call a review of the day's work. Sir, 

there are some times that youngsters are so 

confused, they have not learned anything. They 

can't ask a question because they don't know enough 

to ask a question. That's why I said as part of an 

assessment strategy which can be used to have 

youngsters in the class ask questions and have other 

youngsters respond to those questions. 

Q On what basis can you say that the 

children in the lesson that you observed were so 

confused that they didn't learn anything that day? 

I don't know what the class was or the subject of it 

was. 

A It was physics. 

Q I don't know what part of physics, what 

lesson? 

A Something to do with friction and heat, 

if I recall, but I'm not certain. But how did I 

know, because I physically walked around the room, 

Dr. Bruckner and I physically walked around the 

room. I looked at kids' work. I spoke with the 

youngsters. Remember, he stopped teaching 15 

minutes, maybe less, after the period started, so I 

had basically almost a half hour to walk around and 
• • 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



1 Hearing 155 

2 look at the work kids were doing. As a matter of 

3 fact, there were a group of four or five youngsters 

4 in the back who I started working with, asking them 

5 questions, and they just didn't know, but I 

6 physically walked around from desk to desk and I am 

7 willing to state for the record that I covered, in a 

8 minimum, three quarters of that class. 

9 Q Now, you also mentioned that one way of 

10 determining if learning takes place are quizzes; am 

11 I correct? 

12 A Brief quizzes. 

13 Q What about tests that are given, not 

14 tests that are composed by the teacher, but standard 

15 tests that are comprised within the department, and 

16 using those tests as a method of determining whether 

17 learning takes place? 

18 A At the end of a unit, yes, that would be, 

19 but you want to make certai~that youngsters don't 

20 get to a point of taking a unit test or a midterm 

21 without knowing what they knqw and what they don't 

22 know, what they can and can't do. 

23 Q I understand, but tests would be a method 

24 of a valid test and one that is not composed by the 

25 teacher, but tests that are composed by the , , 
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2 department, itself? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Regents would be another method, would 

5 they not? 

6 A Correct. 

7 Q Now, did Dr. Roemer respond to your 

8 letter? 

9 A Yes, he did. 

10 Q Did you ever reply to his letter? 

11 A No. 

12 Q Do you have any comments on his response? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q What are they? 

15 A His comments were related to the same 

16 thing he has been saying over and over and over 

17 again. He just wants to use this one method and 

18 makes the statement about something about a good 

19 teacher and he puts, "Good teacher," in quotes and 

20 he says something about perhaps maybe I judged his 

21 lesson as I did because I had'a different idea of 

22 what a good teacher does. 

23 Q Now, is it possible for a teacher not to 

24 be able to teach in a satisfactory manner in one 

25 school., but yet be able to teach satisfactory in , 
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another school? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will object again, Mr. 

Edelman. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Speculating. 

Sustained. 

MR. FIELD: She came to the conclusion and she 

testified that he can't teach anyplace and I think 

it's a proper question. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You know what, I 

rarely reverse my decided objection, but overruled. 

Answer, could he be a good teacher or satisfactory 

teacher in one school and not another? 

A You could be rated satisfactory in one 

school and be rated unsatisfactory in another 

school. Yes, that's possible. 

Q Edward R. Murrow High School has very 

high standards, does it not? 

A Edward R. Murrow's curriculum is in 

compliance with State standards. 

Q Okay. 

A It doesn't make it higher. It's in 

compliance with State standards. The Erasmous Hall 

program was not in compliance with State standards 

as judged by teams of people from the State and as a 

• 
ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 

(516) 689-0111 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
j 

25 

Hearing 158 

result, the place was closed. 

Q What about Midwood High School? 

A Midwood is in compliance with the State's 

standards. His service there was beyond the scope 

of your discussion. 

Q Now, Dr. Roemer also taught is it also 

possible that a method of teaching one subject may 

not be satisfactory, but that method might be 

satisfactory teaching another subject? 

A It depends upon the method. 

Q Let's take Dr. Roemer's method. His 

method would be to have an individual work together 

on things? 

A That was not. Dr. Roemer's method was to 

give a lecture and then hand out worksheets. 

Q He said he had to give a lecture and then 

have the individuals work together? 

A Dr. Roemer's method was to hand out 

worksheets and they were not asked to work 

together. It was not a coop~rative learning 

session. The strategies that one places when you 

have a cooperative lesson or a collaborative 

learning lesson were not part of that lesson. The 

kids began to work with each other as a survival 
• • 
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mechanism. 

Q Are you aware that in some of the lessons 

that Dr. Roemer gave, he would have children 

particularly working together in groups? 

A As I said before, having kids working 

together is not collaborative learning. If two 

people I don't know Ms. Turner. I just met her 

today. She asks me something. We are trying to 

figure out what this letter meant. We are not 

working together. We are asking questions. 

.Q You testified Dr. Roemer didn't have 

children working together, but one method would be 

to have children working together? 

A Yes. Look, I use the word cooperative 

learning and collaborative learning. 

Q I want to ask you what you mean by 

cooperative learning and collaborative learning? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: She already testified to that 

twice. 

A A cooperative lea~ning lesson would have 

several elements. First of all, the groups of 

youngsters would be organized and, in most cases, 

they would either be organized heterogeneously, 

sometimes homogeneously. There is a specific task 
•• 
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for the group to do. Usually timed. It's usually 

stated this group over here will work on heat 

generation. This group will work on mechanical 

energy and so on. The specific tasks or the process 

that the youngsters would have to follow, would be 

discussed in advance and outlined. The outcome of 

the group working together, would be specified as a 

result of such and such and such a thing. You have 

to prove or disapprove or come to a conclusion or 

write or produce or something. There would be some 

reason for the youngsters working together and since 

this was physics and since it was science and since 

the lesson I observed had ample opportunity for 

hands-on activities, those hands-on activities would 

be part of the work of the group. None of that was 

done. Just because two people converse and I am 

giving she knows the answer. I am sure she knows 

about the law more than I dcr. If there is a legal 

question and I have the answer and wrote it down. 

That's not working together. ::That's what I 

observed. Physically, I had a half hour to walk 

around and that's what I saw. 

MR. FIELD: Can I have a couple of minutes? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Take a short recess, 
• • 
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then finish up. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Field, proceed. 

Q Ms. Coppin, have you ever heard the 

expression chalk and talk? 

A Absolutely. 

Q Can you tell us what that means? 

A It's a method where teachers write notes 

on the board and talk about it. A teacher asks a 

question -- there are many chalk and talk lessons, 

but a teacher may ask a question. A kid gives a 

response. He writes it on the board or a teacher 

will write notes on the board, explain it and then 

write some more notes and youngsters may ask a 

question or two, but basically the focus of the 

lesson is the notes on the board and you go into 

some classes where they're doing chalk and talk and 

the kids are copying. That's their focus, to get 

the notes down on the board. 

Q Is it fair to say:that you have preached 

against chalk and talk? 

A I have preached against chalk and talk as 

a standard method of teaching day in and day out. 

Yes, I have. , , 
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2 Q Is it fair to say Dr. Roemer also has 

3 talked against chalk and talk, to your knowledge, or 

4 why in your conversation 

5 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection to relevancy. Who 

6 cares? 

7 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. Do you 

8 know if he talked about chalk and talk? 

9 A I can't answer that question with a yes 

10 or no answer. 

11 Q Can you answer the question? 

12 A Yes, I can. 

13 Q Can you answer it? 

14 A Chalk and talk is not just chalking and 

15 talking. You can have a chalk and talk lesson that 

16 really doesn't have to do with chalk, but it is 

17 basically just writing and talking and his lesson is 

18 a kind of a writing chalk and talk because the kids 

19 are just reading something and writing it down. 

20 Sometimes you see teachers will say for today's 

21 lesson we'll read Pages 35 to·37 and answer the next 

22 five questions and you get through and the kids read 

23 and write it down and the teachers put the answers 

24 on the board. That's chalk and talk too, so what he 

25 was doing -- chalk and talk really refers to plain 
•• 
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lecturing and talking then writing things on the 

board, which is basically what he did in his part of 

the lesson where he did some teaching. He did 

exactly what he says he really doesn't like to do. 

Q Now, the other part of the lesson where 

the children are answering questions at their desks 

individually or collectively or cooperatively, 

students were answering questions, they were not 

copying, they were answering the questions, were 

they not? 

A They were copying. Some of them were 

copying from each other. 

Q What was Dr. Roemer doing during that 

part of the lesson? 

A He was working with a couple of kids in 

the front and he did walk along the aisle, but 

stayed in the front of the room. The board is here 

and he was in a lab and ther~ were lab tables and a 

group of kids over here. They were a little more 

vocal than the rest of the c~ass. He spent a lot of 

the time with them. He walked along that aisle in 

the front. He never went to the back of the room at 

all. 

Q Now, do you know whether Dr. Roemer -- do 
•• 
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2 you recall a proposal Dr. Roemer had made about 

3 developing a science program at Erasmous? 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection to relevancy. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I don't see the 

6 relevancy. 

7 MR. FIELD: She said this is a teacher which is 

8 totally incompetent and should not be allowed to 

9 teach in the City School District. I believe he has 

10 a right to put on, as part of his defense, that he 

11 is competent and showing his competence, his 

12 interest in children and interest in developing 

13 programs and things he has done in the system. I am 

14 asking this witness whether she is aware of anything 

15 he has done in particular. 

16 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Objection sustained. 

17 I think it's too far removed. When he testifies, he 

18 testifies to what he did with respect to his two 

19 years at Murrow and I will give him free rein to do 

20 so. Erasmous is not before us. It just isn't. He 

21 has not been charged with mi~conduct at Erasmous. 

22 It's just not before us. 

23 MR. FIELD: You are saying what happened prior 

24 at Midwood is irrelevant? 

25 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Well, I have allowed 
• • 
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2 some testimony, certainly some evidence and of a 

3 satisfactory evaluation in those schools, which has 

4 some probative value, but other things he did at 

5 Midwood and Erasmous are not related to his role in 

6 the classroom. I think it's too far removed, so 

7 that's where we are not going to go. 

8 MR. FIELD: I object to that. 

9 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: So noted. 

10 MR. FIELD: I would like to introduce into 

11 evidence, Respondent's Exhibit 1, Respondent's 

12 Exhibit 2, Respondent's Exhibits 3 and 4. 

13 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Any objection? 

14 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Yeah, this witness did not 

15 create this document. It's a UFT document. It has 

16 no letterhead on it. That's clearly out. The 

17 others I have no problem with. Actually, the letter 

18 Joyce Coppin created. I don't have a problem with 

19 the rest. 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: At this time, I will 

21 just sustain the objection w~th respect to 

22 Respondent's one. Although, I may permit it through 

23 another witness, but I will sustain the objection at 

24 this time. with respect to the other documents, 2, 

25 3 and 4, they are in evidence . 
• • 
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(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibits 2, 3, and 4, 

documents, were received into evidence.) 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Any other questions, 

Mr. Field? 

MR. FIELD: I have nothing further. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Mazzariello, any 

redirect? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: No. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Panel members? 

MS. SHAFFER: Did I understand your teaching 

experience before you became an administrator was 

solely in the elementary school? 

A Yes. 

MS. SHAFFER: Thank you, ma'am. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: This is the end of 

Ms. Coppin's examination and we will begin with the 

next witness, Ira Cohen. 

You are reminded that you are still under 

oath. 

MR. COHEN: Yes, sir. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: We will take 

cross-examination. Mr. Field, you are up. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

Q Mr. Cohen, how many physics teachers were 
• • 
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there at Murrow when Mr. Roemer taught there? 

A Three. 

Q Were they all licensed in physics? 

A To the best of my recollection, they 

were. 

Q Were they new teachers? 

A One of them was. 

Q Dr. Roemer? 

A No. 

Q Besides Dr. Roemer? 

A I didn't count Dr. Roemer as being new to 

the system, no. Mr. Eisenstein. 

Q New to the school? 

A New to the school. Both Dr. Roemer and 

Mr. Eisenstein were new to the school. 

Q The third teacher was who? 

A Mr. Marks. 

Q How long had he been there? 

A Three years prior. 

Q What was the textoook that was. supposed 

to be used in physics? 

A Conceptual Physics by Hewitt. 

Q Is that the selected textbook? 

A 
• • 
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with Mr. Marks, both selected that book. 

Q Do you know when that was selected? 

A It was probably -- well, Mr. Marks had to 

be there, so probably three years prior to that. 

Q Was that book a conceptual book or 

mathematics? 

A Conceptual. 

Q Is that book used in other schools, if 

you know? 

A It's used nationwide. 

Q Is it used in other schools in the City 

System, in the high schools? 

A I could not tell you that. 

Q Is the regents in physics more 

mathematical than conceptual? 

A No. 

Q It's conceptual? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q The classes are broken up into four 

quarters, are they not? 

A Yes. 

Q Each quarter --

A They are called cycles. 

Q Each cycle children change to another 
• • 
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2 teacher? 

3 A Right. 

4 Q So that Dr. Roemer would have most 

5 students in only one quarter? 

6 A There were three teachers, so maybe more. 

7 Q Some students he would have for half a 

8 year? 

9 A Could have. 

10 Q Are there any tests that are given by the 

11 teachers, tests that are made up by the department 

12 or by the teachers? 

13 A No, the teachers make them up. 

14 Q Within the science department, is there a 

15 way to give a computer generated test? 

16 A I'm not sure if there was when Dave was 

17 there. There is something called test begin, exam 

18 begin. It's a test bank program that contained 

19 questions. We had it for physics and chemistry and 

20 I believe for science. 

21 Q That teachers cou~d use those for the 

22 unit tests? 

23 A Teachers could. 

24 Q If the students did well on those tests, 

25 would that be an.indication that learning was taking 

.' 
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place? 

A Because that program contained questions, 

didn't make those questions good questions. In 

fact, I have tried to get teachers not to rely on 

those because these questions were limited to a very 

limited nature. They are factual only. 

Q If children did well, would that be some 

indication that learning was taking place? 

A That would be an indication that they 

could solve a problem that was on that test. 

Q What are ways to determine whether 

learning is taking place? 

A When I come out of a lesson, I look for 

three things in terms of what students get out of a 

lesson; either positive outcomes in terms of 

contents, in terms of study or in terms of 

behavior. Anyone of those three areas. 

Q A positive outcome in what? 

A Contents. 

Q What do you mean by that? 

A What they know about the subject matter 

covered by that lesson. 

Q Okay. What is the second one? 

A Attitude. 
tt 
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2 Q What do you mean by that, sir? 

3 A How they feel regarding the subject that 

4 was covered. 

5 Q Okay. And the third one? 

6 A Behavior, whether or not they wish to del 

7 further into that subject. 

8 Q How do you measure that after the 

9 particular lesson? 

10 A In part by test, by student comment, by 

11 what they are doing in class, by how their homework 

12 looks, by what goes on in terms of their 

13 participation in the classroom. 

14 Q Well, homework you would not know until 

15 the following lesson? 

16 A Right, but I collected homework from the 

17 previous lesson. 

18 Q Did you ever check to see if the students 

19 handed in -- you observed Dr. Roemer? 

20 A No, I didn't check their homework. One 

21 student gave me a test. 

22 Q That was a test with one question? 

23 A No, it was a test. There was one test 

24 that had one question. 

25 Q 

•• 
There.was a test that had one question 
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early on and you reprimanded him? 

A I asked him not to do that again, but 

there were homework assignments where there were 

several items where the students had asked for help 

on the sheet and all the student got back was an X 

on the sheet. 

Q That was one student? 

A One student, one homework assignment. 

Q Now, in positive outcomes in terms of 

content, how could that be measured? 

A By tests, by participation in class, how 

well they answer questions in class. 

Q And positive outcome in terms of 

attitude, that would that be measured how? 

A By whether or not they wanted to come 

back to the class, whether they wanted to spend more 

time in the class, whether they wanted to study 

physics. 

Q The children that Dr. Roemer taught, I 

believe at the beginning, there were some questions, 

the children came to you and complained about Dr. 

Roemer? 

A Yes. 

Q Did that continue throughout the year? , , 
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A Yes, it did. 

Q How many students, a number of students 

or --

A I had a group of -- I had a petition from 

20 kids asking to be removed from his class. I had 

eight students walk into my office asking to be 

removed from the class. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Were the eight part 

of the 20, if you know? 

A I don't recall. I would have to go back 

and check. I had parents calling me and asking me 

please to remove their,kid and not allow their kid 

in the class the following cycle. 

Q I believe you brought to Dr. Roemer's 

attention, the eight students? 

A I brought to his attention the 20 

students that signed a statement. I had written 

comments from them with ~heir names. I brought 

those specific names to him. 

Q You gave him the actual names? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Do you remember when that occurred? 

A I could check. I have the papers here. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Do you? 
• • 
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2 A Yes, I do. 

3 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Please take a look. 

4 A November 13, 1995 was the letter I had 

5 written to Dr. Roemer indicating the names of 20 

6 students who raised complaints. Dr. Roemer had 

7 signed that. 

8 MR. FIELD: Can I see that? 

9 HEARING OF~ICER EDELMAN: Yes. (Handing. ) 

10 A If you would like to check another letter 

11 with the same names, you can see if the names are 

12 the same. This was not signed by Dr. Roemer. 

13 THE WITNESS: (Handing.) 

14 Q This was the second year that Dr. Roemer 

15 was there? 

16 A 1995 was the second year, yes. 

17 Q And did you speak to Dr. Roemer about 

18 this? 

A 

20 What was his attitude? Q 

A 21 I am trying to recall a conversation I 

22 had several years ago that I should provide help to 

23 the students. I think that was the jest of it. 

24 Q That you should - -

25 A That I· should provide help to the 
• • 
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students, yes. 

Q Did Dr. Roemer say anything that he felt 

the students were learning? 

A He said they were having trouble. Again, 

it's just a conversation from several years ago. I 

recall him saying I should tutor the students in 

physics. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, can I have those 

documents back, please? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: That's fair. 

MR. FIELD: (Handing.) 

Q Now, what was your reply to him? 

A That I cannot tutor 20 students. 

Q That's all? 

A That it was his responsibility to deal 

with the students in his class. There was tutoring 

available for students that needed help. 

Q Did the students ~omplain again 

afterwards? 

A what happened was; after that cycle, most 

of the students were no longer in his class. 

Q Now, I believe you testified earlier, 

there was no learning at all going on in Dr. 

Roemer's classes? 
t 

t 
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A That is right. 

Q Are you aware of his test results? 

A What tests are you talking about? 

Q The unit tests. 

A No, I would not see the test results. 

Q Are you aware of the grades the students 

got? 

A I generally get a report of percentage 

passing at the end of the cycle. 

Q Did the students pass? 

A How would that indicate whether or not 

they learned anything? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Stop. Just answer. 

A Yes. 

Q Your conclusion then that the students 

were not learning, was that a subjective conclusion? 

A My conclusion was based on what I saw in 

the classroom each time I obServed his lesson. 

Q What did you see? 

A Exactly what the written observation 

report says. 

good? 

Q Was the decorum in the classroom always 

A Not always. 
• • 
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Q Do you know any particular times when 

they were not? 

A One lesson, I recall at the end of the 

lesson, nobody was paying attention and he said is 

anybody paying attention. 

Q All right. Apart from that lesson, is 

there any other one you recall? 

A There was another time when the students 

simultaneously got up at the designated time, there 

are no bells at Murrow, got up at the end and walked 

out. 

Q How do students know when the class is 

over? 

A Usually the teacher dismisses them. 

Q Dr. Roemer would start his class off by 

reviewing the homework, would he not? 

A Sometimes. 

Q After reviewing the homework, he would 

give a lecture, would he not? 

A Sometimes. I don~~ think that was 

consistent, but at times. 

Q And then he would have the children 

either work by themselves or work together on a 

problem; is that.~orrect? 
• • 
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2 A Basically. 

3 Q During periods when students were working 

4 on a problem either together or by themselves, what 

5 was Dr. Roemer doing? 

6 A Walking around the room. 

7 Q Would he be helping the children? 

8 A I didn't follow him, but he would be 

9 walking around the room. 

10 Q Would he be speaking with the students? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q To a number of students? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q As far as you know, do you think he was 

15 giving individual instructions? 

16 A There was one lesson in particular where 

17 he was speaking to one group of students and 

18 immediately after he left that group of students, I 

19 went over to them and they d±dn't have the slightest 

20 idea what he was talking about. 

21 Q Were you aware that Dr. Roemer, the 

22 method he was using teaching at Murrow, was 

23 satisfactory elsewhere, worked satisfactorily 

24 elsewhere. 

25 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I want to object to this. , , 
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HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I think the answer is 

the same. 

A I didn't speak to any of the supervisors 

prior to him coming to Murrow. 

Q Were you involved in the conciliation 

process? 

A Yes, I was at a meeting with Mrs. Coppin 

and Dave and several other people. A UFT 

representative was there. 

Q Mr. Bruckner was there? 

A Yes. 

Q Can you tell us what happened at that 

meeting? 

A Dave explained the way he proceeded to 

teach physics. I explained how I expected physics 

to be taught. Mr. Bruckner explained his viewpoints 

on the same, then Mrs. Coppin spoke to summarize the 

whole issue. 

Q How did Dave explain how he wanted to 

teach physics? 

A He said that his entire spell of teaching 

physics was based on the worksheets he gave to the 

students. He gave them to the students, having them 

at the beginningcf the class so they could look it 
• • 
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over and see what was going to be covered during 

that class and they would then have to work on those 

problems. It was his point that physics was a 

computational science, that students wouldn't 

understand physics unless they understood how to do 

the mathematics behind it. That's what brought 

physics to life. 

Q He felt that his method of teaching, 

approaching physics from tilat method, his method of 

teaching was the proper way to approach physics? 

A He felt that it was his way to teach 

physics and he felt it was the best way. 

Q Are teachers permitted to the types of 

the way they want to teach? 

A Providing that the students are coming 

out of there with some positive outcomes. 

Q How do you judge whether they are coming 

out with positive outcomes? 

A We discussed by whether they wanted to 

stay in his class, by whethe~' or not they are 

passing exams, whether or not they are doing 

homework, what their attitude is toward physics. 

Q You stated that at that meeting you 

discussed how you expected physics to be taught. 
tt 
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A That is right. 

Q Would you tell us what you stated? 

A That I was looking for certain things in 

a lesson. I think I mentioned this in my 

testimony. I was looking for a lesson with a focus 

that doesn't have to be written as a name on the 

board, but a question with a result of demonstration 

or orientation by the teacher. Sometimes we would 

call it a discreped event, something that happens 

that is not supposed to happen and then that raises 

a question in the minds of the students that then 

becomes the focus of that lesson. The students 

collected information for the rest of that band to 

collect information. That information can be 

selected in different ways. They can do an activity 

and collect the information and try to learn 

something that way or the teacher can, through other 

demonstrations or through asklng questions, help 

direct them to see what the answer to a question 

was. 

Q What did Mr. Bruckner say, if anything? 

A I don't recall exactly what he said at 

that meeting. I would expect he would expect that a 

teacher would have to have a written prepared lesson 
.' 
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plan and basically what I said. 

Q What did Mrs. Coppin -- what was her role 

in this meeting? 

A She was meditator, conciliator. 

Q Was she going to make a decision about 

what method should be used? 

A She was supposed to listen to both sides 

and see if there was any common ground. 

Q If there was some common ground, did you 

understand she was to make a decision? 

A What she did was she instructed, at the 

time, she told Dr. Roemer that he could use his 

worksheets for review or for a particular question 

on the worksheet for one part of a lesson or 

homework assignment, but not use them as the entire 

lesson. When I was sitting there, I felt that that 

was somewhat a move toward his direction because she 

had said these worksheets, when used in particular 

instances, was fine, but the way he was using them, 

was unsatisfactory. 

Q She was making a decision though on what 

Dr. Roemer could or could not do? 

A She was trying to find some common ground 

and yes, she had.made the statement at the end. It 
• • 
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was that he shouldn't use those sheets the way he 

was using them. 

Q By the way, I understand the problems you 

had with Dr. Roemer's teaching. Were there any 

other problems with Dr. Roemer? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Are you talking about parents 

or students complaining? 

A Other than what went on in the 

classroom? 

Q Yes. 

A No. 

Q He completed his assignments, did 

whatever assignments you gave him to do, 

nonteaching? 

A The original thing I was concerned about 

was what was going on in his classroom. 

Q Is it your testimony that Dr. Roemer 

cannot teach anyplace? 

A Yes. 

Q And that's based on your observation in 

the classroom? 

A Over a year and a half period. 

Q And there was no learning going on in the 

classroom? 
.' 
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2 A That is right. 

3 MR. FIELD: Can I have a break for a minute? 

4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sure. Off the 

5 record. 

6 (Discussion held off the record.) 

7 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Field, proceed. 

8 Q Mr. Cohen, are you familiar with the fact 

9 that Dr. Roemer had a, early on when you brought to 

10 his attention the eight students that had 

11 complained, had a survey made of all the students of 

12 how each they felt? 

13 A He mentioned to me that he did. 

14 Q And are you familiar with what the 

15 results of that survey were? 

16 A No. 

17 Q All right. Is it fair to say that Dr. 

18 Roemer was very much concerned that students were 

19 complaining? 

20 A He was concerned, but his administering a 

21 survey asking how he was doirig to students in his 

22 classes, he can't be expected to get fair 

23 responses. Those kids have to get grades from him. 

24 Of course, the students want the teacher to think 

25 they enjoy his class. The place I would never go in 
• • 
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2 the classroom would be to ask them. I would have to 

3 judge by what I see going on in the classroom. 

4 Q Did you have pre-observation meetings 

5 with Dr. Roemer? 

6 A We had some. 

7 Q At the beginning, did you have them? 

8 A No. 

9 Q Was there a reason why you didn't have 

10 them? 

11 A We didn't have them at the beginning 

12 because he was coming in as a teacher of ten years, 

13 I believe, at that time. 

14 Q When there came a time when you became 

15 aware that you were dissatisfied with Dr. Roemer's 

16 teaching, did you' have the observations --

17 A I believe the spring of the first year he 

18 was there. 

19 Q To see the way he-taught? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q Was he receptive to some of your ideas? 

22 A He always seemed receptive to some of my 

23 ideas and then, at a point, he just refused to meet 

24 with me. 

25 Q 
• • 

That was the second year? 
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A Yes. 

Q As a matter of fact, there was no 

question during the first year when you have asked 

to meet with Dr. Roemer, he met with you; is that 

correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q I believe that occurred sometime in the 

second year. There was a question about meetings in 

a post-observation --

A He would not meet with me for 

pre-observation conferences or post-observation 

conferences. 

Q That was the first year? 

A Yes, but the interesting thing was, as 

far as you asking him how he felt about my session, 

some of his comments in the observation reports, he 

said he never agreed to anything I said at the 

post-observation conference. I would show him 

something, oh that's a good idea he would say and in 

his rebuttal to my observation report, he said he 

never said that. 

Q Dr. Roemer is licensed to teach other 

than physics, is he not? 

A I don't know that. 
tt 
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Q You only mentioned him in physics? 

A I saw him teach physics and I saw him 

teach a foundation of science class. 

Q In the foundation of science class, do 

you recall what was being taught? 

A He was teaching a lesson in scientific 

methods at the end of the term. This was a course 

that he had received a book of lesson plans to , 

follow and one of the first lesson plans was a 

lesson in scientific methods and he was teaching it 

at the end of the course and not following the 

lesson plan as it was written and this was toward 

the end of the year, after I had been telling him 

that what he had been doing is unsatisfactory, 

here's a book of lesson plans, please follow this. 

He didn't do that. 

Q That was the end of the year? 

A Yeah, I believe sa. It may have been in 

Mayor June of 1995. 

Q By the way, there was an issue about 

lesson plans, was there not, whether Dr. Roemer had 

lesson plans? 

A Yes. I believe that was an issue raised 

first by the prirtcipal. 
• • 
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Q He did have lesson plans, did he not? 

A What he called his lesson plan was the 

worksheet that was given out. 

Q A grievance had been taken, had there 

not? As a result of that grievance, it was agreed 

that the students' lesson plan constituted a lesson 

plan? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will object. I am not 

aware of that, from my knowledge. 

MR. FIELD: The witness may not be. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Stop. Give the 

answer. 

A I don't recall. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Okay. He doesn't 

recall. 

Q Did Dr. Roemer, in the foundation of 

science class that you observed, did he respond to 

your report by showing you the test results or the 

homework assignments? 

A I don't recall th~t. If it's part of the 

record, I just don't. 

Q Do you recall Dr. Roemer bringing to your 

attention that the lesson was primarily a reading 

lesson? , , 
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A One of my objections to that was it was a 

lesson based on the scientific method that was 

teaching vocabulary, what is meant by a problem, 

what is meant by hypotllesis. I hoped to see a 

lesson involving students trying to solve a problem, 

so they could see what was involved in the 

scientific lesson rather than --

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can I have a point of 

clarification as to what lesson we are talking 

about? 

MR. FIELD: The day of the observation was from 

May 9, 1995. 

Q Is it proper to give a reading lesson 

sometimes on occasion? 

A In a science classroom, students should 

be actively investigating. I can't see an entire 

day being spent reading as being a positive 

experience for the students. A reading assignment 

could be given as homework where students can spend 

time reading. When they are~in class with a 

teacher, they should be interacting with a teacher. 

Q Was that lesson unsatisfactory because it 

was a reading lesson? 

A 
• • 

I don't remember the details. 
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have to see the observation report to see what I 

wrote. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: (Handing.) 

A I said the lesson was unsatisfactory 

because, first, a lesson on the scientific method 

should start at the start of the course, not the 

end. Second, a scientific method should involve 

problems and not teaching the students vocabulary. 

Third, the questions were poor and I gave examples 

of his poor questions. Fourth, I wrote you did not 

tie this lesson in to any previous discussion, 

either at the start or end of the class. Fifth, he 

missed opportunities to involve students in hands-on 

and mind-on activities. Those are the reasons. 

Q Did Dr. Roemer reply to that? 

A No, he did not. 

Q Are you aware of the fact that a 

grievance was taken with respect to your observation 

report? 

A No. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Do you have the results of 

that grievance? 

MR. FIELD: Yes, I do. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Would you mind sharing it 
• 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
.. ~ 

25 

Hearing 191 

with us? 

MR. FIELD: I most certainly will. I mistook 

that there was a grievance decision on three 

grievances at one time. As to the observation of 

May 9th, the grievance was denied and May 16th, 

there was a change. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Anything else, Mr. 

Field? 

MR. FIELD: Yes. 

Q Did Dr. Roemer have any discussions with 

you about the conciliation process that was going 

on? 

A I think at one point he had commented to 

me about maybe some of the comments I was making 

were right, we should settle this in conciliation. 

Q Did Mr. Bruckner ever speak to you about 

the conciliation? 

A He was at the same meeting as me. 

Q Apart from that meeting? 

A No. 

Q And in 1995, when Dr. Roemer was removed 

from his class, for what reason was he removed? 

me. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. It was because of 

I had him removed from the classroom. , 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 

For the 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
~ 

25 

Hearing 192 

record, it was recommendation to Dr. Crew that he be 

removed. 

Q Would you tell us, did you ask that Dr. 

Roemer be removed. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. I instructed the 

principal of the school and the superintendent to 

remove Dr. Roemer. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The question is 

fair. Did you ask anybody? 

A I spoke to the principal and to the 

superintendent about the fact that Dr. Roemer had 

been given suggestions to change his method of 

teaching to incorporate some of the things we asked 

him to incorporate during tbe second year. He 

refused to meet with me for post or pre-observation 

conferences. He said I don't care what you say. I 

am doing what I want to do. I went to my principal 

and said he is not listening to anything we are 

telling him. Did I ask for him to be taken out of 

the classroom, no. 

Q Did you speak to Dr. Roemer at all at 

that time about why --

A I asked him to come generally during the 

second year . 
• • 

He would not come to any meetings. 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



1 

2 

3 

4· 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19· 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
, 

25 

Hearing 193 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Can I get, for the 

record, when was he taken out of the classroom, 

February or March? Let's find this out. 

A It was in the middle of Cycle 3. It was 

February or March of 1996. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: The letter from the 

Chancellor was dated effective November 9th. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: During the break, we 

will get the dates as to when he was actually 

removed from teaching classes. Mr. Field, anything 

else? 

MR. FIELD: I have no further questions. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Mazzariello? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: We have no direct. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Panel members, any 

questions? Okay. Thank you, sir. Mr. Mazzariello, 

any other witnesses. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: No, the Board of Education 

rests. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN~ We will now take a 

lunch break and Mr. Field will produce all the 

records he is to produce. Let's shoot for 1:30. 

(Whereupon, a lunch break was taken from 12:30 

to 1:30 p.m.) 
• • 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: We are back from 

3 lunch and we are going to have the examination of 

4 the respondent, David Roemer. Mr. Field, ready for 

5 your first witness? 
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2 o A V I 0 ROE MER, the respondent herein, 

3 after having been first duly sworn by a Notary 

4 Public of the State of New York, was examined 

5 and testified as follows: 

6 DIRECT-EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

7 Q State your name for the record. 

8 A David Roemer. 

9 Q Is it Dr. Roemer? 

10 A I don't usually use my title, but I have 

11 a Ph.D. 

12 Q By whom are you employed? 

13 A The New York City Board of Ed. 

14 Q In what capacity? 

15 A High school teacher. 

16 Q How long have you been employed by the 

17 New York City Board of Ed? 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 
• • 

Since September of 1984. 

You are a graduate of what school, sir? 

Fordham University. 

What year? 

1964. 

What degree do you have from Fordham? 

Bachelor of Science Degree in physics. 

Can you briefly describe your education 
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2 and your working from 1964, when you graduated, 

3 until 1984? 

4 A I got a Ph.D. in physics from New York 

5 University in 1971 and I worked for businesses in 

6 the medical electronic field until September of 1984 

7 when I went to work for the Board of Ed. 

8 Q Can you tell us what your dissertation 

9 was for physics? 

10 A It was a calculation in quantum electro 

11 dynamics. 

12 Q Prior to coming to the Board of 

13 Education, did you take any education courses? 

14 A No, I didn't. 

15 Q Would you tell us how you came to come to 

16 the Board of Education in 1984? 

17 A Well, I was applying for a job as a 

18 security analyst and someon~ told me about becoming 

19 a teacher and I met a teacher, I met someone in my 

20 study group. It was a teacher and I realized that 

21 profession would be a good idea, so I got a 

22 temporary license and started teaching in September 

23 of 1984. 

24 Q 

25 A 

Temporary license in what subject? 

In physics. 
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Q Where did you start teaching, sir? 

A At Midwood High School in Brooklyn. 

Q What did you teach? 

A I taught a full physics program. I had 

three sections of physics and one section of a 

nonregents science course. 

Q Was it a ninth grade course? 

A Not exactly. It was just a nonregents 

college course. 

Q At the time you started to teach at 

Midwood, who was the chairman of the science 

department? 

A David Keafer (phonetic). 

Q How long did you teach at Midwood? 

A For five years. 

Q Did you become tenured when you were 

teaching at Midwood? 

years. 

A Yes, I did. 

Q When did you become tenured? 

A In September of 1987, after three years. 

Q Did you get a regular license? 

A Yes, I got a regular license after two 

I guess in September of 1986. 

Q Now, were you evaluated while at Midwood? 
• • 
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2 A Yes. 

3 Q What were the teaching techniques you 

4 were using at Midwood? 

5 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I would object. He is not 

6 being charged with anything at Midwood. 

7 MR. FIRED: This goes to the reason why he 

8 changed his method of teaching, how Midwood taught a 

9 certain method. 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let's set the ground 

11 rules of how far back we will go. I have and will 

12 allow evidence that he was rated satisfactory in his 

13 prior schools. I will allow him to answer this 

14 question. Presumably, it is a predicate of what he 

15 did or didn't do when he went to Murrow. 

16 Nonetheless, this is not a case where we are 

17 examining in detail multitudes from 1984, 1985 or 

18 1986 or what his contributions to the school or lack 

19 of contributions in that period were. We will focus 

20 in on the years he was in Murrow. The objection is 

21 overruled for this particular question. Answer the 

22 question, please, sir. 

23 A It was the method of teaching where you 

24 would start the lesson with a motivation and you 

25 would conduct the lesson by the teacher explaining 
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2 the concepts of physics and then getting classroom 

3 participation by asking the children questions 

4 orally. sometimes you have the kids come to the 

5 board to do work on the board and you would have 

6 kids help you with the demonstrations. It was 

7 basically a highly structured lesson where the 

8 communication was entirely oral, the teacher 

9 speaking and then the students speaking when you 

10 asked students questions or when a student asked a 

11 question. 

12 Q Did you find this a satisfactory way of 

13 teaching? 

14 A Yes. I assumed it was the best way to 

15 teach. That's the way all my colleagues were 

16 teaching and that's what I tried to do. That's why 

17 I emulated. 

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can I have a point of 

19 clarification about what methodology we are talking 

20 about? 

21 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN~ I guess what he just 

22 described. 

23 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Which is what? 

24 Q 

25 teaching? , 

Do you have a label for that method of 
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2 A I would call it the developmental lesson. 

3 Q Now, while you were at Midwood --

4 MR. FIELD: Can we go off the record? 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Yes. Off the record. 

6 (Discussion held off the record.) 

7 Q During the years that you were at 

8 Midwood, did you receive several letters of 

9 commendation? 

10 A Yes, I did. 

11 Q Were you a grant writer and chief gainer 

12 of grants for Midwood? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q I will show you --

15 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Have the court 

16 reporter mark them. Give them straight to the court 

17 reporter and have them marked for ID. 

18 MR. FIELD: Okay. These are sequential 

19 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Start with 

20 Respondent's 5 through 11. 

21 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibits 5 through 

22 11, documents, were marked or identification.) 

23 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Field, you are 

24 offering Respondent's 5 through 11 as all documents 

25 Dr. Roemer received in the course of his employment 
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2 at Midwood High School during the period 1985 to 

3 1990; is that correct, sir? 

4 A Yes, that is right. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You are offering 

6 those? 

7 MR. FIELD: Yes. 

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Any objection? 

9 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Absolutely. 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: May I see the date of 

11 the document, sir? 

12 MR. FIELD: (Handing.) 

13 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I am going to sustain 

14 the objection; A, there are remote in time; B, they 

15 don't relate to the charges; C, they don't relate to 

16 classroom performance, which is what Dr. Roemer is 

17 being charged with, so with all due respect, they 

18 don't belong to this panel. 

19 MR. FIELD: I submit, in this determination, 

20 this board is asking for termination of employment. 

21 All evidence relating to thi~teacher and his 

22 teaching experiences, would be relevant to be 

23 considered, because not only do you have to consider 

24 the question of are the charges proven or not, 

25 proven is the question of penalty and, obviously, 
• • 
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2 this would go toward the question of penalties if 

3 the charges were proven and if the panel found the 

4 charges to be proven. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let me make clear the 

6 reason for my ruling, which I am affirming those 

7 letters relate to his attendance, meaning how many 

8 times he came to school. They relate to his 

9 attendance at conferences and relate to the fact 

10 that one of his students apparently won a price. I 

11 am not demeaning that and I think I implied and I 

12 will state the evidence of his competence during his 

13 early years of service may be of some probative 

14 value. That's too far off and not sufficiently 

15 related to the charges, even in light of your 

16 comment about appropriate penalty. Let's go on, 

17 please. 

18 MR. FIELD: Are you going to be maintaining 

19 your objection to the exhibit file? 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: If you wish me to. 

21 MR. FIELD: I would like to have this marked 

22 for identification also. These are evaluations from 

23 individual rating reports at Midwood. This is 

24 Respondent's 12 through 15. 

25 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibits 12 through 
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15, rating reports, were marked for identification.) 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I hate to beat a dead horse 

and I don't want to bore the panel members, but this 

is so unusual to get this voluminous amount of 

documentation during testimony' when I asked for it a 

long time ago and to waste time marking stuff for 

identification when the arbitrator made it clear 

that we are not going back that far. I have never 

seen some of this stuff. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I think your concern 

is fair. You should have seen these documents 

earlier than this. Nonetheless, you will have ample 

opportunity to respond to any documents I take into 

evidence. Mr. Field, you are offering these 

documents into evidence? 

MR. FIELD: Yes. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will take them in. 

They do relate to the respondent's competence or 

ability to teach. They are ~arked Respondent's 12 

through 15 and taken into evidence. 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibits 12 through 

15, rating reports, were received into evidence.) 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, you admitted one 
• 
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2 document that is not signed. One of the review 

3 sheets is not even signed. 

4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Signed by the 

5 respondent or 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Either. 

7 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: What years? 

8 MR. MAZZARIELLO: 1992, 1993. 

9 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: That has not been 

10 offered. Every document I have has been signed by 

11 the reader. Do you need any other description? 

12 MR. FIELD: Do you want to identify them for 

13 the record? 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Respondent's 12 is a 

15 rating report for June 1985, 1986. Respondent's 13 

16 is a rating report for June 1987 and 1988, 

17 respondent's probation service 9/31/96. 

18 Q Dr. Roemer, when you were at Midwood, did 

19 you make lesson plans for your classes? 

20 A Yes, I did. 

21 Q You taught physics? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q Was this the same physics course that you 

24 taught at Murrow? 

25 A Yes. 
, 
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2 Q I would like to have marked as Exhibit 16 

3 for identification and ask you, are these your 

4 lesson plans that you made in Midwood? 

5 A Yes, they are. 

6 MR. FIELD: Can we have that marked for 

7 identification as 16? 

8 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 16, lesson 

9 plans, were marked for identification.) 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You are offering 

11 that? 

12 MR. FIELD: Yes. 

13 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Any objection? 

14 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Oh, yes, I object. I would 

15 like to hear the foundation of the questions. 

16 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Fair enough. 

17 Q Is that your handwriting? 

18 A Yes, it is. 

19 Q Look through the pages. 

20 A Yes, it's my handwriting. 

21 Q When were those lesson plans prepared, 

22 sir? 

23 A In the last year I was at Midwood, so 

24 that would be 1989 to 1990. 

25 Q 

• • 
For what purpose were they prepared? 
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2 A They were prepared to help me teach the 

3 lessons I gave at Midwood. 

4 Q What method of teaching were you using at 

5 Midwood at that time? 

6 A With the method I described. Based on 

7 oral communication between the teacher and students 

8 and the teacher gets participation of the students 

9 by asking questions and having students, from time 

10 to time, come to the blackboard and also by writing 

lIon the blackboard. 

12 Q You think you clarified the name? 

13 A Yes, I called it the developmental lesson 

14 plan. 

15 Q Were these lesson plans followed? This 

16 is what you used in teaching each one of the 

17 lessons? 

18 A Yes, I did. 

19 Q In Exhibit 16, do~s that contain the full 

20 year's lesson plans for the physics class? 

21 A Yes, it does. 

22 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let me see the 

23 document please and you are offering this? 

24 

25 

MR. FIELD: Yes. (Handing.) 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Mazzariello, any 
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2 objection? 

3 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have voir dire. 

4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Go ahead. 

5 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Roemer, you did not date 

6 any of these, did you? 

7 A That is correct. 

8 MR. MAZZARIELLO: So you could have done these 

9 last night, right? 

10 A I don't understand the question? 

11 MR. MAZZARIELLO: You could have written these 

12 last night if they are not dated, correct? 

13 A I don't understand the question, sir. 

14 MR. MAZZARIELLO: The lesson plans that your 

15 lawyer wants to introduce into evidence are not 

16 dated, you testified to that, right? 

17 A Yes. 

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: So we don't know when you 

19 wrote them, do we? Yes or no will work. 

20 A Yes, I know when I wrote them. 

21 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Show me where you have 

22 dates. 

23 A Well, I would be surprised if there are 

24 any years specified. 

25 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Right. There is not even a 
• • 
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year specified. 

A Here I have Tuesday. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: You have days of the week, 

but you don't have a month or year, do you? 

A No. That's true. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Anywhere in that document, do 

you? 

A That is correct. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can't see or say when it was 

done? Mr. Edelman, you can't admit it into 

evidence. 

MR. FIELD: I object to the question. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The question is 

fair. 

MR. FIELD: The witness testified as to when he 

wrote them and it's a question of credibility. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I think they're 

admissible. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: You testified that was a 

developmental lesson plan? 

A No, I was asked to characterize the type 

of teaching that it was. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Dr. Roe·mer, a yes or no 

response is all I am looking for. 
t 

t 
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You testified on direct-examination that you 

were following what you believed was called a 

developmental lesson plan, right? 

A That is right. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Are you aware that the 

developmental lesson plan aims for objective goals? 

A Yes. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: You are aware it has a final 

summary? 

MR. FIELD, I will object. It's not proper 

voir dire. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: These are not -- then the 

board will object to not being able to document when 

this packet was put together. There is no date on 

it. It could have been from his student teaching 

days. It could have been prepared last night. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You are correct. 

That's possible. That's goes to the weight the 

panel gives to this document or set of documents. 

Overruled, it is received as:Respondent's 16. 

(Whereupon, Respondent'S Exhibit 16, lesson 

plans, were received into evidence.) 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN, Mr. Field, continue. 

Q Dr. Roemer, Respondent's Exhibit 16, when 
•• 
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did you prepare Respondent's 16? 

A In the last year I was teaching at 

Midwood. 

Q Which would be what year? 

A Well, it would be -- I left in the middle 

of 1990, so it would be February of 1990 and it 

would have included the lessons from February of 

1989 to February of 1990. 

Q Okay. Were they prepared for each lesson 

as each lesson came? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, did there come a time in 1989, 1990 

when you left Midwood? 

A Yes. 

Q When did ydu leave? 

A In February of 1990. 

Q Where did you go? 

A Erasmous High School. 

Q Do you know how it came that you were 

transferred? 

A I was accessed and transferred. 

Q What did you teach at Erasmous? 

A I taught ninth grade physical science. 

Q Did yoU teach physics at Erasmous? , , 
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2 A No. 

3 Q Is there a reason why you didn't teach 

4 physics? 

5 A They had a physics teacher there and I 

6 didn't request to teach physics. 

7 Q Now, did you change your method of 

8 teaching when you went to Erasmous? 

9 A Yes, I did. 

10 Q What method did you change to? 

11 A Well, I changed to a more activity 

12 oriented lesson. Each day I would prepare an 

13 activity sheet for the students and in the beginning 

14 of the lesson, I would explain the concept to be 

15 learned, then I would do a demonstration. For the 

16 rest of the period we would work on the activity. I 

17 would go around to the students and help them do the 

18 activity. 

19 Q Could you tell us how you came to change 

20 your method? 

21 A Yes. It came from·a number of sources. 

22 It came from my own experience teaching nonregents 

23 courses at Midwood. I found the experience very 

24 frustrating and I felt that I was accomplishing very 

25 little. 
•• 

I also went to a number of workshops and 
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2 seminars where it was explained that kids don't 

3 learn well by listening to a teacher talk and 

4 answering the teacher's question. They have to be 

5 more actively involved in the lessons, so I made 

6 sure that in all of my lessons, the kids had an 

7 activity that they had to do. 

8 Q Now, what are some of the workshops you 

9 had gone to? 

10 A Quite a few. I remember one where I got 

11 a lot of lessons that I used at Erasmous. It was 

12 something by the New York it was a series of 

13 workshops by the New York State Energy Project 

14 Team. It was a series of workshops about how to 

15 teach energy questions. I attended a Woodrow Wilson 

16 seminar for a week, which was designed to show how 

17 to teach ninth grade physical science. 

18 Q What did they show you? 

19 A They always emphaSized at these workshops 

20 activity oriented lessons, hands-on activities or 

21 paper and pencil activities qr cooperative learning 

22 where the kids were actually doing something rather 

23 than relying just on oral communication. 

24 Q 

25 A 
• • 

What other workshops did you attend, sir? 

Well,there was a learning style seminar 
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2 I attended for, I think it lasted for almost ten 

3 days. It was during the summertime. It was 

4 full-time. It explained about the different 

5 learning styles of students and different strategies 

6 for teaching students. Then another influence on me 

7 was the series of one day workshops that the 

8 superintendent's office gave during class time that 

9 were given by one of Mrs. Coppin's staff developers 

10 where, again, they explained the advantages of 

11 having students do things in the classroom. For 

12 example, by having journals, by having reading 

13 lessons and cooperative learning lessons and so on 

14 and there are three or four others that I attended. 

15 There was a workshop recently on how to teach 

16 physics using a hands-on method of teaching 

17 physics. Then there was another lesson which was 

18 for ninth grade physical science which, again, in 

19 that workshop, two weeks, we mainly went over and 

20 did activities that we wanted the kids to do. For 

21 example, one of the activities was building a 

22 bridge. Another activity was building a container 

23 for an egg, so when you drop the egg from a high 

24 height, the egg would not break, so all the 

25 workshops I attended always emphasized getting the 
• • 
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kids actively learning. , 
Q How did you change your lessons, your 

method of teaching, when you got to Erasmous? 

A Everyday I wrote up a student lesson plan 

which had on it -- well, depending upon the lesson, 

it always had an activity that the kids had to do in 

class and sometimes there would be an explanation of 

the concept we learned and other times it was done 

slightly different. I always make sure the kids had 

something to do during the class time. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, do we have those 

lesson plans? 

MR. FIELD: Yes, we do. 

Q During the time you were at Erasmous, 

were you observed? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q By whom were you observed? 

A Marty Langan. 

Q Marty Langan was who, sir? 

A He was the assistant principal of 

science. 

Q Do you recall how many times you were 

observed? 

A I think eight times. 
• • 
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2 MR. FIELD: I would like to have these marked 

3 as a series of different observations. 

4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Start with 

5 Respondent's 17 through 24. 

6 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibits 17 through 

7 24, class observations, were marked for 

8 identification.) 

9 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Respondent's 17 

10 through 24 are class observations at Erasmous High 

11 School for the period of February 1990 through May 

12 of 1994. First, Mr. Mazzariello, any objection? 

13 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, I would have an 

14 objection. This is outside the scope of the 

15 charges. It's passed the three year statute of 

16 limitations. Nobody at the Board of Ed brought up 

17 anything in the past. Although, one witness did say 

18 that the school he was in, nobody was actually 

19 watching or cared. I don't uriderstand the whole 

20 point. Some of this is from 1990, seven years ago. 

21 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Obviously, the 

22 further back we go in time, it has less remote and 

23 less probative value. Nonetheless, there is some 

24 reason to Mr. Roemer's overall teaching 

25 capabilities, so I take 17 through 24 in evidence . 
• • 
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2 (Whereupon, Exhibits 17 through 24, class 

3 observations, were received into evidence.) 

4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: With respect to 

5 concerns raised by Mr. Mazzariello, the fact that 

6 many, if not all, of these documents are not signed, 

7 that doesn't render them inadmissable. The question 

8 is whether they are authentic. There is no evidence 

9 that they are not authentic. At this point, I think 

10 they are proper before this panel. 

11 MR. MAZZARIELLO: The author of the document is 

12 not before you or before me for cross-examination 

13 purposes and that is very unfair. 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The fact is, I 

15 received that as classroom 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: You can't prove that. 

17 MR. FIELD: I will ask another question. 

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, you can't assure 

19 me he got them. 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: He will lay that 

21 foundation. 

22 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will not believe what Mr. 

23 Roemer says. I have to believe what is written. 

24 it's not signed for, how do I know he got it? You 

25 are offering a document into evidence that without 
• • 
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2 the person who authored it, he can't prove he 

3 received it. 

·4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Mazzariello, 

5 let's do this simply. If the claim is that he is 

6 fabricating the fact as to his receipt, that's a 

7 question. The fact he signed or didn't sign the 

8 document, does not go to the issue of whether he 

9 received the document. He could have received it 

10 and not signed it. He clearly could have received 

11 the document even if he didn't sign it. 

12 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I would like your ruling on 

13 admitting a document into evidence without the 

14 author of the document being present for 

15 cross-examination. 

16 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The recipient of a 

17 document can testify whether he got it or not or 

18 whether he signed it or not. As Mr. Field offered, 

19 he will lay a foundation. 

20 Q Dr. Roemer, I show you Exhibit 17, did 

21 you receive that document, sir, on or about the date 

22 of February 15, 1990? 

23 A Yes, I did. 

24 Q Was that received shortly thereafter an 

25 observation of your class by Mr. Langan? , 
t 
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2 A Yes. 

3 Q I show you Exhibit 18, did you receive 

4 that document on or about October 30, 1990? 

5 A Yes, I did. 

6 Q Was that shortly after an observation of 

7 your class by Mr. Langan? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q I show you Exhibit 19 and ask you, is 

10 this a document you received on or about April 25, 

11 1991, shortly after an observation by Mr. Langan? 

12 A Yes, it is. 

13 Q I show you Exhibit 20, a document dated 

14 October 2, 1991, a document with respect to 

15 observations on October 2, 1991, and ask you if this 

16 is a document you received on or about October 2, 

17 1991, shortly after an observation by Mr. Langan? 

18 A Yes, it is. 

19 Q I show you Exhibit 21, which is a 

20 document of an observation of April 16, 1992 and ask 

21 you, is this a document you received on or about 

22 April 16, 1992, shortly after an observation by Mr. 

23 Langan? 

24 A 

25 Q 
• • 

Yes, it is. 

I show you Exhibit 22 and ask you, is 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



1 Hearing 219 

2 this a document you received on or about May 4, 

3 1993, shortly after an observation by Mr. Langan? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q I show you Exhibit 23, which is a 

6 document of an observation on January 13, 1994 which 

7 you signed on February 15, 1994 and ask you, is this 

8 a document that you received shortly after an 

9 observation on January 13, 1994? I also ask you, is 

10 that your signature on the second page? 

11 A Yes, it is. 

12 Q It is what? 

13 A Yes, I got this document and that's my 

14 signature. 

15 Q Okay. I show you a document that has 

16 been marked as Respondent's Exhibit 24 and ask you, 

17 is that a document you received on or about May 12, 

18 1994 with respect to an observation on May 12, 1994? 

19 A Yes, it is. 

20 MR. FIELD: I offer them into evidence. 

21 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I affirm my previous 

22 ruling. I think they are admissable for the reasons 

23 I stated. 

24 Q Dr. Roemer, could you tell us what lesson 

25 plan is in Exhibit 177 
• • 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I don't understand. 

3 MR. FIELD: Mr. Mazzariello asked for the 

4 lesson plans. We have the lesson plans here. We 

5 can identify the lessons for each one of these 

6 observations. 

7 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Okay. We started on 

8 this road, we will continue. 

9 MR. FIELD: I would like to have this marked as 

10 Exhibit 25. 

11 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 25, document, 

12 was marked for identification.) 

13 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Off the record, 

14 (Discussion held off the record.) 

15 Q I show you a lesson plan, ·What is an 

16 inclined plane,· lesson 40. Is this the lesson plan 

17 that pertains to Exhibit 177 

18 A Yes, it does. 

19 Q I show you a lesson plan for, ·What is 

20 the refraction and reflection of light," project 

21 number 16. Is this the less~n plan for Exhibit 187 

22 A Yes. 

23 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mark that as 18A. 

24 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 18A, 

25 document, was marked for identification.) 
• • 
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2 Q I show you what is entitled, "How do we 

3 classify in science," project 132. Is this the 

4 lesson plan for Exhibit 19? 

5 MR. FIELD: Mark this 19A. 

6 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 19A, 

7 document, was marked for identification.) 

8 Q Now, I show you what I will ask to be 

9 marked 25A, project 15, "What is the periodic 

10 table," and ask, is that the lesson plan for Exhibit 

11 20? 

12 A Yes. 

13 MR. FIELD: Mark this as 20A. 

14 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 20A, 

15 document, was marked for identification.) 

16 Q I am showing you what I would like to 

17 have marked as 21A, "What is the electromagnetic 

18 spectrum," and ask, is this the lesson plan for 

19 Exhibit 21? 

20 A Yes, it is. 

21 MR. FIELD: Mark that 21A. 

22 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 21A, 

23 document, was marked for identification.) 

24 Q I show you what I would like to have 

25 marked 22A, project 130, "What is half life," and 

• 
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ask you, is that the lesson plan for Exhibit 22? 

A Yes, it is. 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 22A, 

document, was marked for identification.) 

Q I show you what I would like to have 

marked as 23A, which is lesson 155, "What is the 

percentage of oxygen in air"? 

A Yes, it is. 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 23A, 

document, was marked for identification.) 

Q I show you a document that I would like 

to mark as 24A and ask you if this is the lesson 

plan for Exhibit 24, lesson 117, "What is the speed 

of light?" 

A Yes, it is. 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 24A, 

document, was marked for identification.) 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Are you moving them 

into evidence? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can I~have voir dire? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Yes. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: You typed these? 

A Yes. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: You typed them out? , , 
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2 A Yes. 

3 MR. MAZZARIELLO: So project 132, "How do we 

4 classify in science," you did this whole packet? 

5 A Yes oh, no. The figures I got from a 

6 book, the book on how to teach science skills. 

7 MR. MAZZARIELLO: But you wrote the rest? 

8 A Yes. 

9 MR. MAZZARIELLO: You didn't take it out of a 

10 book or out of any computer generated lesson plan, 

11 did you? 

12 A No. 

13 MR. MAZZARIELLO: And you wrote all the ones 

14 that your attorney wants to put into evidence? 

15 A Yes. 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Where are the rest of your 

17 lesson plans for that year? 

18 A They are stored on computer. 

19 MR. FIELD: If counsel would desire all the 

20 lesson plans for Erasmous, we would be pleased to 

21 pull them up from the computer and present them to 

22 you. 

23 MR. MAZZARIELLO: You had the observations and 

24 you got the lesson plans to correlate to those 

25 observations? 
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2 MR. FIELD: Yes. 

3 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Thank you. I have nothing 

4 else. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: We will take them 

6 into evidence, 17A to 24A. 

7· (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibits, 17A through 

8 24A, lesson plans, were received into evidence.) 

9 Q I show you tllese lesson plans, 17A to 

10 24A, are these the same lesson plans or same format 

11 you used at Murrow? 

12 A Yes, the same basic idea. I would say 

13 so. 

14 Q What changes might there be? 

15 A Well, in physics there is a lot more 

16 content. 

17 Q These are for fundamentals of science? 

18 A Right. 

19 Q Did you teach that course at Murrow? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q When did you teacn'such a course? 

22 A I taught it for the fourth cycle, I 

23 think, or maybe the third cycle. 

24 Q 

25 A 
• • 

Third or fourth cycle of 1994, 19957 

Right .. 
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Q Did you teach, in 1995, 1996, also 

fundamentals of science? 

A Yes. 

Q With the lesson plans you used for 

fundamentals of science at Murrow, would they be the 

same, or same as the ones at Erasmous? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Rephrase it. 

Q Can you describe the lesson plans you 

used for the fundamentals of science at Murrow? 

A I would take the lesson plans I used at 

Erasmous and I would modify them for the students. 

The students I was teaching at Murrow have lower 

skills than the ones at Erasmous, so I changed the 

lessons from the ones I gave at Erasmous to the ones 

I gave at Murrow, but they were basically the same. 

Some lessons I didn't change. Some lessons I 

carried over straight from Erasmous to Murrow. 

Q And describe, please, a lesson in the 

fundamentals of science cyclj that you gave at 

Murrow from the moment you came into class. 

A Well, I picked the lessons that would be 

the best for the kids at Murrow. 

Q Describe a lesson, please. , , 
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2 A Well, I don't recall specifically. I 

3 remember I had a series of lessons on graphing and 

4 the scientific process that I used at Erasmous that 

5 was very nice and the kids did a good job on them at 

6 Murrow. 

7 Q Take the scientific process for the 

8 moment. You would walk into class, to the moment 

9 the class was over, could you describe the lesson, 

10 please? 

11 A Well, in the beginning of the class, I 

12 would descri.be the science skill that they had or 

13 the science skill that they had to learn and then I 

14 would explain how to do the activity and then I 

15 would go around and help the kids do the activity. 

16 Q Now, how long would it take, how long 

17 would you take in describing the science skill? 

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will object to the leading 

19 questions. 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: How long would it 

21 take you can answer. 

22 A It would depend on the lesson. It would 

23 be five minutes or ten minutes, maybe fifteen 

24 minutes. 

25 was. 
• • 

It depended on exactly what the lesson 
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2 Q Would you answer questions during that 

3 period? 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Leading. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It's a different 

6 question. What else would you do? 

7 Q Was there children participation when you 

8 were describing a lesson? 

9 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. Tell me 

11 what you did from start to finish? 

12 A I gave activity oriented lessons 

13 everyday. There was a student lesson plan where the 

14 kids had to either answer questions or do an 

15 activity in the classroom. It would be either a 

16 paper and pencil activity, like drawing a graph or 

17 analyzing some data and at the end of the period, I 

18 would -- well, during the period, I would help the 

19 kids do the activity, going around to them and 

20 making sure they knew how to do it, and answering 

21 their questions and, many ti~es, showing them 

22 again. I would explain,in the beginning how to do 

23 the activity, but they would all want a second 

24 explanation when I came to their desks. They will 

25 not follow it or. listen when I spoke to the class as , , 
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2 a whole. When I gave the explanation to them at the 

3 desk, they would understand and do the activity. At 

4 the end of the period, I collected the activity, 

5 graded it that night and handed it back the next 

6 day. 

7 Q Now, Exhibits 17A through 24A, are these 

8 student lesson plans? 

9 A Yes, they are. 

10 Q And they would be handed out at the 

11 beginning of each class? 

12 A Right. 

13 Q Do you recall whether you had anymore 

14 observations at Erasmous other than the ones we have 

15 talked about? 

16 A No. That's a complete list of the 

17 observations. 

18 Q Okay. Now, did there come a time in 

19 1994, 1995, where you transferred from Erasmous? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q Can you tell us what prompted the 

22 transfer? 

23 A Well, I was -- I had accomplished all 

24 that I wanted to accomplish. It was exciting 

25 teaching ninth grade physical science while I was 
• • 
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2 generating the lesson plans and giving workshops and 

3 so on, but I felt I had finished. I had done all I 

4 could accomplish in that era. I wanted to teach 

5 physics, regular regents physics and I wanted to 

6 teach more academically oriented kids. 

7 Q What happened? 

8 A Well, the UFT has a transfer plan for 

9 teachers who are out of school for five years. They 

10 are able to transfer to a school that is generated 

11 by -- the Board of Education lists various openings 

12 throughout the city, so Murrow had two openings for 

13 a physics teacher so I applied for the UFT transfer 

14 and since I had more seniority than maybe anybody 

15 else that applied, I got the transfer. 

16 Q When was the first time you met Mr. Cohen 

17 and Dr. Bruckner? 

18 A I suppose the first day of school I met 

19 them. 

20 Q Did they ever discuss with you at that 

21 time your method of teaching? 

22 A No, they never did. 

23 Q What method of teaching had you decided 

24 to imply at Murrow? 

25 A 
• • 

I wanted to continue with the method I 
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2 was using at Erasmous, so everyday I assigned a 

3 student lesson plan that contained, in the 

4 beginning, a description of the concept the st~dents 

5 were supposed to learn, then there were series of 

6 numbered activities or questions and the numbered 

7 items, questions or problems or activities, the 

8 students had to learn how to do during class and 

9 either they would do them in class or else they 

10 would do them that night and then I would collect 

11 them the next day and grade them and mark them as 

12 homework. 

13 Q Well, the lessons in physics you were 

14 going to be teaching at Murrow, was that any 

15 different than the lessons in physics you had taught 

16 at Midwood? 

17 A No, there was no substantial difference. 

18 I was giving the same explanation to the kids of the 

19 concept of physics and doin~the same 

20 demonstrations. 

21 Q Is there any reason why you didn't use 

22 the lesson plans you had at Midwood? 

23 A I did use the lesson plans at Midwood to 

24 generate the lesson plans I used at Murrow. 

25 Q , , 
Was there a reason why you didn't -- did 
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2 you throughput those lesson plans to the children at 

3 Murrow? 

4 A The lesson plans at Midwood were designed 

5 for my own use. The lesson plans I used at Murrow, 

6 I designed for the students there. 

7 Q Is there any reason why you didn't teach 

8 in the same fashion now that you were going to be at 

9 Murrow? 

10 A Yes, there is. 

11 Q Can you tell us why? 

12 A I found, from my experience teaching at 

13 Erasmous and going to all these workshops, the 

14 amount of learning that takes place specifically in 

15 science when the teacher is just explaining things 

16 or when he is asking kids questions, is very 

17 little. I was struck by this at Erasmous, where 

18 before the lesson, I would explain very carefully 

19 how to do the activity and then the first word out 

20 of their mouths when I went around to see if the 

21 kids were doing the activity; the first word would 

22 be show us how to do the activity which I just 

23 showed them in front of the class, but they wanted 

24 it a second time. I came to understand, in dealing 

25 with children, that the amount of understanding that 
• • 
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2 takes place from oral communication is very low. 

3 They don't understand what you are saying and it's 

4 not a good way to teach, so there is no way to get 

5 around it. However, you have a tremendous amount of 

6 contents you have to deliver to the kids. You have 

7 to explain the law of physics and you have to 

8 demonstrate to them. My idea was to bolster my 

9 explanation and my demonstration of physics by 

10 giving them a written explanation of the concept 

11 that had to be learned. That was the initial 

12 paragraph, then the numbered items were questions 

13 and problems and activities that would help them 

14 apply the concepts, so I felt that, by this way, I 

15 would be giving kids three ways to learn things. 

16 They could learn it from listening to my explanation 

17 and watching the demonstration, or they could learn 

18 it from reading about the concept in the first 

19 paragraph, or they could learn by doing the 

20 activities, answering the questions. 

21 Q Now, did youfeel~more comfortable this 

22 way? 

23 A I felt much more relaxed in the classroom 

24 and I had a greater sense of accomplishment. 

25 Q 
• • 

Do you feel it was any e~sier teaching 
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this way than the other way? 

A No, not in terms of time, but knowing 

when you are doing something you feel you are 

accomplishing something, you don't get tired. You 

are authentic about it. 

Q What was the objective in teaching this 

way? 

A To help the kids learn the concepts of 

physics and understand it. 

Q Now, were you aware that this. was a new 

way of teaching at Murrow when you started to teach 

this way? 

A Yes, I was aware that it was innovative, 

what I was doing was an innovation. To write up the 

lesson plan and give it to the kids, I considered 

that to be an innovation. 

Q Did you discuss this way of teaching with 

anybody at Murrow? 

A No, I didn't. 

Q Did anybody instruct you at Murrow to 

teach in a certain way at that time? I am talking 

about in September of 1994. 

A Well, they said that my lessons were not 

satisfactory. , , 
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Q Prior to any observation? 

A Oh, no. 

Q Now, what book are they using in Murrow? 

A Murphy and Smooth (phonetic). 

Q Is that a book used by other high 

schools? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q Is that conceptual or mathematics? 

A Well, it's both. It has the concept, but 

it also has the mathematical equation. In Murrow 

they were using a book by Hewitt which tried to 

avoid the mathematics of physics. 

Q I asked at Murrow. 

A At Murrow the textbook was Conceptual 

Physics by Paul Hewitt. 

Q What book were you using at Midwood? 

A Murphy and Smooth. 

Q When you answered before what textbook 

they were using at Murrow, you said Murphy and 

Smooth. That was the book they were using at 

Midwood you meant? 

A Yes. 

Q In the regents for physics, is that 

mathematical or conceptual? , , 
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A Very highly mathematical. 

Q Were your lessons geared toward 

mathematics or conceptual? 

A Geared towards both. You want the kids 

to get the concepts and you also want them to be 

able to do the mathematical problems. 

Q Now, did there come a time early in the 

1994, 1995 school year, when you were observed by 

Dr. Bruckner and, I believe, Mr. Cohen? 

A Yes. 

Q Did there come a time that your 

observations were not satisfactory? 

A That is right. 

Q What, if anything, did you do when that 

occurred? 

A Well, I discussed the matter with Frank 

Volpetrello (phonetic) 

Q Who is he? 

A He is the district representative for the 

UFT for Brooklyn high school~; 

Q What did he suggest, if anything? 

A He didn't -- I don't recall that he made 

any suggestions. I just told him that Mr. Bruckner 

and Mr. Cohen wanted me to teach a developmental 
• • 
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lesson and did I have to teach any particular type 

of lesson. 

Q As a result of that conversation, what 

occurred, if anything? 

A Well, what I did was, I wrote a letter to 

Bill Foster (Phonetic) the chapter foreperson at 

Murrow, and I enclosed copies of the first two 

observation reports and I analyzed them and I argued 

that they were, the ratings were unsatisfactory, not 

because of their observation, because of their 

prejudice in favor of a developmental lesson plan. 

They felt the best type of teaching was a highly 

structured lesson where you communicate with the 

students by asking kids the question. That's how 

you get student involvement and I explained my 

teaching method and said, that was basically what I 

said. I said they were critical of my lesson 

because it was not a developmental lesson plan. 

Q As a result of that letter, was a request 

made for conciliation? 

A Yes, there was. 

Q I show you Respondent's Exhibit 2 and ask 

you, is this the conciliation request? 

A Yes, it is. 
• • 
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Q Does that state the issue that you felt 

should be conciliated? 

A That is right. 

Q Can you please tell us what the issue is? 

A The issue is whether I should teach 

developmental lesson plans or to use the approach I 

have used at Edward R. Murrow. 

Q Or Erasmous? 

A Oh, yes. At Erasmous. 

Q As a result of that request for 

conciliation, did you receive a letter or did you 

see a copy of a letter from Joseph Loschiavo? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Who was Mr. Loschiavo? 

A He was the director of staff related 

services. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: For whom? 

A The Board of Ed. 

Q I show you Respondent's Exhibit 3, is 

that the copy of the letter? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q What did you understand what was now 

going to occur? 

A I understood it was now my job and Mr. 
• • 
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2 Q Can you tell us who was present? 

3 A Frank Volpetrello, Bill Foster, Ms. 

4 Radigan and Mr. Bruckner and Mr. Cohen and Ms . 

. 5 Coppin, of course. 

6 Q Was there anybody else present, that you 

7 recall? 

8 A No. 

9 Q Can you tell us, what was the role that 

10 Mrs. Coppin was to play in that meeting? 

11 A Well, I understood it --

12 Q What did you understand it to be? 

13 A That she had decid~d to get involved in 

14 the conciliation process, so her role would have 

15 been to help us conciliate. 

16 Q If she could not have the parties 

17 conciliate, what did you understand her role was to 

18 be? 

19 A Then to tell Mr. Volpetrello and have him 

20 send a conciliator. 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

• • 

Was she to make a decision? 

No. 

Was she to make a judgment? 

No, she was not. 

Tell uS what happened at that meeting? 
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A Well, I picked a lesson where I 

remembered exactly what it was like teaching the 

lesson at Midwood and what it was like teaching it 

at Erasmous. I showed to her and explained that 

Midwood is in the traditional style, in the teacher 

explaining things to the class then getting the 

class involved by oral questioning. That at Murrow, 

what I did, I passed out the student lesson plan 

where the concept was described in the beginning, 

then there were problems on it. In the beginning of 

the lesson, I explained how to do the problems and 

for the rest of the period, I went around to all the 

kids and I made sure they knew how to do the 

problems and I said that when I taught that lesson 

at Murrow, I felt that every kid there learned how 

to do that kind of problem on the inclined plane, 

but at Midwood, I recall feeling a sense of 

frustration that nothing was accomplished. 

Q Why did you feel a sense of frustration 

at Midwood? 

A Because the kids didn't learn how to do 

the problems with the incline plane. 

Q How did you know that the students at 

Murrow learned how to do the inclined plane? 
• • 
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A Because they were working on the problems 

at their desk. They initially didn't know how to do 

it. Even though I showed them at the blackboard, I 

had to show them again, then I would see them doing 

the problems. 

Q Did they do any problems for homework? 

A Yes, some didn't finish and they did it 

for homework or in many cases I collected the 

problems the next day. 

Q Were you able to check to see to make 

sure they knew it? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: This is a hundred percent 

leading. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It is. Particularly 

now, we are getting to more important areas. 

Q Besides in your lesson at Murrow, would 

you immediately start with the new lesson each day; 

yes or no? 

A No. 

Q What would you do :first? 

A I would ask first if there are any 

questions about the previous day's lesson. 

Q Was this a way of determining if the 

students knew the-previous day's lesson? 
• • 
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MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. 

MS. TURNER: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. 

Q What was your r~ason of asking that? 

A To see if I could help and to see if 

there were any unresolved problems. If there was 

something they didn't understand, then I could show 

them what they didn't understand. 

Q Now, going back to the January 5th 

meeting, I think it was in Ms. Coppin's office? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: What year? 

MR. FIELD: 1995. 

Q What e.lse happened at that meeting, do 

you recall? 

A Well, I remember Mrs. Coppin was 

impressed by my explanation of the particular lesson 

I gave, then Mr. Cohen said that's just mathematics, 

then she sort of took a harder line. 

Q What did you understand him to mean, that 

it was just mathematics? 

A . Well, he was trying to say that the 

lesson I was teaching was not part of the regents 

curriculum. 

Q 

• • 
Conti.nue then. What else did Mr. Cohen 
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2 say, if anything, or Dr. Bruckner? 

3 A Well, I don't recall exactly. I think 

4 they said the things you pretty much heard them say 

5 here. 

6 Q Now, how long did that last, that 

7 meeting? 

8 A I think about maybe 45 minutes or an 

9 hour. It was not long. It was not a long meeting. 

10 Q Did Mrs. Coppin, was she successful in 

11 having you and Dr. Bruckner agree? 

12 A No. 

13 Q Did she attempt to have you agree? 

14 A She made no attempt at all to have us 

15 reach an agreement. 

16 Q Did she offer any suggestions where 

17 either one of you would modify your position or 

18 suggest how you can? 

19 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. It's leading. 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. What else 

21 did she say? 

22 A She said that I gave her the set of my 

23 lesson plans I had done up until that time and she 

24 said this seems like you are doing the same lesson 

25 everyday and you have to vary it and she said that I 
• • 
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was in danger of getting a U rating and I better 

teach the way Mr. Bruckner and Mr. Cohen were 

telling me to. 

Q I show you what was marked as 

Respondent's Exhibit 4 and ask you, did you receive 

a copy of this letter? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q What was your reaction when you received 

a copy of that letter? 

A I couldn't understand it. It made no 

sense to me at all. 

Q What do you mean it made no sense to you 

at all? 

A It was not -- the point of the meeting 

was. to conciliate our differences and she should 

have been neutral and sort of tried to be the one to 

encourage it in terms of being sympathetic to my 

idea. What I was trying to do with my lesson, was 

to give them more learning incentive, to give the 

kids more activities and mor~:avenues of learning 

and this was Mrs. Coppin's theme. Ever since she 

became a superintendent, she was always talking 

against chalk and talk. I have to admit, by chalk 

and talk, I thought she meant the system where the 
• • 
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2 teacher teaches by speaking to the kids and asks 

3 them questions. I thought she would be supportive 

4 of my method and she could have easily said to Mr. 

5 Bruckner--

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection to what she thought 

7 and could have said. 

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained only to the 

9 last part. 

10 A I guess my testimony was, she was not 

11 supportive of what I was doing. 

12 Q At the time of this meeting with Mrs. 

13 Coppin, it was January 5th, you had been teaching at 

14 Murrow for several months by then? 

15 A That is right. 

16 Q You had been using only this method of 

17 teaching? 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q It was about one ~nd a half cycles? 

20 A That is correct. 

21 Q Can you tell us hqw your students had 

22 done in those cycles, in the one and a half cycles 

23 you taught? 

24 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. We already had a 

25 prior ruling on this, Mr. Edelman . 
• • 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will allow the 

3 answer. Overruled. I don't think it's 

4 inconsistent. How had your students done? 

5 A They had done good. They did a good job 

6 on the homeworks and they did a good job on the unit 

7 tests that I gave. 

8 Q Now, did you feel you were reaching your 

9 students? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q There was also trouble with -- some of 

12 the students were complaining? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q Did you feel the complaints were 

15 legitimate? 

16 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

17 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q Can you tell us why you felt they were 

20 legitimate? 

21 A If a student -- they were complaining 

22 because they didn't understand the lesson and they 

23 were quite right to complain about it. 

24 Q Did you make any modifications as a 

25 result of the complaints? 
t 

t 
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2 A Yes. I would say I spent more time 

3 when I first started, I was maybe a little over 

4 enthusiastic about my method and too quick into 

5 getting them to do the activity and the questions, 

6 so I slowed down and made sure that I fully 

7 explained the concept and how to do the problems. 

8 Q Now, as a result of receiving Ms. 

9 Coppin's letter in February of 1995, what happened 

10 next in the conciliation process, if anything? 

11 A Mr. Mathis (phonetic) 

12 Q Who is Mr. Mathis? 

13 A Harold Mathis was the person selected by 

14 the UFT and the Board to conciliate our 

15 disagreement. 

16 Q Did you have a meeting with Mr. Mathis? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q When was that meeting? 

19 A That was in March. 

20 Q Of 1995? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q What happened at that meeting, if 

23 anything? 

24 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Just tell me who was 

25 there. 
, 
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Q Who was present and where was, the 

meeting? 

A Mr. Bruckner, Harold Mathis, myself, then 

there was a fourth person who was an intern. He was 

a principal intern. His first name was Tony. 

QWas he an observer? 

A Some type of observer. 

Q Tell us what occurred at that meeting, 

please? 

A I began the meeting by telling Mr. Mathis 

about the letter that Ms. Coppin wrote on February 

3rd saying that I had to teach, that I was supposed 

to teach the way Mr. Bruckner wanted me to teach and 

then Mr. Mathis turned to Mr. Bruckner and said is 

this true, was there a letter like this that spelled 

out what teaching methods Mr. Roemer should use and 

Mr. Bruckner said yes, that is true and Mr. Bruckner 

went on to defend this lette~ as being appropriate. 

Q How did he defend it? 

A He read out loud ~rom the conciliation 

agreement saying that's the way he did it. He read 

from the conciliation agreement. 

Q By conciliation agreement, do you mean 

Respondent's Exhibit 2? , , 
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A No, he read out loud from a sheet which 

contained the terms and conditions of the Article 24 

conciliation. 

Q Oh, from the contract? 

A Yes. 

Q Continue then. 

A Mr. Mathis looked at him and said let's 

forget about the letter, let's go on and conciliate. 

Q What happened? 

A So then we had some discussions. Mr. 

Bruckner I think started by reading from my latest 

observation report saying what an unsatisfactory 

teacher I was. 

Q From his observation report or Mr. 

Cohen's observation report? 

A I think they were from his. 

Q They are not your observation reports? 

A No. 

Q Okay. Continue. 

A So then there wer~some discussions. I 

remember at one point, Mr. Mathis said well, can't 

we give Mr. Roemer a group of kids to work with and 

see how they do .on a unit test compared to how the 

other teachers' kids do on the unit test. Mr. , , 
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Bruckner said this won't work. Kids will get extra 

tutoring and study harder and it would not prove 

anything. I forget some of the other things that 

were said, but at the end, Mr. Mathis -- in fact, I 

think I said, you see, a conciliation was not 

possible, then Mr. Mathis said you are right. It 

was not possible. I apologize. I said to Mr. 

Mathis, what will happen next and he said you have 

to go back to the UFT and tell them what happened 

and get the matter stra~ghtened out. I said will 

you be coming again and he said no, they will send 

another conciliator. 

Q How long did the meeting last? 

A I would say about 20 minutes or so. 

Q Did you hear from Mr. Mathis? 

A No. 

Q Did you later receive a letter that Mr. 

Mathis had sent to Mr. Solomon? Do you remember 

receiving such a letter? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q After Mr. Mathis came in March of 1995, 

was it your understanding that that conciliation was 

still continuing? 

A That is right. 
• • 
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Q What did you base that on? 

A I based it on the contract which said 

that the conciliator would either write up a 

document saying how the issue was resolved or a 

document regarding terminating the conciliation. 

Since he didn't send a letter, I assumed it was 

still open. 

Q What did this mean to you, if anything? 

A' This meant that Mr. Bruckner and I had 

the responsibility to conciliate our disagreement 

and to come up with a document that described the 

differences in how we were teaching, the difference 

between our methodology and how the differences were 

resolved. 

Q What did this mean with respect to your 

teaching methods? 

A It meant that I didn't -- I was obligated 

to go on teaching the way I felt it was best to 

teach. 

Q What method did yo,u feel was best to 

teach? 

A The method I was using. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Which is what? Did we ever 

get to that? 
, ' 
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Q Can you briefly, or give a term to the 

method you used? 

A No, I can't. 

Q Dr. Roemer, you testified that you felt 

the conciliation process was still opened and you 

had an obligation to teach the same way. Can you 

explain? 

A Well, I saw the Concili~tion Article 24 

of the contract as being part of the reform movement 

in education. It involved a learning construction 

and change which the schools were governed. The 

teachers should participate in new ways to teach 

children and the Board of Ed spent a lot of money on 

me with all the workshops and seminars I attended 

and I learned this method of teaching from attending 

these workshops and the Board of Ed doesn't want to 

give a principal an automatic veto power. In other 

words, the Board of Ed wanted teachers to 

participate in decisions about methodology, so they 

included Article 24 in the contract and I.felt that 

was a firm understanding and t~e Board of Ed wanted 

us to conciliate our differences. If I had walked 

away from the conciliation agreement, I would have 

been giving up my method of teaching and it's my , , 
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belief that the Board doesn't want me to do this. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection to what his belief 

is and what the Board thinks. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained as to the 

last portion. I believe it's his personal belief. 

MR. FIELD: I asked the question why it's his 

obligation. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Okay. , 

Q Now, Dr. Roemer, did there come a time 

when you found out that the conciliation was over? 

A No. 

Q You didn't find that out? 

A No. 

Q Did there come a time when you received a 

copy of a letter that --

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection to leading, 

leading, leading. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Did you ever see a 

copy of a letter? Is the letter in evidence? 

MR. FRIED: Yes, it's been marked for 

identification. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. 

Q Did there come a time that you received a 

letter where Mr. Mathis wrote to Mr. Solomon? 
• • 
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A Yes. 

Q I show you what was marked as 

Respondent's Exhibit 1 for identification and ask 

you if that's a copy of the letter you were 

referring to? 

A Yes, it is. 

MR. FIELD: I would like to introduce this into 

evidence. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Can I see it again, 

please? 

MR. FRIED: Yeah. (Handing. ) 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Mazzariello, any 

objection? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I didn't have time to see the 

document. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It's Respondent's 1. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object to him not being in 

the office. There is no letterhead on it. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: In that regard, 

sustained. He is neither th~·maker or recipient. 

He is not even carboned on this, so it's still 

marked for ID only. 

Q Did you ever learn -- do you know Howard 

Mathis? 
• 
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2 A Yes. 

3 Q Who is he? 

4 A Howard Mathis was the conciliator who 

5 came to Murrow High School. 

6 Q Did you ever learn what Mr. Mathis' 

7 conclusion was with respect to Ms. Coppin's 

8 conciliation efforts? 

9 A Yes, I did. 

10 Q What did you learn? 

11 A That there was no conciliation. 

12 Q Why did he feel that there was no 

13 conciliation? 

14 A Because of Mrs. Coppin's letter, which 

15 directed me to teach the way that the principal 

16 wanted me to teach. 

17 Q Did Mr. Mathis feel that he could not 

18 conciliate because of that letter? 

19 A Yes, that is correct. 

20 Q That he could not conciliate? 

21 A He felt he could riot conciliate because 

22 of the letter. 

23 Q Okay. Now, by ~he way, is Mr. Mathis an 

24 agent of the union, if you know? 

25 A , , 
No, he is an English teacher, I think, in 
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Staten Island. 

Q Is he one of the people tllat the Board, 

as you understand, that the Board and union selected 

as conciliator? 

A Yes. 

Q Under Article 24? 

A Yes. 

Q When did you find out about Mr. Mathis? 

A At the date of the conciliation. 

Q No, no. When did you find out what Mr. 

Mathis' view of Ms. Coppin's letter was? 

A At the date of the conciliation. 

Q What did you understand what was going to 

happen next? 

A That a new conciliator would be sent. 

Q Was a new conciliator ever sent? 

A No. 

Q Did you ask for ohe to be sent? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Who did you ask? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, can I object to 

this as the conciliation process is an option and I 

don't see the relevancy in this proceeding. If the 

defense is h~ thobght conciliation was still going 
• • 
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on and he was teaching the way he wants to Article 

24, is an option. I don't understand, at this 

point, why we are going on with this. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will take this 

question and answer. 

MR. FIELD: With regard to what Article 24 says 

or doesn't say, this testimony goes to what his 

belief was and what his position was and certainly 

why he was doing certain things. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: You cannot walk into a school 

and decide how to teach the way you want to teach. 

That's not the way the real world works. That's 

what Article 24 is about. Read it and have your 

client read it over, while you are at it. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The two of you can 

argue about what Article 24 means. With respect to 

this topic, I will take one more question on the 

conciliation process. Make ~t a good one, Mr. 

Field, because it's your last one on this topic. 

MR. FIELD: Okay. 

Q What did you see as the purpose of the 

conciliation process? 

A Well, the purpose was to allow teachers 

to participate in the decisions about the type of , , 
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2 method that will be used in the classroom. 

3 MR. FIELD: I would like to mark these lesson 

4 plans from Murrow. 

5 Q I show you several documents and ask you 

6 if you can identify these documents? Are they all 

7 one thing? 

8 A No, the top sheet is the student lesson 

9 plans. 

10 Q Describe the documents? 

11 A The top sheet is a copy of the student 

12 lesson plans I gave to the students at Midwood for 

13 the whole year. 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Did you mean Murrow? 

15 A Yes, Murrow. Then attached to my paper 

16 clips are the lesson plans from Midwood that match, 

17 as best as I could, the lesson plans I gave at 

18 Murrow. 

19 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: That's the case for 

20 each one of the clipped pages, is that right, Dr. 

21 Roemer, with respect to each:set of clipped papers, 

22 the top sheet is your Murrow plan and the 

23 attachments are your Midwood lesson plans? 

24 A 

25 Q 
• • 

That is correct. 

This is only as to physics? 
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2 A Right. 

3 MR. FIELD: I would like to have each one of 

4 these marked. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The top sheet is the 

6 Murrow lesson plan and the attached sheets from each 

7 set are the Midwood lesson plans. We will mark them 

8 as Murrow lesson plans with Midwood attachments. We 

9 will mark them 25. 

10 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 25, lesson 

11 plans, were marked for identification.) 

12 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It refers to the 

13 entire time you were actually teaching at Murrow; is 

14 that correct, sir? 

15 A No, I'm excluding -- I thought they were 

16 September of 1994 until March of 1996. 

17 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Right. That's what I 

18 asked you. Does that include that period of time? 

19 A No, then there w6uld be a duplicate of 

20 lessons. It consists of complete sets of lessons I 

21 used for the second year, 19~5 to 1996, then I 

22 supplemented it. I was removed from the classroom 

23 in March of 1996, so I supplemented that with the 

24 lessons I used in the previous year. 

25 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Is it fair to say, 
• • 
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2 from your prospective, this is one year's worth of 

3 lessons? 

4 A Right. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Respondent's 25, as 

6 represented to by respondent, is one year's worth of 

7 lesson plans. Understanding they have been 

8 characterized as student lesson plans, so 

9 Respondent's 25, one years worth of lesson plans at 

10 Murrow High School with attachments to each clipped 

11 set of pages of, "Midwood lesson plans," is in 

12 evidence. 

13 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 25, lesson 

14 plans, were received into evidence.) 

15 Q All right. Dr. Roemer, addressing 

16 ourselves to the charges, do you recall an 

17 observation that was had of you by Mr. Cohen on 

18 September 22, 1994? I think that was the first 

19 one. 

20 Yes. A 

Q 21 Do you recall the .lesson that you taught 

22 that day? 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 
• • 

Yes, I do. 

What was the lesson? 

It was a lesson on graphical method. 
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was a lesson on how to do graphs. 

Q I show you, taking out of Respondent's 

Exhibit 25 for identification, Lesson No.6, ·What 

is a graph in physics,· was that the class you 

taught? 

A No, this was not. 

Q Okay. I show you Lesson 7, ·What is a 

distance time graph,· was that the class? 

A No, it isn't. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let him just find 

it. Okay? 

MR. FIELD: I would like to have this lesson 

marked as Respondent's 26. 

Q I show you this document, is this the 

lesson you taught on September 26, 1994 when you 

were observed by Mr. Cohen? 

A I would like to see the -- yes. 

MR. FIELD: I would like to introduce this into 

evidence, ·What is a slow perfect graph,· Lesson 7. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Why are we doing this? I 

wanted to put them in all together. 

MR. FIELD: I didn't object. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It's in now. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can I see the original packet 
• 
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2 of documents? 

3 MR. FIELD: I made no objection, Mike. 

4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It's already in, so 

5 we are not marking 26. It's already in. 

6 MR. FIELD: Some are in and some aren't. 

7 MR. MAZZARIELLO: We will do whatever you would 

8 like. 

9 Q I show you what has been marked in 

10 evidence as Board's lA, is this the lesson you 

11 taught for that observation? 

12 A Yes, it is. 

13 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: To make the record 

14 clear, it's Board's Exhibit 2, then under each 

15 identification, it corresponds to the appropriate 

16 charge, so it's Board's Exhibit 2-1A. 

17 Q I show you Board's Exhibit 2-1B, that was 

18 not an observation, was it? 

19 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Just a minute. We 

20 will not do it this way. You are on the first 

21 lesson. It's in evidence. You can ask him about 

22 it. 

23 Q Looking at the first observation lesson 

24 taught on September 22nd, do you recall this lesson? 

25 A 
t 

Yes. 
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2 Q Do you recall the observation? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Can you comment on the observation? 

5 A Yes. 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. If he recalls it, 

7 he doesn't need the document. I would ask Mr. Field 

8 to sit down and have the witness turn over the 

9 document. 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: He has the document. 

11 Without the document, do you recall the observation, 

12 sir? 

13 A Yes, I do. 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Can you comment on . 

15 it? 

16 A Yes. It struck me, reading it over, that 

17 he didn't understand the lesson he was seeing. He 

18 was seeing a lesson. He was looking for a 

19 developmental lesson and he didn't see that and he 

20 proceeded to criticize my lesson as if I was 

21 teaching a developmental lesson and leaving out all 

22 the things that a developmental lesson is supposed 

23 to have, when, in fact, that's my general 

24 recollection of the observation report . 

25 Q 
• • 

• 
Can you comment on the lesson plan, the 
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2 student lesson plan for that day, what you were 

3 trying to achieve by it? 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, I am confused as 

5 to why the witness has to look if he recalls the 

6 lesson. 

7 MR. FIELD: He is allowed to look at 

8 documents. I don't think it's unfair for the 

9 witness to look at documents. 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let's do it this 

11 way. I realize it's a voluminous record. If he 

12 doesn't recall, as we have with Board witnesses, if 

13 he has the document speaks for itself. If you 

14 have a recollection, put it aside and tell me what 

15 you remember. 

16 A I don't remember everything about the 

17 lesson. 

18 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The point is, if you 

19 recall, tell me what you remember and if you don't 

20 recall, we take the document in as past 

21 recollection. The responses you wrote, will speak 

22 for themselves, in essence. 

23 A Well, what I was trying to get them to 

24 learn, is the concept described in the reading 

25 assignment. The definition of the slope. , , 
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rise and the run is and I supplemented this reading 

explanation with an explanation on the blackboard 

about what exactly I meant by a speed time graph and 

how you obtain the speed time graph and the slope 

and the distance time graph, then I had a 

cooperative learning activity. I threw an object 

straight up into the air and I asked them to break 

up into pairs and discuss, Item No.1, to discuss 

the question of what the instantaneous speed was of 

the object and their job was to write down the 

answer as part of the class work. 

Q Let me ask you something, Dr. Roemer. 

According to Mr. Cohen, your lesson was teacher 

dominated. Do you agree with that? 

A No, I don't. 

Q Would you tell us why you don't agree 

with it? 

A Because I gave the students an 

opportunity to do the problems in class and see if 

they could answer the questions and I gave them a 

reading assignment which explained the concepts to 

learn, so they had ample opportunity to get involved 

in the lesson. 

Q Mr. Cohen said this lesson gave students , , 
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2 too little feedback. Do you agree with that? 

3 A No, I don't. 

4 Q Would you tell us why? 

5 A Well, the feedback that Mr. Cohen is 

6 referring to, is the feedback you get by asking kids 

7 questions, so Mr. Cohen's idea of teaching is to 

8 explain the concept of the speed time graph as 

9 coming to the distance time graph, then you ask the 

10 class a question to see whether the class understood 

11 it and this technique is the one I don't use. My 

12 way of getting feedback is to explain it to them and 

13 then if they can answer the questions and the 

14 problems, the numbered activities 1 through 7, 

15 that's the test as to whether they understood the 

16 lesson. 

17 Q Mr. Cohen said that your lesson did not 

18 contain any motivation. Did you feel your lesson 

19 contained motivation? 

20 A Yes, it did. 

21 Q Would you tell us'what the motivation 

22 was? 

23 A To explain to the students what they 

24 learned in the previous day's work and what we were 

25 going to learn in today's work in connection to the 
• • 
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2 previous day's work with today's work. 

3 Q Mr. Cohen says your lesson did not 

4 contain any demonstrations. Is that so? 

5 A No, it was not true. The demonstration I 

6 used was throwing the ball up into the air and 

7 catching it as it came back down. That was the 

8 demonstration that they had to respond to in Item 

9 No.1. 

Q Mr. Cohen said that the stated aim of 

11 your lesson, which was the slope of a graph, was not 

12 the focus of the lesson that you presented. Do you 

13 know what he meant by that? 

14 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection as to what he 

15 thought. 

16 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. Ask 

17 another question. 

18 Q Do you agree with that, that your aim was 

19 not a focus of the lesson? 

20 A Yes, I suppose so. I don't know exactly 

21 what he has in mind. The ai~ is a concept in 

22 developmental lessons. In the developmental lesson 

23 plan you should start out with a motivation and, 

24 hopefully, you can elicit from the students an aim. 

25 It's not always possible to do. What the aim is , , 
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2 supposed to do, it's supposed to be written on the 

3 blackboard. You write down the aim and what it's 

4 supposed to be. I would write it on the slope of 

5 the graph and the purpose of writing on the 

6 blackboard in a developmental type lesson, it helps 

7 the kids follow the lesson. Having it on the 

8 blackboard makes it easy for them to see what is 

9 going on and I guess from Mr. Cohen's I learned, 

10 in fact, from Mr. Cohen the idea you want and aim 

11 that will sustain interest in the lesson for the 

12 entire lesson. That's what Mr. Cohen's concept of 

13 the aim is. Now, this isn't, in my opinion, that's 

14 not the way I do my lessons. In my l~ssons, I am 

15 giving the kids a written outline of the lesson. 

16 They know what they are supposed to learn. I put it 

17 in the first paragraph. They know they are supposed 

18 to do the numbered items, so there is no need to 

19 give the kids anymore focus on the aim. There is no 

20 need to pick a title of a lesson that helps them. 

21 picked a title that helped them to best understand 

22 the lesson, to describe this lesson. I didn't feel 

23 there was any need to have the kind of techniques 

24 that you used where you go into a classroom empty 

25 handed, not giving kids any kind of written backup. 
, 
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2 Q Now, did you have a pre-observation 

3 meeting with Mr. Cohen? 

4 A No. 

5 Q Did you have a post-observation meeting? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Do you recall that observation? 

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You mean that 

9 conference? 

10 Q Conference. 

11 A Yes, I do. 

12 Q What happened in this conference? 

13 A Well, I don't remember everything that 

14 was said, but what sticks out in my mind is when he 

15 said we won't tolerate teaching like this at Murrow. 

16 Q What, if anything, did you say to him? 

17 A I don't recall what I said. 

18 Q What was your reaction? 

19 A My reaction was t~be very upset. I 

20 couldn't understand why he was so much against the 

21 lesson. I knew I was doing something innovative. 

22 didn't see how you not want to see them working at 

23 

24 

25 

their desks doing physics. Why he was not glad to 

see that. 

Q 

• • 

I don't know. 

Did you feel that the students had 
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2 learned what you were trying to teach them that day? 

3 A Well, yes. Yes, they did. 

4 Q Did you have any way of knowing that they 

5 had learned that? 

6 A I collected the answers to the questions 

7 and I graded them and it became part of their 

8 grades. 

9 Q Now, you recall at the conference Mr. 

10 Cohen asking you not to give a quiz that contained 

11 only one question? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q Had you given a quiz that contained only 

14 one question? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q Did you again give a quiz containing only 

17 one question? 

18 A I don't believe so. 

19 Q Now, turning your attention to September 

20 28th, a letter that was directed to you by Mr. Cohen 

21 on September 28th, which I believe is Board's 

22 Exhibit 2A-1B. 

23 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Okay. 

24 Q 

25 A , , 

Do you recall receiving that letter? 

Yes, I do. 
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2 Q Do you recall discussing with Mr. Cohen 

3 that letter? 

4 A No, I don't. I recall the discussion. 

5 don't recall the contents of what we actually said. 

Do you recall that he was explaining 

7 about eight students that had complained to him? 

6 Q 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q Do you feel that they were justified in 

10 their complaints? 

11 A Well, sure. If they didn't understand 

12 the lesson, they were quite right to go to the 

13 Chairman and tell him. 

14 Q Now, according to 1A in the 

15 specifications, the students complained that you 

16 were not explaining material to them. Were you 

17 explaining material to the students? 

18 A Yes, I was. 

19 Q Were you aware that some students felt 

20 that material was not being explained? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q How did you become aware of that? 

I 

23 A Well, I gave the kids a questionnaire and 

24 I discovered from the questionnaire, one of the 

25 questions I asked, would you understand physics , , 
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2 better if the teacher spent more time explaining the 

3 concept of physics, and a lot of them said yes. 

4 Q When a lot of students said yes, did you 

5 change your method at all? 

6 A Well, I didn't change my method. I just 

7 responded. I spent more time, I think, explaining 

8 the concepts. 

9 Q So while not changing your method, you 

10 were mindful 

11 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Stop. Don't do that. 

12 Q Are you aware that a complaint was made 

13 that you had advanced a scheduled question without 

14 notice to the students? 

15 A I guess I learned that from Mr. Cohen's 

16 letter. 

17 Q After learning this, did you make sure 

18 that this didn't happen again? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q By the way, were you giving reading 

21 assignments to the students as homework? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will allow it. 

A 

Q 
• • 

Well, yes. 

From what source were you giving those 
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2 reading assignments? 

3 A From a Paul Hewitt book on conceptual 

4 physics. 

5 Q Were these daily assignments or weekly 

6 assignments? 

7 A Daily assignments. 

8 Q According to the charges, the charge says 

9 on or about September 28th or 27th of 1994, Mr. 

10 Cohen directed you to take the following remedial 

11 steps to improve your performance; to include in any 

12 lesson plan, written provision for demonstration or 

13 practical illustrations of the concept you were 

14 teaching. Do you recall that? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q Do you have any comment on that? 

17 A Well, I did it. 

18 Q Had your lesson plans included 

19 demonstrations? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q He also suggested~that you provide an 

22 additional illustration of solutions. Did you do 

23 that? 

24 A 

25 Q 
• 

I don't know. 

That you provide students with proper 
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2 notice of scheduled quizzes and examinations. Did 

3 you do that? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Did you administer quizzes and 

6 examinations with more than a single question? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q He also suggested that you assigned 

9 appropriate reading daily, conceptual physics by 

10 Hewitt. Did you do that? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Now, Dr. Roemer, do you recall an 

13 observation by Dr. Bruckner on September 29, 1994? 

14 A Yes, I do. 

15 Q I'm going to show you what has been 

16 marked as Board's Exhibit 2A-1C and I am going to 

17 show you the lesson plans. Can you direct us to 

18 which lesson plan that would be? 

19 A In one of these folders. 

20 Q I notice that the lesson plan is not 

21 attached to this exhibit. I~show you what I will 

22 ask to have marked as Respondent's 26. 

23 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 26, lesson, 

24 was marked for identification.) 

25 Q 
• • 

I show you what has been marked as 
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2 Respondent's 26 and ask you, is this Lesson No. 11, 

3 "What is a force," the· lesson you taught on 

4 September 29, 1994 when you were observed by Dr. 

5 Bruckner? 

6 A Yes, this is the lesson. 

7 MR. MAZZARIELLO: This is a student lesson? 

8 MR. FIELD: That is the lesson. 

9 MR. MAZZARIELLO: What kind of student lesson? 

10 I have never seen it before. I don't have this 

11 document. 

12 MR. FIELD: I don't know why you don't have the 

13 document. That's the lesson that was taught that 

14 day. 

15 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I understand he is 

16 asserting this as what he taught. Period. I will 

17 take it into evidence as Respondent's 26. 

18 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 26, lesson, 

19 was received into evidence.) 

20 Q Do you recall that lesson? 

21 A Yes, I do. 

22 Q What do you recall specifically about 

23 that lesson? 

24 A I recall that it was a great lesson. 

25 managed, with this particular -- I thought the 
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2 lesson -- I taught the lesson in a similar way at 

3 Midwood using the same idea, but I converted it so 

4 it was a cooperative learning lesson. The kids 

5 talked the entire period about the concept I was 

6 trying to teach them and doing the activity I was 

7 trying to teach them and I remember being delighted 

8 that Mr. Bruckner came in and observed this 

9 particular lesson because it's hard to come up with 

10 cooperative learning lessons. I was lucky, I 

11 thought, to be observed by him when I had this 

12 excellent lesson where the kids picked up on it. 

13 Q What concept were you tryillg to teach 

14 this day? 

15 A I was trying to teach Newton's First Law. 

16 Q Could you be a little more specific? 

17 A It's difficult to explain, that's why I 

18 chose this technique to teach. It's something you 

19 have to like see for yourself, but basically it's a 

20 law concerning how an object in motion continued to 

21 stay in motion. That's not really the key idea. 

22 The key idea is to get the connection between force 

23 and motion. We had taught motion previously and I 

24 explained to them what force was in an elementary, 

25 which it was a push or pulling. 
• 

Now, from this 
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2 activity, they were to learn, get a deeper insight, 

3 into the connection between force and motion, so I 

4 did five little experiments and their job was to 

5 analyze those five experiments and to draw a force 

6 diagram for the five experiments and working in 

7 groups, then I collected it at the end of the period 

8 and graded it to see if they got the concept. 

9 Q You say, "Technique," what technique did 

10 you use? 

11 A The technique I used was to give them a 

12 statement of Newton's Law, then give them a false 

13 statement of the law, which would be Aristotle, so I 

14 gave Aristotle's Law and Newton's Law and with those 

15 five experiments, they had to decide which statement 

16 was true and which statement was false, so for four 

17 of the experiments, both Aristotle's Law and 

18 Newton's Law was true. One of the experiments 

19 Aristotle's Law was false, so how I saw if they 

20 learned the lesson, was to see how many got them 

21 right. 

22 Q You said something else before, this was 

23 cooperative learning? 

24 A 

25 Q 

• • 

Right. 

Could you explain what you meant by 
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2 cooperative learning? 

3 A Cooperative learning is when the students 

4 break up into groups and they work on this project 

5 together, so I was asking for the groups, a group of 

6 four say, to turn in one report for all four members 

7 of the team, so they had an obligation to discuss 

8 among themselves how to do the project. 

9 Q Did you find this preferable than 

10 teaching from the blackboard? 

11 A Absolutely. 

12 Q Can you tell us us why? 

13 A Because you could see the kids struggling 

14 and discussing the concept of force and motion, 

15 trying to see what is going on. 

16 Q Did you I am sorry. 

17 A I knew that learning was taking place. 

18 Even if they didn't get the right answer, they were 

19 struggling with the concept,plus they had to do the 

20 force diagrams and I felt a tremendous amount of 

21 learning was taking place. Whereas, at Midwood, I 

22 had the same idea I tried doing in a regular 

23 developmental way where you guide the class in a 

24 class discussion about each one of the experiments 

25 and I felt they learned much more this way than at , 
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2 Midwood. 

3 Q Did you feel the students had learned 

4 that day? 

5 A Absolutely. 

6 Q Now, Dr. Bruckner that day said your 

7 lesson was unsatisfactory for these reasons; that 

8 your presentation of the lesson did not effectively 

9 motivate the insight of your students; do you agree 

10 or disagree? 

11 A I disagree. 

12 Q Can you tell us why? 

13 A Because I know what the insights were. 

14 The insights were very subtle and very difficult. 

15 That's why I didn't try to explain it to this 

16 panel. There is no way he could have known that the 

17 kids didn't learn the insight or how well they 

18 learned the insight. The key thing was to try to 

19 see that force was not associated with speed. That 

20 you could have motion without having a force. 

21 That's a partial understanding of what students need 

22 to learn in physics. 

23 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: A better method, if I 

24 may give him the charges rather than having you read 

25 each sentence, let him look at it and respond to the 
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2 criticism listed there. 

3 MR. FIELD: It's not necessary for counsel to 

4 laugh at his answer. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You are right about 

6 that. 

7 Q Looking at Charge C1, would you like to 

8 comment on each one of these? 

9 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You did 1. Go from 2 

10 through 7. 

11 Q Charge 2, respondent failed to properly 

12 organize the lesson? 

13 A The lesson went just as I planned it. I 

14 organized it as I wanted. From Mr. Bruckner's 

15 observation report, what he was referring to is the 

16 

17 MR. FIELD: I handed the witness the 

18 observation report. 

19 A Here it is, No. 5in his observation 

20 report, "Group work is an admirable method for 

21 enhancing student involvement in the lesson and for 

22 helping students work together," but group work 

23 doesn't just happen. Students have to be given 

24 tasks in a group and directions for effective group 

25 functioning. A captain or chairperson, a reporter , 
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2 and/or facilitator should be selected and given 

3 specific tasks. Groups should also be organized 

4 rather than asking students to organize into two or 

5 four person groups." Well, I am well aware of that 

6 procedure for doing groups and if I had done that, 

7 we would never have been able to finish the 

8 activity. I would have spent the whole time 

9 assigning people their groups instead of giving them 

10 their tasks. These are upper classmen. They were 

11 juniors and seniors and they didn't need that much 

12 direction and, in any case, the lesson worked 

13 beautifully anyway. They got together in groups. 

14 It's true, no one had an assigned task. They spent 

15 the whole period discussing the concept of physics, 

16 force and motion, learning much more than they would 

17 learn with me explaining Newton's First Law. 

18 Q Looking at the next one. Can you comment 

19 on the next one, No.4, "ReSpondent failed to give 

20 proper direction to students regarding their 

21 homework assignment"? 

22 A I gave the kids the homework assignment I 

23 deemed appropriate for the class. 

24 Q Do you recall what the homework 

25 assignment was? 
• 
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2 A I think there was a lesson either 

3 something to the brief review of physics or 

4 something in Paul Hewitt's book to read. I didn't 

5 elaborate on it because I was just giving them a 

6 guide for something they wanted to read if they 

7 chose to do so. I didn't consider reading that to 

8 be I was not going to make them read it and 

9 question them on it afterwards because I didn't 

10 think it was a worth while activity, so I wrote it 

11 on the blackboard so the kids could do it if they 

12 wanted to. 

13 Q Did you feel a homework assignment was 

14 important for this lesson? 

15 A No. 

16 Q The next item, NO.5? 

17 A "Respondent's presentation of the lesson 

18 was poor." 

19 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You don't have to 

20 read it. Just respond. 

21 A I vaguely recollect it. These concepts 

22 are difficult to explain and you gave an explanation 

23 you hope will clarify things. 

24 Q Dr. Roemer, are there times during this 

25 class that you might give a poor explanation? 
• 
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2 A Oh, absolutely. 

3 Q On the next item? 

4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Dealing with the 

5 issue of summary closure or conclusion. 

6 A Well, what Mr. Bruckner meant was that 

7 the lesson Mr. Bruckner would have liked to see, is 

8 where after the kids did the activity, I would cut 

9 the activity short, then summarize what happened by 

10 the usual method of classroom teachers by engaging 

11 the kids in a discussion, asking questions and so 

12 on. The way I concluded the lesson was to collect 

13 the work and grade it and give it back to them the 

14 next day and discuss it with them the next day, how 

15 I graded their work and to answer any questions they 

16 had about the activity. I felt that if you 

17 summarize the lesson in the way Mr. Bruckner wanted, 

18 you would deprive kids of the incentive to figure 

19 out for themselves what the answer is. Instead of 

20 doing an activity for themselves, they would have 

21 waited until the end, until the teacher told them. 

22 I wanted them to be responsible for doing the work 

23 and if I summarize in the way Mr. Bruckner wanted me 

24 to, it would have undermined what I was trying to 

25 accomplish with the kids . 
• • 
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2 Q Now, did there come a time after this 

3 lesson was taught, that you were able to determine 

4 whether the children had learned what you were 

5 trying to get across tilat day? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q How did you determine that? 

8 A Well, I got the project and I graded 

9 them. I grade them correct if they got the third 

10 experiment was the key experiment, where Aristotle's 

11 Law was false and Newton's Law was true. If they 

12 got that right, I graded it as correct and if not, I 

13 graded it as incorrect. 

14 Q Did you make any notes from that lesson? 

15 A Yes, I did. 

16 MR. FIELD: I would like to have that marked. 

17 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: What is it? 

18 A The results of my grading of the project 

19 that the kids turned in. 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: We will take the fact 

21 that he graded them and the kids were successful. 

22 MR. FIELD: It's ten to 5:00. I would like to 

23 finish up for today. 

24 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: We are up to E. We 

25 are reconvening on November 18th at 1:30 and we will 
• 
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2 pick up with IE, actually Charge IE. Let's hold 

3 that to the 18th. 

4 (TIME NOTED: 4:50 P.M.) 
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4 I, JENNIFER J. BARRETT, a Shorthand 
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7 accurate record of the hearing held before me. 

8 

9 

10 

11 I further certify that I am not related 
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14 outcome of this matter. 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: I note the 

2 absence of Ms. Petrucelli, who's the employee panel 

3 member today. 

4 As I previously advised the offices 

5 of Mr. Field and Mr. Mazzariello, she would not be 

6 able to make it, and it's my understanding that both 

7 Mr. Field and Mr. Mazzariello consented to our going 

8 forward in Ms. Petrucelli's absence. Mr. Fielc;l, is 

9 that correct? 

10 MR. FIELD: That's correct. 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: ~rs. Turner, is 

12 that correct? 

13 MS. TURNER: That's correct. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

15 D A V I D K. ROE MER, the Respondent herein, 

16 having been previously duly sworn by a 

17 Notary Public of the State of New York, 

18 upon being examined, testified as follows: 

19 CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

20 Q Dr. Roemer. I'm sorry, Charge l-E. I call 

21 your attention to Charge l-E, ask you to read that 

22 charge, please, that specification. Do you remember 

23 this incident? 

24 A 

25 Q 

Yes, I do. 

Okay. 
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MR. FIELD: Do you have -- do you see 

the exhibit? 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

Q I show you what's been marked into evidence 

as Exhibit Board Exhibit E, I guess it is. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: It's actually 

1-E. 

Q And do you have a copy of the letter in 

front of you, sir? 

A No, I don't. 

Q A letter dated October 25th, 1994? 

A No. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Here's my copy. 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

Q Do you recall receiving that letter? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Do you have any comments to make about that 

letter, sir? 

A I have comments to make about the charges. 

The letter itself 

Q Do you 

A 

to make. 

I have I didn't have -- I have comments 
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1 Q Would you like to comment about it, sir? 

2 .A Yes. What happened in this incident is 

3 that I on this -- on this day I was I had given 

4 them a unit test, a full-period unit test. It was a 

5 multiple choice test. 

6 And the the test was graded on 

7 scantrons. The kids fill out the answers on 

8 scantrons, and I graded them with a scant ron machine. 

9 And when I graded them, I used the -- I 

10 made a mistake on the answer key, so many of the 

11 students' grades were incorrectly graded. 

12 And my instructions to the students when I 

13 gave back the scantrons plus copies of the tests were 

14 to go over the answers they got wrong to see where 

15 they made their mistake, and to check to see if there 

16 were any mistakes in the grading. 

17 So they were doing that, and after awhile 

18 Steven pointed out to me that the -- that the answer 

19 key was wrong. He got a question right, but that it 

20 was graded wrong. 

21 So I realized I had made a mistake on the 

22 answer key, and I told the class Steven found a 

23 mistake on the answer key. 

24 

25 

And some kids said said, well, which 

which question -- which question was wrong? 
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1 said, "Well, you should find it yourself." 

2 And the students the students -- well, 

3 most of them went over to Steven to ask him which 

4 question was wrong, and then Steven told them. 

5 And when -- but I suppose some students 

6 that checked themselves to see which question the 

7 wrong one was. 

8 In any case, when the students came to me 

9 with the scantron showing the wrong answer, I I 

10 made the change and I I made the change in the 

11 grades. 

12 Q Did you give every student credit give 

13 students credit for the incorrectly scored question? 

14 A Yes, I did. 

15 Q So at when you're charged here that you 

16 did the students got the credit? 

17 A They did. That's correct. 

18 Q Can you tell us why you had told the class 

19 to discover the error on their own? 

20 A Well, for a couple of reasons. I want to 

21 reinforce and support Steven, who was doing the job he 

22 was 

23 see 

24 and 

25 

supposed to be doing, checking over his 

to 

checking over his grade, the grade I 

reinforce the instruction they had. 

The whole point of my giving them 
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1 scantrons and the test was for them to do the checking 

2 to see if there were any errors, and to see what their 

3 mistakes were. 

4 So I was simply reinforcing the instruction 

5 that they had all along, and it seemed to me like 

6 like it was a sound pedagogy. 

7 Q Now, also on the same thing, it states here 

8 that students complained to Mr. Cohen that you were 

9 not helping them learn the class material. Is that 

10 so? 

11 A No. It -- no, it isn't. I I -- physics 

12 is a difficult subject, and students have to -- have 

13 to apply themselves. 

14 And I'd like to go over my method of 

15 teaching. My method of teaching I think I did the 

16 last time. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Go over them 

18 again. Go ahead. 

19 A I want to say that I explained my method at 

20 SCONYC, at a SCONYC is a meeting of science 

21 teachers in New York, and at that meeting I listed the 

22 four benefits of my method, and the four benefits 

23 are--

24 

25 

MS. TURNER: I'm going to object to 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: Sustained. 

That's well beyond the scope of the question. You can 

answer the question, but nothing more. Don't answer 

it. Don't answer in this line. 

Q Do you feel that you help the students 

learn class material? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Do you feel your method of teaching helped 

the students in learning class material? 

A Yes. 

MS. TURNER: Objection to leading. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Certainly is. 

Sustained. 

Q Can you explain how you conclude that your 

method of teaching helps students learn class 

material? 

A Well, there are two main ways. The first 

way is that my method involved giving out the student 

lesson plans and the -- you can see the -- which 

requires them to to learn how to do the activities 

itemized on the lesson plan, and I can see that during 

the class, that they're doing the work, that they're 

answering the questions or doing the problem or doing 

the activities, and I could see it when they turn in 

the -- the lesson as homework: 
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Then the other way is that I gave ever 

cycle two or three full-period unit tests, and these 

unit tests were were generated by computer that the 

department has. 

It's called Exam-Gen, and the questions in 

the computer are taken from past Regentses, past 

Regent exams. 

So the -- I would grade the -- I would 

grade the test strictly if there were -- used to be 

about 20 questions. 

If the students missed one question he 

would get a 95. If they missed two he would get 93, 

85 and so on, depending on the number of questions 

there were. 

And so I had -- I had those two or three 

grades, and the grades they received were consistent 

with the pass rates that the school experienced in the 

Regents physics. 

Q You're saying that these exams were 

generated by a computer. 

A That's right. 

Q So these were not questions that you made 

up? 

A No. These were questions taken from past 

Regent exams. 
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1 Q Now, in the letter of October 25th, Exhibit 

2 l-E, you were directed or Mr. Cohen requested that you 

3 visit other teachers to view the teaching strategies 

4 that they employed. Did you do that? 

5 A Yes, I did. 

6 Q And did there come a time when you stopped 

7 doing that? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q Was there a reason for that? 

10 A Well, I could -- I could see that they were 

11 teaching using the same -- same method that I had used 

12 at - - at at Midwood, and, you know, I didn't I 

13 didn't feel that there was any -- there was any 

14 benefit to -- to observe them. 

15 Q Well -- I'm sorry. 

16 A Also, the -- we were applying for the 

17 conciliation at this time, and my hope was that the 

18 the disagreement 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: Conciliation of 

20 October '94? 

21 MR. FIELD: That's when the 

22 application was. 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. All 

24 right. 

25 A (Continuing) -- my hope was that the 
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1 disagreement between Mr. Bruckner and Mr. Cohen and 

2 myself in teaching physics would be resolved through 

3 the conciliation process. 

4 Q Who applied for the conciliation first? 

5 A Well, the -- I I wrote a letter to Bill 

6 Foster, the chapter chairperson analyzing the first 

7 two observation reports, and showing that 

8 MS. TURNER: Objection. I'm going to 

9 ask that the Respondent's response 

10 MR. FIELD: Let me ask a general 

11 question. 

12 MS. TURNER: Yes. He's not answering 

13 the questions asked. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me make 

15 that point. I want to stick to each of the charges. 

16 Then if you have some general questions for Dr. 

17 Roemer--

18 MR. FIELD: Do you want to go into 

19 the conciliation aspect? 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: This charge 

21 doesn't really go to the conciliation. We have been 

22 through the conciliation in fairly substantial detail 

23 last time. 

24 If you have additional questions on 

25 the conciliation, just wait until we get through each 
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1 charge, and then ask that. 

2 MR. FIELD: The only reason, I was 

3 doing it chronologically and came to this point. No 

4 problem. 

5 Let me have this back. Can I have 

6 Exhibit 1-F? Do you have Exhibit 1-F, the October 

7 31st letter? 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Joel ? 

9 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

10 to Mr. Field.) 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

12 record. 

13 (Discussion held off the record.) 

14 Q Dr. Roemer, do you recall an observation by 

15 Mr. Bruckner on October 26th, 1994? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Could you tell us what you taught that 

18 date? 

19 A Well, that day I -- I taught -- I had 

20 assigned questions from the brief review of physics, 

21 and I -- I taught the students how to -- how to solve 

22 Regents type problems. 

23 Q Okay. And do you recall receiving a letter 

24 from Dr. -- from Mr. Bruckner on or about October 31st 

25 as to his comments about the lesson that he observed? 
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A Yes. 

Q Do you have any comments to make about that 

letter? 

MS. TURNER: Objection. That's not a 

question. What's the question? It's not specific. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: It's not 

terribly specific, but I'll permit it. 

MR. FIELD: I don't want to lead him. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: There are other 

ways to do it, but all right. I'll take the question 

and overrule. Go ahead. 

MR. FIELD: Strike the question. 

I'll strike the question. 

Q Doctor, Mr. Bruckner stated that your 

lesson was unsatisfactory because you delayed for 

various reasons, that you delayed the start of the 

lesson. Do you have a comment to make on that? 

A Yes. The -- at -- I don't recall exactly 

what happened, but there is no passing time between 

the periods. 

The beginning of one period is the same as 

the end of the other period, and I think what happened 

in this case, I came into the class and I went out 

again, and I think what I did was get a drink of water 

is what happened. 
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But the -- there was -- there was an 

effect I distributed the -- the lesson plan for 

the for the day at least, not the one that I got 

to. 

My plan was to go over the problems in the 

Brief Review of Physics, and then -- then if there was 

time I would start the next lesson, so I gave them 

the -- the student lesson plan for the for that 

day. 

Q As a practical matter, do you recall, when 

you came back, did -- had -- when you left the 

class when you left left to go out get a drink 

of water, for whatever reason, why many of the 

students weren't in the class yet or not; do you 

recall? 

MS. TURNER: Objection. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Overruled. 

A Well, I'm just going by the observation 

report that indicated that -- that students 

students came in with me. 

Q The second time? 

A When I came in the second time. 

Q Okay. 

A I would like to point out that the students 

had their review books with them, and I gave them --
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1 my starting late gave them an opportunity to do the 

2 homework assignment that they were supposed to be 

3 doing, and figure out any questions they might want to 

4 ask me about the previous lesson. 

5 Q Now, according to Dr. Mr. Bruckner, that 

6 you failed to use class instructional time to the 

7 maximum, and that your time was lost by waiting for 

8 students to get ready for the lesson, and that you 

9 made no effort to speak to the class and announce that 

10 the lesson was starting, do you have any comments to 

11 make on that? 

12 A Well, the -- the way I bring the class to 

13 order, and it's -- it's usually effective, is simply 

14 to stand there and start start the lesson, and if 

15 they don't quiet down I stop. 

16 I I'll say, "All right." And there's --

17 I'll you know, I'll be in the front of the class, 

18 and I'll say, "All right," and if they don't stop 

19 talking then I wtin't say anything until they stop 

20 talking. That's usually sufficient to get them to pay 

21 attention. 

22 Q Have you found that to be -- that when you 

23 stand in front of the class and wait, that they'll 

24 quiet down fast enough to start? 

25 A Yes. They get used to each teacher's 
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1 method for bringing the class to order. If a teacher 

2 has the method of yelling every time, "Sit down," and 

3 they'll they'll respond to that, but whatever 

4 system you have they'll respond to. 

5 Q By nature are you a yeller? 

6 A No. 

7 Q Now, according to Mr. Bruckner you failed 

8 to properly plan the lesson. 

9 A Well, concerning the notion that I failed 

10 to use instruction time to the maximum in the 

11 observation report, it says there -- there were no 

12 materials of instruction. 

13 Well, this isn't true. The students had 

14 the Brief Review of Physics, and they they had the 

15 opportunity to work on those problems if they don't do 

16 it for homework, or to work on the -- on the ones we 

17 were doing in class. 

18 So these -- his assumption that I failed to 

19 use instruction time to the maximum, it's a false 

20 observation, because he was assuming that the kids 

21 didn't have any instructional materials. 

22 So when they -- when he saw them not doing 

23 anything, he came to the wrong conclusion. They were 

24 doing something. They had a book there, and they had 

25 things to do. 
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Q What about -- did you -- did you plan their 

lesson beforehand? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Could you tell us what lesson -- what you 

planned? 

A Well, my --

Q What lesson number was this; do you recall? 

A No. There was no --

Q I'm sorry. 

A The -- the plan was to have -- as a 

motivation the kids would -- would write would come 

up and write on the blackboard the I put on the 

blackboard the numbers 11 to 20,.which were the 

numbers I assigned, and the students would come up and 

put what the right answers were on those questions, 

mUltiple choice questions, and the answers were one, 

two, three. or four, and then I asked if there were any 

questions about the -- about the -- doing the 

problems. 

Q And were there questions raised? 

A Yes, there were. 

Q Did you respond to those questions? 

A Yes. And my method of responding was to 

role model how students should do those problems. So 

I would think out loud to show them the steps. The 
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first step would be to read the problem. 

MS. TURNER: Objection, 

unresponsive. The question was, "Did you respond?" 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Overruled. I 

think it is responsive. Go ahead. 

A My method was to role model the -- the step 

that I take -- the step students should take to do 

these questions. 

The first step is to is to read the 

problem. The second step is to draw a diagram, and I 

would draw a little diagram. 

And the third step is to look on the 

reference table for an equation that corresponded to 

that problem, and I would go through the steps of 

of running down the equation. 

Then I would write the equation down, and 

then depending upon the peculiarities of the -- of the 

question, what exactly the question was, I would show 

them how to solve it. 

Q Were the students attentive while you were 

doing this? 

A Well, some were and some weren't. Some 

knew how to do the problem already, and they they 

may have been working on other problems, and but 

certainly the ones who didn't know how to do the 
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1 problems were attentive. 

2 Q Now, was there a lesson plan? 

3 A Yes, there was. 

4 Q And did you show Mr. Bruckner a copy of the 

5 lesson plan? 

6 Yes. A 

Q 7 Do you have a copy of this lesson plan 

8 here? 

9 A No, no. I don't have it. 

10 Q Which lesson plan number would that be? 

11 A I don't know. 

12 Q Do you know what the title of it would be? 

13 A No. I have to I didn't I didn't 

14 attach it to this lesson, because we never got to that 

15 lesson plan. 

16 The plan was to do the problem in the Brief 

17 Review of Physics first to see how many questions 

18 there were and how much how much time we should 

19 spend, and I decided not to start the new lesson, and 

20 simply to work on the Brief Review of Physics. 

21 Q So the lesson plan you were planning to use 

22 for that lesson you did not get to that day? 

23 A Well, I wouldn't put it that way. I 

24 planned to do the Regents type problems . 

25 Q . That's right. Was there a lesson plan for 
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the Regents type problems? 

A Well, I had - - I had notes indicating 

what what the correct answers were to the -- to the 

problems. The kids put them on the board, but I had 

to check. I wanted to -- well, I don't 

Q Let me ask this question. The lesson plans 

that you've developed are lesson plans that you hand 

out to the children before the class starts; am I 

correct? 

A That's right. 

Q Was there a plan out to the children on the 

Regents type problems as a lesson plan? 

A No. 

Q But there was a plan out to the children of 

a lesson plan that you had hoped to get to that day, 

but you did not? 

A That's right. 

Q Okay. Mr. Bruckner states that your 

presentation of the lesson was teacher-dominated. 

Can you -- was your -- do you feel that 

your you were teacher-dominating in that lesson 

that day? 

A No. I wouldn't use that word. The --

it's it has a negative connotation. There was a 

definite disagreement between us in how that lesson 
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1 should be done. 

2 Q What was the -- could you explain what that 

3 disagreement was? 

4 A Yes. He says it in the -- I did almost all 

5 of the talking and -- and explaining during the 

6 lesson. Students did not go to the board to draw 

7 diagrams, nor did they work with any materials of 

8 instruction during the lesson. 

9 Well, of course, the -- the statement that 

10 they did not work with any materials of instruction 

11 wasn't true. They had the physics Regents books. 

12 But the -- my model -- my method of showing 

13 the kids how to well, I explained my method. His 

14 method of doing it would be to involve the entire 

15 class in solving -- in solving the problem. 

16 So instead of role modeling how to solve a 

17 problem, I would calIon a student. I would say, 

18 "Johnnie, what's the first step in solving these?" 

19 And then Johnnie would say whatever his answer is. 

20 Then I'd say, "What's the next step, 

21 Barbara?" And then Barbara would give the answer, and 

22 then the -- then I would say, "What's the third 

23 step?" 

24 And someone might say to draw a diagram, 

25 and I would ask a kid to come up and draw a sketch or 
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1 diagram, and in that way in his mind, in Mr. 

2 Bruckner's mind 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Don't tell me 

4 what's in his mind. 

5 A (Continuing) in his method, that would 

6 be his method of doing it. 

7 Q How is your method different? 

8 A My method was -- was different, because I 

9 did I did all the steps. I didn't ask the 

10 different the different kids to do it. 

11 Q Why do you -- do you feel that your method 

12 was could you tell us, as you did all the steps, 

13 did the students interact with you? 

14 A Yes. There was some questions. There was 

15 some there was some interaction, but mainly they 

16 were interested in knowing how to do the problem. 

17 They had worked on them the night before. 

18 They didn't know how to do it, and they wanted me to 

19 show them how to do the problems. 

20 They didn't want me going through these 

21 elaborate things with asking questions and having kids 

22 come to the board. 

23 You know, you have a kid come to the board, 

24 do a diagram. He may draw a diagram that is not 

25 helpful to the kids, but when I draw a diagram, I 
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would draw a diagram that would help the kids. 

So I think they found my method of of 

doing this much more interesting, much more 

productive. We could do more problems that way. His 

way was was much slower. 

And I learned at Midwood -- my assistant 

principal there, ~ho was who was very -- he's one 

of the leaders in physical science in New York City 

MS. TURNER: Objection. Where are we 

going with this? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes. 

Sustained. 

Q Why did you choose your method over Mr. 

Bruckner's method? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: We've gone 

through this. He answered on the questions as they 

relate to each of these observations. 

MR. FIELD: As to the method that he 

was discussing. He's discussing what his method is 

and how it differed, and I'm asking why he chose his 

method over Mr. Bruckner's method. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Field, 

we've been through that. What we haven't been through 

are the specific charges and what Dr. Roemer did or 

did not do in each observation, and you have every 
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1 right to ask him about that. 

2 Let's be clear. We went through why 

3 Mr. Roemer believes the methodology he employed is 

4 superior to that of Mr. Cohen or Mr. Bruckner's. 

5 Q Mr. Bruckner says your lesson did not have 

6 a clearly defined aim, you didn't have a clearly 

7 defined aim to the lesson. Can you comment on that, 

8 sir? 

9 A Well, the lesson had instructional 

10 objectives. I don't -- this this lesson didn't 

11 Q Do you understand can there been an aim 

12 toward a lesson on teaching students how to do review 

13 problems? 

14 A No. No. It wouldn't make sense. The 

15 instructional objective was teaching students how 

16 to -- Regents type problems, and any aim you had, I 

17 don't know how it would help the kids. You might come 

18 up with some general I mean, it just wouldn't 

19 wouldn't be of any use. 

20 Q Now, finally, Doctor, Mr. Bruckner says 

21 that your lesson contained no motivational 

22 demonstrations and materials of instruction. 

23 I think you commented about materials of 

24 

25 

instruction. What about demonstrations? 

A Well, the demonstrations were done when the 
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students were learning the -- the physics concepts in 

the previous days. 

These were mUltiple -- these were 

mUltiple-choice Regents type questions that presuppose 

that the students already knew the concept. 

And the purpose of this lesson was for them 

to learn to do the particular wrinkles of of 

involved Regents type questions. 

So it's true that there were no 

demonstrations in their lesson, but the applicable 

demonstrations had to do with the physics concepts 

that were given before. 

Q And what about comments about motivation? 

A Well, the motivation is anything that peaks 

a student's interest in the lesson, and the motivation 

in this lesson was having the student put the answers 

on the chalkboard, and as I said, the materials of 

instruction were the Brief Review of Physics books. 

Q Were you directed to observe your 

colleagues? 

A No. I don't I don't recall. 

Q Now, turning your attention to 

A Well, I have another comment. 

Q Sure. Do you have any further comments to 

make on this lesson? 
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1 A Yes. I thought it would be interesting. I 

2 asked -- Mr. Bruckner said my performance was 

3 unsatisfactory, and I once asked him what he meant by 

4 unsatisfactory, and his answer was that he had a duty 

5 after he observed a lesson to decide whether the 

6 lesson was satisfactory or unsatisfactory. 

7 So I said to him, "Well, how do you 

8 distinguish between, say, poor lessons and 

9 unsatisfactory lessons?" 

10 And he said to me, "Your lessons are so 

11 poor, they're unsatisfactory," and I took this to mean 

12 that 

13 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: To what you 

15 took it to mean. We're looking only for Dr. Roemer's 

16 state of mind, not Mr. Bruckner's. Go ahead. 

17 A I took it to mean he had no real definition 

18 of what he meant by unsatisfactory. 

19 Q All right. Now, turning your attention to 

20 1-G, 

21 MR. FIELD: Can I see 1-G? It's 

22 dated November 18th. 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: You want to see 

24 the document? 

25 MR. FIELD: Yes, please. 
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(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to Mr. Field.) 

Q Do you have l-G in front of you? 

A Oh, yes. I have it. 

Q Do you recall this lesson? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Could you tell us what you taught? 

A Well, this was this was the Lesson 

Number 23, and it was on projectile motion, what is 

the motion of projectile. 

Q Now, Mr. Bruckner states that this lesson 

was unsatisfactory because you didn't properly involve 

your students in a lesson. 

A Well, the reading of the observation report 

shows that students checked the grading of the unit 

test given on a scantron. 

Then they engaged in a cooperative 

learning -- earth-learning activity. I had the 

projectile motion device, which was a device that 

showed two dimensional motion, and I did the 

demonstration, and the kids engaged in a diad. 

They broke into pairs and discussed it, and 

they took a quiz. They also -- we also started 

solving another problem, so there were four -- four 

activities. 
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1 Q So you feel that students were involved in 

2 the lesson? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Okay. Dr. Roemer, Dr. -- Mr. Bruckner says 

5 you did not use class instruction time effectively. 

6 Could you tell us what you did in that class? 

7 A Well, it was review of work from a previous 

8 day's lesson. It was a review of previously 

9 administered tests. 

10 It was a review of problems and 

11 administration of a quiz and the start of solving 

12 another problem. I get this from the observation 

13 report itself. 

14 Now, the other -- what he left out was an 

15 interesting activity I did for the kids, which was the 

16 cooperative learning activities, the diads. 

17 He didn't mention that in the report, 

18 though it says, "You asked students to break up in 

19 pairs and discuss the problem," but it wasn't 

20 mentioned in the -- in his analysis, and it didn't 

21 seem to count towards his -- his decision on -- about 

22 whether I used class time effectively. 

23 Q What I'm sorry. I lost you, sir. 

24 A He didn't seem to take into account 

25 THE HEARING OFFICER: Don't tell me 
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what he seemed to take into account. You told me what 

you did. 

A Hoid on. 

Q Well, what 

A In the in his list of the of the 

the things that I did, I think he left out the 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Dr. Roemer, 

tell me what you did. You engaged in a cooperative 

learning lesson or mini-lesson. You told me you had 

students working diads, in pairs. 

That's fine. You have every right to 

tell me. Just don't tell me what Mr. Bruckner did or 

did not do. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

Q All right. I'm a little lost here. Could 

you describe what you did in that lesson, instruction, 

and how you used instruction time? 

A Well, I reviewed the work from the 

previous -- previous lesson. 

Q Is it normal for you to do that? 

A Yes. 

Q When you say review the work, are these the 

questions that -- that the students do as homework? 

A Well, I think the - - I have the students' 

lesson plan, which has numbered item questions and 
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1 problems and activities from the previous day, and 

2 sometimes they -- they don't learn how to do the 

3 problems during the class on that day. 

4 So they find out -- they ask me -- or they 

5 couldn't do them for homework, so they told me the 

6 next day the ones that couldn't do it, and I help them 

7 out. 

8 Q After that was concluded, what did you do? 

9 A I gave back the -- the unit test with the 

10 scantrons so that they could see the grades they got 

11 and check check their answers. 

12 Q After that, after you concluded that, what 

13 did you do? 

14 A I did one of the -- one of the problems on 

15 the on the students' lesson plan. I handed that 

16 out. 

17 Q 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 that? 

21 A 

22 projectile. 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

The new one? 

Right. 

What lesson plan? What was the name of 

Lesson 23 called what is the motion of a 

What is the motion of a projectile? 

Right. 

I don't have -- all right. 
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1 MR. FIELD: I don't know whether this 

2 was introduced last time or not. I have to check the 

3 file. All right. 

4 Q It's Lesson 23? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q That was handed out to the students 

7 beforehand? 

8 A Right. 

9 Q Were there several questions for the 

10 students to work on? 

11 MS. TURNER: Objection. Mr. Edelman, 

12 I have been more than lenient in limiting my 

13 objections. 

14 The way Mr. Field has been leading 

15 his client up and down in these proceedings, I've been 

16 really, really lenient, and I'm going to ask you to 

17 ask him to phrase the question in a proper fashion. 

18 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. 

19 MR. FIELD: I don't believe I've been 

20 leading. As a matter of fact, the questions have been 

21 very broad and have not been yes or no answers. Once 

22 in a while 

23 

24 groundrules. 

25 correct. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's set the 

I think Ms. Turner is basically 
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1 When you ask Dr. Roemer what happened 

2 or what he said, those are totally appropriate 

3 questions. 

4 You can ask Dr. Roemer to comment. 

5 You can argue whether that's vague, but it's not 

6 leading, and I rule that's appropriate. 

7 But when you say to him, and this 

8 lesson plan covered X, Y, Z or this was given to 

9 students to answer a few questions or things like 

10 that, you are clearly leading. 

11 So let Dr. Roemer testify and not 

12 yourself. Ms. Turner was not basically correct. 

13 She's correct. Let me amend that. 

14 Q Looking at the lesson plan -- how many 

15 were students given problems to do at their desk? 

16 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: It's yes or no, 

18 but I'll take that answer. 

19 MR. FIELD: Some questions do have --

20 necessarily are going to have yes or no. 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: I said I'll 

22 accept the answer. I just allowed you to ask that 

23 question. 

24 Q 

25 A 

Could you tell us? 

I don't recall specifically. 
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Q You don't recall. Okay. All right. Mr. 

Bruckner says that your lesson was unsatisfactory; 

that you failed to properly plan the lesson. Do you 

agree with that? 

A No, I don't. 

Q Could you tell us why you do not agree with 

that? 

A Well, I -- what he's referring to in the 

observation report, there's is the -- is the idea 

that there should be a scientific method. 

MS. TURNER: Objection as to what Mr. 

Bruckner is referring to. He's not here to testify. 

MR. FIELD: Can I be heard? He has a 

right to testify to what he understands Mr. Bruckner 

is referring to, and if he -- he's concluding that 

from his observation report, Mr. Bruckner's referring 

to something, this is his conclusion. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't agree 

with that. He has a right to tell me why he believes 

this lesson was satisfactory and not unsatisfactory, 

as Mr. Bruckner indicated .. 

He has every right to tell me that, 

and that's what he may do, and that was the question 

and that is the answer he may give. 

Q Continue your answer, sir. 
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1 A Yes. The lesson was -- was properly 

2 planned. I did exactly what what I planned to do. 

3 Q Could you tell us what you planned to do in 

4 that lesson? 

5 A I planned to review the work from the 

6 previous day's lesson; review the previously 

7 administered test; review problems; administer a quiz 

8 and start the solving of another -- another problem. 

9 I also planned to do a demonstration, and cooperative 

10 learning activity. 

11 Q Could you tell us what demonstration you 

12 planned to do? 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's go on. 

14 He already testified that was the 

15 Q Could you tell us what cooperative learning 

16 activity 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's go on. 

18 He already indicated all these things, Mr. Field. I'm 

19 not saying they're insignificant. He indicated them. 

20 Q Now, you were directed to meet with 

21 Assistant Principal Cohen to obtain assistance in 

22 planning lessons in order to improve your 

23 

24 

25 

performance. Did you meet with him? 

A 

Q 

Yes, I did. 

Could you tell us how often you met with 
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1 Mr. Cohen? 

2 A Yes. I once showed him how I was going to 

3 do a lesson, and he --

4 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: The question 

6 was how often did you meet with him afterwards. 

7 THE WITNESS: Three times. 

8 Q Could you tell us what you did, what those 

9 meetings consisted of? 

10 A Well, the first meeting was an i~promptu 

11 meeting at the lab room, where I went up to him and I 

12 showed him how I was going to do the next lesson, and 

13 his comment was that I should ask leading questions. 

14 Then--

15 MR. FIELD: Obviously it wasn't 

16 here. 

17 Q Go on. 

18 MR. FIELD: I'm sorry. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's okay. 

20 A Then the second time was a pre-observation 

21 conference for the third lesson that he observed, and 

22 the next time was a pre-observation conference for the 

23 sixth lesson that he observed. 

24 Q Turning your attention to 1-H, which I 

25 believe was also 1-D, this is going back to October 
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20th, '94 --

THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

record. 

{Discussion held off the record.} 

MR. FIELD: This is October 20th. 

Q Do you recall this lesson, sir? 

A Yes. 

Q This is observed by Assistant Principal 

Cohen on or about October 13th. 

Mr. Cohen states that your lesson was 

unsatisfactory because the aim of the lesson did not 

provide a focus for the students that could be 

sustained throughout the lesson. 

What was this lesson about, sir? 

A This was a lesson on the -- on the inverse 

square law. The instructional objective was to learn 

the inverse square law. 

Q And did your aim provide a focus for -- did 

your aim of the lesson provide a focus for the 

students 

MS. TURNER: Objection. 

Q {Continuing} -- in your opinion? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Did your aim 

provide a focus? I'll allow it. 

A The aim in my lesson was the entire student 
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lesson plan. It was the the title, the materials, 

the itemized numbers and the introductory paragraph, 

so I provided the students with focus and direction 

for the lesson. 

Q What do you understand an aim of a lesson 

to be, sir? 

A An aim is is a concept in the 

developmental lesson plan. You start such a lesson 

with a motivation. Then you hopefully elicit from the 

kids an aim. 

Then I write the aim on the blackboard, and 

you pick an aim that will -- will help kids follow the 

lesson throughout. 

The idea is that the children don't have 

any materials, so they're just basing the lesson on 

oral communication with the teacher, so they need that 

assistance to follow the lesson. 

So the aim to me, it's something you write 

on the blackboard and that you elicit from the 

students after a motivation. 

Q Do you make clear in your lessons the aim? 

A Absolutely. I call them instructional 

objectives. It's -- the -- the job of my students in 

class is to read the first paragraph, and to be able 

to do the numbered items, the various questions, 
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problems and activities. 

Q I'm sorry. And the lesson that you taught 

that day, what's the title of it, sir? 

A What is the acceleration of the moon. 

Q Did your lesson plan set forth the aim? 

A Yes. It sets forth the instructional 

objectives. 

Q Now, was this lesson plan distributed to 

all the students? 

A Yes, it was. 

Q Okay. Mr. Cohen says that your 

presentation in the lesson was confusing and you did 

not allow students time to understand the concept that 

you were trying to build. Do you agree'with this? 

A Well, the -- the presentation of a lesson 

differed from my usual method. My usual method would 

be -- to teach the inverse square law would be to 

explain, their writing what the inverse square law is, 

and put down any equation that applied, and then to 

demonstrate and explain the inverse square law, and 

then the kids would have numbered problems to do. 

But this time I chose a different approach, 

more of a discovery approach for teaching the lesson, 

and I started with -- with the historical way the 

inverse square law was --was -- was calculated, the 
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inverse square law was discovered. 

So Items 1 and 2 Item 1 and 2 on the 

student lesson plan involved my introduction to the 

or the beginning of my lesson on the inverse square 

law. 

Q Could you tell us for the record what Items 

1 and 2 was on the lesson plan? 

A Number 1 was to calculate the centripetal 

acceleration of the moon, and Item 2 was I had told 

them that the radius of the earth was 4,000 miles, and 

the orbit of the moon is 24,240 miles, and the 

question was what does this have to do with the 

acceleration due to gravity. 

MS. TURNER: I'm confused, because I 

still can't tell whether he agreed or disagreed with 

Mr. Cohen, which was the initial question. 

MR. FIELD: I'll ask the question. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: You'll what? 

MS. TURNER: The initial question was 

whether he agreed or disagreed with Mr. Cohen's 

observation. From that simple question I still can't 

tell whether he agreed or disagreed. I don't 

understand physics. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I understand 

the point, but frankly what he said was he tried a 
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different approach in his class, and ultimately I 

think he should answer the question, but I think his 

answer is generally responsive to what went on in the 

class, so to that extent I'll permit it. 

Q I'm confused by one thing. You said the 

title of the lesson plan was what -- the acceleration 

of the moon, and you talked about the inverse square 

law. That's the same? 

A That's the same lesson. 

Q Okay. Now, do you agree or disagree with 

Mr. Cohen's statement that your presentation of the 

lesson was confusing and did not allow students time 

to understand the concept you were trying to build? 

A Well, the -- to answer that question I have 

to I understood from reading the. -- the observation 

report, what he was referring to when he said that, 

the kids didn't have enough time to understand the 

concept, he was talking about 1 of 2. 

Q 1 and 2? 

A 1 of 2, the first part of the lesson, and 

he may have been right. I wanted to get to the other 

part of the lesson, and maybe I should have spent more 

time on doing 1 and 2. 

Q Okay. Now, Mr. Cohen stated that your 

questioning techniques were poor. Did you agree or 
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1 disagree with that? 

2 A No. I don't agree. 

3 Q Could you tell us what your questioning 

4 techniques were? 

5 A Well, my -- my questioning technique is 

6 is to if I have any good question, any substantial 

7 question, thought-provoking question, a question 

8 that's that's called a pivotal question, I put it 

9 in writing in the lesson plan so that all students can 

10 have an opportunity to to see what the question is, to 

11 understand the question, and to give an answer to the 

12 question in writing. 

13 Now, that doesn't I do ask -- I do ask 

14 questions in the course of -- of explaining material. 

15 I explain the material, of course, through 

16 demonstration and explanation, and in the course of 

17 doing the demonstration, I'll ask appropriate 

18 questions. 

19 I would never -- I don't have any theory or 

20 way of formulating what my policy on questions 

21 questions is. It's -- it would depend on the lesson. 

22 With some -- some presentations there I may 

23 not ask any questions, but with others -- other 

24 subjects that may be appropriate to ask -- ask 

25 questions. 
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1 Q Turning your attention to the class that 

2 you gave on October 13th, '94, which is the subject of 

3 the October 20th, '94 observation report, do you 

4 recall your questioning? 

5 Do you have any particular recall of 

6 questioning that you used that day in class? 

7 A No. I don't -- I don't really recall 

8 what what I said. The observation report indicates 

9 questions that kids asked and questions I asked the 

10 kids, but I don't have any direct recollection. 

11 Q I see. Okay. Now, Mr. Cohen states that 

12 you failed to motivate the students and stimulate 

13 their critical thinking and problem-solving behavior. 

14 Do you agree or disagree with that? 

15 A I disagree. 

16 Q Okay. What did you base your disagreement 

17 on? 

18 A I base it on -- on two things. One is that 

19 I I was very much conscious of the work that I 

20 kids were doing. 

21 They were struggling with answering the 

22 questions on the lesson -- on the lesson plan, and I 

23 collected them the next day and I graded them. I saw 

24 their results. 

25 And Mr. Cohen wasn't focusing attention on 
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1 what the kids were doing but what I was doing. He was 

2 just repeating in Number 5, when he says stimulate 

3 their critical thinking and problem-solving behavior. 

4 He was just repeating his -- his ideas. Questioning 

5 techniques were poor. 

6 MS. TURNER: Objection with respect 

7 to what Mr. Cohen was 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Strike that 

9 portion of the answer. 

10 Q Without telling us what Mr. Cohen was doing 

11 or what you felt Mr. Cohen was doing, if I understand 

12 you correctly, and this may be leading but just to --

13 to move it along, in concluding that the students have 

14 been motivated and that their critical thinking had 

15 been stimulated and problem-solving behavior, you base 

16 that on the homework they turned in the next day? 

17 A No. It was the homework they turned in the 

18 next day, plus my observations of their -- their 

19 struggling with the -- with the questions and the 

20 problems during class. 

21 Q Right. And the homework that they turned 

22 in the next day, was that also based on the problems 

23 that had not been solved in class? 

24 A Right. Their job was to to either 

25 answer or to figure out how to answer the five items 
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that are listed, and the next day I collected them and 

graded them and passed them back the following day. 

Q Now, Mr. Cohen states that your use of 

demonstration materials was ineffective on that day. 

Ineffective -- was ineffective. Do you recall your 

use of demonstration materials? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Could you describe to the Hearing Officer? 

A One device was just a wire contraption 

which showed how the area varied with distance, and I 

didn't understand his criticisms at all of what was 

wrong with that demo, and to me it worked. It worked 

fine. 

The other demo was involved a light 

meter and a source of light, and it was used to 

measure how the intensity of light varied with 

distance. 

And he -- his complaint was that the -- the 

source of light was on the floor, and not all the kids 

could see it, and that was a valid criticism. 

It it was on the floor, but the kids got 

the point of the demonstration, because they -- you 

know, it was using a light meter. 

They couldn't see the reading of the light 

meter anyway. We were relying on the student reading 
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1 the reading the light meter, so -- that's ... 

2 Q Now, Mr. Cohen states that you failed to 

3 make reference to the textbook, although you had a 

4 reading assignment listed in the handout. Do you 

5 agree or disagree with that? 

6 A That's correct. I agree with it. 

7 Q What -- were you in agreement with the 

8 textbook that was being used in the class? 

9 A No. No, I wasn't. 

10 Q Could you tell us why you were not in 

11 agreement with it? 

12 A Well, the the -- the textbook was a book 

13 on conceptual physics by Paul Hewlitt, and it didn't 

14 contain any mathematical equations. 

15 The books that I used, I'm sure in all 

16 cases in New York City I never made a canvas. I 

17 never checked, but the schools where the kids have to 

18 pass the physics Regents use Murphy, Shoot & Taffel. 

19 These are books that have -- after each 

20 section they have mathematical equations, algebraic 

21 equations with quizzes put in there to help them learn 

22 the concepts of physics. 

23 But in Paul Hewlitt's book there were no 

24 such -- no such mathematical questions. The point of 

25 the book was to treat physics without mathematics, and 
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I I thought it was a very, very poor textbook to 

choose for the class, and I think it was a bizarre 

choice. 

I would be surprised if there's another 

science department in New York State that selects that 

textbook for a Regents physics course. 

Q So I understand correctly, did you use the 

textbook however? 

A Well, I I used to I would give on my 

student lesson plan the section in the textbook that 

corresponded to the work we were doing, but I didn't 

make any -- any demand that the kids read the book. 

It would have been a grade book for the 

kids to read and study. I'm not putting the book down 

like that, but I didn't make them -- for instance test 

them on the book or ask them questions about it, 

because I felt I was giving them enough. 

They had to do the student lesson plans 

with all the questions on it for homework, and 

assigning problems in the Brief Review of Physics. 

They do those problems in order to do well 

on the unit tests, so I felt it was -- it would be 

giving them too much to make them read the -- to make 

them read the textbook. 

Q And finally, Doctor, Mr. Cohen says you 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Roemer 
335 

1 failed to use classroom instruction time effectively. 

2 Do you agree with that or disagree? 

3 A No, I don't. 

4 Q And can you tell us what the basis of the 

5 disagreement is? 

6 A Well, the class was -- was filled with a 

7 lot of activity. I mean, it was a struggle to get 

8 through, to get through the. lesson. 

9 The kids were -- did a good job. They --

10 they -- they -- they learned a lot. The lesson went 

11 fine. 

12 Q Do you have any further comments to make 

13 with respect to this lesson? 

14 A Yes. I would like to point out that this 

15 was the third observation I received. The first 

16 observation was Mr. Cohen. 

17 Then Mr. Bruckner observed me and had 

18 questions about my ability as a teacher. So now Mr. 

19 Cohen really if Mr. Cohen had said the lesson was 

20 satisfactory he he really wasn't authorized to do 

21 it. He would really have to discuss that with Mr. 

22 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sustained. Do 

24 you have comments you want to make about what you did 

25 or didn't do in the lesson? That you can do. 
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THE WITNESS: No. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: Wait a second. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Sure. I'll 

allow it. 

THE WITNESS: No. 

MR. FIELD: Can we take a break for 

two minutes? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Take a short 

recess. 

(Whereupon, at 12:00 p.m., a recess 

was taken.) 

(Whereupon, at 12:13 p.m., the within 

hearing was resumed.) 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Field? 

CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

Q Turning your attention, Dr. Roemer, to 

November -- the observation report of November 23rd, 

which is I -- 1-1, do you have that in front of you, 

sir? 

A Yes. 

Q Let me get my copy. Do you recall this 

lesson? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Could you tell us what the lesson -- what 
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the subject of this lesson was? 

A It was the the instructional objectives 

were to understand the kinetic energy and understand 

where the formula came from, and to be able to solve a 

problem using the -- using the work energy theorum and 

kinetic energy. 

Q What lesson number is that? 

A Lesson 27, what is kinetic energy. 

MR. FIELD: Can we mark this? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

record. 

{Discussion held off the record. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mark this 

Respondent's 27, please, for ID. Do you have a copy 

for Ms. Turner? 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 27, 

Lesson 24, was marked for identification, as of this 

da t e . ) 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to Ms. Turner.) 

Q Dr. Roemer, I show you what's marked as 

Respondent's Exhibit 27, and ask you if you can 

identify this, sir. 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 
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1 A Yes. I can identify it. 

2 Q What is that, sir? 

3 A It's the -- it's the -- it's a student 

4 lesson plan I distributed for -- for the lesson of the 

5 observation report of -- Charge 1-1, except that --

6 no. This is a 

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. You're 

8 offering that, sir? 

9 MR. FIELD: Yes. I would like to 

10 offer that in evidence. 

11 MS. TURNER: May I voir dire? I have 

12 one question. Dr. Roemer, when did you write this? 

13 THE WITNESS: Well, it was either --

14 I'm not sure. Well, my guess is 

15 MR. FIELD: Not guess. Your best 

16 recollection. 

17 THE WITNESS: My best recollection is 

18 that I wrote it before the we had a pre-observation 

19 conference -- well, we had the observation was 

20 11/16, so I wrote it on 11/15. 

21 MS. TURNER: It's not dated? 

22 THE WITNESS: That's right. 

23 MS. TURNER: Did you date any of your 

24 lesson plans? 

25 THE WITNESS: Not for physics. 
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1 MS. TURNER: You dated your lesson 

2 plans for --

3 THE WITNESS: For the foundation 

4 course I dated some of them. 

5 MS. TURNER: I have no problem. 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: So it is 

7 Respondent's 27. 

8 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 27, 

9 lesson, was marked in evidence, as of this date.) 

10 CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

11 Q Mr. Cohen 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead, Mr. 

13 Field. 

14 Q Mr. Cohen states that your aim that was 

15 written on your lesson plan was inappropriate for the 

16 lesson. Do you agree or disagree with that? 

17 A I disagree. 

18 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

19 A Well, the aim as it's written on my lesson 

20 plan is just a title of the lesson, and I pick a title 

21 that will distinguish this lesson from the previous 

22 lesson, and that will help students understand the --

23 understand the concept. 

24 As I said, it's -- you can -- you 

25 can regard my whole student lesson plan as the aim. 
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My whole lesson plan is designed to help students 

follow the lesson. So this is the 

Q This is the what? 

A So the aim was appropriate. The aim 

what I'm calling the aim, the title, it was an 

appropriate title, and the whole lesson plan was 

helped kids understand the lesson and follow the 

lesson. 

Q What was your objective in this lesson? 

A The instructional objectives were to 

understand kinetic energy and understand how it comes 

in the concept of work, how it comes from work, and to 

be able to solve algebraic problems in -- in physics 

concerning kinetic energy. 

Q Mr. Cohen said that your lesson was 

teacher-dominated and failed to appropriately involve 

your students in the lesson. Do you agree or disagree 

with that? 

A I disagree. 

Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

A Well, we had -- at the pre-observation 

conference we agreed on how I would make the initial 

presentation of the of the subject matter, and I 

did it just the way we we agreed to do it. 

And then when I finished explaining the 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Roemer 
341 

1 initial the initial paragraph, I then had a period 

2 of independent study, where the students worked at 

3 their desks answering -- answering the questions, and 

4 I went around helping the students with the -- with 

5 the various problems that they had. 

6 Q About how much time was spent in helping 

7 students with their problems, if you recall? 

8 A I think, going by the observation report, 

9 about 30 minutes. 

10 Q Now, Mr. Cohen says that your questioning 

11 techniques were poor. Do you agree or disagree with 

12 that? 

13 A I disagree. 

14 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

15 A Well, my -- my I design my questions 

16 I design my questions that -- that it helps the kids 

17 understand the the lesson and to follow the 

18 presentation as I was doing it. 

19 In this presentation we were colliding 

20 carts with boxes and showing how -- how far the box 

21 moves against the force of friction from the moving 

22 cart. And I asked kids to -- questions and to do 

23 calculations. I had one activity was a diad. 

24 THE HEARING OFFICER: Questioning 

25 techniques. 
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1 A My one questioning technique I had was to 

2 break a class up into diads, and I asked the students 

3 to develop an answer to the question, quote, what can 

4 I do to the cart to make it to make it do more 

5 work, and the kids discussed it among themselves, and 

6 then someone gave me the gave me the right answer. 

7 Q Is your -- in in Exhibit 27, the lesson 

8 plan, there were several questions. Was this part of 

9 your questioning technique? 

10 A Yes. I think you could -- you could say 

11 that. I would think of them more as activities. 

12 The the -- the disagreement between Mr. Cohen and 

13 myself was that he would have preferred me to spend 

14 more time asking the kids questions and developing a 

15 classroom discussion. 

16 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Tell me what 

18 you did. Sustained. 

19 Q What did you do? Tell us what you did --

20 A I spent 

21 Q (Continuing) -- as opposed to what Mr. 

22 Cohen wanted you to do. 

23 A I spent half of the lesson doing -- doing 

24 demonstrations and showing the students the 

25 relationship between kinetic energy and work, and then 
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1 the remaining half of the period I spent helping 

2 students do the -- do the problems, the problems and 

3 questions on the sheet. 

4 Q I believe you testified that the objective 

5 or the aim of this lesson was to learn about kinetic 

6 energy? 

7 A That's right. 

8 Q Do you feel the students learned about 

9 kinetic energy after you gave this lesson? 

10 A Yes, I do. 

11 Q What do you base that on, sir? 

12 A From my from the -- the work that I saw 

13 them doing at their desks. Some of them knew how to 

14 do the calculation right away, but others needed to be 

15 shown. 

16 And by doing the problems and the 

17 calculation, many of them learned the concept, even if 

18 they didn't learn the concept from my demonstration. 

19 Q Did you have occasion to give a unit test 

20 after this lesson, sometime after this lesson? 

21 A Yes. There would be two or three unit 

22 tests every cycle. 

23 Q And do you have any recollection -- the 

24 unit tests that you gave, were there questions on 

25 kinetic energy? 
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1 A Sure there were. 

2 Q And were these questions on kinetic energy 

3 taken from the tests the unit tests that you gave? 

4 I believe you described before how you --

5 did -- one of your tests -- were all the unit tests 

6 done the same way? 

7 A Yes, they were. All -- all the unit tests 

8 were done the same way. 

9 Q Do you have any particular recollection of 

10 how the class did with respect to kinetic energy on 

11 those tests? 

12 A No, not specifically. 

13 Q Do you know whether they did poor or worse 

14 or 

15 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sustained. He 

17 said he doesn't. 

18 Q Okay. Mr. Cohen says that your lesson 

19 contained neither a summary nor a conclusion. Do you 

20 agree or disagree? 

21 A I agree that there was no summary, but I 

22 don't agree that there was no conclusion. 

23 Q All right. Was there a reason why there 

24 was no summary? 

25 A Yes. Because the -- when you gave out 
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student lesson plans like this 

Q Referring to 27. 

A 27. (Continuing) the -- the lesson plan 

itself becomes its own summary. A summary means when 

you ask kids what did you learn today. It's an oral 

thing, and there's no need to do that in my type of 

lesson, because the it just -- it just doesn't 

it doesn't apply. 

Now a -- to a conclusion, there was a 

conclusion of it. The conclusion of it was whether or 

not the kids would do the -- do the problems on the 

on the sheets, so the kids would see whether or not 

they understood the material, and that to me is a type 

of conclusion. It's a type of ending. 

Q Were you satisfied with this lesson? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q Now, looking at Exhibit the conference 

report I'm sorry. The observation report that's 

dated November 23rd, I call your attention to -- after 

the observation report there are some papers 

called constructivism. 

Do you recall these papers that are 

attached to the observation report? 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

, 25 
\ , . 

Direct-Roemer 
346 

A Yes. 

Q Could you tell us what those were? 

A Well, it's -- it's a handout designed to 

improve improve instruction, improve instruction in 

science. 

Q Did you have occasion to discuss this with 

anybody, or did you ever see these before? 

A Well, I recall Mr. Cohen giving it to me. 

I don't recall if we discussed it. 

Q Do you have any idea why they were given to 

you or what the purpose was? 

A To give me ideas for for lessons. 

Q Did you read these? 

A Yes. I I don't recall reading it, but 

I'm sure I did. 

Q Did you ever discuss these any further with 

Mr. Cohen? 

A No. 

Q Turning our attention to J 

A I have a comment I want to make. 

Q Any further comments you want to make with 

respect to the observation report of November 23rd? 

A Yes. 

MS. TURNER: Objection. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'll permit it, 
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1 as long as it's comments founded in fact as to what 

2 you did or didn't do, not what he proposes Mr. Cohen 

3 believed or didn't believe. 

4 A I wanted to point out that Question Number 

5 7 and Question Number 8 are not mathematical type 

6 questions, but are thought-provoking questions. 

7 They're both very challenging questions, 

8 and these are geared to the kids that are that are 

9 very, very good at physics and can do the easier 

10 problem, so I make provision for students with 

11 different -- different levels of skills. 

12 Q Have you done this in other lessons that 

13 you've done? 

14 A I always try to do that in the lessons. 

15 Q Okay. Now, turning our attention to 1 

16 Specification J, you're charged here 

17 MR. FIELD: Off the record for a 

18 second. 

19 (Discussion held off the record.) 

20 Q Dr. Roemer, do you recall an incident where 

21 you were -- Mr. Cohen either spoke to you or wrote to 

22 you with respect to dismissing certain students 

23 earlier in a class on or about November 16th, '94? 

24 A 

25 Q 

Yes. 

And you recall receiving a letter. 
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1 it to you. It's been marked as Respondent's 

2 Exhibit Board's Exhibit 1-J. 

3 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

4 to the witness.) 

5 Q Do you recall receiving that? 

6 A Yes, I do. 

7 Q And do you recall responding to that 

8 letter. I think it's also part of 1-J? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Could you tell us what happened and what 

11 you recall of that incident? 

12 A Yes. It was -- and it was a class in the 

13 foundations of science course, and I was giving a 

14 lesson on classification. 

15 It was an activity where students had to 

16 classify -- classify creatures, and some -- some 

17 students finished the -- the lesson before the end of 

18 the period. 

19 So I I checked over their work to see if 

20 they did it correctly, and they did do it correctly, 

21 and they asked if they could leave, and I let them 

22 leave the class. 

23 So at the end of the period, when 

24 Mr. Mr. Cohen walked by, he saw that the class 

25 wasn't full, and he -- he told me it was against the 
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school rules to dismiss students from class early, 

Q What was your response to this, to Mr, 

Cohen? 

A I told him I didn't know it was against 

the 

MS. TURNER: I'm going to object. 

It's already in evidence. His response is attached. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: He spoke to 

·him. I'll permit it. Did you tell him something 

orally, and if so, what was it? 

THE WITNESS: Well, orally I I 

didn't I don't recall what I said. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. 

Q Well, after this incident -- prior to the 

incident, had there ever been a problem or question 

come up about you dismissing students earlier? 

A No. 

Q After this incident, did the problem ever 

come up again? 

A No. 

Q So this was the one and only time it ever 

occurred? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you at the time this this incident 

occurred, did y?U understand school policy with 
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1 respect to this? 

2 A No, I didn't. 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's move on, 

4 Mr. Field. 

5 Q The students -- when -- what students did 

6 you dismiss earlier? 

7 A The ones who completed the project 

8 correctly, who did it. 

9 Q And was there a reason for you to -- reason 

10 why you did that? 

11 A Well, the -- the reason is that the school 

12 has doesn't have fixed -- lots of kids have free 

13 bands. There are always kids in the hall. 

14 There was -- in most schools it's against 

15 the rules to let kids out, but at Murrow there's 

16 always corridors are always filled with kids, and I 

17 wanted to reward the students for successfully 

18 completing the project, and I didn't want them there 

19 to distract me in helping those who were having 

20 trouble doing the doing the activity from --

21 I was afraid if they stayed there they 

22 would be disruptive and they would prevent me from 

23 helping those who hadn't yet finished the project. 

24 Q 

25 A 

In any event, this never occurred again? 

No. 
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Q Okay. Turning our attention to 

Specification K 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Give me the 

documents back, please. 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the Hearing Officer.) 

Q (Continuing) which is an observation 

report of December 13th by Mr. Bruckner, could you 

tell us what -- do you have a recollection of this 

'observa t ion? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q And could you tell us what lesson you 

taught? 

A It was Lesson 34, called how far can a 

projectile travel. 

Q Can I see the lesson plan? 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to Mr. Field.) 

MR. FIELD: Can we mark this in 

evidence, sir? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Respondent's 28 

for ID. 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 28, 

Lesson 34, was marked for identification, as of this 

date.) 
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1 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

2 to Ms. Turner.) 

3 MS. TURNER: May I voir dire? 

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let him lay the 

5 foundation. 

6 Q I show you what's been marked as 

7 Respondent's Exhibit 28. 

8 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

9 to the witness.) 

10 Q Ask you if you can identify that. 

11 A Well, this was the lesson I gave at that 

12 time for Specification l-K. 

13 Q Is this the lesson plan that you 

14 distributed to the children? 

15 A Yes. 

16 MR. FIELD: Do you want to voir 

17 dire? 

18 MS. TURNER: Yes, please. Dr. 

19 Roemer, you didn't date this lesson plan either, did 

20 you? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 you. 

THE WITNESS: No. 

MS. TURNER: Okay. No name? 

THE WITNESS: No. No name. 

MS. TURNER: Okay. That's it. 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Admitted as 

2 Respondent's 28. 

3 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 28, 

4 Lesson 34, was marked for identification, as of this 

5 date.) 

6 CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

7 Q Dr. Roemer, Mr. Bruckner states that your 

8 lesson was unsatisfactory in that this lesson plan 

9 lacked the essential elements of a lesson, such as 

10 motivation, media or final summaries and 

11 thought-provoking questions. Do you agree or 

12 disagree? 

13 A I disagree. 

14 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

15 A Well, the lesson has two motivations. The 

16 first motivation, which you can see from the 

17 observation report itself, was to relate the day's 

18 lesson with the previous day's lesson. The second 

19 motivation was the demonstration with the projectile 

20 device. 

21 The immediate or final summaries you could 

22 call -- as I said, it wasn't really a summary. It was 

23 more like a conclusion. 

24 The summary consisted of students trying to 

25 solve Problem Number 2 on the student lesson plan. 
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1 The thought-provoking question was what did the 

2 demonstration prove. 

3 I did the demonstration and broke the class 

4 up into diads, and the students had to discuss among 

5 themselves that thought-provok~ng question. 

6 Q Now -- I'm sorry. Mr. Bruckner also states 

7 that the lesson that you taught did not motivate or 

8 introduce the problem, nor did it elicit the name of 

9 the lesson. Do you agree or disagree? 

10 A I don't know what you mean by that. 

11 Q What he means. What don't you know what he 

12 means? 

13 A When he says introduce the problem. 

14 Q What did you -- you can't respond to this? 

15 A Yeah. I can respond. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

17 record. 

18 (Discussion held off the record.) 

19 MR. FIELD: I'm sorry. What was the 

20 last question? 

21 (Whereupon, the previous question was 

22 read by the reporter.) 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: It was he could 

24 not form an opinion to Item Number 2 because he didn't 

25 understand that. I don't know where you went after 
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that. I think you went to whether the demonstrations 

were poorly executed. 

MR. FIELD: I didn't get that far 

yet. 

Q Can you respond at all to this comment that 

you didn't that the lesson did not motivate or 

introduce the problem or elicit the aim? 

A Well, the motivation, I already told you 

what that was, but he's not talking about motivation. 

He said motivate the problem, and the problem -- there 

was no problem. 

There were instructional objectives to the 

lesson, and it didn't elicit the aim. I mean, the 

we've already discussed the whole -- the whole concept 

of applying aims to my kind of lessons, and the idea 

of eliciting the aim is just -- has nothing to do with 

what I what I do. 

Q Now, Dr. Bruckner said or -- or Mr. 

Bruckner said your demonstrations were poorly 

executed. Do you agree or disagree? 

A I disagree. 

Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

A Well, the demonstration was -- the 

demonstration was another projectile motion device. 

This one has a cart moving horizontally and shoots a 
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ball up by a spring, and the ball will fall back into 

the moving cart, and the demonstration worked fine. 

Q Do you recall what Dr. Bruckner -- Mr. 

Bruckner said about the demonstration on that, why he 

felt it was poor? 

A Well, there's nothing in the -- there's 

nothing in the observation report that refers to it. 

Q Now, Mr. Bruckner says that you did not 

effectively organize group work. Do you feel that 

do you agree or disagree? 

A I disagree. 

Q Could you -- do you have any comments on 

that? 

A Yes. It the group work was -- was 

simply two students working in pairs, in diads, and 

the group work was simply to answer a question. 

So all I did was tell the students to 

discuss the question among themselves. That's 

perfectly adequate direction for the -- for diads. 

Q Did the students discuss the question by 

themselves? 

A Yes, they did. 

Q About how long were these -- what what 

part of the period did the students organize in the 

diads in discussing questions? 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 , 

Direct-Roemer 
357 

A In the beginning. 

Q For about how long; do you recall? 

A Oh, I in the -- probably no more than 

two or three minutes, four minutes, maybe five. 

Q Dr. -- Mr. Bruckner says that your lesson 

was not was neither properly organized or showed a 

lack of or showed preparation. 

A Well 

Q Do you agree or disagree? 

A I disagree. 

Q Can you tell us why you disagree? 

A It was a straightforward lesson. I 

demonstrated and explained the concepts of physics 

relating to two-dimensional motion, and then I showed 

the students how to solve the problem. 

That was Problem Number 1 on the sheet, and 

then the students solved the problem on their own, 

which was on the student lesson plan, and I went 

around and helped the students do the problem. 

Q Do you recall how many problems they had --

you had the students do? 

A Well, the -- certainly the Number 1 they 

were able to do in class, and -- well, I did Number 1, 

and then Number 2 the students did. 

And 4 was -- well, it was done either the 
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1 next day or it was done for homework. I don't recall 

2 whether I had the chance to show them how to do Number 

3 4. 

4 Number 4 is kind of hard and I I 

5 probably had to show the kids how to do Number 4. I 

6 don't recall if we got to that. 

7 Q Did -- Mr. Cohen -- Mr. Bruckner says that 

8 your lesson lacks sufficient student involvement. Do 

9 you agree or disagree? 

10 A I disagree. 

11 Q would you tell us why you disagree? 

12 A Well, the -- you know, I I know what Mr. 

13 Bruckner is talking about. Now, I know how to 

14 contrast my method of teaching with Mr. Bruckner's 

15 method, and my method is -- I think my method is I 

16 found from experience that my method is a good one. 

17 Q That's the student involvement at the desk 

18 working on the problems? 

19 A Plus the straightforward explanation of how 

20 to do the problem. When I -- for Problem Number 1, 

21 this was a long problem. 

22 It's a very -- Problem Number 1 is a long 

23 problem to explain, and I just gave it the straight 

24 explanation, without trying to get the kids to do the 

25 next step. 
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1 They didn't know the next step. You had to 

2 show them the next step, and I had to explain how to 

3 do the -- do the problem. 

4 Then -- so there was a minimal amount of 

5 student involvement in that part of it, and then 

6 then when they tackle Problem Number 2 on their own 

7 themselves, there was a maximum amount of student 

8 involvement. 

9 Q Now, once again you're criticized about 

10 your questioning techniques, and Mr. Bruckner says 

11 your questioning techniques were poor. Do you agree 

12 or disagree? 

13 A I disagree. 

14 Q Is this based on what you previously had 

15 testified to, that the your thought-provoking 

16 questions within your --

17 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

18 MR. FIELD: I'm trying to 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: He's trying to 

20 save time. 

21 MS. TURNER: I know, but he's 

22 testifying. 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Actually that's 

24 true, too. Did your prior answers with respect to 

25 questioning techniques apply in this class as well? 
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1 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

3 Q Did you consider this a satisfactory class? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q What was the objective in this class of 

6 this lesson? 

7 A The instructional objective was to be able 

8 to do the problems in two-dimensional motion, and to 

9 understand the two-dimensional motion. 

10 MS. TURNER: For a point of clarity, 

11 satisfactory class in terms of the students? 

12 MR. FIELD: Students learning. 

13 MS. TURNER: Students learning or the 

14 lesson? 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: You tell me. 

16 What did you think? Why did you think this was 

17 satisfactory. 

18 THE WITNESS: Because the kids learn 

19 to do the problem. 

20 Q Let me ask you this question: When you 

21 used the word -- when I've asked you questions whether 

22 you considered it a satisfactory class, to clarify, 

23 are you measuring and you said this was a 

24 satisfactory class, are you measuring by the students 

25 learning? 
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1 A Right. 

2 MS. TURNER: Objection, leading. 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: He just 

4 testified to it. I understand. 

5 Q Now, how do you know the students had 

6 learned this lesson? 

7 A Well, when you -- when you're going around 

8 helping them do the problems and they're stuck and 

9 they don't see it, you show them how, and then I see 

10 them doing it, it's -- it's very clear that -- that 

11 they're learning how to do it, or when you see that 

12 they're doing it without having to ask for your help. 

13 Q Okay. Now, turning our attention to L, 

14 which is the observation of March 28th, 1995, do you 

15 recall this lesson, sir? 

16 A Yes, I do. 

17 Q What was this lesson on? 

18 A It was on drawing ray diagrams for the 

19 virtual images. 

20 Q This is Lesson 65. 

21 MR. FIELD: Is the lesson attached to 

22 the exhibit? 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes. 

24 MR. FIELD: Okay. 

25 THE HEARING OFFICER: Is this the 
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1 document you're referring to? 

2 MR. FIELD: Yes. We -- we -- well, 

3 no. There's another page before it. 

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, sir. 

5 Correct. 

6 MR. FIELD: Okay. 

7 Q Now, in this lesson -- by the way, did you 

8 consider this lesson satisfactory? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Could you tell us why you considered it 

11 satisfactory? 

12 A Well, because the -- I could see the kids 

13 learning how to do ray diagrams, and I could recall 

14 I could recall teaching this -- this topic at Midwood, 

15 and not having the same feeling of satisfaction that I 

16 was getting from teaching at Murrow. 

17 Q Well, it's your feeling of satisfaction. 

18 A Right. 

19 Q Were you able to measure whether there was 

20 any learning taking place or determine whether there 

21 was learning taking place? 

22 A It's hard to measure, but you get the 

23 feeling of satisfaction from seeing the kids learn and 

24 achieve. 

25 Q 

You feel you're helping them learn. 

But -- that's just satisfaction, but how do 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Roemer 
363 

1 you know there was learning taking place? 

2 A Because they were learning how to do the 

3 ray diagrams. 

4 Q How do you know they were learning how? 

5 A I was going around observing them do the 

6 ray diagrams and helping them do it. 

7 Q Okay. Was there any other way you were 

8 able to determine that learning was taking place or 

9 had taken place? 

10 A Well, from the unit tests that I gave, 

11 the you could tell. 

12 Q Was there any other way also? 

13 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

14 Q Was there a third way in which 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: Overruled. Is 

16 there any other way. That's a fair question. 

17 A From grading the homeworks that they turned 

18 in. 

19 Q When was the homework turned in on this? 

20 A Well, it was due the next day, and -- but 

21 sometimes they turned it in one or two days late. 

22 Q I see. Now, looking at the observation 

23 report, Mr. Cohen says that your aim of your lesson 

24 was too narrow and focused. It should not be answered 

25 by a simple definition. 
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1 Do you agree or disagree with that -- well, 

2 let's take the first question, first one. 

3 Do you agree that the aim of your lesson 

4 was too narrow and focused? 

5 A Well, by the aim of my lesson, he's he's 

6 referring to the title of my -- my -- my lesson, 

7 which -- which I have labeled as the aim, and it's 

8 it it's just a title of the lesson to help kids 

9 distinguish this lesson from the other lessons, and to 

10 speak of it as being too narrow doesn't make any 

11 sense. 

12 What he's referring to is the the aim 

13 from a developmental lesson, where you write the aim 

14 on the blackboard after eliciting it from the 

15 students. 

16 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

17 Q Did he ever tell you what he 

18 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sustained. 

20 Q Did Mr. Cohen ever tell you what he meant 

21 by aim? 

22 A Yes, he did. 

23 Q What did he tell you? 

24 A He told me it was something that had to 

25 sustain the interest of the children for the entire 
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1 period. 

2 Q And do you feel that your -- did you -- do 

3 you feel that your lessons had an aim? 

4 A They had instructional objectives, my 

5 lessons. 

6 Q So your lesson did not necessarily have an 

7 aim? 

8 A No. 

9 Q Do you feel what do you mean by 

10 instructional objective? 

11 A Instructional objective is is things you 

12 want students to understand and know and the skills 

13 you want them to have. 

14 Q What to come out of the class with? 

15 A Right. 

16 Q Were the students made aware of your 

17 instructional objectives? Let's take this lesson. 

18 Were they made aware of your instructional objective? 

19 A Yes, they were. 

20 Q Could you tell us us how and where? 

21 A Well, they were responsible for learning 

22 how to do the numbed items. 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

Seven items? 

There were seven items, and --

Are you saying that the seven items had 
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1 your instructional objectives? 

2 A No. I wouldn't put it like. that. The 

3 instructional objectives were to understand how to do 

4 ray diagrams for a particular circumstance. 

5 This is with a concave mirror and producing 

6 virtual images, and to do the ray diagrams, and then 

7 to do algebraic problems in that that type of 

8 situation, and to understand the concept the 

9 difference between a virtual image and a real image. 

10 So the instructional objective is something 

11 that the teacher has in mind about what he wants the 

12 kids to know. 

13 The kids don't necessarily know the 

14 objective. The kids know what their job is in the 

15 classroom. 

16 Q So it is conceivable or --

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Watch it. 

18 Q Is it possible that in this lesson, that 

19 the students may not have known the instructional 

20 objective? 

21 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: I guess 

23 anything is possible. Sustained. Don't answer it. 

24 Q Now, Dr. Mr. Cohen says you never 

25 achieved the aim of the lesson. 
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1 A Well 

2 Q Do you feel that -- my question is, 

3 you're you differ as to between aim and 

4 instructional objective? 

5 A That's right. 

6 Q Did you achieve the instructional objective 

7 for the lesson? 

8 A Yes, I did. 

9 Q Okay. Could you tell us how you -- or what 

10 you base that on? 

11 A Well, I base it on the grading of homework. 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: He testified to 

13 this. It's fine. 

14 Q Mr. Mr. Cohen states that you did not 

15 adequately involve your students in the lesson. Do 

16 you agree or disagree with that? 

17 A I disagree. 

18 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

19 A Well, there was a considerable amount of 

20 student involvement. They they did some drawing of 

21 ray diagrams at the blackboard. 

22 They observed images in the mirror, and 

23 they worked on the problems in the students' lesson 

24 plans. 

25 Q Mr. Cohen says your questioning techniques 
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1 were poor. 

2 Is this, once again, your prior answer --

3 well, do you agree or disagree? 

4 A I disagree. 

5 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

6 A Well, this is not the same as my prior 

7 answer. This particular case, his suggested questions 

8 made no sense at all. 

9 The instructional objective was to do ray 

10 diagrams, and you can't elicit this by asking a kid 

11 questions. 

12 He's suggesting questions, how do you do a 

13 ray diagram. Why doesn't the image on the board match 

14 the one we see on the mirror. Questions like that 

15 would just befuddle kids. 

16 The main thing is to be able to draw the 

17 ray diagram and to solve the problems, and answering 

18 those questions doesn't make any sense at all. 

19 Q What was the questioning technique you used 

20 in this class? 

21 A Well, I I asked the students if anyone 

22 had any idea about how to do the ray diagram for this 

23 particular case. 

24 They had done ray diagrams for other cases, 

25 previous cases, so conceivably they could have figured 
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1 out or guessed how to do the ray diagram on this one. 

2 Q And did any students indicate they knew how 

3 to do it? 

4 A I think -- I think one student tried to do 

5 it, and he didn't -- he didn't get it -- get it 

6 right. 

7 I'm not I don't really recall. I'm just 

8 going by some of the comments in the observation 

9 report. 

10 Q Now, Mr. Cohen said that the lesson was 

11 teacher-dominated. Do you agree or disagree? 

12 A I disagree. 

13 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

14 A Because in this lesson there was a -- there 

15 was a small amount of information that the kids 

16 needed, and when you're delivering information to the 

17 kids you're putting them in a passive situation, so 

18 you could call that a type of teacher domination. 

19 But mainly it was the -- one was the 

20 students themselves that had to do the ray diagrams. 

21 To -- to call that a teacher-dominated lesson doesn't 

22 make any sense at all. 

23 Q Mr. Cohen says that you did not effectively 

24 demonstrate your lesson. Did you agree or disagree 

25 with that? 
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1 A I disagree. 

2 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

3 A Well, I I showed the kids how to do 

4 the to do the ray diagrams, and I explained the 

5 the concept, the difference between a virtual image 

6 and a real image. 

7 Q Mr. Cohen states that you did not 

8 effectively motivate your students. 

9 At the close of the lesson you stated, "Is 

10 anybody paying attention?" 

11 Well, let's take the first question. Did 

12 you -- do you agree or disagree, you did not 

13 effectively motivate your students? 

14 A No. There was a motivation. Motivation to 

15 the lesson -- the motivation was giving them the 

16 spherical mirror to see the image. It was a 

17 demonstration. 

18 Q What about the statement that -- asking the 

19 students is anybody paying attention? 

20 A Well, I remember this as being a kind of a 

21 reprimand of the kids, and I forget exactly what 

22 happened. 

23 I think what it was was that they were 

24 working on the activities, and I wanted to explain to 

25 them, you know, Item Number -- Number 6, having to do 
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1 with virtual images and real images, and I was 

2 explaining it to them and they -- they were looking at 

3 me blankly. 

4 So this is something that occurred at the 

5 end of the lesson after -- while they were working on 

6 the problems. 

7 It may have been because I interrupted 

8 their work and, you know, they didn't they didn't 

9 want to listen to it. 

10 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sustained. 

12 Q Do you recall what happened? 

13 A Well, the period ended. 

14 Q I ask you to look on the second page of the 

15 observation report to refresh your recollection, and 

16 the next to the last paragraph. Read it to yourself, 

17 please. Do you 

18 A Yes. I read it. 

19 Q Do you recall now what happened? 

20 A Well, I'm just going by that that may 

21 have that may have been the reason. The other 

22 reason may have been that -- the concepts of the real 

23 and virtual images. 

24 

25 

MS. TURNER: Objection. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Sustained. 
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1 It's too speculative. He's testified as to what goes 

2 on. If you want to ask him other things ... 

3 Q Was there any noise in the courtyard? 

4 A I don't recall. 

5 Q All right. Mr. Cohen said you failed to 

6 use class instruction time effectively. Do you agree 

7 or disagree with that? 

8 A Well, I I answered questions about the 

9 previous -- previous lesson and the homework, and I 

10 explained to do the ray diagrams. The lesson was a 

11 very good lesson. 

12 And if you focus attention to what the kids 

13 are doing instead of what what I was doing, you would 

14 see see that it was a good lesson. 

15 If you focus and came into my class and 

16 focused attention to what I was doing, you would 

17 see -- you would see something that that might not 

18 match your idea of what a teacher should be doing. 

19 

20 

21 Q 

22 lesson? 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Field? 

MR. FIELD: Yes. 

Okay. Do you feel this was a satisfactory 

Yes, it was. 

What do you base that on, sir? 

Well, the observation of the students, the 
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1 students working on the problems and the grading of 

2 homeworks. 

3 Q Looking at Exhibit L, 1-L, can you identify 

4 the handwritten four pages of that exhibit? Do you 

5 have that over there? 

6 A No, I don't. 

7 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

8 to the witness.) 

9 A Oh, yes. 

10 Q Can you identify that, sir? 

11 A Well, that's part of my lesson plan. My 

12 written lesson plan includes the -- the student lesson 

13 plan and any notes I may make to help me to help me 

14 present the lesson. 

15 So in this particular lesson I had I had 

16 made some additional notes about the -- about the 

17 lesson, so I would describe this as part of my -- my 

18 lesson plan. 

19 So this is a case where my written --

20 written lesson plan was different from the lesson plan 

21 the students got. I had additional notes on them. 

22 Q 

23 not? 

24 A 

25 Q 

The students got the third page, did they 

Right, the regular printed page. 

Looking at your notes, could you explain 
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1 what your notes what additional -- what these 

2 things were, these items that you discussed in class 

3 or looking at the fourth page. 

4 A Well, Number 2 is the is the solution 

5 to referred to Number 2 on the student lesson plan, 

6 and I was I was -- you know, I was working out for 

7 myself. 

8 Now, the other -- well, there was -- what I 

9 was working out was the -- some material that 

10 additional material -- well, the first -- yeah. 

11 The first part is the -- you know, my 

12 explanation of how to do the ray diagram, and then 

13 some other additional information I gave the kids. 

14 Q I see. Turning our attention to M, which 

15 is the observation report of April 4th, class of March 

16 31st, you've got that, sir? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Do you recall this lesson? 

19 A Yes, I do. 

20 Q Could you tell us what the lesson was? 

21 A It was how - - it was about converging 

22 lesson producing virtual images. 

23 

24 

25 

Q Attached to the exhibit is a Lesson 68, 

with the title -- I can't read it. Did the lesson 

produce virtual images that the lesson plan that 
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1 was handed out to the students that day? 

2 A Yes, it was. 

3 Q That's the lesson plan for that class? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Mr. Bruckner observed this lesson, and he 

6 criticized you for not having a written lesson plan 

7 for that lesson. Do you agree or disagree? 

8 A I disagree. 

9 Q Could you tell us the basis of your 

10 disagreement? 

11 A Well, the the written lesson plan was 

12 the student lesson plan that I had handed out. 

13 Q Is there any time in any class, except I 

14 recall you testified earlier today on that problem 

15 where you gave a class on problem solving --

16 A Yes. 

17 Q (Continuing) -- when you did not hand out a 

18 lesson plan to the students for the lesson that was 

19 going to be covered in class? 

20 A No. I did that every -- every lesson. 

21 Q Did you ever have a grievance -- was there 

22 ever a grievance filed over the issue of whether you 

23 had a lesson plan or not? 

24 MS. TURNER: I'm going to object to 

25 that question, because all of the reports that are in 
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1 evidence have been grieved, and as a result of the 

2 grievance it's either here or not. There's nothing in 

3 evidence that has not passed through the grievance 

4 process. 

5 MR. FIELD: That's not the question 

6 I'm asking. This is important. 

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: Why is it 

8 important? 

9 MR. FIELD: Because there was a 

10 grievance of a particular thing over the use of the 

11 questions of the student lesson plan being considered 

12 a lesson plan. 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: This is only 

14 what I'm going to take. If there was a resolution of 

15 the grievance that in your view was in Dr. Roemer's 

16 favor, I'll take it. 

17 I'm not going to take oral 

18 conversation. If there's a written decision, whatever 

19 stage, that works in his favor, I'll take the results, 

20 and the panel will evaluate that in light of the 

21 charges. 

22 That's what we'll take. We don't 

23 need any predicate. Just put the results in. Put the 

24 decision in. 

25 MR. FIELD: I'll put it in later. 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's fine. 

2 Q Now, Dr. Roemer, Mr. Bruckner states that 

3 you failed to efficiently manage your class, and he 

4 specifically states, rather than pass the day's lesson 

5 around to the students, you told them to pick up the 

6 lesson at your desk as students entered the room. As 

7 a result, students clustered around your desk. 

8 Well, is that the way you handed out 

9 A Yes. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Field, 

11 let's go on. I don't regard that as critical. It's 

12 not important. 

13 MR. FIELD: Not important? 

14 Q Did you manage your class that day, in your 

15 opinion? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Okay. Mr. Bruckner states that your failed 

18 to interact with students in a manner which would 

19 encourage them in participation in your lesson. Did 

20 you interact with the students? 

21 A Yes, I did. 

22 Q Do you agree with that? Do you agree or 

23 disagree? 

24 A 

25 Q 

I disagree. 

Could you tell us why you disagree? 
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1 A Well, there was independent study. There 

2 was hands-on activity, and there was students who 

3 came to the chalkboard to do work. 

4 Q Was there participation of students in the 

5 class? 

6 A Yes. They -- they worked on the they 

7 worked on the ray diagrams and the algebraic problems 

8 with on the lesson plan. 

9 Q Mr. Bruckner criticized you for failing to 

10 address students by their names. Did you address 

11 students by their names? 

12 A Well, apparently not, and I I don't 

13 recall. My teaching style at Murrow was different 

14 from my teaching style at Midwood. I don't recall. 

15 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

16 Q What was your teaching style at Murrow with 

17 respect to student names? 

18 A I don't recall. All I recall is that I was 

19 never criticized for not calling students by their 

20 names. I would have remembered being criticized. But 

21 whether I called them by their first names or not, I 

22 don't I don't know. 

23 Q So it's possible you didn't call students 

24 by their names? 

25 A Yes. 
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1 Q Do you think that affected your teaching or 

2 your ability to teach? 

3 A Well, at Midwood or --

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Tell me about 

5 Murrow, please. 

6 A At Murrow, not at all. 

7 Q Mr. Bruckner states that you failed to 

8 summarize your lesson or to draw any conclusions. Do 

9 you agree or disagree? 

10 A I disagree. 

11 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

12 A Because the summary or the conclusion of 

13 the lesson was the -- was whether the kids could do 

14 the -- could do the problems and answer the 

15 questions. 

16 Q Do the -- did the students establish to 

17 your satisfaction whether they could do the problems 

18 or answer the questions? 

19 A Yes. They could. 

20 Q Okay. Mr. Bruckner states that your 

21 questioning techniques were poor. Did you agree or 

22 disagree? 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

I disagree. 

Could you tell us why you disagree? 

Well, my -- my questioning techniques 
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1 involve the presentation of material, and there 

2 were the -- there's very little questioning. 

3 I mainly present and explain the -- explain 

4 the subject matter, and in this case I showed them how 

5 to do the -- do the ray diagram. 

6 So we I do the questioning techniques 

7 which -- which I feel are appropriate. The less 

8 the time I don't spend having oral conversations and 

9 questioning of students is time spent so the students 

10 can work on the activity. 

11 Q Were questions -- Mr. Cohen -- I'm sorry. 

12 Mr. Bruckner says that your failed to teach science as 

13 an observable phenomena, to formulate hypotheses, to 

14 test hypotheses or draw tentative conclusions. Do you 

15 agree or disagree? 

16 A I agree with some and disagree with others. 

17 Q Could you tell us what you agree with and 

18 what you disagree with? 

19 A Well, the use of the word fail. It's 

20 it's kind of pejorative, because physics should always 

21 be taught as an observed, valuable phenomena, and 

22 that's why I would always have a demonstration in a 

23 lesson. 

24 Now, this -- the idea of formulating 

25 hypotheses and testing hypotheses and drawing 
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1 tentative conclusions, that that doesn't strike me 

2 as being a part of the physics lessons that I give. 

3 Q Why do you -- why do you say it's not a 

4 part? 

5 A Well, I can't recall any lesson where I had 

6 those those activities -- no. I take it back. I 

7 did. 

8 I would have kids test hypotheses. I could 

9 think of two lessons where I would give two 

10 hypotheses, and they had to decide which one was true. 

11 Q Can you specifically state which one? 

12 A Yeah. One was -- well, the lesson I 

13 described with Aristotle, and comparing Aristotle's 

14 law with Newton's law. That was a kind setting of an 

15 hypothesis to see which one was true and which one was 

16 false. 

17 Q That wasn't a class that was observed? 

18 A Yes, it was. Then the other one was also 

19 observed, which had an activity where the kids have to 

20 compare the caloric theory of heat with the modern, 

21 correct theory of heat. So drawing a cognitive 

22 conclusion, I I can't think of any lesson that 

23 that I did which had that. 

24 Q What about -- did you ever do any lessons 

25 where you taught the lesson by observing a phenomenon? 
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1 A All lessons were like that. Always in 

2 physics you always want to demonstrate the 

3 phenomenon. That's what's great about physics, that 

4 it's most of the phenomenon you can demonstrate. 

5 Q What about any lesson in which you had the 

6 student formulate hypotheses? 

7 A Well, as I say it wasn't I couldn't 

8 think of any lesson like that. The I would give 

9 them the hypotheses, and they had to evaluate them. 

10 Q I see. Now, Mr. -- Mr. Bruckner says that 

11 you failed to effectively monitor your students' work 

12 at their desks. 

13 A Well, I was I just wasn't monitoring. I 

14 was trying to help them. You know, I was going around 

15 helping the kids who didn't know how to do the 

16 problems. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's take two 

18 minutes. 

19 (Whereupon, at 1:26 p.m., a recess 

20 was taken.) 

21 (Whereupon, at 1:34 p.m., the within 

22 hearing was resumed.) 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's do one or 

24 two more charges. Let's see. 

25 CONTINUED EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 
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1 Q Okay. Mr. -- Dr. Roemer, calling your 

2 attention to a letter dated April 25th to you from Mr. 

3 Cohen, in which he describes a meeting that occurred 

4 on April 13th, in which you and him in which you 

5 and he -I'm sorry- reviewed the New York State 

6 pUblication entitled Regents Physics Syllabus, do you 

7 recall that? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q What is the Regents Physics Syllabus? 

10 A Well, it's a document that describes the 

11 the outcomes that you want students to -- to have when 

12 they take the Regents course, what you want them to 

13 understand and know how to do. 

14 Q Okay. Now, did you have occasion to speak 

15 to Mr. Cohen on the 24th of April, the day before the 

16 letter, with respect to the state's recommendations 

17 for the teaching of physics? 

18 A Yes. I think so. 

19 Q Do you recall the conversation at all? 

20 A You know -- on Monday, April 24th? 

21 Q I don't know what day of the week it was. 

22 Yes. 

23 A Yes. I remember the -- the conversation 

24 he's alluding to. 

25 Q Tell us what you recall, the conversation. 
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1 A Well, no. I indicate that -- my 

2 disagreement with the document. 

3 Q Did you say -- did you ever state that they 

4 were incorrect, the recommendations are incorrect? 

5 A Well, no. I wouldn't put it that that 

6 bluntly. It's not a question of -- not a question of 

7 being right or wrong. It's a question of giving it 

8 its proper interpretation. 

9 Q You disagreed with the interpretation on 

10 the state syllabus? Where was your disagreement with 

11 the state? 

12 A The disagreement had to do with the 

13 syllabus. It's basically the list of the things kids 

14 have to know. 

15 But then there was a section called --

16 well, there was appendixes, and then there were was 

17 something called -- something about problem solving. 

18 It was in the introduction to the 

19 document. That was the that was the part that I 

20 disagreed with. 

21 Q Now, did you have occasion to respond to 

22 the letter of April 25th? 

23 A Yes, I did. 

24 

25 record, sir. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: It's in the 
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1 Q Now, I show you what's a letter dated June 

2 12th. Was that your response? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Briefly, could you tell us, without going 

5 into fully what your -- what were you responding to 

6 and what were you showing Mr. 

7 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

8 Q What were you responding to in writing in 

9 the letter? What was your purpose in writing the 

10 letter? 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: I'll take the 

12 answer as to purpose. What was your purpose? 

13 THE WITNESS: To give my 

14 interpretation of the document. 

15 Q Which document are you referring to? 

16 A The Regents Regents syllabus booklet. 

17 Q And is this set forth in detail in your 

18 letter of June 12th? 

19 MR. FIELD: That's in evidence, isn't 

20 it? 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, sir. 

22 A I didn't -- I left some things out. I 

23 was but basically -- basically it's pretty -- it 

24 was pretty thorough. 

25 Q What do you recall leaving out? 
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A Well, I didn't hit him so hard on the 

mathematical business. 

Q What do you mean by hitting him so hard? 

A Well 

Q When you say, "him," you're referring to 

whom? 

A Mr. Cohen. 

Q Okay. What do you mean by hitting him so 

hard in the mathematical? 

A Well, in his initial letter he says 

applying mathematics is one of the skills listed in 

the state syllabus. Only one out of 16 they list, so 

he's implying that 

MS. TURNER: Objection. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Right. 

Sustained. 

Q What do you understand -- when he wrote 

that, what do you understand him as meaning? 

A That mathematics isn't important for for 

the Regents syllabus. 

Q And what is your opinion? 

A It's not true. The Regents syllabus places 

asterisks by those topics that have to be treated 

quantitatively. 

So if a topic has an asterisk by it, it 
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1 means the kids have to be able to solve algebraic 

2 problems, so that's part of the syllabus. 

3 Q As a 

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

5 record. 

6 (Discussion held off the record.) 

7 Q As a practical matter, did your class 

8 stress the mathematical approach? 

9 Did you stress the mathematical approach in 

10 teaching physics? 

11 A I followed the Regents syllabus in the 

12 in the topics that had to be treated mathematically. 

13 I treated them mathematically, and those that had to 

14 be treated qualitatively, I didn't give mathematics. 

15 Q Do the Regents examinations have a heavy 

16 emphasis on math? 

17 A Yes, they do. 

18 MS. TURNER: Objection. 

19 MR. FIELD: I want to have this 

20 marked. 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Just tell me 

22 the relevance. I'll take it if you tell me. What's 

23 the relevance of the Regents exam? 

24 MR. FIELD: One of the things that 

25 Dr. Roemer was criticized for, especially by Mr. 
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Cohen, that he thought there was too much problem 

solving, and he felt it should be more conceptual. 

Mr. Cohen --

MS. TURNER: That wasn't in the 

charges. 

MR. FIELD: It's in an -- in the very 

end, throughout this. This was a continually he 

has stated. His statements were made to Dr. Roemer 

that there's too much problem solving. 

MS. TURNER: I don't see that was 

never in the charges. Can you show me where in the 

charges? 

MR. FIELD: I can't particularize a 

particular charge, but I know 

MS. TURNER: I know the charges. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: One at a time. 

Mr. Field. 

MR. FIELD: He was told this 

continually. In fact, there's a letter that's written 

to Dr. Roemer in November or December of '95. 

Dr. Roemer's position is -- he's on 

the stand. He it was important for the students to 

pass the Regents examination obviously, and the 

Regents examination had mathematical intent to it, 

particular mathematical intent, and that is 
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established in the June 1995 Regents exam. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Frankly I'm not 

convinced of its relevance. I will take it subject to 

you proving to me at some point that he's being 

charged either with inappropriately emphasizing 

problem solving, or if you can establish that the 

letter you refer to is an adjunct to one of the 

charges, if you can establish either one of those two 

elements I think it's pertinent, but I'll take it at 

this time. 

MR. FIELD: Okay. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Respondent's 

29, Regents exam, June 1995. 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 29, 

Regents exam, 6/95, was marked in evidence, as of this 

da t e . ) 

evidence. 

question? 

evidence? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's go on. 

MR. FIELD: Is that in evidence? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: That's in 

MR. FIELD: What was the last 

MS. TURNER: The Regents exam is in 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Subject to his 
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1 connection with respect to a charge or a letter in 

2 evidence relating to this issue. 

3 Q Now, in Charge Number N, Specification N, 

4 Assistant Principal Cohen in your -- charged that 

5 Assistant Principal Cohen I'm sorry. 

6 It states that Assistant Principal Cohen 

7 directed you to follow the state recommendation for 

8 teaching Regents physics. Did you follow the state's 

9 recommendations? 

10 A Yes, I did. 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

12 record. 

13 (Discussion held off the record.) 

14 Q I show you a letter dated May lOth, 1995, 

15 and ask you if you recall receiving that letter. 

16 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

17 to the witness.) 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q Do you recall the incident? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q Did you attend a regularly scheduled 

22 meeting? 

23 A No. 

24 Q Was there a reason why you didn't -- you 

25 failed to attend? 
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1 A I just forgot. And also - - well, I knew 

2 about it, because I remember, but they're not 

3 regularly scheduled. They come at they come at odd 

4 times. 

5 Q You knew about a meeting, a scheduled 

6 meeting? 

7 A But it's after the end of the day, and when 

8 you're finished with class, it's very easy to forget 

9 doing that particular duty. 

10 Q You just forgot to go? 

11 A Yes. 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: Stop. It's a 

13 good point to break. Off the record. 

14 {Discussion held off the record.} 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: We're adjourned 

16 to December 17th at 1:00 p.m .. 

17 {Whereupon, at 1:50 p.m., the within 

18 hearing was concluded.} 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: We are up to 

2 Charge 1-0. Mr. Field, you may proceed. 

3 D A V I D K. ROE MER, the Respondent herein, 

4 having been previously duly sworn by a 

5 Notary Public of the State of New York, 

6 upon being examined, testified as follows: 

7 CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD OF DAVID 

8 ROEMER: 

9 Q Mr. Dr. Roemer, do you have the charges 

10 in front of you? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q I call your attention to Charge 1-0. 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: I apologize. 

14 We did 1-0. He simply said he forgot to attend the 

15 meeting. We're up to I-P. 

16 Q Dr. Roemer, I call your attention to I --

17 Charge I-P. Do you have the exhibit in front of you? 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q Are you familiar with that review? 

20 A Yes, I am. 

21 Q May 15th. What type of class -- what class 

22 was it that you were teaching that day? 

23 A 

24 science. 

25 Q 

This was the class on fundamentals of 

And what kind of lesson were you teaching? 
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1 A I gave a reading lesson on the scientific 

2 method. 

3 Q What is a reading lesson? 

4 A Well, a reading lesson is when you give 

5 students an article -- an article to read, and then 

6 they read it during class time, and then you -- you 

7 follow up with some kind of activity. 

8 In this particular lesson, the -- the 

9 activity was to answer the questions on the student 

10 lesson plan. 

11 MR. FIELD: Do you have the exhibit 

12 of the board? I want to make sure because ... 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: One second. 

14 What are you looking for now? 

15 MR. FIELD: I-P. I just want to. make 

16 sure what was attached to it. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: I should have 

18 it. What's the date again? 

19 MR. FIELD: May -- it's a letter 

20 May 15th. It's the letter from Mr. Cohen. The 

21 observation is May 9th. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE HEARING OFFICER: There's a 

packet somewhere broken up. Does anyone else have a 

copy of it? 

t 

Off the record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 
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1 Q Do you -- do you always -- do you usually 

2 give reading lessons? 

3 A Well, I give maybe one or two a year. 

4 Q And now, according to Mr. Cohen, who 

5 observed you on May 9th, he states gives you for 

6 this lesson an unsatisfactory because the content of 

7 your lesson was inappropriate for the point of the 

8 semester in which the lesson was taught. Do you agree 

9 or disagree? 

10 A I disagree. 

11 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

12 A Because the -- the scientific method could 

13 be taught any time during the year. Mr. Cohen's idea 

14 was that I understood Mr. Cohen to be saying that I 

15 should teach the scientific method at the beginning of 

16 the term, so that the kids can then use the scientific 

17 method for the succeeding lesson. 

18 But, in fact, in this course there were --

19 there were no lessons to use the scientific method, so 

20 there was not need to teach this lesson at the 

21 beginning of the cycle. 

22 Q Now, this is a fundamentals of science 

23 class in a ninth grade class; am I correct? 

24 A 

25 Q 

• 

That's correct. 

Now, in this -- how long had you had these 
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1 students? 

2 A Well, from the beginning of the -- of 

3 the of the cycle. 

4 Q Which would have been --

5 A Well, I said there were four weeks left, so 

6 that would have been -- I had them six weeks ago. 

7 Q I didn't say four weeks before. The lesson 

8 was May 9th. 

9 A But I had them about I've had them for 

10 about five or six weeks. 

11 Q So it's towards -- more or less in the 

12 middle of the cycle you taught it? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q Now, these are not children that you had 

15 had in prior cycles? 

16 A I don't recall. I may have had some of 

17 them. 

18 Q But not the same group? 

19 A Not the same group. 

20 Q Now, the -- in -- had you taught the 

21 scientific method when you were teaching at Erasmus? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q Had you taught it at roughly the same point 

24 in the cycle? 

25 A 

, 

I don't recall exactly when I 
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1 Erasmus each year is different, and each year I 

2 have I did things differently every year. 

3 Q But you felt it was appropriate to teach it 

4 at this point? 

5 A Yes, absolutely. 

6 Q Now, Dr. Cohen says you failed to 

7 effectively involve your students to allow them to 

8 become active participants in the lesson. 

9 Do you -- do you agree or disagree with 

10 that criticism? 

11 A I disagree. The kids were actively 

12 involved in --

13 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, can I 

14 object at this point and be allowed to see what the 

15 witness is reading from? He obviously prepared 

16 something. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: You have a 

18 right to see anything he's looking at. Could you show 

19 it to Mr. Mazzariello first, please? 

20 MR. FIELD: Could I see what it is? 

21 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

22 to Mr. Field.) 

23 

24 them all. 

25 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'd like to see 

MR. FIELD: He's only reading from 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 

/ 



Direct-Roemer 
401 

lone page. 

2 MR. MAZZARIELLO: He was reading from 

3 others before. Mr. Edelman, I would like to see the 

4 whole packet. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me see it. 

6 MR. FIELD: I want to see that packet 

7 too for a second. 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

9 record. 

10 (Discussion held off the record.) 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Field, you 

12 can look at it again, but I'm turning the entire 

13 packet over to Mr. Mazzariello as well, and let me 

14 make this observation, because I think frankly this is 

15 a situation where it cuts both ways. 

16 We understand these classes occurred 

17 a long time ago, and we understood with respect to Mr. 

18 Cohen and Mr. Bruckner that they did not recall with 

19 specificity each and every lesson, so we said their 

20 observations stood for what they believe to be 

21 accurate. 

22 This may be the same situation, 

23 where, in fact, just as he cannot be expected to 

24 recall with absolutely clarity, Dr. Roemer cannot be 

25 expected to remember it with absolute clarity, and 

t 
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1 this may be his response, as long as we understand 

2 that this is also past recollection recorded. 

3 If he has an independent 

4 recollection, then he puts this aside and gives his 

5 independent recollection. 

6 MR. FIELD: Let me just see it. 

7 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

8 to Mr. Field.) 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

10 record. 

11 (Discussion held off the record.) 

12 MR. FIELD: I'm going to -- may I ask 

13 the witness a question? 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: On the 

15 document? 

16 MR. FIELD:' Yes. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: I'll permit it. 

18 Q Were you -- in referring to this reading or 

19 looking at some notes, were you looking at only the 

20 first page, sir? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q And for what purpose -- when did you 

23 prepare these? 

24 A Well, in the - -, I prepared that - - that one 

25 one or two days ago, or I was working on it last night 
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1 as a matter of fact. 

2 MR. MAZZARIELLO: It's dated last 

3 night. 

4 Q And do you need this to testify -- in 

5 testifying today, do you need these papers? 

6 A I don't know whether I need them. It was 

7 the I if I don't if I don't have them, then 

8 I'll have to look carefully at the --

9 Q That's all right. 

10 A (Continuing) -- at the observation reports 

11 to see. I think I could do without them. 

12 MR. FIELD: I'll hold the papers, 

13 Mr. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Again, I think 

15 there is a slight misunderstanding here. I have no 

16 quarrel with Dr. Roemer saying, as Mr. Cohen and Mr. 

17 Bruckner said, "I really can't recall each and every 

18 specific lesson." I have no problem with that, and in 

19 which case that comes as a past recollection 

20 recorded. 

21 I don't mean to be hypertechnical 

22 about it, but on the other hand, if Dr. Roemer has an 

23 independent recollection of those classes, he has an 

24 absolute right to testify.about them. 

25 But I'm not going to permit· him 
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1 simply to read the actual reports themselves, to read 

2 the reports that are in evidence. 

3 MR. FIELD: The reason I'm objecting, 

4 I have not seen these papers until this minute. I 

5 feel strongly about turning them over without 

6 reviewing them or knowing what is in these papers, and 

7 if you want to, if he can testify without these 

8 papers, I would prefer him to testify without these 

9 papers. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: I have no 

11 problem with that, as lon~ as it becomes independent 

12 recollection without the offer of that paper or other 

13 papers. 

14 MR. FIELD: That's right, independent 

15 recollection, and if he needs if he has no recall 

16 on it, then I can show him the paper. I can show him 

17 the paper. 

18 THE HEARING OFFICER: Do me this 

19 favor. Close up your booklet, if you don't mind. 

20 MR. FIELD: Those are the observation 

21 reports. 

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: It's the same 

23 issue, Mr. Field. If he has an independent 

24 recollection, he doesn't need the observation 

25 reports. He certainly can look at reports to refresh 

• 
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1 himself. 

2 MR. FIELD: That's right. 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: On the other 

4 hand, I'm not going to permit, as I didn't permit with 

5 the other witnesses, simply a reading of the reports, 

6 because then there really is no present memory of the 

7 events. 

8 MR. FIELD: But these are the 

9 observation reports that are already in evidence. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: I agree with 

11 you. 

12 MR. FIELD: He has a right to look at 

13 those. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's do it 

15 this way. Yes, he has a right to take at look at 

16 those, but let's make sure he's not simply reading 

17 what's in the report. 

18 MR. FIELD: I don't believe he has. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: But put those 

20 aside. 

21 Q Dr. Roemer, do you recall the lesson of May 

22 15th? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q And Mr. Cohen said your lesson was 

25 unsatisfactory because you failed to effectively 
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1 involve your students or allow them to become active 

2 participants in the lesson. 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: By the way, 

4 sorry to interrupt, but Ms. Petrucelli's Exhibit 1 did 

5 have appended Lesson 42 and another document. 

6 Continue. 

7 MR. FIELD: Thank you. 

8 Q Do you recall that -- do you agree or 

9 disagree with that criticism, Respondent failed to 

10 effectively involve his students or to allow them to 

11 become active participants in the lesson? 

12 A I disagree. 

13 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

14 A Yes. There was a high degree of student 

15 participation, that the students read the read the 

16 reading lesson, and they used the reading of the 

17 reading lesson to answer the questions of the student 

18 lesson plan. 

19 Q And the student lesson plan was what? 

20 A That was the page labeled Lesson 42. 

21 MR. FIELD: Could I have Exhibit P, 

22 please? 

23 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

24 to Mr. Field.) 

25 Q Are you referring to the third page here, 
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1 sir? 

2 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

3 to the witness.) 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q And when did the students answer those 

6 questions, sir? 

7 A During the class. 

8 Q Did they do it in writing or orally? 

9 A It was in writing. 

10 Q And 

11 MR. FIELD: Let's have this marked. 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: Respondent's 

13 30. 

14 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 3D, 

15 Lesson 42, was marked for identification, as of this 

16 date. ) 

17 Q I show you what's been marked as 

18 Respondent's Exhibit 3D, and ask if you can identify 

19 this, sir. 

20 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

21 to the witness.) 

22 A This -- this was the students' work done in 

23 that class. It was the answers to the questions on 

24 the student lesson plan. 

25 MR. FIELD: I'd like to introduce 
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1 that in evidence. 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Show it to Mr. 

3 Mazzariello. 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have it. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any objection? 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: No. 

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: So admitted as 

8 Respondent's 30. 

9 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 30, 

10 Lesson 42, was marked in evidence, as of this date.) 

11 Q What were the students required to do in 

12 this lesson, sir? 

13 A Well, they had to pay attention to my 

14 opening remarks and my motivations. Then they had to 

15 read the reading assignment, and then break up into 

16 groups, and working in groups answer all of the 

17 questions on the student lesson plan. 

1:8 Q When you say, "read the reading 

19 assignment," fourth page, is that the reading 

20 assignment they had to read? 

21 A That's right. It's the one with the Petri 

22 dishes on it. 

23 Q Did you show the class a demonstration that 

24 day? 

25 A Yes. I brought in a real Petri dish with 
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1 alga in it, and I showed it to them. 

2 Q And did you answer questions that were 

3 raised with respect to raised as to that? 

4 A I don't recall that they had any 

5 questions. I know I asked -- I asked some questions. 

6 Q Now, Mr. Cohen says that the lesson was 

7 poor because, among other things, that your 

8 questioning techniques were poor. Do you agree or 

9 disagree with that? 

10 A I disagree. 

11 Q Could you tell us why you disagree, sir? 

12 A Well, the from the observation report, I 

13 understood Mr. Cohen to be -- to be referring to the 

14 kind of oral -- oral questioning a teacher engages in 

15 when he's having a developmental lesson plan, and that 

16 wasn't the type of lesson this was. 

17 This was a reading lesson, and the 

18 questioning was on the -- on the student lesson plan. 

19 The students had to answer the questions on the 

20 student lesson plan based on the reading, and so 

21 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I don't have the 

22 reading. Where's the reading? 

23 

24 I-P. Here. 

25 here. 

MR. FIELD: It's attached, Page 4 to 

This (indicating) is the reading right 
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1 A (Continuing) - - so it if if you --

2 you're looking for a developmental lesson plan, if my 

3 intention was to give that lesson plan, the 

4 questioning was poor, but that wasn't the type of 

5 lesson I was giving. I was giving a reading lesson. 

6 Q Now, Dr. Mr. Cohen says that you failed 

7 to adequately plan your lesson. Do you agree or 

8 disagree? 

9 A I disagree. 

10 Q Could you tell us why? 

11 A The lesson went exactly as I planned it. 

12 I've given the lesson a number of times before at 

13 Erasmus, and it's -- it's a very nice lesson. 

14 Q Using the Petri dish, reading 

15 A I don't know if I always used that ~- use 

16 that motivation, but in this particular case that was 

17 the motivation I used, and the results were very 

18 good. The kids did -- did a fine job in answering the 

19 questions. They learned a lot. 

20 Q Do you feel that the students learned the 

21 scientific method from that lesson? 

22 A Well, that's -- the scientific method --

23 Q I'll withdraw the question. Dr. - - Mr. 

24 Cohen says that you failed to motivate your students. 

25 Do you agree or disagree? 
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1 A I disagree. 

2 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

3 A Well, I had a form of motivation in the 

4 showing of the Petri dish, and the -- the kids did 

5 a -- they worked very hard the whole period. They 

6 spent the whole period reading and learning and 

7 thinking. 

8 Q Dr. Roemer says that the lesson was 

9 teacher-dominated. Do you agree or disagree? 

10 A I disagree. 

11 Q Could you tell us why? 

12 A Well, the concept of teacher domination 

13 applies to a developmental lesson plan. When you have 

14 a reading lesson followed by coop -- different 

15 learning activities, to call the lesson 

16 teacher-dominated is makes no sense at all. 

17 Q Do you feel -- do you feel that learning 

18 went on in that class that day? 

19 A Yes. Absolutely. 

2 O. THE HEARING OFFICER: Before you go 

21 on to the next, let me ask a question, if I may. For 

22 how long of the class did the students read the 

23 material and then work cooperatively before you went 

24 on to your discussion or questions? 

25 THE WITNESS: It's hard to say, 
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1 because the questions involved going back and forth 

2 between the reading assignment and the and 

3 answering the questions, so I couldn't I couldn't 

4 break it up. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Thank 

6 you. Mr. Field, please proceed. 

7 Q After the demonstration and during the 

8 reading assignment, what if anything did you do? 

9 A Well, I went around the room and helped 

10 helped students with some questions they may have had 

11 and, you know, made sure they were doing the work. 

12 Q Do you recall whether the students were 

13 busy to the end of the class? 

14 A Yes, they were. I recall they were -- they 

15 were fully occupied for the whole period. 

16 Q Do you have any further comments to make of 

17 that class? 

18 A Yes. The -- it was -- I've comments to 

19 make about the observation report. 

20 Q Yes. 

21 A Reading the observation report, it was 

22 his criticisms were trivial. He criticized, for 

23 example, for not having hands-on activities. 

24 Well, it it wasn't a hands-on lesson. 

25 It was a reading lesson, and he criticized it because 
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1 of the -- the lack of oral questioning of the 

2 students. 

3 He -- he had a whole paragraph where he 

4 went on about how I could have asked ques~ions, asked 

5 this question and that question and gotten responses, 

6 and my experience with this type of a -- this type of 

7 learning doesn't work for teaching science, for 

8 teaching kids with low verbal skills. 

9 Kids with low verbal skills need to have 

10 reading lessons, and they need the type of involvement 

11 of this type of lesson. 

12 Q In your opinion was the lesson a success? 

13 A It was a success, yes. 

14 Q Now, turning your attention to I-Q, which 

15 is the observation report of Mr. Bruckner on May 30th, 

16 1995, are you familiar with that lesson, sir? 

17 A Yes, I am. 

18 Q Do you know what lesson that was? 

19 A That was a Lesson 83 on eletromagnetic 

20 on electromagnetism. 

21 Q Could you tell us something about that 

22 lesson. Was this a difficult iesson or --

23 A The concepts are very difficult. It 

24 what I did was the student lesson plan had a 

25 description in the first paragraph of one of the 

, 
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1 concepts I wanted them to learn. 

2 Then there were four numbered items, and I 

3 went through the lesson doing the demonstration with 

4 the -- the hand generator. I brought a hand generator 

5 into the class. 

6 And as I explained the concept I wanted to 

7 explain, the students had to answer four questions. 

8 So the way I described this lesson was that it was a 

9 lecture demonstration, where I gave the kids a visual 

10 organizer. 

11 The visual organizer was the student lesson 

12 plan, which contained those four items they had to 

13 answer. 

14 So in a sense it was like four 

15 mini-lessons, four mini-lectures, and then the 

16 mini-lectures were designed to help them answer the 

17 questions that were itemized. 

18 Q I'm going to show you 

19 MR. FIELD: I'd like this marked as 

20 Respondent's Exhibit 31, and ask you if you can 

21 identify this, sir. 

22 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 31, 

23 Lesson 83, was marked for identification, as of this 

24 date.) 

25 (Whereupon, the document was handed 
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1 to the witness.) 

2 Q Can you identify Respondent's Exhibit 31, 

3 sir? 

4 A Yes. This was the student lesson plan I 

5 distributed at that lesson. 

6 Q For -- have --

7 MR. FIELD: I'd like to introduce 

8 this into evidence. 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any objection? 

10 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Did he represent 

11 that he gave this out to the class? 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's what I 

13 understand the testimony to be. 

14 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have no 

15 objection. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: So it's 

17 admitted as Respondent's Exhibit 31. 

18 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 31, 

19 Lesson 83, was marked in evidence, as of this date.) 

20 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

21 to the witness.) 

22 Q Now, this was a reading lesson? 

23 A No, it wasn't. 

24 Q Could you tell us what you did in that 

25 lesson, what you recall doing? 

t 
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1 A Well, am I allowed to read from --

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: If you need it. 

3 Q What you recall sitting here now today, 

4 what you recall of the lesson -- strike that 

5 question. 

6 Dr. -- Mr. Bruckner says that the lesson 

7 was unsatisfactory for several reasons. He says that 

8 your -- you did not have a lesson -- written lesson 

9 plan. Do you agree or disagree with that? 

10 A I disagree. 

11 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

12 A Well, the lesson plan I had was the student 

13 lesson plan that I distributed, and this was the --

14 this was grieved to Step 3, and Mr. Bruckner agreed to 

15 delete that comment from the from the observation 

16 report he originally wrote. 

17 Q Do you recall --

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, could 

19 I have a point of clarification as to where the 

20 student lesson plan is? Where is that? 

21 MR. FIELD: Right in front of you. 

22 MR. MAZZARIELLO: This is what he's 

23 referring to as the student lesson plan. 

24 THE HEARING OFFICER: My 

25 understanding 
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1 MR. FIELD: That's right. 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead. 

3 MR. FIELD: Can I see one I-Q? 

4 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

5 to Mr. Field.) 

6 MR. FIELD: All right. I would call 

7 your attention, Mr. Mazzariello, that while the 

8 lesson -- the observation report -- while the -- the 

9 charges state that the lesson was unsatisfactory for 

10 having no written lesson plan for the lesson, Mr. 

11 Bruckner's observation report just makes no reference 

12 to that. 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: But be that as 

14 it may, that's argument. Ask Dr. Roemer a question. 

15 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I don't know what 

16 he's talking about. Number one, he said that he 

17 handed it out, distributed it, but didn't refer to it, 

18 and the students didn't work on it, so what are you 

19 talking about? 

20 MR. FIELD: He didn't say that. 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Don't argue. 

22 Just ask him a question. He's here to answer 

23 questions. 

24 Q Do you recall whether Mr. Bruckner 

25 originally criticized the lesson for not having a 
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1 lesson plan? 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q Do you recall what -- whether that 

4 criticism was removed or not? 

5 A Yes, I do. The first version of his 

6 observation report says there was no written lesson 

7 plan. 

8 Then as a result of the -- of the hearing, 

9 he rewrote the report and deleted the sentence that 

10 there was no written lesson plan. 

11 Q And was it your understanding that the 

12 student lesson plan was considered the lesson plan? 

13 A That's correct. 

14 Q And that the student lesson plan was 

15 considered the lesson plan, and all the other lessons 

16 also? 

17 A That's right. 

18 Q Mr. Bruckner stated that you failed to 

19 provide a clearly stated aim or focus on the lesson. 

20 Do you agree or disagree? 

21 A I disagree. 

22 Q What was the aim or focus of this lesson? 

23 A Well, the -- the the instructional 

24 objectives were the -- what were to understand 

25 what's meant by electromagnetic induction, and to be 
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1 able to understand the concepts behind the four 

2 itemized things in the student in the student 

3 lesson plan. 

4 It involved understanding electromagnetic 

5 induction, and I would have to refer to the -- to the 

6 lesson plan itself to see. 

7 Q Respondent's Exhibit 31? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q That's in front of you, sir. Could you 

10 tell us 

11 A Well, they had - - they had to understand 

12 the what electromagnetic waves were. They had to 

13 know the difference between magnetic fields and 

14 electric fields, and they had to understand how an 

15 electric generator worked. 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection, not 

17 responsive. The question was what was the aim for the 

18 day, I believe, that's stated on Lesson Number 83. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's 

20 correct. The question was, what was the aim, sir, if 

21 you can recall? 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 lesson. 

25 

What was the aim that you recall? 

Well, there -- there was no aim to the 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Thank you very 
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1 much. 

2 A I already testified about this a number of 

3 times. 

4 Q I notice you say aim. What is the 

5 electromagnetic induction? Could you explain that? 

6 A That's the title of the lesson, and I call 

7 it the aim because it's it's the -- it's the -- the 

8 kids are used to used to having -- used to lessons 

9 having aims, but it isn't an aim in the sense that 

10 that Mr. Cohen means. 

11 What I understand Mr. Cohen to believe is 

12 the aim in the other developmental lesson plan. In 

13 the developmental lesson plan, the teacher comes to 

14 the class empty-handed, and he elicits the aim from 

15 the students and writes on the blackboard what the aim 

16 is. 

17 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm going to object 

18 to Mr. Roemer's categorizaton of a developmental 

19 lesson plan. 

20 Obviously he doesn't know what one 

24 is, so I respectfully ask that he not comment on it, 

22 since the teacher does not come in the class 

23 empty-handed. 

24 MR. FIELD: I object and ask that Mr. 

25 Mazzariello's last remark be stricken insofar as the 

t 
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1 statement that he made -- gratuitous statement that 

2 Mr. Roemer obviously doesn't know one. 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Putting that 

4 aside, the real issue's being responsive to the 

5 question. 

6 Dr. Roemer has the right to say in 

7 his form of lesson there is no aim, and he doesn't 

8 believe it's appropriate in the kind of lesson he 

9 taught. He has a right to say that. 

10 But with respect to characterization 

11 of what teachers do or don't do, I would agree with 

12 Mr. Mazzariello. 

13 Q All right. In your lessons, could you 

14 explain what -- why you do not have an aim? 

15 A I don't have an aim, because the. aim is 

16 something that you elicit from students as part of 

17 motivation, and you write on the blackboard to help 

18 the student follow the lesson. 

19 I have no -- I help the student follow the 

20 lesson by giving them a written lesson plan, which 

21 describes exactly what they have to learn and what 

22 they have to do. 

23 So an aim for me is superfluous. I more 

24 than cover the purpose of the aim. My lessons have 

25 instructional objectives, and they have -- I give 

, 
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1 examples, guidance to the kids. I tell them 

2 explicitly, and they know exactly what they're 

3 supposed to do. 

4 Q Looking at Exhibit 31, could you tell us 

5 where the objectives are in that lesson? 

6 A Well, the instructional objectives would be 

7 the the things you want the kids to know and the 

8 skills you want them to have. 

9 So in general I could say that they're 

10 they had to know what electromagnetic induction was 

11 and, in fact, I define it for them on the sheet. 

12 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, could 

13 you instruct the witness to please answer the 

14 question, what are the instructional objectives in 

15 this lesson plan? Where are they? 

16 MR. FIELD: He's 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: I think he's 

18 responding. I have to overrule. Finish up your 

19 answer. 

20 Q Do you remember where you were in your 

21 answer, sir? 

22 A Yes. I remember. It's -- the 

23 instructional objective was in this lesson was to 

24 learn about electromagnet~c induction; to learn about 

25 electromagnetic waves; to learn the difference between 
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1 electronic fields and magnetic fields and -- well, 

2 things like -- things like that, things pertaining to 

3 electromagnetic induction. 

4 Q Now, Mr. Cohen says -- Mr. Bruckner. I'm 

5 sorry. 

6 Mr. Bruckner says that you were not 

7 prepared for the class, and you did not have the book 

8 with you that the students had used for homework. Do 

9 you was that criticism true or not? 

10 A Yes, it's true. 

11 Q Could you explain what happened, if you 

12 recall? 

13 A Well, I forgot to bring the Brief Review of 

14 Physics, and I had to use one of the students' 

15 copies. 

16 Q Has that happened before, to your 

17 recollection? 

18 A I'm sure it has. 

19 Q Would you say that happens often or --

20 A No, it doesn't happen often. 

21 Q Dr. Mr. Bruckner said that you failed to 

22 motivate your students or to encourage them to active 

23 participation in the lesson. Do y·ou agree or disagree 

24 with that? 

25 A I disagree. 
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1 Q Could you tell us why? 

2 A Because I could -- I could see that the 

3 class was was interested and that they were working 

4 on the on the on answering the questions. 

5 Then the next day I collected the homework, 

6 and I could see that they -- they -- they did a good 

7 job. 

8 Q Were there questions asked'in class? 

9 A Yes, there were. 

10 Q Mr. Bruckner says that you failed to 

11 address students by their names, and that was the 

12 reason -- another reason why the lesson was 

13 unsatisfactory. Do you agree or disagree with that? 

14 A Well, I agree that I didn't address the 

15 kids by names. I disagree that it -- it 

16 contributes -- that that harms the lesson in any way. 

17 Q Is there a reason why you do not -- did not 

18 address students by name? 

19 A It wasn't I don't have an explicit 

20 reason. It was just having to do with my personality 

21 and the informal nature of my classes, my lessons. 

22 Q Could you explain? 

23 A Well, what the way I understood Mr. 

24 Bruckner's complaint was this: When you have a· 

25 developmental lesson, you have -- you're directing the 
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1 instruction of 30 students. 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't mean to 

3 cut you short. Do you call kids by name or don't call 

4 kids my name? Has nothing to do with whether it's 

5 developmental or not. 

6 You either call them by name or not. 

7 Just tell us why you didn't call them by name, if you 

8 had a reason. 

9 Let's go on. It has nothing to do 

10 with developmental lessons or any other lesson. You 

11 don't call them by name. 

12 THE WITNESS: I have no theory. 

13 Q Were you ever criticized before by failing 

14 to call kids by their names? 

15 A No, I never was. 

16 Q Mr. Bruckner says your lesson was 

17 teacher-dominated. Do you agree or disagree? 

18 A Well, it it was teacher-dominated if you 

19 expected a developmental lesson plan. As I said, it 

20 was mostly a -- four mini-lectures or five 

21 mini-lectures, and the kids had a visual organizer, 

22 namely the student lesson plan, where they had to 

23 answer the four questions. 

24 So there was a tremendous amount of 

25 information that we had to give the kids, arid when you 
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1 put kids in that position, that's putting them in a 

2 passive position, and you could characterize it as 

3 as teacher domination. 

4 I I don't agree with that criticism, 

5 because there was a high degree of student 

6 participation in the form of reading the student 

7 lesson plan and answering the questions on the student 

8 lesson plan. 

9 Q Mr. Bruckner says that you did not 

10 effectively use demonstration equipment. Do you agree 

11 or disagree? 

12 A I disagree. 

13 Q Tell us. 

14 A Well, the I had a hand generator and it 

15 worked fine. I had an ammeter, and it -- there was 

16 no -- there was no problem demonstrating the 

17 electromagnetic induction. 

18 Q Mr. Cohen -- Mr. Bruckner says that your 

19 questioning techniques were poor. 

20 A Well, this, I think, refers to the same 

21 thing that -- that I've been saying all along. It was 

22 poor if you felt -- if you were looking for a 

23 developmental lesson plan, but that wasn't the -- that / 

24 wasn't my method of teaching. 

25 All my good questions were on the student 

, 
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1 lesson plan. For example, Item Number 3 was a 

2 thought-provoking, very interesting question, very 

3 challenging to the smartest kids and --

4 But looking at me teach, you would never 

5 see me asking that great question because it's down on 

6 the piece of paper for the kids to read it for 

7 themselves. 

8 Q Why do you think it's more effective having 

9 it down on a piece of paper than asking it to the 

10 kids? 

11 A Absolutely. 

12 Q Could you tell us why? 

13 A I think teachers delude themselves when 

14 they when they ask the class a question. Many kids 

15 don't hear the question. 

16 They hear it. They don't understand it. 

17 They hear, but they don't understand it, or they hear 

18 it and they understand it, and they could struggle 

19 with the answer but they don't bother. They -- they 

20 wait until some other kids answer the questions. 

21 So then one one kid will raise his hand and 

22 answer the question, and the teacher will have the 

23 feeling that everyone in the class learned from his 

24 question. 

25 

t 

I think it's it's an illusion. 

When you have a good question, I put it in 
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1 writing, and then every kid can see the question, hear 

2 the question, even if he's late to class or absent, 

3 and you can write the answer to the question. 

4 Q Now, Mr. Bruckner says that your lesson 

5 contained no summary. Do you agree or disagree? 

6 A I agree. 

7 Q Could you tell us -- do you feel that a 

8 summary was necessary? 

9 A No. It's not necessary in my lessons. 

10 Q Could you tell us why? 

11 A Because the lesson plan itself says what 

12 the entire lesson was about, and the conclusion or the 

13 end of the lesson is the kids' ability to answer 

14 the answer the questions. 

15 Q Did the kids demonstrate whether they could 

16 answer the questions or not? 

17 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, 

18 please. I had enough of the leading questions. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: Be careful 

20 about that. He's correct. 

21 MR. FIELD: I don't think it was a 

22 leading question. 

23 

24 me it is. 

25 Q 

THE HEARING OFFICER: It is. 

Mr. Bruckner says --
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1 MR. FIELD: Off the record. 

2 (Discussion held off the record. 

3 Q Mr. Bruckner says you did not effectively 

4 address the students' questions. Do you agree or 

5 disagree with that? 

6 A Well, I I have no way of knowing. I 

7 don't recollect what the question was and what the 

8 what my answer was. It's --

9 Q Calling your attention to the observation 

10 report, and Item Number 7, second page --

11 A well -- what's the question? 

12 Q Does that refresh your recollection about 

13 the complaint that you did not effectively address 

14 your students' questions? Do you agree or disagree 

15 with these comments? 

16 A I certainly disagree with that sentence in 

17 Item 7. I think what -- can I look at the other page 

18 of the observation report? 

19 Q Yes. 

20 A Yes. I -- the way -- the way I understand 

21 Mr. Bruckner's criticism was I again, the lesson --

22 by asking are there any questions about Lesson 81 to 

23 83, and that's a perfe~tly -- perfectly good question ! 

24 to ask, because the kids ~- kids have in front of them 

25 the the student lesson plan. 
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1 They have 81 and 82 in front of them, so 

2 they can refer to it and see if they have any 

3 questions, and so it's a pefectly good questioning 

4 technique, and I responded honestly. 

5 And to the question -- he says in the 

6 beginning, one kid said yes, there were lots of 

7 questions. He really didn't explain it. 

8 The it may be true that in the previous 

9 lesson I didn't get to one -- one item or didn't do a 

10 good job of explaining something. 

11 Q So that there might be times that you don't 

12 effectively address the students' questions? That 

13 might occur? 

14 A Yes. Absolutely. 

15 Q In your opinion was there learning taking 

16 place in this class? 

17 A Yes, there was. 

18 Q And how do you reach that conclusion? 

19 A From the -- the interest the class showed 

20 in the lesson and from the results of the -- of the 

21 results from the homework, from the work they did in 

22 the class and at home, which I collected the next day. 

23 Q 

24 here 

25 

Turning our attention to an observation 

MR. FIELD: Off the record. 
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1 (Discussion held off the record.) 

2 Q Turning our attention to I-R --

3 MR. FIELD: Off the record a second. 

4 (Discussion held off the record.) 

5 Q Do you recall an evaluation I'm sorry. 

6 An evaluation of Mrs. Radigan? 

7 A Yes, I do. 

8 Q That was on or about May 19th, observation 

9 report could you tell us what that lesson was? 

10 A Well, that was part of a series of lessons 

11 on optics, and in this particular lesson they there 

12 was some introductory material about light beams 

13 hitting mirrors, and then I I showed the students 

14 how to -- how to measure angles with a protractor, and 

15 I dis.tributed protractors and -- and sample angles, 

16 and the kids -- the kids measured the angles with the 

17 protractors, and then they constructed angles of 45 

18 degrees, 60 degrees and 30 degrees, I think. 

19 Q Was that a physics class? 

20 A No. That was a foundation of science 

21 class. 

22 Q Is that similar to the class that 

23 similar to the class that you earlier testified about, 

24 where the scientific method was 

25 A Yes. 
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1 Q Now, are you familiar with Ms. Radigan's 

2 observation report? 

3 A Yes, I am. 

4 Q Ms. Radigan says there was no written 

5 lesson plan for the lesson. Is that true or not true? 

6 A No. It's not true. 

7 Q What was the written lesson plan, if any? 

8 A It was the -- I forget the name of I 

9 forget the name of the student lesson plan. It was 

10 the--

11 MR. FIELD: Can I have I-R? 

12 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

13 to Mr. Field.) 

14 Q I show you Exhibit I-Q. 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: I-R. 

16 Q Ask you if you could if this lesson plan 

17 is included in that material. 

18 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

19 to the witness.) 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

Yes. That's the lesson plan. 

And was this handed out to the students? 

Yes, it was. 

What was the lesson -- name of the lesson? 

What is the pat~ of light rays. 

Is this similar to the student lesson plan 
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1 that was handed out when Mr. Bruckner observed you on 

2 the electromagnetic field? 

3 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection, leading. 

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me say 

5 this. If the answer is the standard answer, I'm going 

6 to take it, that whenever there's a criticism of a 

7 lesson plan, if Dr. Roemer tells me it was the student 

8 plan, that's it, because we had that testimony about 

9 four or five times, and I'm not demeaning it. We just 

10 had it. Let's go on. 

11 MR. FIELD: Let me ask this one 

12 question. 

13 Q Dr. Roemer, all the lessons that you were 

14 observed and all the lessons you taught at Murrow, to 

15 the best of your recollection did you always hand out 

16 a student lesson plan? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Was that the -- was the student lesson plan 

19 also your lesson plan? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Yes, it was. 

Q Ms. Radigan says that you failed to provide 

meaningful activities or instruction. Do you agree or 

disagree? 

A 

Q 

, 

I disagree. 

Could you tell us why you disagree? 
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A Well, I 

Q Strike that. Could you tell us, what 

activities or instruction did you provide? 

A I -- I I showed them a reflection in a 

mirror, and I explained to them that light rays hit 

the mirror and bounce off. 

And I showed them how to measure angles 

with a protractor, and then I passed out the 

protractor with sample sample angles to measure, 

and they measured the -- they measured the angles with 

the protractors. 

Q Did you -- do you consider this important? 

A Yes. 

Q Could you tell us why you consider it 

important? 

A Well, it's -- it's an important science 

skill for middle for middle school children. These 

children come seventh grade to ninth grade. 

I know this from from experience 

teaching at -- at Erasmus. Every year I would have 

five or six lessons on -- on measuring things, 

measuring the size of index cards, measuring using 

measurements with the graduated cylinder and a balance 

scale. 

And kid~ needed to -- to be shown how to do 
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1 this, to line up the end of an -- of an index card 

2 with a zero on the ruler, and then to read -- to do 

3 the reading by -- by saying where the end of the index 

4 card fell. 

5 It it's an important skill. It says --

6 it's set forth in a document published by the Regents 

7 on -- it was called the Regents Bulletin on Core 

8 Process Skills, and it's included in the lessons I 

9 gave. 

10 The ones on the graduated cylinder and 

11 index cards and so on were included in a book called 

12 Basic -- Mastering Basic Science Skills, which was 

13 written for -- for high school students. 

14 I also gave three workshops on my method of 

15 teaching 9th grade physical science, and I always 

16 included these lessons, and no one ever suggested that 

17 the lesson was inappropriate for high school 

18 students. I might 

19 Q I'm sorry. 

20 A I might add that I I wrote an -- an 

21 application to make 9th grade physical science a 

22 Regents level course. 

23 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection to this. 

24 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sustained. 

25 It's not responsive. Go ahead, Mr. Field. 
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1 Q Now, Ms. Radigan says that you failed to 

2 manage and control your class, and she gives some 

3 examples, that one student had a sandwich and was 

4 drinking a bottle of juice. Another student appeared 

5 to be dozing. Another student played with a Gameboy; 

6 had conversation amongst themselves on subjects 

7 unrelated to the lesson, and you did not address these 

8 matters. Do you agree or disagree with this 

9 criticism? 

10 A I disagree. 

11 Q Tell us why. 

12 A Well, I addressed some matters and I didn't 

13 address others. 

14 Q Let's take it one by one. What about 

15 eating a sandwich and drinking --

16 A No. 

17 Q (Continuing) -- a bottle of juice? 

18 A I didn't I didn't address that. 

19 Q Is there a reason why you didn't address 

20 it? 

21 A Yes. It's not against the rules in my 

22 class or in the school for kids to be eating during 

23 class. Kids can't learn if they're hungry, and not 

24 letting kids eat is counterproductive. 

25 Q Now, what about a student dozing? 
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1 A No. I would never wake up a kid who was 

2 who was dozing. 

3 Q Could you tell us why? 

4 A If he if he needs the sleep, he's dozing 

5 because he's tired. He needs the sleep. There's no 

6 point in in trying to force a student to learn. 

7 You have to make the lesson interesting, 

8 and you have to give them activities that will engage 

9 them in the lesson. You can't, you know, use your 

10 disciplinary powers to get kids to learn. 

11 Q Are there times when you feel that students 

12 may not be learning? 

13 A Well, sure. 

14 Q Okay. 

15 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, if 

16 he's continuing to use that document, I request it 

17 again. I want the document. 

18 MR. FIELD: I'm not using it. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: He has a right 

20 to use a document. 

21 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I want it. This is 

22 what the witness produced in anticipation of 

23 litigation. The witness referred to it. Mr. Field's 

24 referring to it, and why is it I can't have it? 

25 MR. FIELD: Because these are not 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: They're not 

2 your notes. Okay. At this point Mr. Field is not 

3 obligated to turn it over. 

4 If on cross-examination you ask him 

5 whether he made certain notes with respect to his 

6 preparation for his testimony and the like, I may have 

7 a different ruling. 

8 At this point he's not using that 

9 document. Mr. Field has a right to use anything he 

10 wants with respect to questions. Continue. 

11 MR. MAZZARIELLO: He is using that 

12 document. 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: At this point 

14 I'm sorry. My 

15 MR. MAZZARIELLO: The attorney is 

16 using the document that his client prepared in 

17 anticipation of these questions, so he's just feeding 

18 him those to form his own statement. 

19 My first question on 

20 cross-examination is going to be that, and I want it, 

21 and since he's using it on direct, it would be most 

22 helpful if I any have it now so I circle and make 

23 notes as to what he's referring to. 

24 

25 

, 

MR. FIELD: I just 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Stop. 
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1 MR. FIELD: I'll assert 

2 attorney-client privilege. 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: No, you're 

4 not. Come on. You never saw it. You acknowledged 

5 you never saw it. 

6 MR. FIELD: That's right, but he's 

7 given it to me and he has not shown it to any other 

8 person. 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

10 record. 

11 (Discussion held off the record.) 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: I may well turn 

13 it over to Mr. Mazzariello on cross-examination. I'm 

14 not prepared to do it now, because in my view you have 

15 a right to ask questions from any documents you wish, 

16 and so long as the witness is not relying on the 

17 documents in his answers, it's not, for want of a 

18 better term, discoverable, which is a wrong term at 

19 this moment, but I may turn it over to him on cross. 

20 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Let the record 

21 reflect, Mr. Edelman, very clearly that Mr. Field is 

22 using that document to question his client. 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: You are 

24 correct. 

25 MR. MAZZARIELLO: That's all I want. 
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1 MR. FIELD: That I object to. I'm 

2 not using this document. I think the record ought to 

3 reflect what's happening. 

4 I am not using that document to 

5 question my client. I'm using that document I'm 

6 looking at it, but the questions are not coming from 

7 this document. 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Whether the 

9 document goes in Mr. Mazzariello's hands will not 

10 depend on whether you're looking at it, but will 

11 depend on what Dr. Roemer does with respect to the 

12 document and how it was created and the like. It 

13 won't matter with respect to what you're using it for 

14 or not using it for. Go ahead. 

15 Q Do you have any recollection of a student 

16 playing with a Gameboy? 

17 A No, I don't. 

18 Q Also you were criticized because students 

19 were in conversation amongst themselves on subjects 

20 unrelated to the lesson. Do you know whether that 

21 occurred? 

22 A Well, it it didn't occur while I was 

23 explaining things to the kids. If there was any talk 

24 while I was explaining how to do the angles or about 

25 reflection, I would have stopped, and I would have 

, 
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1 stopped talking until they stopped -- they stopped 

2 talking. 

3 The -- but if certainly -- it certainly may 

4 have happened after the kids were assigned the task. 

5 After they were -- were working on measuring the 

6 angles, they may very well have been talking amongst 

7 themselves about things that had nothing to do with 

8 the lesson. 

9 Q Do you feel that you had control of the 

10 class? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q At all times? 

13 A At all times. 

14 Q All right. Ms. Radigan says that you did 

15 not use classroom time effectively, since most of the 

16 students completed their work and still had most of 

17 the period at his or her disposal. 

18 A My recollection is that the -- that 

19 everyone finished the task, but that it took -- it 

20 took the whole period. 

21 Q By the way, have students eaten in your 

22 class before? 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

Yes, they have. 

Have you ever been reprimanded for that? 

No. 
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1 Q Either before or after that day? 

2 A That's right. 

3 Q Had you ever been reprimanded for 

4 students -- because a student fell asleep in your 

5 class? 

6 A No. 

7 Q Either before or after that day? 

8 A No. 

9 Q Dr. -- Mr. Bruckner or Mr. Cohen never 

10 reprimanded you for that? 

11 A No. 

12 Q Is it your recollection that the full class 

13 period was used? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q From looking at the observation report, 

16 would you be able to tell whether the full class 

17 period was used? 

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. He said 

19 it was used. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's true. 

21 Let's go on. 

22 Q Do you recall how long that class was? 

23 A It was a 50 c minute class, I think. 

24 Q And if it was -- would it start at nine 

25 o'clock? 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Stop. Let's go 

2 on. It's in the report. 

3 MR. FIELD: It doesn't say when it 

4 started. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: He doesn't have 

6 to read from the report. Let's go on. 

7 Q You were criticized because the lesson did 

8 not follow the curriculum. Do you agree or disagree? 

9 A I disagree. 

10 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

11 A The -- I'm very familiar with the middle 

12 science curriculum of New York State. There's eight 

13 blocks, Block A, B, C and so on, and the last three 

14 blocks, G, H and I, are taught in the -- in the 9th 

15 grade. 

16 Q What is G, H and I? 

17 A Well, G is -- well, H is chemistry. G is 

18 mechanics, and I is is energy conservation. 

19 Q Is measurement an important 

20 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection, 

21 leading. We never got an answer to the last question, 

22 and I'm going to object to the leading on every 

23 question, Mr. Edelman. 

24 THE HEARING OFFICER: When you say, 

25 "measurement," unless you have some magical turn of 

, 
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1 phrase that I'm not aware of, Mr. Field, it has to be 

2 a leading question. Got to be a leading question. 

3 Q What was the topic of your class that day? 

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

5 A Well, the instructional objective was to 

6 learn how to measure angles using a protractor. 

7 Q Could you tell us why you taught that that 

8 day? 

9 A It's important for students to -- to have 

10 that skill. It's part of the curriculum for middle 

11 school students. 

12 Q Do you feel that the students acquired that 

13 skill that day? 

14 A Yes, they did. 

15 Q Could you tell us what you base that on? 

16 A Well, I -- I collected the work and graded 

17 it, and I could see that they did a good job in 

18 measuring the angles. 

19 MR. FIELD: Can we have this marked 

20 as Exhibit 32? 

21 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 32, 

22 homeworks, was marked for identification, as of this 

23 date. ) 

24 MR. MAZZARIELLO: No objection if 

25 it's going to be admitted. 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Respondent's 

2 32. These are handouts for that lesson. Is that 

3 correct? 

4 MR. FIELD: No, it is not. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: These are the 

6 homeworks. I apologize. I should be smarter than 

7 that. Respondent's 32 in evidence. Have the reporter 

8 mark it, please. 

9 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 32, 

10 homeworks, was marked in evidence, as of this date.) 

11 Q Dr. Roemer, I show you what's been marked 

12 as Respondent's Exhibit 32 

13 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

14 to the witness.) 

15 Q (Continuing) in evidence. Can you 

16 identify that, sir? 

17 A Yes. These are -- are xeroxes of the -- of 

18 the of the activities in that lesson. The angles 

19 were angles that I I drew and ran off on a Rexo and 

20 passed out, and then the the numbers are the angles 

21 that the students measured. 

22 Q I don't know if I asked that question or 

23 not. Ms. Radigan said that your lesson did not follow 

24 the curriculum. 

25 THE HEARING OFFICER: You did, sir. 
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Go on. 

Q Do you have any further comments to make 

about that lesson? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. 

Open-ended question. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'll allow it. 

Overruled. About that les~on. 

MR. FIELD: Yes. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Just make sure 

it's about the lesson, please. 

A I would like to take a look at the --

Q At the lesson plan? 

A At the 

Q Not the lesson plan? 

A The observation. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'll permit it. 

Q Here it is. 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

A No. 

Q No further comments? Turning our attention 

to Specification I-S, which is an observation report 

of Mr. Cohen of a class given on June 9th, 1995, do 

you recall that? 

A Yes, I do. 
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1 Q What was the lesson that you were teaching 

2 that day? 

3 A It was on the mass energy defect. 

4 Q Could you explain what you mean by that? 

5 A Well, it's a topic in -- it's a topic in 

6 atomic physics, which has to do with the fact that 

7 mass is not conserved; that you can have a process 

8 where the mass is different before the process than it 

9 is after the process, unlike energy which is 

10 conserved. 

11 MR. FIELD: Can I see here I-S? I-S. 

12 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

13 to Mr. Field.) 

14 Q Could you identify 1-8, sir, Pages 4, 5 and 

15 6? 

16 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

17 to the witness.) 

18 A Well, Page 4 is the student lesson plan 

19 that I handed out. Page 5 and Page 6 are additional 

20 notes that I made to my -- for my own use. 

21 So Page 5 and 6 will be part of my -- my 

22 lesson plan. In this particular case my lesson plan 

23 included some additional notes that the student lesson 

24 plan did not. 

25 Q Those are your handwritten notes? 
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1 A Yes. 

2 Q Was there a pre-observation conference? 

3 A Yes, there was. 

4 Q Could you tell us what was discussed at 

5 that pre-observation conference? 

6 A Well, we discussed basically how I would 

7 present the -- present the material. 

8 Q Was that included in the original 

9 observation? 

10 A No, no. 

11 Q Could you tell us what happened when it was 

12 not included? 

13 A Well, the the first observation report 

14 had one sentence saying there was a pre-observation 

15 conference, but no mention was made of what happened, 

16 so I grieved the observation report, and Mr. Bruckner 

17 told Mr. Cohen to rewrite the report, including a 

18 statement about what happened in the -- in the 

19 pre-observation conference. 

20 MR. FIELD: Could I see -- I want to 

21 get once again I-S. 

22 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

23 to Mr. Field.) 

24 Q I show you I-S. Was that the observation 

25 report as finally written? 
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1 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

2 to the witness.) 

3 A No, it is not. 

4 Q Mr. Cohen says that the lesson was 

5 teacher-dominated. Do you agree or disagree, sir? 

6 A I disagree. 

7 Q Could you tell us why? 

8 A Well, because teacher domination is a 

9 negative -- has negative connotations. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: Again, I don't 

11 mean to be disrespectful, but it's the same response 

12 we had with respect to other claims of teacher 

13 domination. Is that correct? 

14 MR. FIELD: I think it's something 

15 further. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: I'll allow you 

17 to explore it if it's anything further. 

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can I see the notes 

19 you're reading from now? 

20 MR. FIELD: No. You're not -- you 

21 can--

22 MR. MAZZARIELLO: You're referring to 

23 his answer. Mr. Edelman, I'm going to ask that that 

24 document be given to me. 

25 THE HEARING OFFICER: I agreed we'd 
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1 address that at the beginning of cross. I said that 

2 before. 

3 MR. FIELD: They're not my --

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: They're not 

5 your notes, Mr. Field. 

6 Q In this class, on this topic that you were 

7 teaching, is this -- could you explain the method of 

8 teaching this topic, the concepts that you were trying 

9 to teach in this topic? 

10 A Well, the -- the method I had of -- of 

11 teaching was to explain clearly and flat out that 

12 that mass was not conserved. 

13 I described the -- I described the 

14 measurements which showed the mass wasn't conserved, 

15 and then there was a diad. 

16 I remember now. I I showed them the 

17 experiment with positrons and neutrons which showed 

18 that mass is not conserved, and then they worked in 

19 diads to answer the question is mass conserved. 

20 And then when they I forget whether 

21 they -- what the response was, whether they got it or 

22 didn't get it. 

23 But in any case I made it clear that mass 

24 was not conserved, and I showed them how to do the 

25 do the problems and the questions in the in the 
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student lesson plan. It was a lesson, I think, very 

similar 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, I'm 

going to object to this run-on witness here. The 

question is what method was used to teach this class. 

MR. FIELD: That's exactly what he's 

-doing. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: So far I think 

he's already answered. Any other methods you used? 

MR. FIELD: Can you repeat what he 

just said? Read back what he just testified to. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't think 

that's necessary. Anything else that you did in that 

class? I'll certainly permit that. 

THE WITNESS: No. The diad, and then 

the the diad and then the explanation of the -- of 

the of the concepts the kids had to learn. 

Q Mr. Cohen says your questioning technique 

was poor. Do you agree or disagree to that, sir? 

A I disagree. 

Q Could you tell us why? 

A Because I understood Mr. Cohen to be 

advocating the developmental approach. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Sorry for 

interrupting. We've been through that. 

, 
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all right. 

What I'm going to do, just so you 

know, so everybody knows, I'm going to take the first 

two or three or four answers, for want of a better 

term, that were complete answers with respect to 

technique, lesson plans and the like, and I'm going to 

superimpose them on these later charges. Let's go on. 

Q Mr. Cohen says that your lesson has no 

final summary. Do you agree or disagree? 

A I disagree. 

Q Could you tell us why? 

A Well, the final summary or -- better word 

would be the conclusion, would be whether or not the 

kids could answer the questions on the student lesson 

plan. 

Q Did they answer the questions on the 

student lesson plan? 

A Yes, they did. 

Q Was that part of homework, or was that done 

in class? 

A Well, it was both I would -- I would 

guess. 

Q When you say, "guess," do you have --

A No. This in this lesson there was no 

separate independent study. Hopefully they were 
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1 learning how to do the four or five problems as I 

2 progressed in the lesson. 

3 Q Mr. Cohen said that you had no written 

4 lesson which outlined the potential elements of a 

5 lesson. You merely had a page of notes that lacked a 

6 final summary, a home assignment and an aim. 

7 Do you agree or disagree that you didn't 

8 have a lesson plan? 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: We understand 

10 that he did indicate he had two additional sheets or 

11 papers where he wrote some notes. 

12 Q Mr. Cohen said you made little effort to 

13 involve your students in the lesson. Do you agree or 

14 disagree? 

15 A I disagree. 

16 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

17 A The kids were involved with the diads that 

18 I gave or the one diad I gave for the question, and in 

19 the reading the student lesson plan and learning how 

20 to answer the questions on the student lesson plan. 

21 Q Mr. Cohen said that with the exception of 

22 three students, you failed to refer to any student by 

23 his or her name during the lesson. Do you have any 

24 recollection of that? 

25 A No. 
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Q Mr. Cohen said you failed to assign 

homework. Do you agree or disagree? 

A Well, that isn't true. The homework 

assignment was on the student lesson plan. It was an 

assignment from the Brief Review of Physics. 

Q Showing you the exhibit -I guess this is 

I-S- on Page 4, are you referring to the bottom of the 

page? 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

A Yes. That's right. 

Q Do you have any further comments to make 

with respect to that lesson? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Could you, please? 

A There's -- there's a paragraph there where 

Mr. Cohen says -- well, says that I shouldn't ask the 

kids are there any questions about Lesson 90, 91 and 

92. 

Then he went on to describe a better way of 

asking kids about a previous lesson. The better way 

would be to pose a problem that -- to pose to them a 

question that would require them to draw from the 

what they learned in the previous lesson, and I 

disagree. 
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1 The whole point of giving the kids the 

2 student lesson plan is that they can simply refer to 

3 the previous student lesson plan and recall the lesson 

4 and ask any questions they may have about it. 

5 What Mr. Cohen was talking about is the 

6 case where a teacher doesn't have -- doesn't give the 

7 student a written lesson plan. 

8 In this case, to ask kids if there are any 

9 questions from yesterday's lesson is not a good 

10 question. He's right. 

11 A better question is his technique, but 

12 as -- this was another example of his -- his 

13 misunderstanding my techniques and criticizing my 

14 techniques because. they didn't match with the 

15 techniques he expected. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other 

17 questions about that lesson, sir? 

18 MR. FIELD: Yes. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead. 

20 Q You feel that the students learned the 

21 lesson that day? 

22 A Yes. Yes, I do. 

23 Q What do you base that on? 

24 A The -- the work that they turned in the 

25 next day, and their participation in the class. 

t 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Roemer 
456 

1 MR. FIELD: Can we take a break? 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Are you on 

3 Specificiation II? 

4 MR. FIELD: Yes. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's take a 

6 breaK. It's my anticipation we intend to complete Dr. 

7 Roemer's testimony today. 

8 (Whereupon, at 4:01 p.m., a recess 

9 was taken.) 

10 (Whereupon, at 4:13 p.m., the 

11 examination of this witness was resumed.) 

12 CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

13 Q Dr. Roemer, at the end of the 1994-'95 

14 school year -- strike it. 

15 At the beginning of the '95-'96 school 

16 year, did you receive a letter from Dr. from Mr. 

17 Bruckner with respect to what he expected from you for 

18 the next year? 

19 A Yes, I did. 

20 Q Okay. Did you have discussion -- I show 

21 you what -- I don't know what the number is that was 

22 marked. I guess it would be II-A. 

23 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

24 to the witness.) 

25 Q 

• 

I ask you, is this a copy of the letter 
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that you received? 

A Yes, it is. 

Q What, if any, comment do you have with 

respect to that letter? 

A Well, the -- Item -- Item Number 1 Item 

Number 1 on the letter, I don't know what he's 

referring to. 

There was an exchange of memoranda between 

me and Mr. Cohen about the Regents syllabus, and my 

understanding was that I was following the Regents 

syllabus. I didn't know what he was referring to when 

he said that I was not. Item Number 2 

Q Well, strike -- was it your understanding 

that your lesson 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Stop. Let him 

answer, not you. Just wait. 

Q In Item Number 1, the less -- did your 

lessons following the syllabus? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object. It's a 

leading question. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'll take it. 

A Yes, they did. 

Q Item Number 2, sir. 

A Well, I had I have a written lesson for 

every lesson. 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: We've been 

through this in great detail. 

Q Item Number 3, sir. 

A What makes Item Number 3 interesting is 

the is the bottom paragraph, where he describes how 

he's going to measure student participation. 

We both agree that the best lessons are the 

ones with the most student participation, but in the 

bottom paragraph he said in the discussion we 

expressed different views concerning the means of 

measuring student participation in the development of 

lessons. I suggest that participation could be --

THE HEARING OFFICER: Don't read. 

I'm allowing you to give me your response. Don't read 

what you wrote. Everybody can read that. Please. 

A Well, he was going by the numbers who 

answered questions, who went to the chalkboard. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Dr. Roemer, 

listen. I understand what Mr. Bruckner said. Give me 

your response. 

I'm allowing you to give me your 

response to why you think, to put it bluntly, Mr. 

Bruckner was all wet, but give your response. Don't 

tell me what he was telling you, because that we can 

all read. Please. 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Roemer 
459 

1 A I pride myself on giving the kids -- giving 

2 the students some type of student participation by 

3 reading, by writing, by having cooperative learning 

4 lessons, by doing independent study, by doing problem 

5 solving and paper and pencil activities. 

6 I don't believe in those kinds of 

7 participation, especially the business of 

8 participating in demonstrations. What he means by 

9 that is if you're doing a demonstration --

10 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection as to 

11 what he means. 

12 A (Continuing) I understood that to mean 

13 that if you're doing a demonstration, and you need 

14 that, you should get one of the kids to help you to do 

15 the demonstration. 

16 Well, that's only one kid out of the whole 

17 class that's being involved in a demonstration, and I 

18 don't see it as a big -- as a big thing. 

19 And I've already testified about the 

20 the -- the educational importance of asking the whole 

21 class oral questions. 

22 So -- so I I agree with the -- with what 

23 he says, wants more class participation, but I don't 

24 agree with his ideas of how to get it. 

25 Q When you received this letter, do you have 
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an understanding of what type of lesson Dr. -- Mr. 

Bruckner wanted you to teach? 

A Right. 

Q What type of lesson? 

A He wanted a developmental lesson. 

Q Did you -- was it your understanding that 

only if you taught a developmental lesson was it going 

to be satisfactory? 

A That's correct. 

Q At that time, were you -- were you trying 

through any means whatsoever to rectify the 

differences that you were having with Mr. with Mr. 

Cohen and Mr. Bruckner? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q What were you trying to do? 

A There -- there was a conciliation agreement 

that that were -- we were supposed to be carrying 

out. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'm not going 

to preclude the answer, but we had considerable 

testimony about conciliation. 

MR. FIELD: I don't think you had 

later testimony that occurred afterwards. If I may 

continue. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'm not sure, 
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1 but let me listen. I think we had it before. I'll 

2 let you know. 

3 Q I believe we had testimony, Dr. Roemer, up 

4 through the time that I believe you met with Mr. 

5 Mathis. Right. 

6 I believe you met with Mr. Mathis in March 

7 of 1995. 

8 A That's correct. 

9 Q Okay. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead. 

11 MR. FIELD: I don't recall the 

12 transcript. I don't know what the transcript said. 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead. 

14 Q Was there an agreement reached after 

15 meeting with Mr. Mathis? 

16 A No, there wasn't. 

17 Q Okay. Was -- did the conciliation end 

18 after you met with Mr. Mathis? 

19 A No, it did not. 

20 Q What did you -- was it your understanding 

21 the conciliation was continuing? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q What steps were you -- were being taken on 

24 your behalf towards having conciliation continue? 

25 A Well, on May 3rd Bill Foster, the chapter 

, 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689 - 0111 



Direct-Roemer 
462 

1 chairperson at Edward R. Murrow, wrote a letter to 

2 Joseph LoSchiavo. 

3 Q Who is he? 

4 A He's the director of staff-related services 

5 for the board of ed, and he was the one who was in 

6 charge of conciliation. 

7 He was the one who sent the letter to --

8 the letter which established the agreement to 

9 conciliate our differences. 

10 Q And what -- do you know what that letter 

11 was that Bill Foster sent to Mr. LoSchiavo? 

12 A Yes. The letter said that he assumed that 

13 the conciliation process was still open, because 

14 according to the contract, the conciliation process 

15 would end when the conciliator terminated the 

16 conciliation process, and he understood that Mrs. 

17 Coppin's letter of -- that Mrs. Coppin wrote a letter 

18 on February 3rd, which interfered with the 

19 conciliation process. 

20 Q How did Ms. Coppin's letter interfere with 

21 the conciliation process? 

22 A In that letter she dictated to me that I 

23 had to follow the -- the suggestions and the advice of 

24 Mr. Bruckner and Mr. Cohen. 

25 Q And what role was Mrs. Coppin playing when 

• 
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1 she was in the conciliation process; do you know? If 

2 you know. 

3 A Yes. What she ought to -- the role she 

4 ought to have been playing was to be a conciliator, to 

5 try to bring Mr. -- Mr. Bruckner and me together. 

6 Now, we were supposed to be generating a 

7 document which described the differences in our 

8 methodologies and then how that difference was 

9 resolved. 

10 Q You said Bill Foster wrote a letter in May? 

11 A On May 3rd. 

12 Q Let me see if I can find that. 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: I know it's 

14 been offered. I don't know if it's been accepted. 

15 MR. FIELD: Let me see whether I have 

16 it. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

18 record. 

19 (Discussion held off the record.) 

20 Q What, if anything, happened after the 

21 letter of May 3rd that Bill Foster wrote? 

22 A Well, then I was given -- then I was 

23 observed by Ms. Radigan, and Mrs. Coppin signed 

24 signed the observation report giving me a ·u· rating 

25 for the end of the year. 

, 
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1 Q Do you know whether Mr. LOSchiavo replied 

2 to Mr. Foster? 

3 A No, I don't. 

4 Q Were you told whether conciliation was 

5 over? 

6 A No. 

7 Q So was it your feeling that conciliation 

8 was still continuing? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Now, when you got the -- how did you view 

11 Mr. Bruckner's letter of September 14th then? 

12 A That he was telling me that if I didn't 

13 give a developmental type lesson he would give me an 

14 unsatisfactory rating. 

15 Q And 

16 MR. FIELD: Give me a minute, 

17 please. I'd like to have this marked. 

18 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 33, 

19 letter dated 5/3/95, was marked for identification, as 

20 of this date.) 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Show Mr. 

22 Mazzariello what you're offering. 

23 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Did I get it on 

24 discovery? 

25 (Whereupon, the document was handed 
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1 to Mr. Mazzariello.) 

2 MR. MAZZARIELLO: No. Why is it I 

3 didn't get this on discovery? 

4 MR. FIELD: I don't know whether you 

5 got it or didn't get it. 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm telling you I 

7 didn't get it. 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: You were 

9 supposed to get it. 

10 MR. FIELD: I don't know whether we 

11 gave it to him or not. I'm saying we gave him a whole 

12 mess of materials. It was -- I think it was 

13 included. I may be wrong. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me see the 

15 letter. 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Could I read it 

17 first, Mr. Edelman? 

18 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sure. 

19 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

20 to the Hearing Officer.) 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: You're offering 

22 this? 

23 MR. FIELD: Yes. I haven't 

24 identified it yet. 

25 

t 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead. 
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1 Q I show you Respondent's Exhibit 33 and ask 

2 you if you can identify this, sir. 

3 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

4 to the witness.) 

5 A Yes. This was the letter I was talking 

6 about. 

7 Q Letter talking about what? 

8 A This was the letter that Bill Foster sent 

9 on May 3rd to Joseph LoSchiavo. 

10 MR. FIELD: I would like to introduce 

11 this into evidence, please. 

12 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Over my objection. 

13 One, I never saw the document before, and under the 

14 rules of discovery, let's have a little fair trial 

15 practice here. And this witness is neither the author 

16 nor the receiver of such letter. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: With respect to 

18 the latter, so I understand, that would require the 

19 presence of either Mr. Foster or Mr. LoSchiavo. 

20 MR. MAZZARIELLO: It's not my 

21 problem. 

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: All right. I 

23 will not take it at this time. We have to have either 

24 the sender or the receiver. 

25 MR. FIELD: I'll have Mr. Foster come 
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1 in here here. Okay. 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: It's marked for 

3 ID. 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: It would have been 

5 nice if I would have got a copy. 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't want to 

7 appear dismissive about that element. Discovery is 

8 two ways, gentlemen. 

9 Q How did you receive a copy of this letter; 

10 do you know? 

11 A I don't recall. 

12 Q As I said, do you know whether a response 

13 was received from Mr. LoSchiavo? 

14 A No. I don't know. 

15 Q Was a response received from Mr. Mathis as 

16 to whether conciliation was continuing, if you know? 

17 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object. 

18 MR. FIELD: Strike that. Strike 

19 that. 

20 Q Is it now -- is it your -- was it your 

21 understanding, however, that the conciliation was 

22 ongoing? 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 were 

That's correct. 

Okay. Was it your understanding that you 

had a right to teach your method by your 
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1 methodology? 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Stop. Come 

3 on. That's far beyond the pale. 

4 Q What method did you use to teach in the 

5 fall of in the fall of 1995? 

6 A I used the method I described, where I 

7 wrote up a student lesson plan every day and gave it 

8 to the students ahead of time. 

9 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, does 

10 that method have a name? For point of clarification, 

11 he keeps referring to this method. I would like to 

12 know--

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Do you have a 

14 name? That's fair. 

15 THE WITNESS: No. I have no 

16 method --

17 Q But it's a method you described? 

18 A Right. 

19 Q Did you think you had a right to teach by 

20 that method? 

21 A Yes, I did. 

22 Q Would you tell us what you base that right 

23 on? 

24 A It was based on the agreement to 

25 conciliate; our disagreement about how to -- our 
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1 disagreement about how to teach physics. 

2 Q And the disagreement had not been resolved? 

3 A That's right. 

4 Q Now, turning our attention to October 6th, 

5 observation report of October 6th by Mr. Cohen, are 

6 you familiar with that lesson? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q Lesson on September 21st. What was that a 

9 lesson of; do you recall? 

10 A It was a lesson involving free fall, and 

11 there was an activity where students had to -- had to 

12 measure the the this was hands-on activities. 

13 I passed out a tape, and students had to db 

14 a calculation measuring the acceleration due to 

15 gravity, or actually it was something slightly 

16 different. It was they had to do a they had to do 

17 a calculation to determine the time time on a 

18 clock. 

19 Q Do you recall what lesson that is? 

20 A No, I don't. 

21 Q I show you what's 

22 MR. FIELD: Can I have II-B, please? 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: I have it. 

24 There are a whole bunch of documents here. 

25 

t 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Roemer 
470 

1 to Mr. Field.) 

2 Q I show you what's been marked as II-B, and 

3 calling your attention to the document beginning with 

4 Lesson 8, and a letter dated October 6th, which I 

5 believe is what you signed, could you identify the 

6 documents? 

7 (Whereupon, the documents were handed 

8 to the witness.) 

9 A Well, the first three pages are Mr. Cohen's 

10 observation report. Then the next page is the student 

11 lesson plan, and the next three pages are my response 

12 to the observation report. 

13 Q Okay. Now, looking at your response, sir, 

14 we'll go through this fast. 

15 Does your response respond to the criticism 

16 that the lesson was teacher-dominated? 

17 A Yes, it does. 

18 Q Does your response is there anything 

19 that you would change in your response that's in 

20 there? 

21 A No. 

22 Q Does your response refer to the criticism 

23 that you failed to use demonstration material 

24 effectively? 

25 A No, no. I don't think so. 
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1 Q The criticism was made that you failed to 

2 use demonstration material effectively in that 

3 lesson. Do you agree or disagree with that? 

4 A I disagree. 

5 Q Could you tell us why you disagree? 

6 A Yes. I brought in a timing device that's 

7 used to demonstrate acceleration for the students, and 

8 it didn't work, but I I anticipated this and 

9 brought in tapes that the timing device would have 

10 generated, and it really didn't make any difference 

11 for the student activities whether the timing device 

12 worked or not. 

13 And Mr. Cohen -- I it was my belief Mr. 

14 Cohen was referring to the to the fact that the 

15 timing device didn't work. 

16 Q Okay. Does your response refer to the 

17 respond to the criticism that you failed to 

18 effectively monitor the students' understanding of the 

19 lesson? 

20 A No. I don't think so. 

21 Q All right. Can you do you feel that 

22 that criticism was fair? 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

, 

No. 

Could you tell us why? 

Well, I the kids had an activity to do, 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 

/ 



Direct-Roemer 
472 

1 and I went around and tried to show them how to do 

2 the -- do the calculation, do the activity. It 

3 involved making measurements of dots on the tape and 

4 then doing a calculation. 

5 Q Did you -- did the students make the 

6 correct calculations? 

7 A I don't recall. 

8 Q Does your response respond to the criticism 

9 that the aim of the lesson was only stated on the 

10 student work sheet? 

11 A Yes, it does. 

12 Q Do you have anything to add to that? 

13 A No. 

14 Q Does your response respond to the fact that 

15 the aim of the lesson, what is free fall, was never 

16 addressed during the lesson? 

17 A Well, not in the response I wrote, but it's 

18 the same -- the same response that I've used for the 

19 other lessons. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: I understand. 

21 Q Does your response respond to the fact that 

22 you failed to involve and/or motivate the teachers --

23 motivate the students? 

24 A It's the same response as to the other 

25 lessons. 
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1 Q Okay. And the response didn't have to be 

2 written 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: We've been 

4 through that. 

5 MR. FIELD: Okay. 

6 Q Now, was there a post observation 

7 conference held after that? 

8 A No, there wasn't. 

9 Q Could you -- was there a question about the 

10 holding of a post observation conference? 

11 A Yes. Yes, there was. 

12 Q Could you tell us what happened, what 

13 occurred and -- what occurred? 

14 A Well, I forget the details of the 

15 conversations back and forth, but basically --

16 Q Basic -- best of your recollection, sir. 

17 A Basically I -- I refused to go to the post 

18 observation conference unless a third party was 

19 present. 

Q Could you tell us why? 

A Well, I was very frustrated by -- by what 

they were doing. I -- I felt they were -- were trying 

to force me to teach the developmental lesson. 

And even though we were supposed to be 

25 conciliating, and I realized that I had to make some 
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1 modifications, you know, I had to make some changes, 

2 but then they had to make some changes too. We had to 

3 try to come to an agreement, but they weren't willing 

4 to make any any concessions. 

5 They were simply dictating to me that I had 

6 to teach their method of teaching, what we're calling 

7 the developmental lesson plan. 

8 So I found it very frustrating, and I felt 

9 going to a post observation conference with just the 

10 two of us -I was perfectly willing if a third person 

11 was there together- would be confrontational and it 

12 would be pointless, and I didn't go. 

13 Q Did you go to any post observation 

14 conferences with a third person? 

15 A Yes. I did, a post observation with Mr. 

16 Bruckner, with Mr. Foster present. 

17 Q Could you tell us what happened at that 

18 conference? 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: The post 

20 observation conference of this lesson? 

21 THE WITNESS: No. 

22 MR. FIELD: Of another lesson. 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Why don't we 

24 hald it for then. 

25 MR. FIELD: Okay. 

t 
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1 Q On II-C you're charged that on or about --

2 strike that. 

3 On II-B you're charged with the fact that 

4 at the conclusion of the observation Assistant 

5 Principal Cohen had asked you to meet with him for a 

6 post observation conference. This is the observation 

7 of September 21st. 

8 You had informed Assistant Principal Cohen 

9 you would do so only if another physics teacher would 

10 accompany him. 

11 Assistant Principal Cohen advised 

12 Respondent that it would be inappropriate for a third 

13 party to be participating, because that party did not 

14 observe the lesson. 

15 Assistant Principal Cohen then directed 

16 Respondent to meet with him on September 25 at a set 

17 time. 

18 On or about September 25 you refused to 

19 meet with Assistant principal Cohen. Is that true or 

20 not true? 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A Some of it is true and some of it isn't. 

Q What 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Haven't we just 

heard it? He said he refused to meet unless he had a 

third party present. Is that correct? 
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1 THE WITNESS: That's correct. But 

2 there's something else that was said. 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead. 

4 THE WITNESS: I said that I was 

5 asking for another physics teacher. In fact, I asked 

6 for two experienced assistant principals in physical 

7 science, Dave Kiefer and Paul Cohen, who was known to 

8 both me and Mr. Cohen. 

9 Q What was your reason for wanting to have 

10 them present? Was it what you stated before? 

11 A Well, as a way of breaking the log jam. If 

12 Mr. Kiefer or Mr. Cohen were there to hear my -- hear 

13 what I was trying to do, I feel they would have been 

14 supportive and it things might have -- things might 

15 have been resolved. 

16 Q Were you prepared to accept a 

17 third-party -- independent third-party 

18 recommendations? 

19 A Absolutely. 

20 Q Even if they were against you? 

21 A Well, sure. That's the nature of 

22 conciliation. I give in. You don't -- you don't get 

23 your way 100 percent. 

24 Q Now, on II-C it's charged that on or about 

25 September 27th, 1995 Principal Saul Bruckner advised 
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you that you were required to meet with Assistant 

Principal Cohen for a post observation conference. 

It goes on to state that you refused 

that the directive on the grounds that you had 

filed a grievance on prior observations charging 

harassment, but Principal Saul Bruckner advised you 

that if you did not meet with Mr. Cohen within three 

days, your refusal would be considered an act of 

insubordination. 

Despite this warning, you refused to meet 

with Assistant Principal Cohen for the post 

observation conference. 

On or about October 6th, 1995 you you 

were given written notice of unsatisfactory 

performance on September 21, and directed to seek 

remedial assistance. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

Q Do you have any comment to make with 

respect to that charge? 

A No. 

Q Had you filed a grievance charging 

harassment? 

A Yes, I did. 
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1 Q What was that harassment that you were 

2 charging? 

3 A The -- the -- the harassment was that they 

4 weren't carrying out the terms and conditions of the 

5 conciliation agreement, by giving me a "un rating, by 

6 saying my lessons were unsatisfactory, and by 

7 threatening me with -- with filing charges. 

8 Q Did you have a post observation conference 

9 finally? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q Was that for a later lesson? 

12 A That was for a later lesson. 

13 Q Turning our attention to II-D, an 

14 observation of October 13th, 1995, are you familiar 

15 with that observation, sir? 

16 A No, I'm not. 

17 Q Okay. , Let's get that out. 

18 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

19 record. 

20 (Discussion held off the record.) 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: You may 

22 inquire, Mr. Field. 

23 Q I show you what has been I assume it was 

24 marked as II-D, and ask you, do you recall that 

25 letter? 

t 
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1 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

2 to the witness.) 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Could you tell us what lesson that was? 

5 A No. I don't -- I can't. I have it in 

6 here. 

7 Q Could you find it and tell us if that 

8 refreshes your recollection? 

9 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Wasn't the witness 

10 just handed II-D? 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: I thought he 

12 was. 

13 MR. FIELD: He wasn't handed with the 

14 lesson. 

15 A This is Lesson 13. 

16 Q What is Lesson 13, sir? 

17 A It's called what is a force. 

18 Q Does that refresh your recollection what 

19 you taught that day? 

20 A Yes, it does. 

21 Q All right. Looking at Respondent's Exhibit 

22 II-D not Respondent's. I'm sorry. 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Board. 

24 Q Board Exhibit II-D, and starting with 

25 Lesson 13, can you identify the documents? 
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1 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

2 to the witness.) 

3 A Well, the -- the four pages is the student 

4 lesson plan that I I distributed to the class. 

5 Then the next the next seven pages are my response 

6 to the to the observation report. 

7 Q Okay. And that is a letter dated October 

8 26th? 

9 A That's right. 

10 Q Okay. I notice in that letter it says that 

11 you attached that letter to your observation report 

12 dated October 3rd. Do you mean October 13th? 

13 A Yes. That's correct. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: No problem. 

15 Q Now, looking at the document, looking at 

16 your response, letter response, Mr. Bruckner says that 

17 your lesson was unsatisfactory for these reasons, that 

18 as a general observation --

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Don't read, 

remember? Show him the charge. 

Q Do you have the charge in front of you? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Look at the 

charge. Do you see Items 1 through II? Okay. Tell 

me. And I think you're using -- go ahead. 

MR. FIELD: Can I ask the question? 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Roemer 
481 

1 THE HEARING OFFICER: No. Tell me 

2 if, in fact, your response covers Allegations 1 

3 through 11. 

4 If it does not, let me know and then 

5 explain, however you wish, and then, Mr. Field, if he 

6 wants to ask, Mr. Field, you can do it. 

7 MR. FIELD: I would rather do it one 

8 by one. 

9 Q Looking at Number 1, why your performance 

10 was unsatisfactory 

11 MR. MAZZARIELLO: You can't have it 

12 both ways. The document speaks for itself as it did 

13 for the board. 

14 Mr. Edelman, I would like a ruling on 

15 it. The document attached is admitted into evidence. 

16 It's his response to the observation. Clearly you 

17 guys could read. 

18 THE HEARING OFFICER: I think the 

19 purpose is legally different. I'll allow you to do 

20 it, but still, Dr. Roemer, look through your response, 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

through the allegations. You can look through them 

one by one. We'll still get to the same point. 

Q Looking at it one by one, is your response 

that does your response respond to the first item? 

Look at the charge, Dr. Roemer. You have it in front 

t 
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1 of you. 

2 A No. I don't I don't know. I have to 

3 read the whole response. It's a seven-page response. 

4 I don't think so. 

5 Q Looking at the charge, Dr. Roemer, do you 

6 agree with the first item? 

7 A No. No, I don't agree. 

8 Q Could you tell us why you do not agree? 

9 A Well, Number 2 refers to the business of 

10 the lesson plan and as having a written lesson plan. 

11 Number 3 is the -- the stipulation of -- of a 

12 developmental lesson plan. 

13 And Number 4, I didn't -- I didn't get a 

14 chance to discuss. I didn't get a chance to answer 

15 when I was discussing the letter of September 14th. 

16 Q Would you? 

17 A Yeah. Number 4 was saying that I couldn't 

18 base the lesson on the student lesson plans, but I 

19 never did that. It makes no sense to me at all. 

20 I always had a clear idea in my head of how 

21 I wanted to present or well, first you have to have 

22 a clear idea about the concepts of physics itself. 

23 Then you have to have -- figure out how 

24 you -- how you want to present it to the students, and 

25 then you have to figure out what activities you want 

t 
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1 the kids to do and how you want to conduct the actual 

2 lesson. 

3 Then, after all of that, then you write the 

4 student lesson plan to -- to communicate with the 

5 kids, so the student lesson plan always came last. 

6 I never based the lesson on the student 

7 lesson plan. The student lesson plan was always based 

8 on the lesson. 

9 Now, what I what I thought he was 

10 referring to in Number 4, when he said to base the 

11 lessons on -- not to base the lesson on the student 

12 lesson plan, it's a criticism that Mr. Cohen had of my 

13 lessons, which I think I've already answered. 

14 Q Now, looking at Number 2, do you see the 

15 specification Number 2? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Does your response --

18 A No. 

19 Q (Continuing) -- respond to that? 

20 A No. I don't 

21 Q Please strike that. Strike that question. 

22 Did you -- do you recall whether you -- you 

23 arrived three minutes late to class? 

24 A 

25 Q 

No. I don't recall. 

Were there times when you might have been 
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1 late to class? 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q As a general rule were you on time to 

4 class? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Okay. Can you approximate how many times 

7 you might be late to class? 

8 A It's very hard to say. We had a system at 

9 Murrow where there was no passing between the times, 

10 so you could leave from one class to go to the other 

11 class, and the time it takes to get there would make 

12 you late for that class, so I would think this happens 

13 quite a bit. 

14 Q If you were late, would it be a matter of 

15 just minutes? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Now, Number 3, Respondent had no -- Number 

18 3. You've -- do you have anything further to add to 

19 that 

20 A No. 

21 Q (Continuing) - - that you already 

22 testified. 

23 Now 4, does your response -- your response 

24 respond to that? 

25 A Yes. 
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1 Q Do you have anything further to add? 

2 A No. 

3 Q Number 5, does your response respond to 

4 that? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Do you have anything further to add? 

7 A No. 

8 Q Number 6, does your response respond to 

9 that? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q Do you have anything further to add? 

12 A No. 

13 Q Number 7, same question. 

14 A Yes. I respond to that. 

15 Q Anything further to add? 

16 A No. 

17 Q Number 8, same question. 

18 A Yes. I -- I responded to that. 

19 .Q Anything further to add? 

20 A No. 

21 Q Number 9. 

22 A I don't recall if I addressed it in in 

23 my response. 

24 THE HEARING OFFICER: Why don't you 

25 answer it now, sir? 
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1 A Well, in all it just didn't -- isn't 

2 true, you ignore your observations all the time in 

3 physics. 

4 They're thought experiments. Just sort of 

5 imagine an ideal situation. It's true there's -- you 

6 also have to observe experiments, but there's also 

7 room for not going by your observations. 

8 Q Number -- anything further to add, sir? 

9 A No. 

10 Q Number 10. 

11 A No. 

12 Q No what? 

13 A No. Nothing further to add. 

14 Q Was it -- did you -- did your response 

15 respond to that? 

A 16 Yes. 

17 Q Number 11. Did your response respond to 

18 that? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q Anything further to add? 

21 A No. 

22 Q Okay. 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: Can I have the 

24 documents back? 

25 

t 

MR. FIELD: I think there's one thing 
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1 further I might want to add to that. 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. 

3 MR. FIELD: Let's mark this Number 

4 33--34. 

5 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 34, 

6 lesson plan, was marked for identification, as of this 

7 date.) 

8 Q I show you what's been marked as 

9 Respondent's Exhibit 34. Can you identify that, sir? 

10 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

11 to the witness.) 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q What is that? 

14 A This is the lesson lesson plan that I used 

15 at Midwood High School. 

16 Q Was that -- that's in evidence already? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Okay. 

19 MR. FIELD: I'm not going to bother 

20 with that. It's in evidence. 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Can I have the 

22 document back, please? II-D. 

23 

24 

25 record. 

MR. FIELD: That's my copy. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 
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1 (Discussion held off the record.) 

2 Q Now, did you have a post observation 

3 conference to this lesson? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q And were you accompanied by anybody? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Who was that? 

8 A Bill Foster. 

9 Q Was that satisfactory to you for post 

10 observation conferences? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q What was the reason -- I believe you -- do 

13 you have anything further to add to your testimony why 

14 you wanted to be accompanied by somebody to the post 

15 observation conference? 

16 A Yes. I think I I would. Mr. Mr. 

17 Bruckner said to me, "Now, you understand that I 

18 didn't have to let Mr. Foster come to this meeting," 

19 and I said, "Yes." 

20 And he was saying, "You're telling me that 

21 you wouldn't have come if -- if Mr. Foster wasn't 

22 allowed to come," and I said, "That's right." 

23 And then Mr. Bruckner started in on the --

24 on the post observation comments, and he got visibly 

25 embarrassed and he cut it short. 

, 
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1 Q When you say he got visibly embarrassed, 

2 could you tell us what -- what happened, what he said? 

3 A He at the 

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Don't tell me 

5 that. It's your speculation of what occurred in his 

6 mind. Tell me what he did. 

7 A Well, what he did was he -- he looked 

8 embarrassed and he cut the observation conference 

9 short. 

10 Q Were you willing to continue the 

11 observation conference? 

12 A Sure. 

13 Q All right. Were there any further post 

14 observation conferences after that? 

15 A Yes, with Mrs. Coppin. 

16 Q Besides the one with Mrs. Coppin. 

17 A No. 

18 Q Could you tell us why there were no further 

19 post observation conferences? 

20 A I I suppose because I didn't go. 

21 Q Could you tell us why you didn't go? 

22 A Well, because I felt it served no -- no 

23 purpose; that it was confrontational; that it was a 

24 potential of being confrontational, and that they were 

25 trying to get me to change, to give up my teaching 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Roemer 
490 

1 methods and teach using their style of teaching. 

2 Q Were you permitted to take anybody to those 

3 later post observation conferences? 

4 A No. 

5 Q If you had been permitted to take somebody, 

6 would you have gone? 

7 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Calls for 

8 speculation. We have documents that show that he 

9 didn't even -- when he was given the -- I believe you 

10 have those. 

11 MR. FIELD: That's in the nature of 

12 cross-examination. 

13 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I can't wait, Joel. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Would you have 

15 gone if you could have taken someone else? 

16 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

17 Q Now, turning our attention to I-E, which is 

18 an observation that was done by Mr. Cohen on October 

19 19th -- I'm sorry. This is II-E. Are you familiar 

20 with that observation? 

21 A No, I'm not. 

22 MR. FIELD: Do you have II-A there? 

23 THE HEARING OFFICER: No. Hold on. 

24 Off the record. 

25 (Discussion held off the record.) 
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1 Q I show you what's been marked as Exhibit 

2 II-E, Board II-E. I ask you to look at that. 

3 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

4 to the witness.) 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's the 

6 observations on top. Is that correct? Correct, Dr. 

7 Roemer? 

8 THE WITNESS: Is this II-E? 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes. 

10 THE WITNESS: Yeah, right. This is. 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: Just look at 

12 the pages afterwards. There's a letter. Is that 

13 letter your response, that observation report, or is 

14 that not correct? 

15 THE WITNESS: This is the observation 

16 report. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Right. 

18 THE WITNESS: And this is the 

19 lesson. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: Fine. What 

21 about the letter? That's apparently yours, dated 

22 October 23rd, '95. Is that the response to that 

23 observation report or not? 

24 

25 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: It is. 

refers to, "Your observing me on the 19th." 

, 
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THE WITNESS: I have to look at my 

own stack. Look at --

THE HEARING OFFICER: Go ahead. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: There are --

THE HEARING OFFICER: His letter 

says, "Please schedule the time for my post 

observation conference for the lesson you observed on 

my -- on October 19th." 

THE WITNESS: No. I have a five-page 

response dated November 6, and it says, "Please attach 

this letter to your observation report dated October 

19th. " 

MR. FIELD: That's what I thought. 

This is not the 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I can only say 

it's appended to every panel members' document. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: It says October 

19th. 

MR. FIELD: It may be appended, but 

it has nothing to do with the observation report. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: It says October 

19th. 

THE WITNESS: You're talking about 

the one that I have. In my response to the October 

24th is a letter dated November 6th, 1995. 

, 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: There may well 

2 be another letter. I'm not sure anybody has that 

3 other than Dr. Roemer at this point. It may have been 

4 just not appended. What's the date of your response, 

5 sir? 

6 MR. FIELD: November 6th. 

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't have 

8 it. I don't think any panel member has it. 

9 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I certainly don't 

10 have it. 

11 MS. SHAFFER: November 6th. 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes. Show it 

13 to Mr. Mazzariello. Number 1. 

14 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

15 to Mr. Mazzariello.) 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: We'll piece it 

17 out. Dr. Roemer, that is your response to the 

18 observation dated October 24th? Letter of November 

19 6th. Is that your response? 

20 THE WITNESS: Yes. That's my 

21 response. 

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: All right. I'm 

23 going to deem it as part of Exhibit II-E, and he can 

24 testify based on that response. Mr. Field you may 

25 continue. 
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1 MR. FIELD: We haven't got the 

2 letter. 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, I'm --

5 I don't know, you know, when this document was 

6 generated. I don't have this letter. 

7 And, again, I don't know, you know, 

8 what kind of hearing you're running here, but I don't 

9 appreciate not getting stuff, and I don't like it. 

10 This is something I requested. 

11 MR. FIELD: Fine. We're not going to 

12 introduce it. Let me have it. We won't introduce it. 

13 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Now I'm confused, 

14 as dates and times seem to be different than what he's 

15 been using, and this is not signed. 

16 MR. FIELD: No. We did not --

17 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have a letter 

18 THE HEARING OFFICER: One second. 

19 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have a letter 

20 that refers to October 19th, which is attached to 

21 what's in evidence. 

22 Now, this document, I mean, clearly, 

23 Mr. Edelman, is dated October 23rd. It refers to, 

24 "You observed me on october 19th," wherein charges 

25 from I don't know. 
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1 MR. FIELD: Fine. We won't introduce 

2 it. 

3 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I want to see this 

4 stuff now. 

5 MR. FIELD: I'm not going to 

6 introduce it. 

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: Stop, stop, 

8 stop, stop. 

9 MR. FIELD: If you want to expedite 

10 the hearing, fine. If not, we won't introduce it. 

11 MR. MAZZARIELLO: It doesn't matter 

12 if it's expedited or not. It's not signed. I don't 

13 know. Mr. Edelman, I don't know where that came from, 

14 or it could have been generated last night. 

15 MR. FIELD: Fine. We won't introduce 

16 it. I ask that that be stricken from the record. Mr. 

17 Mazzariello has no right to make accusations or 

18 browbeat people with statements like that, generating 

19 things last night. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't think 

21 it's appropriate. 

22 MR. FIELD: I want an apology on the 

23 record from Mr. Mazzariello. 

24 MR. MAZZARIELLO: You wait for that 

25 in your life. 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Dor:i't walk out. 

2 MR. FIELD: I asked for an apology 

3 from Mr. Mazzariello. 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: In your life you'll 

5 wait for it. 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sit down. 

7 MR. MAZZARIELLO: You should 

8 apologize for all the kids. 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Next question. 

10 MR. FIELD: Can we have a break for a 

11 few minutes? 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes. 

13 MR. FIELD: Can I speak to you 

14 outside? 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: I only speak to 

16 parties together. 

17 MR. FIELD: Then I ask that you not 

18 have any further ex-parte conversations with Mr. 

19 Mazzariello, if you're only going to speak to the 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 

21 record. 

22 (Discussion heid off the record.) 

23 

24 

25 Dr. Roemer. 

MR. FIELD: Can I see the documents? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I gave it to 

Let's go. 
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Q Dr. Roemer, I show you what has been 

attached to a document II-E by Mr. Mazzariello, and 

ask you if this is the response in any manner or fax 

to your observation of october 19th? 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

Q Your letter of October 23rd. 

A No. Absolutely not. Has nothing to do 

with the observation report. 

Q Thank you. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: You want to 

know the truth, folks? As the arbitrator perceives 

it, Dr. Roemer did write a response dated October 

23rd. It did refer to the October 19th observation. 

It was about matters that arose, but 

it was not his formal response to the class itself, 

which is indeed the letter of November 6th. That's my 

real belief, that actually two letters were written. 

That's my belief. 

MR. FIELD: I disagree, Mr. Edelman. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'm right. 

MR. FIELD: Mr. Edelman, I believe 

this letter of October 23rd responds to this, of 

october 20th. 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 
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1 to the Hearing Officer.) 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, but it 

3 does refer to the October 19th lesson as well, sir. 

4 MR. FIELD: He's responding to that. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: I understand, 

6 but he wrote two letters. 

7 Q I show you what's also been attached to 

8 Board's II-E, and ask you, is your letter of October 

9 23rd in response to a memo that you received from Mr. 

10 Cohen dated October 20th? 

11 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

12 to the witness.) 

13 A Yes. The October 23rd letter is the 

14 response to the October 20th letter. 

15 Q Okay. Now, I show you the observation 

16 report of October 24th. Do you recall that 

17 observation report? 

18 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

19 to the witness.) 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q Do you agree or disagree with the criticism 

22 that the -- that your aim of the lesson was vague and 

23 caused confusion? 

24 A 

25 Q 

I disagree. 

Could you tell us why you disagree? 
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1 A Well, this same reason that I said for the 

2 other lessons. 

3 Q Do you have anything further to add? 

4 A No. 

5 Q Okay. Do you agree or disagree that this 

6 lesson was teacher-dominated? 

7 A I disagree. 

8 Q Do you have -- could you tell us why you 

9 disagree? 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: As in the past, 

11 sir? That's what we've been through. 

12 THE WITNESS: Yes. I think it's the 

13 same the same stuff we've been through. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

15 Q Do you -- do you agree or disagree that you 

16 failed to use demonstration materials effectively, 

17 Number 3? Do you agree or disagree? 

18 A Well, I don't I don't recall. I have 

19 to 

20 Q Look at the observation report. 

21 A What's the 

22 Q Looking at Number 3, did you -- that you 

23 failed to use demonstration materials. 

24 A 

25 Q 

Oh. It's not true. 

Could you tell us what -- do you recall 
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1 what you did in that class with respect to 

2 demonstration materials? 

3 A Yes, I did. 

4 Q Could you tell us what you did? 

5 A Yeah. I -- the instructional objective was 

6 Newton's -- Newton's Third Law, and I I 

7 demonstrated using -- using dynamical carts. 

8 Dynamical carts are small carts you have on 

9 the lab table with springs conducting them, so you can 

10 create an explosion and do various kinds of 

11 experiments. 

12 So I did six experiments. They're itemized 

13 on the student lesson plan, and the students were 

14 required to draw force -- draw force diagrams for the 

15 you for the rule of experiment and -- and to answer 

16 the question, what is Newton's Third Law. 

17 This is another example of a lesson where I 

18 departed from my usual approach. My usual approach 

19 would be to explain in the opening paragraph what 

20 Newton's Third Law is, and then give them problems on 

21 Newton's Law, but this one I used more a discovery 

22 approach to teaching it. 

23 And by doing these experiments, hopefully 

24 they would be able to say what Newton's Third Law was, 

25 and I think ultimately I had to -- I had to spell it 
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lout for them. 

2 But I think Mr. Cohen's criticism of the 

3 lesson was the same thing that we've been discussing. 

4 He -- he wanted a lesson which featured a lot of oral 

5 questioning between me and the students, and that 

6 whole -- that whole business you go through with the 

7 developmental lesson. 

8 Q All right. Looking at Number 4, look at 

9 the charge. Do you agree or disagree with that, sir? 

10 A I disagree. 

11 Q All right. Is there anything further --

12 can you tell us why you disagree? 

13 A No. The monitoring in this case came from 

14 the the kids. I mayor may not have asked as I did 

15 the demonstration, but 

16 Q Was there a homework assignment in this 

17 class; do you recall? 

18 A Well, the -- there was the assignment from 

19 the Brief Review of Physics, and then 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: He's not 

21 charged with not giving homework, I believe. 

22 MR. FIELD: That's the way of 

23 monitoring the students' understanding. 

24 Q Did you monitor the students' understanding 

25 through homework? 
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A Yes. That's -- that's -- that's true as 

you know, I collect the homework on these mostly in 

class. 

But Number -- Item Number 2 and Item Number 

3, they may have had to work on at home, and I would 

collect it the next day. 

Q Did you collect what work was done in 

class? 

A No. No. I collected it the next day. 

Q Next day. I see. So you got whatever 

the question I have is -- the question -- the 

students' work from the work sheets was completed? 

A Yes. 

Q When, that day or the next day? 

A That's right. 

Q And was that your way of monitoring? 

A Yes. 

Q Looking at Number 5 of the criticisms, sir, 

do you agree or disagree? 

A I disagree. 

Q Do you have any further -- do you -- could 

you tell us why you disagree? 

A No, except that I -- I planned the lesson 

in as logical a way that I hope would -- that I hope 

that it would help the kids understand the law, 
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1 Newton's Third Law. 

2 Q Number 6. Are you familiar -- that you 

3 failed to -- do you agree or disagree with that? 

4 A Well, I don't recall exactly what he's 

5 referring to. I always do my best to answer 

6 appropriately. 

7 Q Number 7? 

8 A 7 refers to the same -- the same old 

9 dispute about how to teach physics. 

10 Do you have anything further to add? 

11 No. 

12 Number 8? 

13 I don't recall anything about that. 

14 Number 9? 

15 I don't recall that. It may -- it may have 

16 I may have forgotten something. 

17 Number 10? That would be together with 

18 Number 9, if that, in fact happened. Am I correct? 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 add? 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

That's right. 

Number 11. Do you have anything further to 

No. 

Do you agree or disagree? 

I disagree. 

You have nothing further to add? 

, 
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1 A No. 

2 Q Number 12 was the lesson plan. 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Correct. Can I 

4 have the document back? 

5 MR. FIELD: I haven't got it. I 

6 think Mr. Roemer has it. 

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: Can I get it 

8 back from Dr. Roemer, please? Thank you. 

9 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

10 to the Hearing Officer.) 

11 MR. FIELD: Let me have that back. 

12 I'm sorry. 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sure. 

14 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

15 to Mr. Field.) 

16 Q Dr. Roemer, attached to this do~ument was a 

17 memo dated October 20th to you, and a letter dated 

18 October 23rd. 

19 Can you explain this memo and explain your 

20 response, since it's in evidence? 

21 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

22 to the witness.) 

23 

24 

25 

THE HEARING OFFICER: One moment. 

Let me see it before he answers. Let me see it. 

There may be no charge on it. If there's no charge we 

, 
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1 don't need it. 

2 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

3 to the Hearing Officer.) 

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: We don't need 

5 testimony. We don't need it. I don't see any charge 

6 about failure to make some appointment or meet some 

7 obligation on October 24. 

8 If it's in the charges I'll address 

9 it. Otherwise the panel should disregard these two 

10 documents. It's gone. 

11 Q Now, going to Charge II-F --

12 MR. FIELD: That memorandum is just a 

13 notice attached to Specification II-E at the bottom, 

14 that he's refusing to go to these, so it's just the 

15 board's way of saying it is a memorandum showing it 

16 was actually trying to set up. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't see any 

18 charges that said he did not attend a meeting on 

19 October 24th. Maybe I'm missing something. 

20 MR. MAZZARIELLO: At the conclusion 

21 of the observation it says Assistant Principal 

22 Cohen -- Respondent did meet with him for a post 

23 observation conference. 

24 

25 It's there. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I apologize. 

You can ask him about it. Give it back. 
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1 It's there. 

2 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

3 to Mr. Field.) 

4 Q I show you -- well, it's a memo dated 

5 October 20th to you, and a letter dated October 23rd, 

6 and I ask you to look and these and explain. 

7 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

8 to the witness.) 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: What's the 

10 question, Mr. Field? 

11 MR. FIELD: I'm asking him to look --

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: No. What's the 

13 question? 

14 Q Do you have any comments to make --

15 A No comments. 

16 Q (Continuing) -- on that October 23rd 

17 letter? 

18 A No. I have no comments. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

20 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

21 to the Hearing Officer.) 

22 Q Turning our attention to II-F, do you 

23 recall an observation by Mr. Cohen on November 13th, 

24 1995? 

25 A No, I don't. 
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1 MR. FIELD: Can we have II-F, Mr. 

2 Edelman? 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes. I have a 

4 letter dated November 13, 1995. There's also a letter 

5 dated November 6th, 1995. 

6 I'm not sure if it's supposed to be 

7 part of it, frankly. It may. And I don't see a 

8 response of Dr. Roemer's, at least in my packet. Am I 

9 missing something? Off the record. 

10 (Discussion held off the record.) 

11 Hand hands. 

12 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

13 to Mr. Field.) 

14 Q I ask you to look at what is identified as 

15 II-F in evidence, and if you can -- apart from the 

16 observation letter of November 13th, I ask you to look 

17 through the documents and ask if you can identify the 

18 others. 

19 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

20 to the witness.) 

21 A Well, there's a memorandum from Mr. Cohen 

22 dated November 6th. 

23 Q Does that have anything to do with the 

24 observation of November 13th? 

25 THE HEARING OFFICER: That would be 
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1 hard. It's written before the observation. I guess 

2 it doesn't. 

3 It's just not stapled. That's why. 

4 That's the problem. They all deal with the 

5 observation of November --

6 MR. FIELD: Can we disregard the 

7 letter? 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: For now, and 

9 deal with Dr. Roemer's response of November 20th and 

10 Lesson Number 27. 

11 Q Is Lesson Number 27 there? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q Looking at the letter dated November 20th, 

14 is that your response to the observation of November 

15 13th? Take your time. 

16 A No. 

17 Q It's not your response? 

18 A No. 

19 Q Do you recall whether you had a written a 

20 response of November 20 I'm sorry. To the November 

21 13th observation? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A I have to check my folder. 

Q Check your folder, please. Can you see --

THE HEARING OFFICER: I want to see 

the set of documents. Could you just return them, Dr. 
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1 Roemer? 

2 MR. FIELD: Check your folder, Dr. 

3 Roemer, and see what you have. 

4 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

5 to the Hearing Officer.) 

6 THE WITNESS: Yes. I wrote a 

7 response to the observation report of November 13th. 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Do you have it 

9 with you, sir? 

10 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

11 MR. FIELD: What's the date? 

12 THE WITNESS: January 2nd, 1996. 

13 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

14 to the Hearing Officer.) 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: Have you seen 

16 this, Mr. Mazzariello? 

17 MR. MAZZARIELLO: No. 

18 MR. FIELD: We won't introduce it. 

19 If I didn't give it, we won't introduce it. We'll go 

20 through it bit by bit. 
, 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. That's 

22 the way we did it, same way. 

23 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I would still like 

24 it for cross-examination. 

25 MR. FIELD: I'm not introducing it. 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: It may be 

introduced on cross. You can ask him whether he wrote 

a response, and if the answer is yes, he may want to 

introduce it. 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

Q Dr. Roemer, looking at the charges with 

respect to II-F, you see that, sir? 

A Yes. 

Q Looking at the observation report for II-F, 

is the first one true or not true, that you were not 

present to start the class? 

A I don't recall. 

Q Okay. It might be true? 

A It might be true. 

Q Okay. .1 believe it says that you were two 

minutes late. Was there a bell that signals the start 

of class? 

A No, no. There isn't a bell. 

Q There's a reference made in the observation 

report of arriving at class two minutes after the bell 

signaling the start of A Band. Do you know what bell 

he would be referring to? 

A No. There is no bell -- well, maybe there 

is -- you know, I don't think so. There's no bells in 

, 
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1 that school. I was thinking maybe the first period, 

2 but no. No. It's a bell-less school. 

3 Q Looking at the second part of the -- on the 

4 charge, do you agree or disagree with that? 

5 A I disagre~. 

6 Q Could you tell us why? 

7 A Well, for the same reasons I've given for 

8 the other lessons. 

9 Q Number 3, lesson was teacher-dominated. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: We've been 

11 through that, I believe. 

12 Q Anything further to add to that, sir? 

13 A No. 

14 Q Number 4? 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: Same. Is that 

16 correct? 

17 THE WITNESS: Right. 

18 Q Number 5, Number 6 and Number 7, anything 

19 you would add to any of those, 4, 5, 6 or 7 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you, 

21 sir. 

22 Q (Continuing) - - that you testified to 

23 already? 

24 A No. 

25 Q Could you describe this lesson, what this 
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1 lesson was about? 

2 A It was it was on the conservation of 

3 energy. 

4 Q Could you tell us what -- what you did in 

5 that lesson? 

6 A I have to review the lesson plan. 

7 Q Do you have the lesson plan there? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q Just look for it for a second, if you could 

10 briefly tell us. 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: Number 27, 

12 correct? 

13 THE WITNESS: That's right. 

14 A It was on the conservation of energy. We 

15 already introduced the concepts of potential energy 

16 and kinetic energy, and this lesson I was showing that 

17 the -- that energy is conserved, and showing them how 

18 to do problems in -- problems in the conservation of 

19 energy. 

20 Q Do you feel the students learned anything 

21 that day? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q What do you base that on, sir? 

24 A Well, their success in -- in doing the 

25 answering the questions on the student lesson plan. 
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Q Dr. Roemer, was there any other way you 

were able to tell whether the students were learning 

or not learning? 

A Well, from the unit exams that I gave. 

Q Could you tell us what type of exams you 

gave from the unit? 

A I gave my unit exams were -- were 

generated by a computer, which had on its face the 

Regents type of questions taken from past Regentses. 

So they were -- they were they were 

graded objectively. There were usually 20 questions 

on a test, so if a kid missed one question he would 

get 95. If he missed two questions he would get a 90 

and so on. 

Q Were -- these were not questions that you 

made up? 

A No. They were taken from past Regents 

examinations. 

Q How did you find that the students scored 

on these tests? 

A Well, they did as -- as well as you would 

expect students to do. 

Q When you say -- could you explain what you 

mean, as well as the students --

A Well, the pass rate for the students at 
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1 Murrow High School on the Regents exam was, you know, 

2 roughly around 65 percent, and the pass rate that I 

3 had on my unit tests was in the same ballpark. 

4 Q Neither higher nor lower? 

5 A Yes. I didn't do -- I didn't do a strict 

6 calculation of how many passed the unit test and how 

7 many failed, but it was it was what you would 

8 expect for that student population. 

9 MR. FIELD: Mr. Edelman, we're 

10 prepared to have marked the test results of these unit 

11 tests. 

12 The reason why we're prepared to do 

13 that for various cycles is that these tests were unit 

14 tests. 

15 These tests were not made up by him; 

16 that these tests were made up by the department, 

17 Regents tests taken off the computer, and we can take 

18 his testimony or put in the documents. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: What we're 

20 going to do, I have his testimony. If Mr. Mazzariello 

21 wishes, I'll require you to show him those tests. 

22 He can review them at his leisure. 

23 If there's any dispute as to the accuracy of Dr. 

24 Roemer's testimony, i.e. they were unit tests, that he 

25 didn't make the questions up, and that the pass rates 
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1 essentially follow the overall school pass rates, if 

2 there's any dispute about that I have to take them in 

3 evidence. Otherwise I don't think it's necessary at 

4 this time. 

5 MR. FIELD: Fair enough. That's 

6 why--

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

8 Q Dr. Roemer, calling your attention to the 

9 charge on II-F, the last -- the paragraph just above 

10 G, read it to yourself, please. 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Do you have any recollection of this? This 

13 is on the lesson of November 13th. 

14 A No, I don't. 

15 Q November -- is it -- would your testimony 

16 be the same as the reasons why you weren't 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q That was the conciliation aspect? 

19 A Right. 

20 Q Harassment. Okay. Now, turning our 

21 attention to G, which is the observation of 

22 Superintendent Coppin, are you familiar with this 

23 observation, sir? 

24 A Yes. Yes, I am. 

25 THE HEARING OFFICER: I have II-G, 
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1 the December 12, 1995, and a letter presumably from 

2 Dr. Roemer dated January 2, 1996 to Mrs. Coppin. 

3 Q Is that your response to the -- do you have 

4 that, sir? 

5 A Yes. January 2nd response. 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: I meant to say 

7 January 2nd. 

8 Q Was that response to Ms. Coppin's 

9 observation? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q Looking at the charge, II-G, do you see the 

12 first one, criticism 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q Is that responded to in your letter dated 

15 January 2nd? 

16 A Yes, it is. 

17 Q Do you have anything further to add? 

18 A No. 

19 Q Looking at the next paragraph, was that 

20 responded to in your letter dated January 2nd? 

21 A No, it wasn't. 

22 Q Do you have anything to state with respect 

23 to that? 

24 A Yes. Yes, I do. The -- one of the main 

25 benefits of my method of teaching where you give kids 
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1 a written lesson plan ahead of time is that you appeal 

2 to their different learning styles. 

3 Some kids have trouble understanding oral 

4 things and dealing verbally and do better when they're 

5 reading, and some kids, having the written lesson plan 

6 enables me to give different kinds of questions. 

7 I can have challenging, thought-provoking 

8 questions that appeal to kids good at analyzing and 

9 thinking through, and then I can also give questions 

10 that are very simple, that kids with other styles are 

11 able to -- are able to answer. 

12 So I feel that my use of the written lesson 

13 plans one of the reasons I do it, one of the 

14 benefits is precisely that it it appeals to 

15 different it enables children of different types to 

16 learn. with the developmental lesson, you're locked 

17 into a formal type of an instructional method. 

18 Q Number 3, do you -- did you respond to that 

19 in your letter dated January 2nd? 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

Yes, I did. 

Do you have anything further to add? 

No. 

Number 4, did you respond to that? 

No. No, I didn't. 

All right. Could you explain -- could you 

t 
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respond to it now? 

A No. I couldn't. I don't know -- I don't 

know what -- what was meant by that. 

Q Well, looking at Ms. Coppin's letter of 

December 12th, see if we can find that. Looking at 

the last paragraph on Page 2 

A Oh, I see. She meant the -- the equipment 

I brought in. 

Q What equipment did you bring in, sir, if 

you recall? 

A An electric hand generator. I - - I don't 

recall what I used or how I used it. It was -- it was 

there just to show give another example of how you 

can transform that type of energy to another type of 

energy, and I'm not sure -- you know, I can't believe 

I brought it into class and didn't use it. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Your assertion 

is you didn't bring it to class? 

Q Do you recall if you brought it in? 

A Class? Oh, sure. I had it in the class. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. 

Q So do you understand what she meant here? 

A No, I don't. 

Q You didn't respond to that in your letter 

of January 2nd? 

t 
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1 A I don't think so. 

2 Q What about the next, addressing student 

3 confusion? Did you respond to that? 

4 A No. I didn't. No, I didn't respond to it 

5 in my answer. 

6 Q Do you have anything to add to that or 

7 respond to that? 

8 A No, I don't. 

9 Q To your knowledge were students confused 

10 that day? 

11 A I don't recall. 

12 Q When were you removed from the classroom? 

13 A On March - - March 1st, 1996. 

14 Q Do you recall a post observation conference 

15 with Ms. coppin, Superintendent Coppin, on or about 

16 November 16th? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Do you recall any instructions they gave 

19 you or directions orally? 

20 A No, I don't. I do remember one thing. 

21 Q Yes. 

22 A That at the post observation conference, 

23 Mrs. Coppin complained that I -- kids weren't paying 

24 attention to me. They were paying attention to the 

25 student lesson plan. 
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1 So I said, well, that's the idea, and then 

2 she said to herself that's -- that's the idea. You 

3 could see she was like struck by my answer, that 

4 that she hadn't fully thought through what I was 

5 trying to accomplish. 

6 Q I call your attention to the letter of 

7 December 12th from Mrs. Ms. Coppin. That's the 

8 observation report, sir. 

9 A Right, yeah. 

10 Q The last page. Do you -- I ask you to read 

11 to yourself the last two paragraphs. 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q Do you feel that's a fair criticism? 

14 A No. 

15 Q Would you tell us why? 

16 A Well, the first paragraph I just I just 

17 don't know what she's referring to. The the 

18 uninteresting parts I think I understand, but that's 

19 the fault of the -- of the physics syllabus. 

20 Now, confusing and passive, I don't know. 

21 I'm not sure. She says the concepts were not 

22 developed. I give great thought to how I present 

23 the present the concepts to the students. 

24 Q What is the concept that you were teaching 

25 that day? 
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1 A It was the connection between heat energy 

2 and mechanical energy. 

3 Q Do you recall how you taught it? 

4 A Yes. It's a very simple demonstration, 

5 where you rub your hands together and you can feel the 

6 heat, and this shows that mechanical energy converts 

7 to heat energy, and it can be -- you can measure what 

8 the connection is, what the conversion is between the 

9 mechanical energy and the heat energy. 

10 And I describe the for instance, Number 

11 2 says to describe Item Number 2 of the student 

12 lesson plan says describe two experiments which will 

13 measure the so-called mechanical equivalent of heat, 

14 and in my -- my lesson I explained to them what those 

15 two experiments were, and it was their job to absorb 

16 what I tell them and feed it back to them -- feed it 

17 back to me. It's a very worthwhile activity. 

18 A lot of teachers, they -- in fact, it's a 

19 slogan in all the workshops I attend, that teaching is 

20 not learning. 

21 Teachers think because they explain to kids 

22 something, because they explain certain experiments, 

23 that the kid's understanding what the experiment is, 

24 but they don't do the test of asking the kids, "What 

25 did I just tell you? What do you" -- that test you 
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1 learn a lot. 

2 And I dare say that that refers to why they 

3 were confused. I explained the experiment with the 

4 mechanical equivalent of heat. 

5 It's a famous experiment, and they didn't 

6 understand my -- my explanation. So now it was their 

7 job to feed it back to me, to describe the experiment, 

8 and they couldn't do it, so they were confused and --

9 Q What did you do to help? 

10 A Well, you explain it again a second time, 

11 or they can consult with their -- their friends to see 

12 what the answer is, or I tell them the next day. 

13 Q Do you recall -- do you have any 

14 recollection of what you did the next day on this? 

15 A No. No, I don't, but that's my 

16 interpretation of .. 

17 Q Are you responsive to the fact that they 

18 may have been confused in a lesson? 

19 A Absolutely. 

20 Q And when they are confused, what do you do? 

21 A Well, I go over it a second time, and I try 

22 to see what the source of their confusion is and help 

23 them. 

24 Q From your experience in teaching physics 

25 for nine or 12 years, are there times when students 
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1 would get confused? 

2 A Absolutely. It's -- the concepts are very 

3 subtle and difficult. You have to -- students have to 

4 apply themselves. 

5 They have to think actively about it. They 

6 just can't sit there passively and expect to 

7 understand it from the teacher's explanation. 

8 That's why I've introduced this this 

9 method of giving students lesson plans, to make the 

10 kids do things, to confront them with their own lack 

11 of understanding, so they can't get away in my class 

12 with not understanding. It comes out immediately that 

13 they don't know how to do it. 

14 Q Now, turning your attention to the last 

15 paragraph, do you feel that you were discouraging 

16 students in teaching physics? 

17 A No. 

18 Q Do you have anything to add on that? 

19 A No, I don't -- oh, yes. I do have 

20 something to add. 

21 Q Please. 

22 A In the in part of the discussion I had 

23 with Mrs. Coppin, I brought up the -- the question of 

24 whether the kids should be taking Regents physics in 

25 the first place. 
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1 In other words, I criticized the physics 

2 curriculum, and she responded in her observation 

3 report. 

4 Q Where is that, sir? 

5 A This is on the second page, paragraph one, 

6 two, three four. She responded that if I had any 

7 ideas about a new curriculum, she would would be 

8 glad to entertain them. Well, I already submitted an 

9 idea for a new curriculum to Mrs. Coppin. 

10 Q Did you ever hear from her about it? 

11 A No, I didn't. 

12 Q When did you submit it? 

13 A About a -- well, I submitted one when I was 

14 still at Erasmus, so ... 

15 Q On further thing. On Page 2, Mrs. Coppin, 

16 last paragraph -- next to the last paragraph, states 

17 that the students were not actively engaged in the 

18 lesson. Do you think that was fair? 

19 A No, it's not fair. 

20 Q And anything -- could you tell us why you 

21 feel it's not fair? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A No. Just the things I already said. 

Q Looking at II-H --

THE HEARING OFFICER: Is there a 

response to this? I don't seem to have it. Do you 
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1 have it? 

2 MS. PETRUCELLI: No. Just the three 

3 pages. 

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Is there a 

5 response, Dr. Roemer? 

6 THE WITNESS: No .. 

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. 

8 Q Do you recall this lesson, sir? 

9 A Well, just from looking at the student 

10 lesson plan. 

11 Q What is the lesson plan? 

12 A It's Lesson Number 35. 

13 Q Is that attached to that? 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: No. At least I 

15 don't have it. 

16 MR. FIELD: Off the record for a 

17 second. 

18 (Discussion held off the record.) 

19 MR. FIELD: Can we mark this, 

20 please? 

21 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 35, 

22 Lesson Number 35, was marked for identification, as of 

23 this date.) 

24 Q I show you what's been marked as 

25 Respondent's Exhibit 35, which is Lesson 35, which I 
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1 believe has already been given to the board. 

2 MR. FIELD: Do you have copy of this, 

3 Mr. Mazzariello? 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Yes. I believe I 

5 do. 

6 Q Okay. And I ask you, this is the student 

7 lesson plan or lesson plan for the observation of 

8 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'll stip it in, 

9 Mr. Edelman. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

11 That's in evidence. 

12 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 35, 

13 Lesson Number 35, was marked in evidence, as of this 

14 date.) 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: What's the 

16 number of the lesson plan? 

17 MR. FIELD: Lesson 35. Lesson 35. 

18 Exhibit 35. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: Very good. 

20 Q Looking at the charge for Number H, and 

21 looking at the -- at Dr. Roemer's I'm sorry. At 

22 Mr. Bruckner's letter of December 1st, referring to an 

23 observation of November 29th, do you want to go 

24 through this, sir? Number 1. Do you agree or 

25 disagree? 
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1 A I disagree. 

2 Q Could you tell us why? 

3 A No. I have nothing to add -- let's see. 

4 Failed to answer homework problems. No. I don't 

5 recall what --

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. 

7 A I don't recall I don't know what he's 

8 talking about or what 

9 Q Do you see anything in the 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me do it 

11 this way. You didn't write a response to this one, 

12 and so you really don't recall the specifics of that 

13 particular lesson on that particular day, but to the 

14 extent that there are charges here that replicate 

15 charges in other observations, your answer would be 

16 the same; is that a fair and accurate? 

17 THE WITNESS: Yes. I would say 

18 that's true. Let me just look over 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sure. 

20 THE WITNESS: well, Number 8, 

21 "Respondent did not effectively use the demonstration 

22 apparatus." 

23 

24 you. 

25 Q 

This equipment worked fine. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. 

Did you prepare this lesson? 
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1 A Yes, I did. 

2 Q Could you tell us how you prepared it? 

3 A Well, I I I think through clearly 

4 what the concept is, how I'm going to -- then how I'm 

5 going to present the concept and what activities I 

6 wanted the kids to do. 

7 So this was a lesson on pressure and, you 

8 know, there was a range of activities to suit the 

9 different learning styles of kids. 

10 Number 2 and 3, how does a manometer work 

11 and how does a barometer work. I explained how they 

12 work, and then they had to -- to feed it back. 

13 Then Number 4 was a thought-provoking 

14 question, and 5 was a was a difficult computation, 

15 and I used the -- the introductory paragraphs in this 

16 case to explain something that's part of the Regents 

17 syllabus, but it it's so esoteric that that 

18 it -- it's hardly worth mentioning to the kids, so I 

19 gave it to them in a written -- written summary. 

20 And then I gave my introductory paragraph. 

21 There's a great job of or good -- a complete job, I 

22 should say, of explaining the concept of -- of 

23 pressure. 

24 Q Calling your attention to the last -- on 

25 Page 3, the la~t paragraph, I ask you to read that 
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1 please. 

2 A Yes. I read it. 

3 Q Do you know what a -- what Mr. Bruckner 

4 meant by at least once both you and the students were 

5 admittedly confused? Do you have any idea what he 

6 meant by that? 

7 A No. I don't recall. 

8 Q Were you confused at all? 

9 A I don't recall. 

10 Q Now, turning our attention -- do you 

11 recall, was there a directive for a post observation 

12 conference? 

13 A I don't recall. 

14 Q Okay. Now, turning our attention to 

15 11-1 well, were you willing to meet on a post 

16 observation conference for that without a 

17 representative at that time? 

18 A No. 

19 Q Now, turning our attention to I 

20 MR. FIELD: Is there any letter that 

21 was introduced for I? 

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: I have three 

23 letters: One dated December 13th, 1995; one December 

24 14th, 1995, and one December 15th, 1995. 

25 Q Looking at these letters of 
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(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

Q (Continuing) -- with respect to Board II-I, 

do you recall receiving those letters? 

A Yes. Yes, I do. 

Q Could you tell us why you did not meet in 

Room 381 for a pre-observation conference? 

A Well, 381 was -- was his private office, 

and I I prefer to meet in Room 491. 491 was the 

open area. It was the -- the prep room, the 

preparation room for for the science teachers, and 

it was a big area. 

It was an open room, and people would --

you know, people would be about -- be around there, 

but it would have been perfectly suitable for a 

pre-observation conference. 

Q Why did you not want to meet in the private 

office, but were willing to meet in an open area? Was 

there a reason for that? 

A I felt it was too stressful. I just didn't 

want to do it. 

Q What do you mean by too stressful? 

A I didn't have any -- any problems with 

meeting in the open area, but I didn't want to to 

meet with him in a closed in a closed room. 
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1 Q What was there a reason why? 

2 A Well, I was concerned about a 

3 confrontation, as I was feeling very frustrated at 

4 at what they were doing, and I didn't think it was a 

5 good idea. 

6 Q Frustrated as to what? 

7 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can we stop leading 

8 the witness here, Mr. Edelman? 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Frustrated as 

10 to what? Overruled. 

11 A I felt very strongly about my teaching 

12 methods, and they were trying to improperly force me 

13 to teach the developmental type lesson. 

14 Q You used the world, "improperly." Why do 

15 you say that? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE HEARING OFFICER: We've been 

through that. The conciliation process wasn't 

complete. Is that accurate? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

Q Do you have anything further to add? 

A No, not about not about I. 

Q Now, II-J 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I is the 

observation report dated December 22, 1995. I also 

have Lesson Number 42. I don't think I have a 
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1 response from --

2 MR. FIELD: Is this the response? 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: (Continuing) 

4 from Dr. Roemer. 

5 Q Dr. Roemer, is there a response to that? 

6 A No, there isn't. 

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

8 Q Do you recall this lesson, sir? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Looking at the charge sir, 1, do you have 

11 any response to the first 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q Please explain. 

14 A The -- the lesson focused on the 

15 computational skills, because that's required by the 

16 syllabus, and you don't get it by looking at the 

17 all the skills that are listed. 

18 You get it by looking at whether the 

19 syllabus item has an asterisk or not. If a syllabus 

20 item has an asterisk, then it has to be treated 

21 quantitatively by -- meaning the kids have to do the 

22 mathematical problems. 

23 Q Was there an item that -- was there a 

24 lesson that dealt with mathematical problems? 

25 A Yes. 
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1 Q Could you deal with -- could you 

2 effectively deal with this lesson without mathematical 

3 problems? 

4 A No. I have you have to -- the kids have 

5 to be taught how to solve this particular type of a --

6 type of a problem. 
• 

7 Q Item Number 2; do you have any comments as 

8 to that? 

9 A Yes. It was left -- it was left to the 

10 teachers to there were three physics teachers, and 

11 -- or maybe now I there were four actually. 

12 And it was left to the teachers to 

13 synchronize. It was important for all of us to teach 

14 the same topics at the same time, so that when the 

15 kids switched classes at the end of the cycle, we 

16 wouldn't be -- be duplicating one another's work, and 

17 the coordination of it we -- was left to the teachers 

18 themselves. 

19 Mr. Marks generated the you know, a list 

20 of topics that should be covered each cycle, and it 

21 wasn't always easy to to do, because it's hard 

22 sometimes to anticipate exactly how long a topic will 

23 last. 

24 So I have no specific recollection of 

25 that. I erred in some way. I'm sure there was some 

, 
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1 errors made among the teachers. 

2 We were doing something that we weren't 

3 supposed to be doing, but it was also a lot of 

4 confusion about it. 

5 I remember Mr. Marks had generated two 

6 documents. He did one document. Then he had -- he 

7 did a revised document. 

8 So I have no recollection whether I was 

9 teaching something that was taught in Cycle 1 or 

10 whether it was my mistake or somebody else's mistake. 

11 Q Now Number 3. 

12 A That's the same the same criticism. 

13 This was the same thing we discussed before. This was 

14 not a developmental lesson plan. 

15 I did a demonstration. The kids worked on 

16 a diad to answer particular questions. Then I showed 

17 them how to do the problem, and then they had to do 

18 the next problem. 

19 Q Number 4. 

20 A Well, I disagree. 

21 Q All right. Is there anything you want to 

22 say or add to that? 

23 A No, except that it's a difficult problem to 

24 do. It's a double variable problem, and those are --

25 those are -- are hard. 
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1 It's only in this particular -- this is the 

2 only time the Regents does those double variable 

3 problems. 

4 Q I don't understand what you mean. 

5 A Well, most of the mathematical problems in 

6 the physics Regents tests are single variable, but 

7 this one, this problem, is a double variable problem. 

8 Q It says here you failed to monitor to 

9 understand students failed to monitor students' 

10 understanding and confusion of the lesson. 

11 A No. I was -- no. I don't recall I 

12 don't recall failing to -- to do this. 

13 Q All right. 

14 A I don't know what he's referring to. 

15 Q Was there learning going on in that lesson? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Number 5. 

18 A Yes. There was -- there was a motivation. 

19 The motivation was the demonstration, and kids did a 

20 good job in the lesson, as I learned by checking it 

21 the next day. 

22 Q 

23 

24 ahead. 

25 A 

, 

What about 6? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'm sorry. 

No. The ballistics cart worked fine. 
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1 think there was I remember now. The first time I 

2 did it it fell off the table, but it was just a 

3 question of doing -- doing it a second time. 

4 Q 7 is -- you covered. Is there anything 

5 further to add? Do you --

6 A No. 

7 Q Number 8? 

8 A I have no -- no recollection of that, what 

9 he's referring to. 

10 Q Now, did you meet with -- did you refuse to 

11 meet at a post observation conference? Do you have 

12 any recollection? 

13 A No, I don't. 

14 Q I notice on the last page -- next to the 

15 last page last page it states that students were 

16 bored and confused. Do you agree? 

17 A No, I don't. 

18 Q And what do you base your disagreement on? 

19 A Well, I don't no. I don't really 

20 recall. They may have been confused, but boredom I 

21 didn't you know, that's not an easy emotion to pick 

22 up. I I don't really recall the lesson. 

23 Q Dr. Roemer, you were observed numerous 

24 times over the two-year period by -- year and a half 

25 period that you were at Edward R. Murrow. 
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1 that you were fairly observed? 

2 A No, I was not. 

3 Q Could you tell us why you feel that way? 

4 A Because they -- they came into my lessons 

5 with a preconceived idea about what the lesson should 

6 be like, and they saw me not doing this type of 

7 lesson. 

8 And they -- they assumed that the kids were 

9 not learning as much as they would have learned if I 

10 was teaching the way they believed a teacher should 

11 teach, so based on that assumption they -- they said 

12 my lessons were unsatisfactory. 

13 Q You have heard Dr. you've heard Mr. 

14 Bruckner and Mr. Cohen state that there was no 

15 learning going on in your class. 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Do you agree or disagree with that? 

18 A I disagree. 

19 Q Okay. Do you have any - - what do you base 

20 the fact that of your disagreement about that on? 

21 A He never used that phrase with me at all 

22 when I was there, all the conversations I've had,with 

23 

24 

25 

him. What I kept hearing was he was an unsatisfactory 

teacher. 

Q 

He never said no learning was taking place. 

And do you feel he was calling you -- when 
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1 you say, "he," you mean Dr. -- both of them, Mr. Cohen 

2 and Mr. Bruckner? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Do you feel that they were basing that on 

5 the fact that you were not teaching the way that they 

6 wanted you to teach? 

7 A Right. 

8 Q Were you ever accused of not honestly 

9 trying to perform your job as a teacher? 

10 A No. 

11 Q Were you ever accused of not perform --

12 strike that. 

13 Well, apart from refusing to attend the 

14 post observation conferences, which you stated the 

15 reasons, were you ever accused of refusing to do 

16 anything else that they asked to you do? 

17 A No. 

18 Q Dr. Roemer, were you prepared to adjust 

19 your teaching? 

20 A Yes, I was. 

21 Q And what -- and how did you -- how were you 

22 prepared to do that? 

23 A It's very hard to -- it's very hard to 

24 answer that question. 

25 Q Not what methods you were prepared to 
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change, but what procedures were you pre -- through 

what procedures were you prepared to change your 

teaching? 

A Well, through the conciliation procedure, 

where I saw conciliation as taking place in three 

three steps. 

The first step would be to try to identify 

exactly the difference between what I was doing in the 

class and what they wanted me to do or what the other 

teachers were doing or what I was doing in -- at 

Midwood. 

It's not at all clear exactly -- I mean, 

it's not clear in my mind exactly what the difference 

was between what I was doing in Midwood and what I was 

doing at Murrow. To me I was just adding things, but 

that would be the first step, to see if we could 

resolve that. 

Then the second thing would have been, 

since we were all agreed that the best lesson is the 

ones where there's the most amount of student 

participation, would be to find a way to measure 

student participation, maybe by tests at the end of 

the period or having people observe the activities of 

the students. 

And the third level that it could have been 
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1 conciliated would be by comparing the test scores my 

2 kids got with the test scores that the other teachers 

3 got. 

4 And if we had gone through these steps and 

5 these processes, it might have been possible for us to 

6 resolve our -- our differences. 

7 Q And this was through conciliation? 

8 A Through conciliation. 

9 Q Do you feel that there was a fair 

10 opportunity to conciliate here? 

11 A No. 

12 Q Why do you feel there was not a fair 

13 opportunity? 

14 A Well, it started from the very beginning. 

15 I got the letter from Mr. LOSchiavo saying that they 

16 would conciliate at the beginning of December. 

17 Q December 1994. 

18 A December of '94. And I was observed by Mr. 

19 Bruckner a couple of days later, and I always assumed 

20 that he had gotten the letter from Mr. LoSchiavo 

21 also. 

22 But at the post observation conference 

23 there was no mention of conciliation agreements, and 

24 he he just proceeded in his usual way, which was to 

25 criticize the lesson and not acknowledge anything good 
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1 about what I was trying to accomplish, and never 

2 having any praise for anything I did. 

3 Q At no time? 

4 A No. 

5 Q Were you honestly trying to teach to the 

6 best of your ability? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q Were you always prepared to help students 

9 individually? 

10 A Absolutely. 

11 Q Did you help students individually? 

12 A Yes, I did. 

13 Q Were you available to meet with students if 

14 they wanted to meet with you to discuss questions 

15 of -- physics questions? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q During the period -- there was criticism 

18 that during the period of times in your classes that 

19 the students were working at the desk by themselves 

20 independently, during those times what were you doing 

.21 at all times? 

22 A I was going around helping them to answer 

23 the questions. I found it very effective and 

24 satisfying to see kids not understanding, and then I 

25 make a few comments and they would -- I would inspire 
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1 them to get the -- to get the answer right. 

2 That's why I believe so strongly in my 

3 methods. I felt I was accomplishing much more at 

4 Murrow than I was at at Midwood. 

5 Q On the average, how many students would you 

6 be able to help individually during the class period? 

7 A Well, I could I could help 15 or 20. I 

8 remember a lesson I -- a lesson I gave, the one in 

9 fact I discussed with Mrs. Coppin, on how to do 

10 problems with the incline plane. 

11 I was able to go around to every student 

12 and see that every student knew how to do the 

13 problem. 

14 Many knew how to do it without my help, and 

15 others others needed some help, but every student 

16 in the class learned how to do it. 

17 Q 

18 teaching? 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 continue? 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 physics? 

25 A 

Dr. Roemer, do you want to continue 

Yes. 

What in what subject do you want to 

Physics. 

Do you feel that you're able to teach 

Yes, I do. 
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1 Q Do you feel that students will learn from 

2 your teaching? 

3 A Yes. 

4 MR. FIELD: Can I have two minutes? 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sorry? 

6 MR. FIELD: Can I have a two-minute 

7 break? 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sure. Then 

9 we'll finish up. 

10 (Whereupon, at 6:20 p.m., a recess 

11 was taken.) 

12 (Whereupon, at 6:30 p.m., the within 

13 hearing was resumed.) 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Field, 

15 anything further? 

16 MR. FIELD: Yes. 

17 CONTINUED DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

18 Q Dr. Roemer, in -- when you were teaching at 

19 Midwood you taught the developmental? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q When you taught at Erasmus you taught the 

22 methods that you were developing -- that you had been 

23 describing here which 

24 A 

25 

(Indicating) . 

THE HEARING OFFICER: You have to say 
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1 yes. 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q (Continuing) -- which you continued 

4 teaching at Murrow. 

5 A That's right. 

6 Q Could you tell us, was there any -- how you 

7 came to change? What influenced you in changing your 

8 methods? 

9 A Well, I was influenced by all the workshops 

10 and seminars that I attended, where they stressed 

11 getting students more actively involved in the lesson 

12 than they do -- than students do get involved -- than 

13 students get involved with the developmental lesson. 

14 And I was also influenced by the whole 

15 reform movement in education, in such documents as the 

16 New Compact for Learning. 

17 Then there's another document, Towards a 

18 Learner centered Curriculum and Learner Centered 

19 School, and another document that's part of the U.F.T. 

20 contract. It's -- it's called Teaching in the 21st 

21 Century. 

22 All of these -- all of these things 

23 encouraged and realized the importance of -- of 

24 students -- of changing instructional methods along 

25 the lines that I'm -- I'm proposing. 
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1 And I think it's just outrageous that --

2 that if I may say, that I've been out of teaching 

3 for two years, almost two years, and the board is 

4 trying to fire me for the very things that the board 

5 is trying to accomplish. 

6 Q Do you have anything further that you would 

7 want to add? 

8 A No. 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

10 This concludes the direct case -- I'm sorry. Direct 

11 testimony of Dr. Roemer. 

12 As I indicated informally and 

13 indicated on the record, it's my intent to finish 

14 these hearings in one more session. That will include 

15 cross-examination of Dr. Roemer. 

16 I will direct that Mr. Field be ready 

17 with any additional witnesses at that time, and I will 

18 direct that Mr. Mazzariello be ready with any rebuttal 

19 witnesses at that time. 

20 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I would like the 

21 documents, Mr. Edelman, in preparation for 

22 cross-examination, please. I would also like to have 

23 Mr. Roemer's all of Mr. Roemer's responses to his 

24 observations. 

25 

, 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's stay on 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



546 

1 the record. Let's stay on the record. Go ahead. 

2 MR. FIELD: His responses to his 

3 observations were not used in this hearing at all. 

4 Some of them may be privileged, may have been done at 

5 the direction of attorneys and were given to 

6 attorneys--

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: I have the 

8 answer. Finish up. 

9 MR. FIELD: (Continuing) on it, 

10 and I don't see why he has to -- his responses, his 

11 thinking, he sent letters to the board. 

12 He's had letters to the -- he sent 

13 letters to Dr. to Mr. Bruckner and Mr. Cohen. He 

14 sent in letters. They have them. They have those 

15 letters. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: May I see the 

17 document, Mr. Field? That's not it. 

18 MR. FIELD: This was - - I presume it 

19 was made last night. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: May I see it? 

21 I'm not going to look at it that much. 

22 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

23 to the Hearing Officer.) . 

24 THE HEARING OFFICER: Dr. Roemer, are 

25 you familiar with this document? 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



547 

1 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

2 THE HEARING OFFICER: Just tell me 

3 about it. You constructed it in the last couple of 

4 days? 

5 THE WITNESS: No. 

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: I'm sorry. I 

7 don't want to put words in your mouth. I apologize. 

8 THE WITNESS: No. It's -- it started 

9 with when I first got these. I was asked by my --

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: The charges. 

11 THE WITNESS: I was asked by my 

12 attorney to prepare responses, so I -- I prepared 

13 detailed responses with lists of all the documents 

14 associated with the charges, and then 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: Take your time. 

16 THE WITNESS: (Continuing) -- then 

17 in in preparation for the -- for these hearings, I 

18 took those documents and -- I took that document and 

19 sort of rewrote it. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: You took this 

21 document. When you say, "this document," you mean 

22 THE WITNESS: That's right. And 

23 rewrote it more towards what I knew was -- was going 

24 to be relevant. 

25 And then I fashioned -- I looked at 
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1 the observation reports and tried to match the 

2 observation reports with the charges and figure out 

3 what some rebuttals would be and the - - and my 

4 explanations. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: Anything else? 

6 Any further argument before I issue a ruling? 

7 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Just the fact that 

8 he did bring -- he brought the document with him 

9 today. 

10 He testified from it today. It's 

11 dated December 16th, and I really feel I'm entitled to 

12 it since it was referred to. 

13 MR. FIELD: He testified to one page 

14 and that's all today. It was used, but you took the 

15 document from him after that. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me say 

17 this. Three elements. Number one, clearly and 

18 properly so, I may add, Dr. Roemer indicated that in 

19 preparing for his testimony he created this document, 

20 and when people prepare documents for testimony, they 

21 generally are to be turned over to the other side. 

22 Nonetheless, to insure any 

23 confidentiality or other matter, I'm going to inspect 

24 this document in camera. 

25 I'm going to turn over what I deem 
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1 relevant to Mr. Mazzariello. I may turn over the 

2 whole document. I may only turn over parts of it. 

3 To the extent that I redact any 

4 material, I will turn over a redacted document to Mr. 

5 Mazzariello, with a redacted copy to Mr. Field, so Mr. 

6 Field will know exactly what I'm turning over. 

7 MR. FIELD: I would like to see 

8 first of all, this is our only copy of this document. 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's fine. 

10 MR. FIELD: I would like to -- I 
/ 

11 believe we have a right to have a copy of this 

12 document. I don't even know what's in the document. 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: Absolutely you 

14 have a right to have a copy of it. Here's Pages 1 to 

15 19. 

16 If you want I will have my office 

17 tomorrow make copies and just send you a copy. I have 

18 no problem with that. 

19 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have no problem 

20 with you having it. You're more than trustworthy. 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: I know less of 

22 what's in there than you, sir, but quite candidly I 

23 can't imagine there's going to be anything terribly 

24 inculpating, but that's not the point. 

25 The point is he testified quite 
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1 adequately. I'm sure that he prepared for these 

2 hearings in part by creating this document. 

3 And even though I agree with you, Mr. 

4 Field, he only looked at one or two -I don't remember-

5 but certainly no more than one or two pages while 

6 testifying, documents prepared for litigation, and 

7 more specifically for testimony, are not necessarily 

8 admissible, but certainly may be reviewed by the other 

9 party. 

10 And I further add that this is wholly 

11 consistent with the revised 3020-a, which really 

12 provides for extensive discovery so that these matters 

13 may be handled expeditiously. That's it. 

14 MR. FIELD: Well --

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, sir. Off 

16 the record. 

17 (Discussion held off the record.) 

18 MR. FIELD: Let me see that. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: Sure. 

20 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

21 to Mr. Field.) 

22 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Do you have dates 

23 in mind? 

24 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's always 

25 the hardest part. 
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1 MR. FIELD: I'm concerned about one 

2 thing--

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: Yes, sir. 

4 MR. FIELD: (Continuing) -- on this, 

5 that he stated that --

6 THE HEARING OFFICER: Dr. Roemer. 

7 MR. FIELD: Dr. Roemer stated that 

8 these were taken from reports that he furnished to 

9 lawyers also, and that -- and that is completely 

10 confidential. 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me say 

12 this. By the way, that's not wholly accurate. A 

13 document that may be given to an attorney does not 

14 necessarily reflect the attorney-client privilege. 

15 For example, if he gave you an 

16 observation report, quite obviously that's not the 

17 attorney-client 

18 MR. FIELD: But no, but a document 

19 that he created for the attorney on his explanation of 

20 charges would certainly be confidential. 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't want to 

22 debate this. We'll go on for hours. 

23 MR. FIELD: Assuming he never 

24 should -- assuming he never let a third party see that 

25 document, that would be confidential. 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me say 

2 this: There's case law that establishes that, for 

3 example, where an attorney acts in a non-attorney 

4 capacity and acts as investigator and takes notes of 

5 an interview, those notes are discoverable, even 

6 though they occur only between the attorney and an 

7 individual. Okay? 

8 MR. FIELD: But not of the client. 

9 Attorney -- an individual is another thing. That is a 

10 third party. 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me say 

12 this. 

13 MR. FIELD: I've been through the 

14 attorney-client thing many times. 

15 MR. MAZZARIELLO: When he brought it 

16 in and testified from it, he waived it. 

17 MR. FIELD: He did not. 

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Sure he did. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: That's another 

20 issue. That's another issue. I do not believe that 

21 this document in and of itself is privileged. 

22 I will ensure that nothing in this 

23 document that is either irrelevant or even that's 

24 exculpatory -that's another matter- will be furnished 

25 to Mr. Mazzariello. 
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1 Nonetheless I think he has a right to 

2 see the relevant portions of it. That's the law. Off 

3 the record. 

4 (Discussion held off the record.) 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: We are in 

6 recess until January 29, 1:30. It is my anticipation 

1 we will conclude the case at that point. 

8 (Whereupon, at 6:40 p.m., the within 

9 hearing was adjourned.) 
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HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: On the record. 

Mr. Field is going to ask Dr. Roemer a few more 

questions. I thought we were done last time, but I 

will permit a few more questions and we will go into 

cross-examination. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I did not receive any 

witness list or --

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Field, you 

were required to provide Mr. Mazzariello with those 

exhibits you intended to introduce into evidence. 

MR. FIELD: There are no more exhibits. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: With that 

representation, it's fine. You were also required 

to indicate to Mr. Mazzariello the document that was 

prepared by Dr. Roemer he used to testify from that 

went over everyone of these specifications. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Field was under a 

direction to mail them to y6u. You would review 

them in camera and get them to me. I don't have 

that document. I went on and on about it, how I 

wanted it and this is just a joke, It's making a 

mockery of this system and I am very upset about 

it. I think it's unprofessional. There is 

witnesses outside now. I don't know who they are 
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2 and I'm not done. You directed him to do something 

3 and it was not done. Now, I want sanctions. 

4 MR. FIELD: Mr. Mazzariello, the document 

5 was given to Mr. Edelman and Mr. Edelman sent it 

6 back to me the next day and I thought Mr. Edelman 

7 made a copy of it. 

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You know what, 

9 it's my error and only my error. I stand corrected. 

10 Let me double check and I may not have it with me. 

11 I didn't take all my exhibits with me. 

12 MR. FIELD: In fact, I believe you took 

13 the document with you that day. 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Do you have a 

15 copy of the document with you? 

16 MR. FIELD: I don't know. 

17 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Look for it, 

18 please. Off the record. 

19 (Discussion held off the record.) 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: As I indicated, 

21 I indicated this was my error, not Mr. Field's 

22 error. That is to say, I have reviewed Dr. Roemer's 

23 notes. I did not find any of them to be prejudicial 

24 and Mr. Mazzariello should see them. 

25 MR. FIELD: Not prejudicial? 
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HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The bottom line, 

Mr. Mazzariello should see them. It is absolutely 

my error. I should have forwarded a copy to Mr. 

Mazzariello before today. I indicated I would do so 

with anything I find that should be turned over. I 

didn't. I blew it. 

MR. FIELD: I want there to be an 

exception on the record. We feel this material was 

privileged and that waived the attorney, client 

privilege and also the introspection privilege 

remains that that document in that this was notes, 

not notes of transactions, but notes that the 

witness or Dr. Roemer was making as to his 

explanation and his consideration of how we would 

respond to those charges. By turning that over, in 

my opinion, those documents, we make it impossible 

for a person, for a witness, to make notes to 

themselves and to make notes as to what his 

testimony might be or what his reaction might be. 

I'm talking about attorney, client privilege. I am 

talking about the situation where a witness sits 

down and goes through charges or goes through 

whatever it is and makes notes of the possible 

responses or possible answers, which I believe the 
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term is introspection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I don't know, 

sir. 

MR. FIELD: I don't know the correct term 

and we state that he is entitled to that privilege 

and those notes should not be turned over for that 

reason. I'm not going to stand here and contend 

that those notes were made at my direction because 

they were not. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I appreciate 

that. 

MR. FIELD: T~ey were made and I think Dr. 

Roemer testified he made those notes two nights 

before in response to consideration as to how he 

would be responding to various charges, not turning 

those notes over to anybody else but myself. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Putting the 

issue aside to who the note~ were turned over to, 

it's my understanding they were made in preparation 

of his testimony. That was one of the first 

questions asked by Mr. Mazzariello. To the extent 

that Mr. Mazzariello seeks to introduce any such 

notes into this proceeding, I will allow you to 

raise an objection, but, nonetheless, I think his 
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2 right to review notes is proper and I note your 

3 objection for the record. 

4 MR. FIELD: I am not so much contending as 

5 far as introduction. I feel it is wrong to turn 

6 those notes over to the other side. 

7 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I recognize 

8 that. 

9 MR. FIELD: And completely and apart from 

10 whether they come into evidence in this case. 

11 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I recognize 

12 that. I will give you the right to argue that point 

13 because I already made a ruling on it. I will allow 

14 you to argue that your client is in some fashion 

15 prejudiced by virtue of Mr. Mazzariello's 

16 cross-examination to the extent that it may rely on 

17 that document. 

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, I want to 

19 say one thing. Mr. Roemer brought that document and 

20 was using it for the purpose of testifying. That's 

21 how I came to see it. He was reading from it. 

22 Therefore, any privilege was waived and Mr. Field 

23 should know that. Second, my witness list that I 

24 never got and you instructed him three-times to give 

25 me, I didn't get. There are witnesses outside I was 
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2 not privied to. 

3 MR. FIELD: As far as the notes go, my 

4 recollection is I know the notes were in Dr. 

5 Roemer's hands. He was not reading from them. I 

6 don't think his responses were reading from the 

7 notes. 

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Frankly, my 

9 perception, and I will stand corrected by panel 

10 members, is while he was reading from them, in terms 

11 of testimony, he was reviewing them and then giving 

12 testimony. To that extent, I agree he was not 

13 reading the notes into the record. 

14 MR. FIELD: As far as the witnesses go, I 

15 apologize. I forgot completely about telling Mr. 

16 Mazzariello who the witnesses were, while these were 

17 witnesses that Dr. Roemer and myself decided upon 

18 finally about a week ago. Yes, I should have 

19 contacted Mr. Mazzariello last week. 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Here's what you 

21 are to do. Tell Mr. Mazzariello the names of the 

22 witnesses. 

23 MR. FIELD: Howard Mathis, who was the 

24 conciliator appointed on the conciliation process. 

25 William Foster, who is the chapter chairperson at 
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2 Edward R. Murrow in the time in question and Tom 

3 Mulholland, who is the head of the physics teacher 

4 group in the City of New York. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Clearly you 

6 should have provided these names to Mr. Mazzariello 

7 beforehand. My directive or remedy will be that 

8 after they are presented as witnesses, if Mr. 

9 Mazzariello needs time for cross-examination, he 

10 will have it. It can be ten minutes or a recess of 

11 a couple of weeks. 

12 MR. FIELD: I do not anticipate he will 

13 want a recess for a couple of weeks. 

14 MR. MAZZARIELLO: That would fall into the 

15 strategy of the plan. The whole purpose of 

16 requesting the information way ahead of time is that 

17 I don't have to request an adjournment. I want to 

18 finish this case today. 

19 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let's not 

20 belabor this. 

21 MR. FIELD: I want .to put this on the 

22 record. It started with Mr. Mazzariello making 

23 those representations on the record on how great his 

24 witnesses were and built up his witnesses which was 

25 totally unnecessary. I look back at it. 
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Bruckner came and he was spewing about how wonderful 

he was, for what purpose? It was obvious. It was 

totally unnecessary and totally prejudicial to my 

client. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: You shouldn't have fell 

asleep on the direct-examination of your own 

client. You shouldn't have fallen asleep. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Michael, st9p. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm ready to go. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: When you do 

stuff like that, you are not ready. Finish your 

issue, your comment, then I want to go directly to 

cross-examination. 

CONTINUING DIRECT-EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

Q Dr. Roemer, when you decided to teach in 

the constructionist method, where did you get the 

idea of teaching in that fashion? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will object as to the 

question being leading and Mr. Roemer never 

indicated he used that methodology. In fact, he 

stated over and over that he doesn't have a name for 

how he teaches. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will allow 

where did he. 
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2 A It started when I was at Midwood High 

3 School teaching nonregents physics courses. 

4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: That is in the 

5 record. That clearly is in the record on 

6 direct-examination, Mr. Field. Are there any other 

7 places you got it from? 

8 Q Any workshops or --

9 A A large number of workshops and seminars 

10 and staff training programs I attended over the 

11 years, starting from Midwood up until I transferred 

12 to Murrow. 

13 Q Who gave the workshops? 

14 A The superintendent's office gave a large 

15 number of them. I went to those while I was at 

16 Erasmous, then we were given by the teachers, sent 

17 to consortium, then one was funded by the Woodrow 

18 Wilson Institute and then another was funded by the 

19 NSF, the National Science Foundation. 

20 Q Were you directed to go? 

21 A No, they were voluntary. 

22 Q And these workshops, what method of 

23 teaching did many of these workshops hold? 

24 A 

25 Q 

Constructionism. 

As far as you knew, was the 
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superintendent, was she in favor of constructionism? 

A Yes. 

Q What are you basing that on? 

A Well, from the nature of the staff 

development workshops that were given and directed 

by her superintendency they always emphasized the 

students doing activities in the classroom. There 

was never a workshop explaining how to ask students 

questions or how to give a good summary or how to 

write an aim for a lesson. 

Q Did anybody at any time ever offer to 

help you develope constructionism as a method of 

teaching one on one in your classroom? 

A No. 

Q Did the superintendent at any time ever 

offer these people who gave the workshops to come in 

and help you? 

A No. 

MR. FIELD: Mr. Edelman, there were 

certain exhibits. We went through the exhibits and 

while the Board offered a list of the exhibits on 

various responses, there was some things Dr. Roemer 

would like to add to, particularly Exhibit 1G, for 

example. It would not be 1G, the lesson plan. 
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There was a response also for Exhibit 2E --

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let me 

understand. You are telling me there was responses, 

written responses now that were not previously in 

the packet of materials submitted by the Board. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: That's not correct. 

They were submitted by the Board and we were asked 

to remove them by defense. 

MR. FIELD: I am not so sure of that. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: It is and we have 

transcripts. It's in the transcript. We were told 

to remove them. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Show Ms. Turner 

or Mr. Mazzariello which document you are talking 

about. Off the record. 

{Discussion held off the record.} 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: To the extent 

that they were previously attached to the 

observation, it's certainly appropriate. 

MR. FIELD: And the other ones are letters 

that were responses of Dr. Roemer to those objection 

reports. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Did you write 

these letters? 
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A Yes, I did. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: What I am going 

to do, over Mr. Mazzariello's objection, I am going 

to admit them. I will not take testimony on them. 

I will admit them and in your closing argument, you 

can make reference to them. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Do we at least get a 

copy of them? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Yes, you do. We 

will mark them starting Respondent's 36. 

Respondent's Exhibit 36 is entitled Lesson plan No. 

23 relating to Charge 1G. Respondent's 37, Lesson 

No. 31 relating to Charge 2G. Respondent's 38, 

which I think actually already is in evidence, I 

will repeat it, is a letter dated November 6, 1995 

addressed to Mr. Cohen from Dr. Roemer and relating 

to Charge 2E. Respondent's Exhibit 39, letter dated 

November 8, 1995 from Dr. Roemer to Mr. Cohen 

relating to Charge 2F. Respondent's 40, letter 

dated January 2, 1996 from Di. Roemer to Mr. Cohen 

relating to Charge 2F as well. 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibits 36, 37, 

38, 39 and 40, lesson plans, were marked for 

identification.) 
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HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Anything 

further, Mr. Field? 

MR. FIELD: Yes. 

Q During the time you were teaching physics 

at Edward R. Murrow, did the pass rates of the 

students taking the regents increase? 

A Yes, they did. 

Q Can you tell us what they were before and 

after? 

A In June of 1964 --

Q 1964? 

A Oh, 1994. The pass rate was 60 percent, 

then in June of 1995, the pass rate was 70 percent 

and I was told that the pass rate in June of the 

following year, the pass rate was 65 percent. 

Q Did you teach a full schedule of physics 

for the 1994, 1995 year when the pass rates went up? 

A Yes. I taught more physics than any 

other teacher. 

HEARING OFFICER EQELMAN: I thought you 

testified you taught fundamental science in 1994, 

1995? 

A Yes. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: He asked if you 
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2 taught a full 

3 A If you teach three periods in physics, 

4 that's full-time. 

5 Q How much did you teach? 

6 A The first cycle I taught four sections of 

7 physics, then the other three cycles I don't recall 

8 ever teaching four sections of physics. I thought I 

9 only taught three sections. I think one cycle I 

10 taught four. 

11 MR. FIELD: Nothing further. 

12 MR. MAZZARIELLO: For the purposes of 

13 cross-examination, Kay Turner is going to be 

14 handling the first part of it that incorporates some 

15 of the hearings I was unable to make, then I will 

16 take the second part. 

17 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will certainly 

18 permit that. I don't want questions going back and 

19 forth though. 

20 MR. MAZZARIELLO: No. 

21 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: That's fine. 

22 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. TURNER: 

23 Q Dr. Roemer, a young man by the name of 

24 Steven found a mistake on his test in your class; is 

25 that correct, sir? 
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A Yes. 

Q And that was because you made a mistake 

in your answer key? 

A That is correct. 

Q And the kids asked which question was the 

mistake and you told them to find it themselves? 

A That is correct. 

Q It's your function as a teacher to 

instruct the students, do you agree? 

A Yes. 

Q The kids didn't understand, you agree? 

MR. FIELD: I object to the question. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. If 

you don't understand, she will rephrase it. 

A I don't understand. 

Q Clearly the kids asked about the mistake 

because they didn't understand it? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. The testimony I --

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Just a minute. 

The students did not know which question or which 

answer was wrong; is that correct? 

A That is right. 

Q That's why they got it wrong? 

didn't understand, so they got it wrong? 
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2 A Oh, no. It had nothing to do with 

3 understanding the question. It had to do with 

4 grading the --

5 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Kay, don't let him talk. 

6 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

7 A There was a mistake on the answer key. 

8 Q You testified that you instructed them to 

9 go over there test and see what they did wrong? 

10 A Right. 

11 Q If they got it wrong, they didn't 

12 understand? 

13 MR. FIELD: Objection. That doesn't 

14 necessarily follow. 

15 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Well, he can say 

16 no. He can deny that assertion. Overruled. 

17 A That is right. 

18 Q Do you agree that feedback is necessary 

19 to the teaching and learnin~process? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q When you didn't answer them, you didn't 

22 give them any feedback, did you? 

23 A 

24 yourself. 

25 Q 

I did answer. I said find the mistake 

And, in your mind, that's feedback? 
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A Yes. 

Q I think we already established, if you 

would agree, that Ira Cohen was your immediate 

supervisor; is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q What was his title? 

A He was the assistant principal of 

science. 

Q He oversaw all of the physics teachers, 

the bio teachers, all of the science teachers in the 

u~it? 

A That is right. 

Q He directed you to observe other 

teachers; is that correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And I believe in your testimony you said 

you went once or twice, then you stopped going? 

A Yes. 

Q Even after Ira told you to go? 

A I don't recall. 

Q In your testimony you said that you went 

once or twice then you stopped going after Ira Cohen 

directed you to observe other teachers? 

A I don't even recall that he directed me 
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to observe other teachers. I guess he did. 

Q And you didn't go? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let him finish. 

A I observed one and I don't recall if he 

directed me to observe another one and I didn't do 

it. 

Q You didn't tell Saul Bruckner that you 

stopped going? 

A Oh, yes. That was clear that I stopped. 

Q You didn't tell him though? 

A No. 

Q You directly disobeyed a directive of 

your immediate supervisor, ain't that right? 

A No. 

Q He told you to go, you didn't go, but you 

didn't disobey him; is that your testimony? 

A No. My testimony is I was told to go --

Q My question is --

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let him answer. 

A He asked me to go .and I went. Now, 

whether he directed me again to go and I didn't go, 

I don't recall that. 

Q Let's talk about your method of teaching. 

Several times during your testimony you described 
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your method of teaching. You explained to us step 

by step. You took us through your methodology, 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you have an opportunity to read the 

transcripts prior to coming here today? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Which means you had an opportunity to 

also see that every time you explained your 

methodology to us, it was completely different, so 

you must realize that? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. 

Don't answer. If you want to point out the pages in 

the transcript and get him to acknowledge there are 

differences, you may. Sustained. 

MS. TURNER: Okay. 

Q Dr. Roemer, as part of Specification No. 

1, you were charged with delaying the start of the 

lesson; is that correct? 

MR. FIELD: Let's get the specifications 

out. 

Q Why don't we turn to Page 301. I'm 

looking at Line 14. As your attorney termed it, Dr. 
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2 Bruckner stated that your lesson was unsatisfactory 

3 because you delayed for various reasons, that you 

4 delayed the start of the lesson. "Do you have a 

5 comment to make on that answer? Yes. I don't 

6 recall exactly what happened, but there is no 

7 passing time between the periods. The beginning of 

8 one period is the same as the end of the other 

9 period." That's what I'm referring to. Okay? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q Now --

12 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sit down and let 

13 her continue. 

14 Q That's what I am talking about when I say 

15 in the words of your counsel you delayed your lesson 

16 for various reasons? 

17 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

18 MS. TURNER: But that's what you said. 

19 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Objection 

20 sustained. Ms. Turner, that's not proper. 

21 Q So there is no passing time between 

22 periods; is that correct, Dr. Roemer? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q That's not entirely accurate, is it, Dr. 

25 Roemer; yes or no? 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



/-

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Hearing 578 

A Yes, it is accurate. 

Q The truth of the matter is, Dr. Roemer, 

there is passing time at Midwood, there are just no 

bells? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Midwood or 

Murrow? 

Q Sorry. Murrow? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The question is, 

is there passing time just no bells? 

A No. That's not the way I understood it. 

There was no bells and no passing time. 

Q Okay. So it's your testimony that the 

children have no time to get to one class to the 

next? 

A That is correct. 

Q Thank you. Dr. Roemer, you were offered 

peer interventions? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. 

MR. FIELD: Objection. My understanding 

of any reference to peer intervention, anything 

about peer intervention is supposed to be 

confidential and I quote the contract 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will let you 
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do it. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, he brought 

it up during the trial. I made a big deal about it 

and I said I will push the door in when he talks 

about it. 

MR. FIELD: I didn't talk about peer 

intervention. It was not brought up. 

MS. TURNER: Yes, you did. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let me say this, 

short of spending the next hour finding in the 

transcript or finding that it does not appear in the 

transcript, I will permit the question. I will 

require the answer in closing argument. If Mr. 

Field believes it is not proper for the panel to 

consider this, I will allow him to make an argument. 

MR. FIELD: Mr. Edelman, I would like to 

cite you, particularly, Article 21G. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, he is not 

going to get an argument from the Board. If he 

didn't mention it, we would riot be talking about it. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I am admitting 

the question because the matter was addressed and we 

will have to deal with that when we review the 

transcript. That's the ruling. Will the court 
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2 reporter please read back the question? 

3 (Whereupon, the requested portion was 

4 read back by the reporter.) 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Peer intervention and administered by 

7 UFT; is that correct, sir? 

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: If you know. 

9 A I don't know. 

10 Q What if I told you that it was? 

11 A Yes, I would believe it. 

12 Q And isn't it true that you never 

13 completed peer intervention? 

14 MR. FIELD: Objection .. 

15 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Once again, same 

16 ruling. 

17 MR. FIELD: Mr. Edelman, I do not believe, 

18 and I will put it on the record, I don't believe at 

19 any time it never came up i~Dr. Roemer's direct 

20 testimony. I don't believe I mentioned it. 

21 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Field, you 

22 may be correct, but, then again, the Board may be 

23 correct that it was and I will be candid with you, I 

24 

25 

don't remember. This is not a 12 person jury that 

will be prejudiced by this being the record. 
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2 is a sophisticated panel. Answer the question. Did 

3 you ever complete it? 

4 A No. 

5 Q And isn't it correct that you stopped 

6 going to pre-observation conferences? 

7 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Outside the peer 

8 intervention? 

9 MS. TURNER: Peer intervention is done. 

10 He never completed it. He answered that. 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Isn't it true you stopped going to 

13 post-observation conferences? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q With respect to Specification 1J, sir, 

16 you testified that kids ended early and that you let 

17 them out. Did you have a chance to read 

18 Specification 1J.and what the charges were? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q And you testified that the kids ended 

21 their work early so, as a reward, you let them out? 

22 MR. FIELD: Objection. Can she point us, 

23 since she used the word testify --

24 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Do· you have the 

25 page number? 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



.. -
/ 
I 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

B 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Hearing 582 

MS. TURNER: No. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. 

Answer the question. 

A No, I don't. 

Q Do you remember testifying that you 

didn't understand the school policy? 

A No. 

MR. FIELD: School policy as to what? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: With respect to 

letting kids out early, obviously. 

A I testified, I think, that I didn't know 

the school policy. 

Q So you recall testifying that you didn't 

know the school policy, but you don't recall 

testifying that you let the kids out early? 

A No. I testified I let the kids out 

early. 

MS. TURNER: Can you read back his 

testimony? 

(Whereupon, the r~quested portion was 

read back by the reporter.) 

Q So you let the kids out early or you 

didn't? 

A I let. the kids out early. 
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2 Q And you remember that now? 

3 A Yes. 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Ms. Turner is done and I 

5 need time to go over the documentation I received. 

6 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: How much time? 

7 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Two hours. 

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Off the record. 

9 (Discussion held off the record.) 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Mazzariello, 

11 continue cross-examination. Go as far as you can, 

12 then we will recess. 

13 MR. FIELD: Can I excuse those people 

14 outside then? 

15 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sure. Off the 

16 record. 

17 (Discussion held off the record.) 

18 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. MAZZARIELLO: 

19 Q Do you mind if I call you Mr. Roemer? 

20 A No, not at all. 

21 Q The last question~your attorney asked was 

22 the question about the regents physics exam and you 

23 said you have above a 70 percent rating class? 

24 A No. 

25 Q You said a 70 percent passing rate of 
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physics in your school during the 1994, 1995 school 

year? 

A That is correct. 

Q And you taught three classes? 

A No. 

Q You didn't? I have a letter in my hand 

from Ira Cohen which you signed dated June 22, 1995, 

Mr. Roemer, and it says on the morning of June 22nd 

you and I had a brief discussion regarding your 

passing percentages and this year's physics exam. 

Do you remember getting this letter? 

A Yes. 

Q It goes on, you were pleased that this 

year's percentages were higher than last year, 

correct? 

A Correct. 

Q I asked that you explain the difference 

between the passing percentage of the kids in your 

class as opposed to the other teachers' kids. 

A Yes. 

Q Mr. Einstein had 84 percent pass, right? 

A Yes. 

Q Mr. Marx, 84.4? 

A Yes. 
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Q You had a 73.1, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q It goes on to say, although you taught 

three classes of physics, Mr. Einstein only taught 

two classes. You had a total of two or more classes 

passing in your classes then he did; is that 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q The letter also goes on to point out 

there is a number of students that absented 

themselves from the regents, was higher in your 

class than those of others. Do you remember that? 

A Yes. 

Q Mr. Einstein had seven absences, three of 

which were nonseniors. Mr. Marx had eight, one of 

which was a nonsenior and you had 12, eight of which 

was a nonsenior, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Aside from the lower passing percentages 

in your class, the total of ~o shows which are 

nonseniors, which was particularly disturbing since 

one of these students would be concerned about 

grades. Do you remember that? 

MR. FIELD: Can we see the letter? 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: He has a right 

3 to ask about it and you have a right to see it as 

4 well. 

5 MR. MAZZARIELLO: It's been turned over 

6 many times. 

7 MR. FIELD: I don't believe so. 

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let's not debate 

9 it. 

10 MR. MAZZARIELLO: No. 

11 Q You remember that you had more seniors 

12 not coming in your class than any other teacher in 

13 physics, Mr. Roemer? 

14 A I just remember the letter. 

15 Q All right. Did you dispute this letter? 

16 A No. 

17 Q So kids didn't want to come to your 

18 class, did they? 

19 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will take that 

21 they didn't take it at a higher rate than others. 

22 Q Students were not particularly thrilled 

23 about coming to your class, Mr. Roemer? 

24 

25 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. 
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2 Q Were there a number of students that 

3 complained about you to the assistant principal and 

4 principal, to your knowledge? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q There were a substantial number of 

7 students, weren't there? 

8 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

9 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q And they were really complaining about 

12 your teaching methodology, weren't they? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q In fact, the complaints were basically 

15 broken down into four major, five major categories; 

16 one, that you don't explain any of the questions 

17 very well. Do you remember the students complaining 

18 about that? 

19 A No. 

20 Q Do you remember receiving a letter from 

21 Ira Cohen stating directly what the students 

22 complaints about you were? 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

Yes. 

Do you dispute this letter?-

No. 
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2 concerning students that were complaining about your 

3 teaching them? 

4 A No. 

5 Q It would not be fair to say that? 

6 A No. 

7 Q Okay. I will show you a letter dated 

8 October 10,1995. It is to you. It's a two page 

9 document and it's from Ira Cohen. I will show it to 

10 you and ask you if that's your signature on the 

11 bottom of Page 2? Do you recognize that document? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q Is that document written by Mr. Cohen to 

14 you? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q Do you recognize that document? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Was it given to you? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q Did you sign for it? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q And the contents and substance of the 

23 letter is complaints that students were coming to 

24 Mr. Cohen about you and your teaching methodology? 

25 MR. F~ELD: Is it necessary for Mr. 
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Q Would you mind if I entered it into 

evidence? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: In fact, Mr. Edelman, I 

would like to move this into evidence which is the 

last letter I asked him about which he signed. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: One minute. Any 

objection, Mr. Field? 

MR. FIELD: Is that your handwriting? Did 

you attach the comment? 

A No. 

MR. FIELD: You never did? 

A No. 

MR. FIELD: No objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It's actually 

Board Exhibit 7 in evidence, letter dated June 22, 

1995 from Ira Cohen to David Roemer. We marked it 

Board's Exhibit 7 at this pOint and we received it 

in evidence at this point. 

(Whereupon, Board's Exhibit 7, letter, 

was marked for identification and received into 

evidence.) 

Q Mr. Roemer, would it be fai~ to say, you 

received a number of letters from Ira Cohen 
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Mazzariello to point at the witness? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Are you offering 

that Mr. Mazzariello? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Yes, and I would like an 

answer on the question. 

MR. FIELD: I need a voir dire. Did you 

attach any comment to this letter? 

A I don't think so. I'm not sure. 

MR. FIELD: No objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Board's Exhibit 

8 is marked at this point and received into 

evidence, October 10, 1995 letter from Ira Cohen to 

David Roemer. 

(Whereupon, Board's Exhibit 8, letter, 

was marked for identification and received into 

evidence.) 

Q Mr. Roemer, do you want to change your 

testimony as to not receiving several letters about 

complaints students have made about you to your 

supervisors; yes or no? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. You got a letter November 13, 
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1995, which I will show you, from Ira Cohen. Can 

you please look at it? Do you recognize that 

document, sir? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Off the record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

Q Do you recognize that document? 

A Yes. 

Q Was that document given to you? 

A Yes. 

Q You signed for it? 

A Yes. 

Q There is no dispute as to the 

authenticity of it? 

A No. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I would like to admit 

that document in evidence. 

MR. FIELD: No objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let's mark it 

Board's Exhibit 9 and it's received in evidence, a 

letter dated November 13, 1995 from Ira Cohen to 

David Roemer. 

(Whereupon, Board's Exhibi~ 9, letter, 

was marked for identification and received into 
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evidence.) 

Q Mr. Roemer, you also received several, 

apparently a large number of students in your 

classes complained about your methodology; is that 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And, in fact, they did a joint petition 

begging Mr. Cohen to help them? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained as to 

begging. They submitted a petition. 

Q Requesting Mr. Cohen to intervene on 

their behalf? 

A Yes. 

Q And this was 31 students, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q These are your physics students, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q They were complaining to Mr. Cohen about 

your ability to teach them, right? 

A Yes. 

Q And you totally discounted these 

complaints, didn't you? 

A No. 
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Q You didn't take into 

MR. FIELD: Wait. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: He said no. 

Q Would it be fair to say that the students 

were complaining how you did not teach them any 

information, whatsoever? 

A I don't know. 

Q Do you remember being told by Mr. Cohen 

and shown the students' letters? 

A No. I was never shown the letters. 

Q Dr. Roemer, your children were 

complaining that in the middle of a lesson they 

could not interrupt you because you said it would 

confuse the rest of the students. Do you remember 

MR. FIELD: Objection. If he is going to 

read from the letters, Dr. Roemer said he never saw 

the letters. Is Mr. Mazzariello yelling about my 

not turning over evidence? He never turned over 

those documents to look at and I would like to have 

copies of them. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: They were handed over. 

MR. FIELD: They were not handed over, Mr. 

Mazzariello, and you are misstating the facts. 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Do you want to 

3 go through your records? 

4 MR. FIELD: Is it necessary for Mr. 

5 Mazzariello to laugh. 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will laugh at your 

7 face any time. 

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will allow you 

9 to. look at it. Nonetheless, the question itself is 

10 proper. Read the last question back, please. 

11 (Whereupon, the requested portion was 

12 read back by the reporter.) 

13 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Do you remember 

14 them complaining in that regard? 

15 A No. I have no recollection of that. 

16 Q Mr. Roemer, you started your education 

17 career at the Board of Ed at Midwood High School, 

18 correct? 

19 Yes. A 

20 That's where you received your tenure? Q 

21 Yes. A 

22 Q 

23 you not? 

24 A 

25 Q 

You were excised from that school, were 

Yes. 

Was the developmental lesson plan, was 
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2 that used at Midwood, right? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q You liked it you said, right? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q And your peers used it, right? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q From Midwood you went to Erasmous, 

9 correct? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q From Erasmous you were excised, correct? 

12 A No. 

13 Q You were not excised? 

14 A No. 

15 Q Do you know what excised means? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q And your testimony under oath is that you 

18 were not excised? 

19 A That is correct. 

20 Q Were you transferred? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q Was it a UFT transfer? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q What kind of transfer was it, a racial 

25 transfer, a health transfer, do you know? 
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2 A Well, it's either racial or the regular 

3 UFT transfer. 

4 Q It was not racial in your case, was it? 

5 A No. 

6 Q So you were asked to leave Midwood and 

7 you went to Erasmous --

8 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

9 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. 

10 Q When you got to Erasmous, you were 

11 teaching ninth grade physical science? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q That's where you explained your method of 

14 teaching, correct? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q You used your own method of experience, 

17 correct? 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q You used your own experience based on the 

20 workshops and seminars you attended and/or listened 

21 to? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q And you believe that the kids, the 

24 children, had to have an activity to do in your 

25 class; is that right? 
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A That is right. 

Q And you did not rely on oral 

communication, your activity was involving learning, 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q That's substantially different than the 

developmental lesson plan, is it not? 

A That is correct. 

Q It was a spin-off off the developmental 

lesson plan? 

A I don't understand the question. 

Q Was your methodology a spin-off of a 

developmental lesson plan or totally a new concept 

based on your own workshops and seminars as you 

said? 

A I guess it would be better described as a 

spin-off rather than a totally new concept. 

Q When you got to Murrow, did you use the 

developmental lesson plan at all or did you start 

off with your type of teaching right off the bat? 

A I started with that type teaching. 

Q At the beginning of the school year, you 

heard Saul and Ira testify that they g~ve a packet 

of information t~lling you exactly what kind of 
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classes they want taught. Do you remember that? 

A I don't recall that. 

Q In the beginning of the year they hand 

you a packet of whatever the goals were in the 

school year, what you were instructed to teach. You 

don't remember that? 

A I have no recollection of that at all. 

Q What year did you start teaching at 

Murrow? 

A 1994. 

Q And that would encompass the 1994, 1995 

school year? 

A Yes. 

Q You remember at the beginning of the 

1995, 1996 school year that you were instructed that 

because you received a U for the prior year, they 

wanted you to teach a certain way? 

A I am sorry. I didn't follow that way. 

Q You were rated U your first year at 

Murrow? 

A Yes. 

Q They didn't like the way you taught, 

correct? 

A Yes. 
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2 Q They did a lot of unsatisfactory 

3 evaluations, correct? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q And you grieved everyone of them? 

6 A The answer is no. 

7 Q Did you grieve any of them? 

8 A Yes, I did. 

9 Q Did you grieve your U rating from the 

10 prior year? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q And you lost, didn't you? 

13 A No. 

14 Q Was the U ever turned to an S? 

15 A No. 

16 Q So you lost, didn't you? 

17 A No. 

18 Q You won? 

19 A They didn't have the hearing. 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The record 

21 reflects that he got a U and it remained a U. Let's 

22 move on. 

23 Q Dr. Roemer, you heard Saul Bruckner 

24 testify that when you started at Murrow, he didn't 

25 care how you taught. Do you remember that, what 
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2 methodology you used, do you remember that? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q And, in fact, Mr. Bruckner testified 

5 quite frankly that he didn't really care what 

6 methodology you used, as long as you covered the 

7 curriculum. Do you remember that? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q Now, is it your testimony that Saul 

10 Bruckner and Ira Cohen didn't try to help you in 

11 your teaching? 

12 A No. 

13 Q They did not try to help you? 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: No, they didn't 

15 try to help you or no, it's not your testimony that 

16 they 

A 17 They tried to help me. 

18 You did not appreciate their help, did Q 

19 you? 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 they were 

25 correct? 

Yes. 

You didn't appreciate it, right? 

I did not appreciate it. 

You didn't appreciate it because you felt 

not giving you any construct~ve feedback, 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



(' 1 Hearing 601 

2 A That is correct. 

3 Q You felt you were teaching and teaching 

4 satisfactory and they were just mad at you because 

5 they wanted you to teach their way and not your way, 

6 correct? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q When you started at Murrow, you went from 

9 Midwood to Erasmous to Murrow, and how many years 

10 did you do all three schools, five? 

11 A Five and five. 

12 Q You were five years at Midwood? 

13 A Right. 

14 Q You got your tenure there? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q You went to Erasmous for how many years? 

17 A Five. 

18 Q Then how many years at Murrow? 

19 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: We know it's a 

20 little over a year plus. We know that. 

21 Q When you started at Murrow, didn't you 

22 meet with the principal of the school and didn't he 

23 give you a packet of information that told you what 

24 he wanted you to teach, what he expect~d of his 

25 teachers in the school? 
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2 A I suppose. 

3 Q Did he tell you that he demanded a 

4 developmental lesson plan of you? 

5 A No. 

6 Q He never told that to you, did he? 

7 A No. 

8 Q He never even told you how to teach, did 

9 he? 

10 A No. 

11 Q You heard him testify he didn't care how 
, 

12 you taught, right? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q Now we are getting into a problem where 

15 students were complaining about your teaching to the 

16 supervisors, right? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Now the supervisors are in a dilemma, Mr. 

19 Roemer, because you had a Urating and you have 

20 students that are complaining about you. Do you 

21 feel that the students had a legitimate complaint 

22 against you? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q Did you try to correct you~ ability to 

25 teach the students to cater to their needs? 
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A Yes, I did. 

Q Do you think that you accomplished it in 

the end? 

A I don't know. 

Q You don't know? Well, your regents 

scores were not as good as the other teachers? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: What is the objection? 

MR. FIELD: I will tell you. The 

complaints occurred in the 1995, 1996 school year. 

The regents scores were the 1994, 1995 school year. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: That's a fair 

objection. Sustained. 

Q You do not have a name for your method of 

teaching, right? 

A That is correct. 

Q And do you think that's a little strange? 

A No. 

Q You don't think it's a little strange 

that you have no methodology, whatsoever, no name 

for your methodology? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Answer. 
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Q Yes or no will work. I'm not asking for 

an explanation. Do you think it's strange? 

A No. 

Q Your attorney gave me some documentation 

at the beginning of this hearing today, Lesson 1G. 

I will show it to you. Is that your lesson plan? 

A Yes. 

Q That's what you had in your hand that 

day? 

A Yes. 

Q How long have you been teaching total, 11 

and a half years? 

A That is correct. 

Q Your teaching is expierence is based 

solely at the Board of Ed? 

A Yes. 

Q You have no expierence in a private 

school? 

A No. 

Q That lesson you have is generated for 1G? 

A Yes. 

Q And that's November 18th, correct? 

A Yes. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Of 1994? 
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Q 1994. You have a name on the top of it, 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Is that developmental lesson plan in your 

handwriting? 

A No. 

Q Okay. So your methodology had a name 

which was the developmental lesson plan, correct, 

you both have those, right? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you use motivations in your lesson 

plans? 

A Yes. 

Q Where is the motivation in that lesson 

plan? 

A It's next to the material section. 

Q Read it? 

A "Materials include projectile motion 

device, incline plane." 

Q What was the motivation for the students? 

A The motivation was the demonstration with 

the projectile device. 

Q Tell the arbitrator what th~ 

demonstration consisted of. Get up and show us. 
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A The projectile motion device -- there 

were two of them. This one, let me see. Oh, this 

one was a projectile. It sent out two spheres, one 

sphere was sent out with a spring and the sphere 

went like this. Now, as you would expect, you throw 

something horizontal, like a ball. It goes 

horizontally for a while then touches ground. At 

the same time that ball went horizontally, another 

ball was dropped vertically without a spring force 

and that was the demonstration. 

Q Mr. Roemer 

MR. FIELD: Can he finish? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Have you 

finished? 

A Yes. 

Q How long did that demonstration take? 

A Well, I guess it takes maybe five or ten 

minutes. 

Q Your motivation took five or ten minutes? 

A I would say so. 

Q This particular motivation consisted of 

two spheres. What were they, tennis balls? 

A No, little metal spheres. 

Q What projectile device are you talking 
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about? What spheres are you talking about? 

Enlighten me. 

A Ball bearings. 

Q You had two ball bearings and you took 

one and threw it? 

A Oh, no. The ball bearing was thrown by 

the spring in the projectile motion device. 

Q Which was what? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Is that like a 

plunger from the video game? 

A That is right. It would be like one of 

those pinball machines, you pull it back then it 

hits the ball bearing and the ball bearing shoots 

up. 

Q That took five or ten minutes to do? 

A Yes. 

Q You have a name, you have a motivation. 

Do you have a do-now in your lesson? 

A Yes. 

Q Where is the do-now in that lesson? 

A The first paragraph. 

Q So that's a handout you gave the 

students? 

A Yes. 
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2 Q Is the handout what you have in your 

3 hand? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q After you had a student read the first 

6 paragraph, which was the do-now, the purpose of the 

7 do-now is to keep the children occupied while you do 

8 administrative duties? 

9 A No. 

10 Q It's not under the developmental lesson 

11 plan? A do-now is put on the board while the 

12 teacher takes attendance, administrative things? 

13 A I never took attendance in the 

14 beginning. I started the lesson in the beginning. 

15 I took attendance during the class. 

16 Q You didn't take attendance during the 

17 do-now? 

18 A It was never an official do-now. 

19 Q Yes or no? 

20 A No. I never took it in the beginning of 

21 the class. 

22 Q So you have a name, you have a 

23 motivation, you have a do-now. What was your medial 

24 summary? 

25 A There was none. 
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2 Q What about a final summary? 

3 A There was no final summary. 

4 Q Can I have that lesson plan back? After 

5 the children were done with their one paragraph that 

6 consisted of five lines, what were they told to do? 

7 A I would have to take a look at the lesson 

8 plan. If I recall the lesson, there was a diagram 

9 they had to discuss among themselves, the result of 

10 the experiment, then I showed them how to do the 

11 first problem and their job in the class was to do 

12 the second problem. 

13 Q Did they understand it? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q Did they have any problems with it, 

16 whatsoever? 

17 A Yes, they had problems. 

18 Q And was the problem based on your ability 

19 to give the children the necessary information they 

20 needed or was it their problem? 

21 A I don't understand the question. 

22 Q Was it the fault of the children for not 

23 getting it or your fault? 

24 A Well, not one's fault. It was a 

25 difficult thing to do. 
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Q So it was not a good lesson plan? 

A I don't understand the question. 

Q You said it was a difficult. thing to do, 

that the children didn't get. Therefore, i.e., it 

must have been a bad lesson plan? 

A No. The lesson plan was very good. 

Q It was a very good lesson plan that the 

children didn't understand, right? 

A No. It was a good lesson plan that the 

students struggled with and many of the students got 

it, but I'm sure some of them didn't get it. 

Q Mr. Bruckner criticizes you and rates you 

unsatisfactory and said you failed to properly 

involve your students in the lesson and you disputed 

that on direct testimony saying no, no, no. I 

actively involve my students because I gave them 

something to do. 

A That is correct. 

Q All right. He said you did not use your 

class instruction time effec~ively and you disputed 

that saying that's not true because what I did was I 

handed out to the children something they could do 

the whole period. 

A That is correct. 
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Q You walked around the class or stood in 

the front of the room and watched them do it, right? 

A That is correct. 

Q And Mr. Bruckner says you failed to 

properly plan the lesson. 

MR. FIELD: Can I ask what you are reading 

from? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I am reading from the 

charges. 

Q And he said that you failed to properly 

plan the lesson and you disputed that by saying 

that's totally gibberish because a lesson is in my 

hand, right? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Can you answer 

that, sir? 

A No, I can't answer that. 

Q Mr. Roemer, Saul Bruckner, Ira Cohen, are 

they out to get you? 

A No. 

Q Is there a conspiracy to terminate your 

employment at the Board? 

A I don't know. 

Q And if there was, who do you think would 

be the person that would start such a conspiracy? 
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2 A I don't know. 

3 Q But Ira and Saul are not part of it? 

4 A No. 

5 Q Is Joyce Coppin involved in it? 

6 A No. 

7 Q I don't remember anyone else that 

8 testified against you, so who could be a part of the 

9 conspiracy to rid you of the system? 

10 A I don't know. 

11 Q Does it bother you that you are on trial 

12 here? 

13 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Majorly 

15 relevant. I will allow it. 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Does it bother you that the Board of Ed 

18 is saying you are incompetent and we don't want you 

19 to work for us anymore? 

20 A Yes, it does. 

21 Q Does it bother you that for two 

22 consecutive years you were rated unsatisfactory by 

23 one of the better principals of the school system? 

24 A 

25 Q 

Yes. 

Do you have any opinion of Saul Bruckner? 
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A Yes. 

Q Is he an outstanding principal? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Irrelevant. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: What do you mean? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: This gentleman's 

opinion of Saul Bruckner --

MR. MAZZARIELLO: His opinion. What else 

is he defending? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. 

Q Is Ira Cohen a good supervisor? 

A Yes. 

Q So you had a good principal and a good 

supervisor at Murrow? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you have bad kids? 

A No. 

Q Did you have bad kids at Erasmous? 

A No. 

Q Did you ever make .it seem like it was the 

children who couldn't learn and not you that could 

not teach? 

A No. 

Q You never ever placed the blame on the 
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children? 

A No. 

MR. FIELD: Can we take two minutes. 

(Whereupon, a short break was taken.) 

Q Mr. Roemer, I am calling your_attention 

to September of 1994. Is that the year you started 

at Murrow? 

A Yes. 

Q I will show you a two page document 

signed by you and Saul Bruckner and ask you if you 

remember this document? 

MR. FIELD: I think this has been marked 

in evidence? 

A Yes. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: What is the date 

on it. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: September 19, 1994. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It's Board's 

Exhibit 5 in evidence. 

Q You met with Mr. Bruckner at the start of 

your career at Murrow, did you not? 

A Yes. 

Q He gave you this document after meeting 

with him in his office, did he not? 
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A Yes. 

Q He basically laid out the duties and 

responsibilities of a teacher in his school, 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q He also put in there that lesson plans 

are required, 'correct? 

A Yes. 

Q You did receive a satisfactory rating 

prior to this school year, did you not? 

A Yes. 

Q So he didn't tell you how to do lesson 

plans, did he? 

A That's right. 

Q He didn't even tell you how to teach? 

A That is right. 

Q He just made you aware of what the school 

policy was for instructions and curriculum? 

A Correct. 

Q You went that whole year and got a U at 

the end of the year, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q At the start of the following school 

year, in October of 1995, did you have the same 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



1 Hearing 616 

2 meeting with Saul Bruckner? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q In fact, he told you if you want to get a 

5 satisfactory rating this year, that you have to work 

6 on four things, correct? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q One of them was to construct a lesson 

9 plan which reflected the ideas and approaches of 

10 regents and school syllable? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Two preparations of written lesson plans 

13 for every lesson you teach, correct? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q And increase student participation during 

16 your lesson, correct? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q And four, preparation of the lesson which 

19 are not exclusively completed based on worksheets, 

20 correct? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q Prior to that, Saul and Ira have been 

23 trying to convince you that your methodology is not 

24 working, correct? 

25 MR. FIELD: Objection. 
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Q Prior to the 1995, 1996 school year, Saul 

and Ira had met you several times and told you that 

they didn't think your methodology was working, 

right? 

A Yes. 

Q In fact, they observed you, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And they rated you unsatisfactory on your 

observation, correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And then you refused, started to refuse 

going to pre and post-hearing conferences? 

A That is correct. 

Q You just felt you were right and they 

were wrong, correct? 

A I don't understand the question. 

Q You should never ask an open-ended 

question on cross-examination, but why didn't you 

just listen to your supervisors at the beginning of 

the 1995, 1996 school year arid change your 

methodology? 

A Because I felt that, I believed that the 

conciliation agreement was still open.-

Q Forget about the conciliation 
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MR, FIELD: Let him answer the question. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Is that your 

full answer? 

A Yes. 

Q Forget about the conciliation agreement, 

which is not required under anything I know of, Why 

didn't you just try to improve your teaching so you 

can get an S rating and teach the students? 

MR. FIELD: Objection to the question. He 

answered the question about the conciliation 

agreement. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Was there any 

other reason why you didn't change your methodology 

and get the S rating? 

A Yes. I saw that -- my feeling was that 

the only thing that would have satisfied them was if 

I stopped giving the kids the student lesson plan at 

the beginning of the period and if I engaged in more 

oral questioning of the students and I believe that 

this method of teaching is very ineffective and --

Q Mr. Roemer 

MR. FIELD: Let him finish. 

A I am finished. 

Q Your supervisors told you that they 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



, , 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Hearing 619 

didn't want you teaching this way anymore and you 

totally disregarded them, correct? 

A No, that's not correct. 

Q You didn't start using the developmental 

lesson plan, right? 

A Correct. 

Q So you totally disregarded Dr. Bruckner's 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. , 

A Yes. 

Q When your boss tells you to do something, 

shouldn't you do it? 

A Yes. 

Q And you didn't, did you? 

A No. 

Q That's just being abstinent, don't you 

think? 

A No. 

Q You don't think yqu jeopardized your 

career by saying no? 

A No. 

Q Do you think you are a good-teacher? 

A Yes. 
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2 Q Do you consider yourself an intellect? 

3 A I don't understand the question. 

4 Q Do you consider yourself intellectual? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Then it must bother your conscience that 

7 your students thought you were a terrible teacher? 

8 A No, it doesn't. 

9 Q It doesn't bother your conscience that 

10 your supervisor thinks you are an incompetent 

11 teacher? 

12 A No, it doesn't. 

13 Q They just don't know what they are 

14 talking about? 

15 A I would not put it like that. 

16 Q They are wrong according to your 

17 interpretation of methodology? 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q You are aware, between Saul Bruckner and 

20 Ira Cohen, there is like a hundred years 

21 experience? Are you aware of that? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q You are aware of how many times they 

24 observed you teach? 

25 A Yes. 
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2 Q You are also aware that they were all 

3 unsatisfactory lessons? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q And you never tried to better yourself, 

6 did you? 

7 A No. 

8 Q I'm going to show you a very lengthy 

9 document dated October 13, 1995. I am not sure if 

10 this is in evidence. It's to you from Mr. 

11 Bruckner. It has your lesson plan and response and 

12 I am just going to ask you to look it over and ask 

13 if you remember it? 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I don't think it 

15 is in evidence. 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can I admit this into 

17 evidence. 

18 MR. FIELD: If I can have a copy. 

19 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: In evidence, 

20 Board's Exhibit 10, a letter dated October 

21 MR. FIELD: I would like to look at it. 

22 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Do you have any 

23 voir dire? 

24 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I am going-to say 

25 something for the last time. All of this stuff was 
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handed over. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Whether it was 

or not --

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, you know 

me. I don't hold anything. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I don't believe 

you do. Whether this document was not handed over, 

I don't know. Any voir dire, Mr. Field? 

MR. FIELD: I have no objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: In evidence, 

Board's Exhibit 10, letter dated October 13, 1995 

with Lesson 13 accompanying it and with a letter 

dated October 26, 1995 attached from Dr. Roemer to 

Mr. Bruckner and an additional letter dated October 

5, 1995 to Dr. Roemer from Dr. Bruckner all in 

evidence as Exhibit 10, so we marked it now and 

admitted it now. 

(Whereupon, Board's Exhibit 10, letter, 

was marked for identification and received into 

evidence.) 

Q Dr. Roemer, do you remember the meeting 

you had with Saul Bruckner at the beginning of your 

tenure at Murrow? 

A I don't understand the question. 
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HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: When you started 

in September of 1994. 

A Yes, I do. 

Q He was very candid and up front with you 

about what he expected from you as a teacher, 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And I already stated you got a U rating. 

You met the second year with Dr. Bruckner again? 

A Yes. 

Q He told you in order for you to receive a 

satisfactory rating, you should do A, B, C and D? 

A Yes. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: We have been 

through this, Michael. 

Q And you didn't change your methodology at 

all that school year? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

plans that 

That is correct. 

And you received a U? 

Yes. 

And you were removed from the classroom? 

That is correct. 

Okay. Do you believe that your lesson 

you hand out to the children are 
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satisfactory to teach them, sir? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q You believe that the students are able to 

learn the aim for the day based on your handouts, 

correct? 

A No. 

Q Do you help children during your class --

MR. FIELD: Mr. Edelman, the last exhibit 

that was admitted, so the record is straight, was 

already admitted as Board's Exhibit 3. It's a 

duplicate. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: It's a duplicate 

to that extent. Thank you, sir. 

Q Did you help instruct the children during 

the classroom while they were doing their lesson 

plan? 

A Yes. 

MR. FIELD: Well,objection, while they 

were doing their lesson plan. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. 

Answer. 

Q You handed out student lesson plans, did 

you not? 

A Yes. 
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2 Q You were transferred out of Erasmous. 

3 You wanted to teach physics, correct? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q You wanted to have more academically 

6 challenged students, correct? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q You applied for the UFT transfer, right? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q You stated there was no difference 

11 between Erasmous and Murrow, right? 

12 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

13 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Tell me if it's 

14 not true, tell me. 

15 A No. 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I am taking it out of 

17 the transcript. 

18 Q When you got to Murrow, you took it upon 

19 yourself to decide what you wanted to teach, didn't 

20 you? 

21 MR. FIELD: What he wanted to teach? 

22 Objection. 

23 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I don't 

24 understand the question either. 

25 Q You decided to teach the way you wanted 
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to teach and nobody was going to change your mind, 

correct? 

A That's not correct. 

Q So after one U rating, you were told to 

change your methodology and you admitted that you 

did not. Don't you think that is a little 

MR. FIELD: Objection. This was gone over 

many times. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Sustained. We 

have been through this many times. Next question. 

Q You considered your teaching methodology 

as innovative? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you discuss your innovation and your 

ideas with anyone at Murrow? 

A Yes. 

Q Who did you speak to? 

A Well, Mr. Cohen, Mr. Bruckner, Mr. Marx, 

my colleagues in general, Bill Forster. 

Q Bill Forster who is here today? 

A Yes. 

Q So you spoke with other people at the 

school about your methodology? 

A Yes. 
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Q Nobody discouraged you from using it, 

right? 

A Well, I don't understand the question. 

Q When you first got to Murrow, did anyone 

tell you how to teach? 

A No. 

Q So nobody told you how to teach, did 

they? 

A No. 

Q You are the one who got the U? 

A Right. 

Q Then he asked you to change your 

methodology? 

A Yes. 

Q A.nd you didn't change it, right? 

A Right. 

Q Let's talk about the conciliation 

process. You applied for it? 

A Yes. 

Q And did you apply:for it through the UFT 

contract? 

A Yes. 

Q And you felt that the conciliation 

process broke down, did it not? 
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A Yes. 

Q And you felt that the conciliation 

process didn't work at all, did it? 

A I don't understand the question. 

Q Did the conciliation process work for 

you? 

A No. 

Q You met with Joyce Coppin? 

A Yes. 

Q And you think she did a horrendous job in 

how she handled it? 

MR. FIELD: Objection to the word 

horrendous. 

A No, I don't think that. 

Q You think she acted professionally? 

A I don't know. 

Q Were you happy with the result of the 

conciliation process? 

A No. 

Q Were you represented by your UFT chapter 

rep when you went there? 

A No. 

Q Mr. Foster didn't go with you to Joyce 

Coppin's office? 
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2 A He was there, but Mr. Arbitrello was the 

3 one sitting next to me. 

4 Q I asked you if Mr. Foster was present 

5 with you during the conciliation with Joyce Coppin? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q He was the chapter chairman? 

8 A That is correct. 

9 Q You had a lot of doing with Mr. Foster 

10 because he handled your grievances and other stuff, 

11 correct? 

12 A That is correct. 

13 Q You felt that the conciliation process 

14 broke down because you were willing to give and the 

15 school system was not? 

16 A I don't understand the question. 

17 Q Apparently you are not happy with the 

18 conciliation process based on your direct testimony 

19 of two days on the stand, correct? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q You were not happy with what happened, 

22 were you? 

23 A Correct. 

24 Q Therefore, something must have happened 

25 to make you not happy? 
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2 A That is correct. 

3 Q Tell us what happened that did not make 

4 you happy? 

5 A I was not provided with a conciliator and 

6 I was not given an opportunity to come to terms with 

7 the principal. 

8 Q And that's what you were upset about? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Dr. Roemer, your boss tells you to do 

11 something, shouldn't you do it? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q And you didn't, did you? 

14 A That is right. 

15 Q And you went complaining every step of 

16 the way about Bruckner and Cohen and writing all 

17 kinds of long-winded responses to their 

18 unsatisfactory observation of you; is that correct? 

19 A Not correct. 

20 Q You wrote a response to every 

21 observation, did you not? 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

No, I did not. 

You didn't? A majority of them? 

No. 

What do you mean no? We have them. 
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Almost everyone of them are attached a response 

from you? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let's go on. 

Q Do you think, in your own opinion, Dr. 

Roemer, do you think you are a pain in the ass? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let's go on. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: What you do you mean? 

Q You disobeyed direct orders --

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Mr. Mazzariello, 

we have been through this five times. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I had to listen to three 

days of ~his stuff for eight hours. I think I am 

entitled to go a little on to make a point. Don't 

you think? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: No. 

Q When the kids started complaining about 

not learning anything in your classroom and your 

methodology, did you modify your methodology, 

whatsoever? 

A Yes. 

Q You slowed down, right? 

A Yes. 

Q And you fully explained concepts, 
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2 correct? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q And a teacher of 11 years, it had to be 

5 explained to you that you had to slow down and 

6 explain concepts; is that what you are telling me? 

7 A No. 

8 Q In March of 1995, you met with Mr. Mathis 

9 and Mr. Bruckner, right? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q And when they met with you, they had 

12 asked you to explain your methodology of teaching? 

13 A Yes. I don't really recall. 

14 Q It's also your testimony that you never 

15 found out about the conciliation process being over, 

16 right? 

17 A That is correct. 

18 Q You thought it was still going on, right? 

19 A Correct. 

20 Q You felt that the purpose of the 

21 conciliation process was to allow teachers to 

22 participate in school process, correct? 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

No. That's incorrect. 

You didn't say that? 

No, I. did not. 
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2 Q What is the purpose of conciliation? 

3 A To allow teachers to participate in the 

4 decisions about the methodology to use in the 

5 classroom. 

6 Q Supervisors can't tell teachers what to 

7 use in the classroom unless they are rated U; you 

8 are aware of that? 

9 A I don't understand the question. 

10 Q Based on your definition of conciliation, 

11 you felt that you should be involved in the process, 

12 right? 

13 A That is right. 

14 Q If you are rated U in the New York City 

15 Board of Education, you lose that option, don't you? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q So you didn't have the option, Dr. 

18 Roemer. Why did you make a big stink about it? Why 

19 didn't you go to work and do your job? 

20 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

21 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let's go on. 

22 Q Are you aware of the UFT contract of 

23 conciliation? 

24 A 

25 Q 

Yes. 

Did you read Article 24 of the contract 
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about conciliation? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q Your interpretation of this language is 

that you had a right to participate in school 

process? 

A Yes. 

Q Where does it say that? 

A The Board and union agree that 

professional involvement of the teacher in 

educational issues should be encouraged. 

Q Right. It doesn't give you a right? 

A However, it is recogn~zed that there may 

be differences in professional judgment. 

Q Absolutely. Now, where does it say you 

have a right to participate in the process? 

A It doesn't say that. 

Q So it's actually just a methodology that 

the teacher, that the Board and the union have to 

try to air out differences of the pedological 

nature? 

A I don't understand the question. 

Q The idea of conciliation, you come in and 

tell me what you think is wrong and I will tell you 

what I think is wrong with you and we will try to 
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iron it out? 

A That is correct. 

Q You felt that that didn't work, right? 

A That is correct. 

Q Mr. Roemer, you heard all the testimony 

from all the witnesses against you. Were any of 

them lying? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: In his view. I 

will take it. Overruled. 

MR. FIELD: Lying as to what? Lying as to 

facts or opinions? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. Can 

you answer the question? 

MR. FIELD: If you can't answer it, say 

that. 

A I can't answer the question. 

Q They were telling the truth then? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. He 

can answer. 

on. 

A I don't know how to respond to that. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Okay. 
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MR. MAZZARIELLO: Give him a copy of the 

charges, Mr. Field, because I'm going to go over the 

charges. 

MR. FIELD: Anything you want, Mr. 

Mazzariello. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I wanted a witness list. 

Q You have the charges right in front of 

you? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Let's start with, in particular, 

Specification 1A. This was not rated U, correct? 

You were not rated unsatisfactory? 

A No. I remember it as being an 

unsatisfactory observation. 

Q You were, right? 

A Yes. 

Q And you disagree totally with what the 

observer wrote down, Mr. Roemer; is that correct? 

A That is correct. 

Q Go to 1C. 

A Okay. 

Q You testified under oath that this was a 

great lesson. Do you remember that? 

A Yes. 
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2 Q And that you had cooperative learning and 

3 it was a tremendous success, right? 

4 A Right. 

5 Q You testified it was hard to come up with 

6 imaginative lessons for this type of topic, right? 

7 A No, no -- yes, that was my testimony. 

8 Q Mr. Roemer, how is it that Saul Bruckner 

9 rates you unsatisfactory and calls you incompetent 

10 and you tell me it's a great lesson? How is that 

11 possible? 

12 MR. FIELD: Objection. 

13 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I don't 

14 understand that question at all. 

15 Q How is it possible you think it was such 

16 a tremendously successful lesson and the principal 

17 of the school wrote it was unsatisfactory? 

18 A Well, there were some complaints from the 

19 kids and he saw a teaching style that he never saw 

20 before and he had to keep in control of the 

21 situation, so if he had said the lesson was 

22 satisfactory, that would have ended his supervision 

23 of my teaching. 

24 Q Clearly Mr. Bruckner had other things 

25 better to do than to supervise your teaching. 
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2 was not out to get you you said. 

3 A No. 

4 Q So why would be constantly come in and 

5 watch somebody who didn't need to be watched? 

6 A He didn't like my teaching. 

7 Q He had nothing to say about your teaching 

8 the first year. He never told you how to teach you 

9 said. 

10 A That's not exactly true. 

11 Q Wait a minute. Mr. Roemer, you told me 

12 today that Saul Bruckner, when you first went to 

13 Murrow, never tried to tell you how to teach. 

14 MR. FIELD: Now, can he answer? 

15 A He never said you have to teach the 

16 developmental lesson plan, but reading between the 

17 lines, from the post-observation conference and the 

18 observation reports, I deduced that that's what he 

19 wanted. 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Off the record. 

21 (Discussion held off the record.) 

22 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Would you raise 

23 your right hand. Do you swear to tell the truth, 

24 the whole truth and nothing but the truth? 

25 MR. FORSTER: I do. 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: State your name 

3 for the record. 

4 MR. FORSTER: William Forster. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let the record 

6 reflect we have interrupted the cross-examination of 

7 Dr. Roemer to take Mr. Forster and hopefully the 

8 other witnesses. 

9 DIRECT-EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

10 Q By whom are you employed? 

11 A New York City Board of Education. 

12 Q In what capacity? 

13 A Teacher of high school biology. 

14 Q How long have you been employed by the 

15 New York City Board of Education? 

16 A Since September of 1964. 

17 Q Can you briefly tell us where you teach 

18 now or the history where you have been teaching? 

19 A From September of 1964 through June 1968, 

20 I was at Dika (phonetic) Heights Jr. High School No. 

21 201, Brooklyn and from September of 1968 to, I 

22 think, February of 1985, I was teaching at Susan E. 

23 Wagner High School, Staten Island and from February 

24 of 1985 to the present time, teaching at Edward R. 

25 Murrow High School in Brooklyn. 
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2 Q During the time you have been teaching at 

3 Edward R. Murrow High School, who is the principal? 

4 A Saul Bruckner is the principal. 

5 Q Is there an assistant principal? 

6 A In addition, there was an acting 

7 supervisor and then --

8 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: In the 1990's? 

9 A Recently? 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Yes. 

11 A Ira Cohen. 

12 Q Do you know Dr. David Roemer? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q When did you first meet him? 

15 A I believe September of 1994. 

16 Q Besides teaching at Edward R. Murrow High 

17 School, did you have a position in the union in 

18 September of 1994? 

19 A Yes. I assumed the position of chapter 

20 leader of the Edward R. Murrow High School in 

21 September of 1994. 

22 Q Can you tell us what you mean by the 

23 chapter leader? 

24 A The chapter leader is elected by all of 

25 the members of the United Federation of Teachers in 
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2 the school for a period of two years and they 

3 basically oversee that the contract is being upheld 

4 and they take care of the needs of the union members 

5 in the school. 

6 Q Did there come a time that Dr. Roemer 

7 spoke to you about any problems he was having with 

8 either Saul Bruckner or Ira Cohen? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Do you recall when this was? 

11 A Probably September of 1994. 

12 Q Can you tell us what he said to you? 

13 A Basically he was being observed by Mr. 

14 Cohen and Dr. Bruckner and that they were not happy 

15 with the observations and Dr. Roemer was disturbed 

16 about this, that he was getting -- the observation 

17 reports did not please him as a result of that 

18 observation. 

19 Q Did Dr. Roemer explain to you anything 

20 about his methodology of teaching? 

21 A Not at that time .. 

22 Q Did there come a time when a request was 

23 made for a conciliation? 

24 A 

25 Q 

Yes. 

Do you recall when that was? 
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A I can get the papers. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: If you recall, 

generally. 

A It may have been in October of 1994. 

Q How did that request come to be made? 

Did Dr. Roemer request it? 

A Yes. 

Q What is conciliation, as you understand 

it? 

A As I understand it, it's a process 

described in the contract where administration and 

teachers who are in a position with them in terms of 

ideas of teaching and methodology and classroom 

management could come together and discuss the 

matters. 

Q What did you do, if anything, when Dr. 

Roemer spoke to you about it? 

A I believe I wrote a letter requesting 

conciliation to Frank Volpachello (phonetic) who was 

the district representative of the UFT. 

Q As a result of the letter being written 

to Mr. Volpachello, what, if anything, happened? 

A Well, I recall that the cont~act states 

that if a superintendent wishes to try to conciliate 
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before a conciliator is assigned, the superintendent 

can do so. 

Q As a result of your letter, the 

conciliation process was started? 

A Yes. 

Q Prior to writing this letter to Mr. 

Volpachello, did you have any meetings with Dr. 

Bruckner with respect to conciliation, do you 

recall? 

A I don't think I would have since it 

really didn't involve --

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You don't recall 

any? 

A No. 

Q You don't recall a meeting in which you 

asked Mr. Volpachello if he was one of the 

conciliators? 

A I don't recall that. I may have. 

Q And after the conciliation process was 

started, did you attend any conciliation sessions? 

A Yes. 

Q Which one did you attend? 

A The one held by Mrs. Coppin.· 

Q Who is. she? 
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2 A Superintendent of the Brooklyn high 

3 schools. 

4 Q What was her capacity that she was 

5 holding the meetings? 

6 A She was the coordinator or head of the 

7 committee, not committee. 

8 Q Was she there acting as a conciliator? 

9 A She was acting as head of the committee. 

10 Q Can you tell us what happened at that 

11 meeting? 

12 A Well, I was just invited to, I think as a 

13 courtesy, that's my feeling, to attend the meeting. 

14 I did not sit at the table with the participants, 

15 but I sat off on the side with someone else and Mrs. 

16 Coppin lead this meeting or this conciliation which, 

17 if I can recall --

18 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I will object. Is there 

19 a question on the table? 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Yes. Finish. 

21 A I can't remember the exact, you know, the 

22 events, what came first, second, third or fourth, 

23 but Mr. Bruckner had an opportunity to speak and 

24 then Mr. Cohen had an opportunity to speak and then 

25 Mrs. Coppin had an opportunity to speak. 
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2 remember if Lynn Radigan was there. I don't know if 

3 she spoke. I don't know if she gave an actual 

4 presentation the way the three of the others did. 

5 Q At the end, what, if anything, did Ms. 

6 Coppin do? 

7 A She sort of reached some kind of a 

8 conclusion and sort of made a statement or a series 

9 of statements as to what Dr. Roemer should do in 

10 order to, you know, that he should follow the do 

11 what his supervisors are asking him to do, that he 

12 should do what Mr. Cohen and Dr. Bruckner and she is 

13 asking. 

14 Q And what did Dr. Roemer say, if anything? 

15 A He said something to the effect that he 

16 was upset because he felt that they were using their 

17 authority, their positions of authority, to force 

18 him to do what they wanted him to do and that he 

19 didn't think that's what conCiliation was about. 

20 Q And did Dr. Roemer speak to you 

21 afterwards about what had occurred? 

22 A Well, afterwards, after that meeting, I 

23 remember Frank Volpachello, the district 

24 representative, Dr. Roemer and myself l~ft that 

25 conference room and went into another smaller office 
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2 and largely there was a discussion between Dr. 

3 Roemer and Frank. I listened. I don't think I 

4 really participated that I can recall. 

5 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, if I object 

6 to the relevance of this witness and the testimony, 

7 he is not being charged with anything here. It's 

8 outside anything --

9 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Let me say 

10 this. With respect to conciliation, it's relevant. 

11 What went on after, I don't see the purpose. 

12 MR. FIELD: What Dr. Roemer may have said 

13 is relevarit. 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Personally or 

15 privatly to Mr. Forster or Mr. Volpachello, I don't 

16 think it's appropriate. During the course of the 

17 conciliation with Coppin, I think that's relevant. 

18 Anything else? 

19 Q Now, did there come a time after that 

20 meeting where there was another conciliation session 

21 held? 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Roemer. 

Yes. 

Do you know who that was held with? 

Mr. Mathis and Dr. Bruckner ~nd Dr. 
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2 Q Were you present then? 

3 A No. 

4 Q Did there come a time when Dr. Roemer 

5 spoke to you about conciliation after that meeting? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q When was that? 

8 A Probably the next day. 

9 Q Did there come a time a few months later 

10 when Dr. Roemer again spoke to you about the 

11 conciliation? 

12 A In terms of what you are saying, one of 

13 the things was that Dr. Roemer said what is the 

14 result of the conciliation that Mr. Mathis carried 

15 on --

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection, 

17 nonresponsive. 

18 Q What did Dr. Roemer say to you after --

19 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection as to what Dr. 

20 Roemer said. 

21 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Anything else? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q What, if anything, did he do? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: What did you do 

in response? Did you make any respons~? 

A I spoke with Mr. Bruckner after the 
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meeting the next day. I spoke to both gentlemen and 

Mr. Bruckner said that the conciliation had not 

yielded any result and was over and Dr. Roemer said 

something to the effect that he agreed that the 

conciliation didn't yield any result and that it was 

not over. One of them was saying it was over and 

one was saying it was not over. 

Q Did you write any letters to find out 

what the status was of the conciliation? 

A Some time later, yes. 

Q Do you recall who that letter was written 

to? 

A Mr. Lo Schiavo. 

Q Who is he? 

A I think he is involved at the Board with 

conciliations. 

Q I'm going to show you a letter dated May 

3, 1995 and ask you if that is a copy of the letter 

you wrote? 

A Yes. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: This has been 

marked as for ID only as Respondent's 33 previously. 

Is this the letter you wrote? 

A Yes. 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: You are offering 

3 this? 

4 MR. FIELD: I would like to offer it. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Any objections? 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: You have a signed copy? 

7 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I do not have a 

8 signed copy. You can ask him if he ever signed it. 

9 Q Did you ever send that letter? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q Did you sign the letter? 

12 A That's a good point. I don't recall. I 

13 assume I did. 

14 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I understand. 

15 A I probably signed the one that went out. 

16 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman, maybe you 

17 can help me out with the relevance. 

18 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: The respondent 

19 raised a defense that the conciliation process and 

20 the respondent didn't believe it was over. I 

21 understand you believe that was irrelevant because 

22 he is still obligated to --

23 MR. MAZZARIELLO: The defense wants 

24 everyone to believe that this was some~hing that was 

25 mandated. 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I will take the 

3 letter in evidence. Respondent's 33 is now in 

4 evidence. 

5 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 33, 

6 letter, was received into evidence.) 

7 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Any other 

8 questions? 

9 MR. FIELD: Yes. 

10 Q Did you ever get a response? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q When did you get a response? 

13 A I don't recall the dates. There is a 

14 letter though that came from Mr. Mathis. That was 

15 the response, so that letter would have a date on 

16 it. 

17 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Are you offering 

18 the response? 

19 MR. FIELD: Yes. 

20 Q Is this the letter you are referring to? 

21 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Respondent's 41 

22 for ID? 

23 A 

24 

25 this, sir? 

Yes, this is the letter. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Yo~ are offering 
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2 MR. FIELD: Yes. 

3 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Any objection? 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: No. 

5 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: In evidence, 

6 Respondent's 41, letter dated November 8, 1995 from 

7 Howard Mathis wait. Hold on. This is the 

8 response? 

9 MR. FIELD: It is. 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: All right. In 

11 evidence. 

12 MR. FIELD: Let me ask one question. 

13 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: In evidence, a 

14 letter dated November 1995 from Howard Mathis to 

15 Robert Fuentes, Respondent's 41, so we will mark it 

16 as 41 as ID and now it's admitted in evidence. 

17 (Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 41, 

18 letter, was marked for identification and received 

19 into evidence.) 

20 Q Mr. Volpachello never responded to your 

21 letter? 

22 A I didn't send the letter to Mr. 

23 Volpachello. 

24 Q 

25 A 

Mr. Lo Schiavo? 

He didn't respond. 
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2 Q You mean the response from November 8th 

3 from Mr. Mathis? 

4 A Right. 

5 Q Now, in the school year starting 

6 September 1995, did Dr. Roemer approach you about 

7 accompanying him to post-observation conferences? 

8 A Either he did or Mr. Bruckner did or they 

9 both did. 

10 Q Do you recall any conversations with Dr. 

11 Roemer as to why he wanted you to accompany him? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q What do you recall? 

14 A Dr. Roemer said that -- well, first of 

15 all, it appeared that he didn't want to attend some 

16 post-observation conference and Dr. Bruckner said 

17 that he had to and Dr. Roemer said what is the point 

18 of attending them if any input he had in these 

19 post-observation conferences never found their way 

20 into the post-observation report and they were not 

21 taken into consideration and I reme.mber an agreement 

22 was made, I believe, that 

23 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: With who? 

24 A With me and Dr. Roemer and ~r. Bruckner. 

25 We all seemed to agree that I could sit in but not 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



.r-
I 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Hearing 653 

participate in future post-observation conferences 

if that satisfied Dr. Roemer and Dr. Roemer said 

yes. 

Q Did Dr. Roemer ever express to you 

anything else about the post-observation conference 

as to why he did not want to attend? 

A I don't remember. 

Q Did you go to any post-observation 

conferences with Dr. Roemer? 

A Very few. 

Q You did go to some? 

A Yes. 

Q And Dr. Roemer attended those 

conferences? 

A Yes. 

Q Did Dr. Roemer speak to you about 

grievances? 

A Yes. 

Q When he first started? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you remember attending any grievances 

with respect to lesson plans? 

A I must have. I mean I don't remember 

specifically. 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I got it. 

3 Q What is your understanding about the 

4 requirement of having a lesson plan? 

5 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. This person 

6 had nothing to do with lesson plans. He doesn't 

7 even teach the same subject as Dr. Roemer. He was a 

8 UFT chapter rep. 

9 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: This gentleman 

10 may have a good idea about the contract, lesson plan 

11 and, nonetheless, for my purpose, if there is a 

12 grievance resolution, I will take that into 

13 evidence, but general understanding of what is to be 

14 done and not to be done is not proper. 

15 Q Do you have a recollection of a grievance 

16 resolution with respect to Dr. Roemer not having 

17 lesson plans? 

18 A Well, there seemed to be always an 

19 argument as to whether or not Dr. Roemer had a 

20 lesson plan. The administration was saying that the 

21 document that Dr. Roemer said was a lesson plan was 

22 not a lesson plan. 

23 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: I got it. 

24 you remember any formal resolution? 

25 A Where they came to an agreement? 
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2 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Yes. 

3 A No. 

4 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Okay. Thank 

5 you. Mr. Field, anything further? 

6 MR. FIELD: Nothing further. 

7 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. MAZZARIELLO: 

8 Q Would it be fair to say, during your lead 

9 of the UFT chapter rep, you spent a lot of time with 

10 Dr. Roemer? 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q Would it be fair to say, he grieved a lot 

13 of stuff? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q Would it be fair to say, he is extremely 

16 difficult to work with for the administration? 

17 A I can't answer that. 

18 Q You were present when you had a meeting 

19 with Dr. Roemer and Ira Cohen concerning a lot of 

20 students that were complaining about Dr. Roemer. 

21 you remember that? 

22 A Vaguely. 

23 Q You vaguely remember over 31 students 

24 writing a petition? 

25 A I heard about that. 
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2 Q And you accompanied Mr. Roemer to that 

3 meeting, right? 

4 A Probably. 

5 Q Saul Bruckner, a professional? 

6 A Very. 

7 Q How about Ira Cohen? 

8 A Very. 

9 Q How long do you know both of them? 

10 A Well, Mr. Bruckner I know since I came to 

11 the school in 1985 or 1986 and then Ira transferred 

12 in as a teacher some years later. 

13 Q The conciliation process that you were 

14 involved with with Mr. Roemer, was that your first? 

15 A 

16 Q 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 rep? 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 friends. 

24 Q 

25 A 

Yes. 

Did you ever hold any after that? 

No. 

How many years were you the UFT chapter 

Two. 

Were you friends with Mr. Roemer? 

I was friendly with him, but we were not 

Did you socialize with him?-

No. 
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Q Have you ever heard rumors that Saul 

Bruckner is out on a conspiracy to rid the system of 

Dr. Roemer? 

MR. FIELD: Objection. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Overruled. 

A No. 

Q Based on your knowledge of your principal 

and assistant principal and as UFT chapter rep, is 

it their style to go after a teacher or try to help 

them? 

A Can you ask that again? 

Q Do you know or do you have knowledge of 

Mr. Bruckner or Mr. Cohen purposely going after a 

teacher such as Dr. Roemer, doing a lot of 

observations, rating them U, just trying to rid the 

system of them? 

A Well, they have -- I mean Mr. Bruckner 

has certainly, when he is dissatisfied with a 

teacher, observes them quite frequently. 

Q Does he usually have a reason to do that? 

A Yes. His reason is that he feels, he 

spoke to me about that, when he was not satisfied 

with the teacher's performance he observed. 

Q Did he go about it in a professional 
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2 manner? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q He didn't go at it as a street level, 

5 threatening manner, did he? 

6 A No. 

7 Q He went in and held a prehearing 

8 conference and did it professionally, correct? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q How many post-observation conferences did 

11 you attend total in your career? 

12 A You mean just in this case? 

13 Q You, as a UFT chapter rep? 

14 A Just the ones with Dr. Roemer. 

15 Q In fact, you never went on any other pre 

16 or post-observation conferences with any other 

17 teacher, did you? 

18 A No. 

19 Q In fact, it's not even a normal course of 

20 practice that UFT chapter reps go with a teacher to 

21 pre or post-observation conferences, is it? 

22 A Generally, you are correct. 

23 Q So, in this case, it's kind of like you 

24 were holding Dr. Roemer's hand during these 

25 conferences, right? 
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2 A I don't know if I was doing that. I was 

3 not a participant, but I was there. 

4 Q Didn't you think it was odd that you were 

5 at this meeting that you had no business being at? 

6 A I don't think it was odd because I felt 

7 it might be helpful because then the meeting could 

8 be held which probably wouldn't have been held. 

9 Q As the UFT chapter rep, didn't you tell 

10 him he was going to the conference after receiving a 

11 U rating? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q You know that once a teacher receives a U 

14 rating, when the teacher requires you to do a lesson 

15 plan, you are to do a lesson everyday? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q The beginning of the 1995, 199& school 

18 year, this one over here, Dr. Roemer, refused to do 

19 lesson plans, correct? 

20 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Do you know 

21 that? 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

No. 

You didn't know that? 

No, I didn't know that. 

You testified for Mr. Field that you are 
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aware there was a problem between what he called a 

lesson plan, what you know Dr. Bruckner called a 

lesson plan, you were aware your client at the time 

called them student lessons? 

A I heard that said. 

Q Did you ask your client as to what a 

student lesson was? 

A No. 

Q Did you look at his student lesson? 

A I have seen them. 

Q Did you approve of that? 

A .That's not my job. 

Q You teach biology? 

A Yes. 

Q How long? 

A A long time. 

Q How long is long? 

A From 1968. 

Q You teach a developmental lesson? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you use a name? 

A Yes. 

Q Motivation? 

A Yes. 
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2 Q Do-now? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q How long is your do-now? 

5 A Wait. I don't use the do-now. 

6 Q How long does your motivation usually 

7 last? 

8 A A few minutes. 

9 Q What's the purpose of the motivation? 

10 HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Hold on. Stop. 

11 Again, we can get every teacher in Murrow to come 

12 and testify as to what he does and doesn't do. This 

13 gentleman is here as a UFT representative. I don't 

14 think it's probative to go beyond that. 

15 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I think it is. He 

16 accompanied him to a lot of the meetings. Mr. 

17 Forster was present during when the kids complained 

18 when he did the grievance. He has a lot of 

19 knowledge as to what was going on. I think I should 

20 be allowed to probe a little. 

21 HEARING OFFICER EbELMAN: Nope. Not in 

22 his capacity as a teacher. His capacity as a union 

23 rep, perhaps so. 

24 Q As the UFT chapter rep when-you were 

25 representing Mr. Roemer, were you advising him to 
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2 disobey Saul Bruckner and Ira Cohen's instructions? 

3 A Never. 

4 Q Did you tell him it would be a good idea 

5 if he, in fact, incorporated some of their ideas 

6 into his lesson plans? 

7 A I don't recall that. 

8 Q Would that have been part of your 

9 function? 

10 A I always try to get teachers and the 

11 administration, where there were prob~ems, to come 

together. ( 12 

13 Q Did you try that here? 

14 A I certainly wouldn't have wanted to keep 

15 them apart. 

16 Q Exactly, so did you try it? 

17 A I don't recall. I just don't recall. 

18 Ask the question again, please. 

19 Q No. That's all r~ght. You don't recall 

20 is a perfectly legitimate answer. 

21 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have nothing further. 

22 MR. FIELD: I do. 

23 RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD: 

24 Q I asked you about Dr. BruckRer going 

25 after teachers .. Did you ever hear of Dr. Bruckner 
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2 trying to press teachers to leave the school that he 

3 didn't like? 

4 A I guess if he was dissatisfied, if he is 

5 dissatisfied with the teacher, he will naturally 

6 work with them more frequently than somebody who he 

7 is satisfied with. 

8 Q Did you ever hear of him basically 

9 telling a teacher to leave or else, or to go to 

10 another school? 

11 A I know of a situation where he came to an 

12 agreement with a teacher that if he left, they would 

13 not get a U rating. I would not say that he was 

14 going after them in that sense, but the teacher was 

15 getting unsatisfactory observation reports from both 

16 the supervisor and Mr. Bruckner and Mrs. Coppin and 

17 was heading for a U rating for sure and that was an 

18 agreement they struck up. 

19 Q By the way, did Mr. Bruckner or Mr. Cohen 

20 ever complain to you that there was no learning 

21 going on in Dr. Roemer's classes? 

22 A They never complained to me. They may 

23 have complained to him, but not to me. 

24 Q Did you ever hear them complain to you 

25 where they accused him of being an incompetent 
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teacher? 

A They were never so blunt or so rude. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Did you say rude? 

A I don't remember anything where Mr. 

Bruckner or Mr. Cohen ever said to him you are an 

incompetent teacher. 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Okay. Anything 

else? 

Q In your opinion, was Dr. Roemer trying to 

teach to the best of his ability? In your opinion, 

what was his attitude towards teaching? 

HEARING OFFICER EDELMAN: Again, he is 

here in his role as a teacher. 

Q Was Dr. Roemer ever accused of shirking 

his duties and responsibilities as a teacher? 

A Not to my knowledge. 

Q Do you know whether there were any 

behavior problems in Dr. Roemer's classes or were 

his classes well managed? 

A I never heard any:complaints. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: He has also testified he 

never even watched him teach. 

MR. FIELD: Nothing further.-

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. MAZZARIELLO: 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. 

2 Mazzariello, any further cross-examination of Dr. 

3 Roemer? 

4 MR. MAZZARIELLO: No, Mr. Edelman. 

5 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

6 Mr. Field, any redirect examination? 

7 MR. FIELD: Yes, I do. 

8 RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD OF DAVID ROEMER: 

9 Q Dr. Roemer, I'm going to show you Exhibit 

10 Board 9, which I believe was introduced last time. 

11 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

12 to the witness.) 

13 Q Did you ever -- did you have occasion to 

14 review the names of these individuals since your last 

15 testimony? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q And in reviewing these individuals, the 

18 names of them, were all but one of these individuals 

19 ,from the same band? 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 that 

25 A 

Yes. 

What band were they? 

Band F. 

And how many classes -- bands did you teach 

that was first --

During Cycle 1? Three -- three bands. 
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Q And were there any students from the other 

two bands? 

A I think there was one student from another 

band. 

Q Okay. And one student is named twice; am I 

correct? Kimberly Schuler? 

A That's right. Kimberly Schuler and --

and. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Continue, Mr. 

Field. 

MR. FIELD: Right. 

Q Dr. Roemer --

MR. FIELD: Don't know whether this 

letter is in evidence or not. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's find out. 

MR. FIELD: It's a letter of June 

29th, 1995 from Mr. Browner [sic] to Dr. Roemer. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Bruckner, 

Carl [sic] Bruckner? 

MR. FIELD: Saul Bruckner. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I apologize. 

Mr. Field, show Mr. Mazzariello and Dr. Roemer the 

letter. 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to all parties.) 
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Q Do you recall receiving Dr. Roemer, I 

show you what I'd like to have marked as Respondent 

Exhibit --

THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's find 

out. Off the record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. 

Mazzariello, any objection? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: No. You're moving 

it into evidence. I have no objection to that, 

either. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

Admitted as Board Exhibit 36, a letter dated June 29, 

1995 from Saul Bruckner to Dr. Roemer. Off the 

record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 36, 

letter dated 6/29/95, was marked in evidence, as of 

this date.) 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

Q I show you what's been marked as 

Respondent's Exhibit 36. Do you recall receiving this 

letter, sir? 

A Yes. 
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Q I call your attention -- what was your 

understanding from this letter as to why you got an 

unsatisfactory rating in the 1994-'95 school year? 

A I got an unsatisfactory rating because I 

wasn't using the techniques that that I wasn't 

implementing the suggestion of instruction that other 

people were using. 

Q Was it your understanding that your -- that 

the unsatisfactory --

THE HEARING OFFICER: Don't do that. 

That's leading. Thank you. I appreciate it. 

MR. FIELD: Strike that. 

Q Was it ever mentioned to you by Mr. 

Bruckner that the students were not learning in your 

class? 

A No, it wasn't. 

Q Was it ever mentioned to you by Mr. Cohen 

that students were not learning in your class? 

A No. 

Q Was the objection -- what the objection 

that they were making was what? 

A Was that my methods were not as effective 

as the methods they were suggesting. 

record. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Off the 
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1 {Discussion held off the record.} 

2 Q Now 

3 MR. FIELD: I don't know whether the 

4 grievance decision was ever I think this was 

5 introduced. 

6 {Whereupon, the document was handed 

7 to all parties.} 

8 MR. FIELD: It's being introduced for 

9 the limited purpose of the -- the observation of May 

10 16th, 1995. 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: It's being 

12 introduced for what purpose? I'm sorry. 

13 MR. FIELD: For the purpose of the 

14 change that was made on the observation of May 16th, 

15 1995. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: During the 

17 conference -- this appears on the second page. During 

18 the conference the parties requested a meeting and 

19 they made certain and agreed upon certain changes. 

20 MR. FIELD: Uh-huh. 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: Okay. since 

22 the observation of May 16th is in evidence, and this 

23 modifies that observation, for that limited purpose. 

24 MR. FIELD: I'd like to have this 

25 introduced as --
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THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. 

Mazzariello, for that limited purpose. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Absolutely no 

objection. 

MR. FIELD: Board Exhibit --

Respondent's Exhibit 37. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Respondent's 

Exhibit 37, grievance decision; date of conference 

December 12, '95. That's Respondent 37. Off the 

record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibit 37, 

grievance decision, was marked in evidence, as of this 

da te. ) 

Q Now, Dr. Roemer, you were shown last time 

Board Exhibit 7? 

MR. FIELD: Can I have Board Exhibit 

77 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I don't know. 

Off the record. 

(Discussion held off the record.) 

THE HEARING OFFICER: We have 

mismarked two exhibits. The last two exhibits, 

because now I have my list, should be marked 

Respondent's 42 and 43, i.e. the letter dated June 29, 
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1995 should be Respondent's 42, and the grievance 

decision reo conference December 12, 1995 should be 

Respondent's Exhibit 43. Please correct the records. 

(Whereupon, Respondent's Exhibits 42 

and 43, letter dated 6/29/95 and grievance decision, 

were marked in evidence, as of this date.) 

Q Do you recall, Dr. Roemer, on the last 

session you were shown a letter from 'Mr. Cohen with 

respect to Regents grades? 
• 

A Yes. 

Q And how many cycles did you teach -- not 

cycles. How many classes did you teach? 

A Three. 

Q And how many classes did the other teachers 

teach? 

A Well, Mr. Eisenstein taught two, and Mr. 

Marx taught either two or three. 

Q Did you in that first year did you have 

a Regents review during class time? 

A No, I didn't. 

Q Could you tell us, instead of having the 

Regents review, what did you do? 

A Well, I covered an additional topic in the 

Regents syllabus. 

Q What topic was that? 
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A It was nuclear physics. 

Q What were your reasons for doing that? 

A I thought it would be more interesting for 

the students than reviewing for the test. 

Q Do you know whether the other teachers 

reviewed for the test? 

A Yes. Mr. Marx reviewed for the test. 

Q In the for the second year that you were 

at Edward R. Murrow, how many classes were you 

assigned for the first cycle in physics? 

A Three sections. 

Q And what did you understand that to mean? 

A Well, I interpreted that to mean I was a 

satisfactory teacher, and that the -- my -- my efforts 

to seek conciliation -- my requests for conciliation 

were valid. 

Q And there was -- in your cross-examination 

last time there was pointed out that you stopped going 

to pre and post observation conferences? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you recall how many observation 

conferences you did not go to? 

A No. 

Q Could you tell the panel the reason why you 

did not go to the -- did you go to the pre-observation 
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conferences? 

A Some of them. 

Q Did you go to the post observation 

conferences? 

A Well, one I went to. 

Q One. You did not go to the others? 

A That's right. 

Q Could you tell the panel why you did not go 

to the others? 

A Yes. I didn't go because I --

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object. I 

believe this was gone into. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: It was really 

covered on direct extensively, and the panel -- and 

let me indicate. I think I remember this reasonably 

well. 

The panel has in the record Dr. 

Roemer's testimony that first he thought the 

conciliation process was still going on, and second he 

wanted -- he didn't -- he objected to what I'll call 

the one-on-one situation, and he wanted an individual 

of his choosing presumably to be with him at these 

conferences. That's what we have. 

MR. FIELD: Let me ask. 

Q Can you add anything? 
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THE HEARING OFFICER: If there's any 

other reason, I'll take it. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

A The other reason is that I felt that by 

going to the post observation conferences, I would be 

signaling or indicating that I was willing to change 

my teaching methods without the conciliation process. 

I didn't see that that would do any -- anybody any 

good. 

Q Well, when you say you weren't going to 

change without the conciliation process, can you 

explain what you mean by that? 

A Well, I was willing to change my teaching 

methods as part of the conciliation process, and if I 

went to the post observation, that would be taken as 

an indication that this was not the case, that I was 

trying to implement Mr. Bruckner's suggestions. 

Q Well, did you -- did you understand the 

conciliation was still going on? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q And what -- what did you expect from the 

conciliation process? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object. This has 

been gone into extensively. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: At great 
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1 length. At great length. At great length, really. 

2 We're not going to rehash the conciliation process. 

3 I recognize the Respondent has 

4 testified at great length, and he has a right to, but 

5 we've been through this. 

6 Q Dr. Roemer, do you want to teach? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q Do you think -- do you feel that you're 

9 able to teach physics? 

10 A Yes, I do. 

11 Q Do you feel that you're able to teach -- do 

12 you feel you're able to change, if necessary, change 

13 your methods of teaching? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q Could you tell us how you would do that? 

16 Explain how you could do that. 

17 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I'm going to 

18 object. This is purely speculation. He had two years 

19 to change his methodology and didn't, so I really call 

20 it irrelevant and speculative. 

21 THE HEARING OFFICER: I'm going to 

22 allow it under the issue of fitness to return. 

23 A Well, the efforts I would make would be to 

24 have better and more interesting activities for the 

25 students; more thought-provoking problems; more 
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hands-on activities, and -- well, that would be it. 

Q Are you prepared also to I believe one 

of the complaints that was made was the summary. 

Would you be prepared to give a summary of 

your lesson each time? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection to the 

form of the question and leading. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Sustained. 

Anything further, Mr. Field? 

Q Mr. Bruckner made several suggestions 

and made several suggestions on your lessons. 

Are you -- would you be prepared to accept 

some of those suggestions? 

A Yes. 

Q Could you tell us which ones in particular? 

A Well, I think the -- the suggestions more 

from Mr. Cohen for having more hands-on activities. 

Q And could you explain what you mean by 

hands-on activities? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I think we all 

understand. 

MR. FIELD: Can I take a break for a 

second? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: You really 

shouldn't be talking to him. Joel, you shouldn't be 
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doing that. You can't do that, Joel. Be fair. 

Q Is there anything you want to add? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'll permit 

that. Anything else you want to add. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. I wanted to 

explain why there was student complaints, 

my understanding of why there were. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: I'll permit 

it. Go ahead. 

A The students had the same perception that 

Mr. Bruckner and Mr. Cohen had, what good teaching and 

a good lesson is. 

They perceive it as being a highly 

structured, teacher-directed lesson. When the teacher 

talks, everyone is quiet, and the teacher asks the 

students questions, and all attention is directed to 

the student's answer. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object. That's 

not what Ira Cohen said. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: That's his 

perception. That's just his perception, not for the 

truth contained therein. 

A My lessons were not like that, and they 

assumed that I wasn't a good teacher. The other 

reason is that in my classes I demanded from the 
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students Regents level work. 

In the -- in a highly structured, 

teacher-directed lesson based on oral communication, 

the student can corne in and sit there and listen to 

the teacher, and in -- they get asked questions and 

they answer questions,. 

If not, he could, say, not answer or just 

say, "I don't know," and he can sit there and not do 

anything and not learn anything. 

But my class that wasn't possible, because 

I passed out the student lesson plan, and the students 

had definite tasks to perform. 

They had to read the introductory 

paragraph, and they had to during the class at least 

understand how to do all of the numbered items. 

So I was making demands on the students in 

the class for to do Regents level work, and this, I 

believe, was one of the causes of -- of the 

complaints. 

Q Is there anything further you want to add, 

Dr. Roemer, that you have not testified to? 

A No. 

MR. FIELD: No further questions. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Any 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: No. 
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1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Panel members, 

2 any questions. 

3 MS. PETRUCELLI: I have one. When 

4 did you develop your lesson plan? 

5 THE WITNESS: I'm sorry? 

6 MR. PETRUCELLI: When did you develop 

7 your lesson plan? 

8 THE WITNESS: I would do it one or 

9 two days or three days before, before I gave the 

10 lesson. 

11 MS. PETRUCELLI: So these were 

12 created specifically to meet the needs of your new 

13 methodology? 

14 THE WITNESS: Yes. That's right. 

15 MS. PETRUCELLI: Because I had 

16 understood that some of these plans had been used in 

17 your prior school. That's not true? 

18 THE WITNESS: No. 

19 MS. PETRUCELLI: These were all 

20 created new? 

21 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

22 THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other 

23 questions? 

24 MR. FIELD: Dr. Roemer, the lessons 

25 that you had used, this methodology or similar 
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methodology you had used at Erasmus, but that was not 

for physics? 

THE WITNESS: That's right. 

MR. FIELD: What course was that? 

THE WITNESS: That was 9th grade 

physical science. 

MS. PETRUCELLI: But you developed 

similar -- you developed a similar type lesson plan 

for whatever course you were teaching? 

THE WITNESS: That's right. 

MS. PETRUCELLI: That fact is you 

were at Erasmus when you changed your methodology? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Any other 

questions? I have a question. You said in response 

to Mr. Field's question that -- the question was, in 

essence, what suggestions would you accept of Mr. 

Bruckner's and Mr. Cohen's, and you said something 

well, essentially you said, "Well, I would accept 

Cohen's suggestions regarding" -- you said you would 

accept the suggestions of Mr. Cohen's, the particular 

reference to hands-on activities. 

What suggestions of Mr. Cohen and/or 

Mr. Bruckner would you not accept? 

THE WITNESS: Well, there's really 
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1 nothing I could say absolutely that that it doesn't 

2 work, is ineffective. I mean, it's I could 

3 honestly say nothing, nothing they've said. 

4 MR. FIELD: You mean to say 

5 nothing they've said. What do you mean by that? 

6 THE WITNESS: Well, the -- I mean, I 

7 believe in asking questions. It wasn't I didn't ask 

8 the kids questions. 

9 I -- teaching is complex and 

10 personal. It's hard to define, but there would be 

11 I could not, you know, reject anything that they --

12 anything they -- any ideas they had were perfectly 

13 reasonable and worked for different lessons or 

14 different teachers and would work for me for certain 

15 lessons and certain concepts. 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. Any 

17 other questions? Thank you, sir. Let's take two 

18 minutes, see if you can find your witness. 

19 (Whereupon, at 2:41 p.m., a recess 

20 was taken.) 

21 (Whereupon, at 2:48 p.m., the within 

22 hearing was resumed.) 

23 THO MAS 

24 

25 

M U L H 0 L LAN D, called as a witness 

in behalf of the Respondent herein, having 

been duly sworn by a Notary Public of the 
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1 State of New York, upon being examined, 

2 testified as follows: 

3 THE HEARING OFFICER: State your 

4 name, please, sir. 

5 THE WITNESS: Thomas Mulholland. 

6 DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. FIELD OF THOMAS MULHOLLAND: 

7 Q By whom are you employed? 

8 A New York City Board of Ed. 

9 Q In what capacity? 

10 A I'm a teacher. 

11 Q And a teacher of what? 

12 A Physics. 

13 Q And how long have you been a teacher, sir? 

14 A 12 years. 

15 Q Have you taught anything else besides 

16 physics? 

17 A Some chemistry; some basic programming; 

18 some engineering, engineering drawing. 

19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 teach? 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

Are you licensed in physics? 

Yes. 

Physics is your primary subject that you 

Yes. 

Have you taught physics the whole 12 years? 

Yes. 
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Q Could you briefly give the panel your 

background from college on? 

A College on. It's a long story. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Take the short 

version. 

A Okay. I have a degree in mechanical 

engineering. Upon graduation from college I worked 

for Connecticut Aircraft Nuclear Laboratory. 

That was a -- subsequently that project was 

cancelled, and I since it was being administered by 

Pratt & Whitney, we just kept our group intact, and we 

worked on space applications for the technology. 

After that I I wanted to go back to the 

Washington, D.C. area where I went to college, and I 

worked for a consulting firm, Joan I. Thompson 

Company, which subsequently became Traycore 

(phonetic) 

I then worked for the Department of H.E.W., 

federal government, for a year and a half. Then I 

worked for Turner & Company, another consulting firm. 

And then I came back to New York to help my 

sister, who had been widowed and was running a 

business on Long Island, and I was involved with that 

for about nine years. 

And then I went to work for Robotic Vision 
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1 Systems as a purchasing manager, and I was with them 

2 for about four years. I was laid off, and that's when 

3 I entered the teaching profession. 

4 Q Where do you teach, sir? 

5 A Right now I'm at Staten Island Technical 

6 High School. 

7 Q Is Staten Island Technical High School a 

8 school that requires examinations to get in? 

9 A No, but it's an -- it's not a zoned 

10 school. I mean, anybody in the city can come there, 

11 so they we do have a lot more applications than we 

12 can handle, so we do get a high caliber of students. 

13 Q How long have you taught at Staten Island 

14 Tech? 

15 A 11 -- 11 and a half years, really. 

16 Q Now, are you familiar with professional 

17 societies for physics teachers? 

18 A Yes. I belong to some. 

19 Q What is that? 

20 A The American Association of Physics 

21 Teachers, and then locally we have the Physics Club of 

22 New York. 

23 Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

And is that for physics teachers? 

Yes: 

And are you an officer of that? 
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1 A Yes. 

2 Q What office do you have? 

3 A I'm the president of that club. 

4 Q And how long have you been that, sir? 

5 A I think about four or five years. I'm not 

6 sure. 

7 Q Are you familiar with -- you are familiar 

8 with the teaching of physics? 

9 A Yeah. 

10 Q Is there anyone particular method in the 

11 teaching of physics? 

12 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object. Are we 

13 talking about methodology required by the New York 

14 City Board of Education, such as developmental lesson 

15 plans, or outside of New York City public schools? 

16 THE HEARING OFFICER: I ask you to 

17 qualify that, Mr. Field. 

18 Q Within the system -- city system, is there 

19 a particular method to be used in teaching physics? 

20 A Not that I know of. That's mandated that 

21 we use? 

22 Q Yes. 

23 A Not to my knowledge. 

24 Q Are you familiar with the method that Dr. 

25 Roemer was using? 
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1 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I object. We still 

2 don't know the name of the method. This method has no 

3 name. What method is he referring to, Mr. Edelman? 

4 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's do this. 

5 How are you familiar with what he does? 

6 THE WITNESS: He presented a paper at 

7 the Science Council of New York conference. They have 

8 an annual conference, and Dr. Roemer submitted --

9 presented a paper at that, and he read the paper. I 

10 wasn't at his presentation, so I -- I've seen what he 

11 was trying to do. 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Field, I'm 

13 going to sustain the objection. That's not a 

14 sufficient basis for this witness to testify as to 

15 what methodology, whether named or not, that Dr. 

16 Roemer utilizes. You may want to submit the paper, 

17 and I may take the paper in evidence. May. 

18 MR. FIELD: I'll get it out right 

19 now. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: See where we 

21 go. 

22 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

23 to all parties.) 

24 

25 Edelman--

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Again, Mr. 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Mulholland 
716 

1 THE HEARING OFFICER: Never saw this 

2 before? 

3 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I mean 

4 MR. FIELD: I believe we tried to 

5 introduce this before. 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman. Mr. 

7 Edelman. 

8 MR. FIELD: We tried to introduce 

9 this before. 

10 THE HEARING OFFICER: I'm not sure. 

11 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I've never seen 

12 this document before. 

13 MR. FIELD: I think you objected 

14 vehemently, Mr. Mazzariello. I believe you did. 

15 THE HEARING OFFICER: I have to tell 

16 you, with all due respect, I don't understand the 

17 probative value, Mr. Field. 

18 This relates to a series of lessons 

19 and which ieries of questions and comments 

20 regarding a series of lessons or we'll call them 

21 lessons that are then appended. 

22 Now, Dr. Roemer has been afforded 

23 substantial opportunity to testify as to the lessons 

24 that he utilized in the classes in question, and to 

25 give his -- his comments and to really tell us 
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1 anything he wants with respect to those lessons. 

2 How this has any relation to this 

3 proceeding is beyond me. In fact, the first page 

4 apparently is by and large a recitation of what he 

5 already testified to in terms of his past experience. 

6 MR. FIELD: Particularly we want to 

7 call attention to what is set forth on Page 3 and 4, 

8 the reasons why Dr. Roemer gives us the methodology. 

9 THE HEARING OFFICER: He testified 

10 amply in that regard, as he had a right to. The fact 

11 that he converted it to paper form and gave it at a 

12 conference, I respect him for that, but it doesn't, 

13 you know, lend probative value to this proceeding. 

14 Sustained. 

15 Q Mr. Mulholland, have you reviewed the 

16 lessons plans that Dr. Roemer used in teaching 

17 physics? 

18 A Yes, I've seen some. 

19 Q Are you able to form a judgement as to 

20 those lessons plans? 

21 A Yeah. I think they're adequate. 

22 Q And what method of teaching do you use, 

23 sir? 

24 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Can we just 

25 which lesson plans --
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MR. FIELD: Fine. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: (Continuing) -- are 

we referring to 

THE HEARING OFFICER: First 

question --

MR. MAZZARIELLO: (Continuing) 

that were adequate? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Fair. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Field, while 

you're doing this, has this witness had an opportunity 

to observe the charges that were filed against Mr .. 

Roemer? 

MR. FIELD: I don't believe the 

charges were shown to him. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Would you mind if 

you gave the witness, while you're looking at that, 

the set of charges? 

MR. FIELD: No. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Mr. Edelman? 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Go right 

ahead. Go right ahead. 

(Whereupon, the document was handed 

to the witness.) 

Q Mr. Mulholland, I'm going to show you a 

series of lessons. 
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1 Did you receive from me a series of lesson 

2 plans that Dr. Roemer had prepared? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q All right. I'm going to show you -- I 

5 don't know what the exhibit numbers are. A series 

6 of--

7 THE HEARING OFFICER: I want to do· 

8 this for a second. I'm sorry. I think this might be 

9 more efficient. 

10 Do you have in your possession now 

11 what Mr. Field sent you? 

12 THE WITNESS: No. 

13 THE HEARING OFFICER: You don't. 

14 Okay. Would you -- did you return them to Mr. Field? 

15 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

16 MS. TURNER: How many did he send 

17 you? 

18 THE WITNESS: A stack of them. I 

19 don't know exactly how many. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: Take a look, 

21 see if you recognize them. 

22 MR. FIELD: Look at the first top 

23 page, not the second page. 

24 (Whereupon, the document was handed 

25 to the witness.) 
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THE WITNESS: It's this (indicating) 

type of page here (indicating) I believe this is 

one. 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: I don't need to 

know all of them. Just a sample. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Do you have in 

your possession some that you reviewed? 

MR. FIELD: Let me ask a question. 

Q Mr. Mulholland, the lessons that you 

reviewed -- lesson plans that you reviewed, you 

reviewed the top page. You didn't review the second 

pages, which are handwritten underneath each one? 

A That's correct. 

MR. FIELD: Okay. 

A Just the printed ones. 

MR. FIELD: Do you want to hand it to 

Mr. 

Q In your experience 

THE HEARING OFFICER: One second. 

You want an opportunity to look at them, Mr. 

Mazzariello? 

(Whereupon, the documents were handed 

to Mr. Mazzariello.) 

Q There were others besides these? 

A Yes. 
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MR. MAZZARIELLO: That's fine. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: Thank you. 

Q Mr. Mulholland, in your experience as a 

physics teacher, is there any way to measure how 

whether -- whether or not there's learning going on in 

the class amongst students? 

A Testing. 

Q When you say tests, could you explain? 

A You know, you give the students a test and 

see how well they perform. 

Q And is there is the Regents another 

method of measuring? 

A Yeah. It's a test. 

Q In your experience, can there be student 

learning going on -- strike that question. 

You mentioned that Dr. Roemer gave a paper, 

and you've read his paper that he gave. 

A Yes. 

Q The reasons that he gave for teaching the 

way he does, is that consistent with current ideas? 

MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. This 

witness has never seen Mr. Roemer in the classroom. 

paper. 

THE HEARING OFFICER: He read his 

That's what he did. 

MR. FIELD: He read the paper. 
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MR. MAZZARIELLO: How does that 

translate to his ability to decipher that 

information? 

Mr. Roemer has never been criticized 

for his knowledge of the subject. It's how he 

presents it to the classroom. 

MR. FIELD: All right. Strike. 

Q In presenting physics class to -- physics 

to a lesson -- to a classroom, are there various 

are there many different ways of presenting it? 

A Yes. 

Q Could you tell us some of the ways of 

presenting it? 

A Well, I think most teachers have their own 

style, but you certainly try to appeal to all the 

learning strengths of the students. 

According to what I studied in the 

educational area, that some students learn better at 

hearing. Some learn better by seeing. Some learn 

better by touching. 

So you have to try to accommodate, you 

know, the whole class, and try to present the material 

in those different ways. 

Demonstrations certainly are an important 

part of physics and experimentation by the students 
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1 themselves to see physical principles, to 

2 experimentation. Yeah. I think there's many ways you 

3 got to approach it. 

4 Q A student lesson plan that shifts 

5 responsibility for learning from the teacher to the 

6 students, is that consistent in your opinion with the 

7 current ideas of current ideas on teaching? 

8 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Objection. Current 

9 ideas of teaching in what district and what school? 

10 Who's the principal? 

11 Q Teaching --

12 MR. MAZZARIELLO: The witness 

13 testified that there was no -- there's no methodology, 

14 no set standard in the system, and I believe Bruckner 

15 and Cohen testified they never tried to inflict a 

16 methodology upon this man. 

17 Therefore I fail to see the relevance 

18 of the question and how this witness is even going to 

19 justify the answer. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let me say 

21 this. I don't think there's actually any dispute. 

22 There's no doubt that this witness would be able to 

23 state, based upon his background and his experience, 

24 that any particular method articulated in Dr. Roemer's 

25 paper is indeed -- can indeed be a proper method. 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 



Direct-Mulholland 
724 

1 But there's also no doubt that this 

2 witness has no first-hand knowledge of what Dr. Roemer 

3 has done in the classroom. 

4 So other than the so-called 

5 formalistic view that these things can work, that's 

6 really what the witness is saying, and he has a right 

7 to say it, but that's all we're left with, Mr. Field. 

8 These things can work, and I think we appreciate that 

9 these things, as Dr. Roemer said, can work. 

10 MR. FIELD: I have no further 

11 questions. 

12 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. 

13 Mazzariello? 

14 CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. MAZZARIELLO OF THOMAS 

15 MULHOLLAND: 

16 Q Do you know Mr. Roemer personally? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Is he a friend of yours? 

19 A An acquaintance. 

20 Q Do you go out socially? 

21 A We had lunch once. That is the extent of 

22 our social he used to attend physics club, and 

23 prior to the meetings we had -- we met for dinner, and 

24 he used to attend those. 

25 Q Do you what the name of your principal is 
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1 at your school? 

2 A We have a new one. It's Eleanor O'Connor. 

3 Q What methodology do you use when you teach 

4 your classes, sir? 

5 A I try to present the material, as I said, 

6 on all avenues that -- that might be amenable to each 

7 student. 

8 Q Do you have a methodology when you teach? 

9 You use a developmental lesson plan? 

A 10 I don't know what a developmental lesson 

11 plan is. 

12 Q Do you use a lesson plan? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q Do you use an aim, objective? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q How about a medial and final summary? 

17 A No. I try to summarize. 

Q 18 When your principal -- hypothetically if 

19 your principal criticizes you, would you try to adjust 

20 your methodology to your principal's criticism? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q What about your assistant principals? If 

23 they came and did an observation of you and said, 

24 "Sir, I think maybe you should put the aim a little 

25 higher on the board and get the kids more engaged in 
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1 the lesson," would you listen to that? 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q Would you try to incorporate it into your 

4 teaching? 

5 A 

6 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I have no further 

7 questions. 

8 THE HEARING OFFICER: Anything 

9 further? 

10 MR. FIELD: No further questions. 

11 THE HEARING OFFICER: Panel members? 

12 Thank you, sir. That's it. Thank you very much. 

13 THE WITNESS: You're welcome. 

14 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. Field, any 

15 further witnesses? 

16 MR. FIELD: No further witnesses. 

17 THE HEARING OFFICER: Mr. 

18 Mazzariello, rebuttal? 

19 MR. MAZZARIELLO: None. 

20 THE HEARING OFFICER: All right. The 

21 record is now closed. Mr. Mazzariello, are you ready 

22 to close your case? 

23 MR. MAZZARIELLO: Absolutely. 

24 THE HEARING OFFICER: Let's take a 

25 three-minute break and you close your case, and Mr. 
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1 make it better. Give me another chance." Why is it 

2 always that way? 

3 He was afforded two years, two years 

4 They sat down-w~th ~im. to get better. ··Come to the 
• iI-~ "; 

5 pre-observation conferences." IINo. conciliation." 

6 "Come to the post observation conferences." "No. 

7 Conciliation." 

8 And I want to make this other point 

9 about conciliation. It's not required. It's in the 

10 contract. 

11 His whole case was this conciliation 

12 process. Can you -- I mean, I'm offended at that 

13 defense, that "I didn't want to get better because it 

14 would be like I was giving in." What the hell does 

15 that mean? What is that? 

16 What about the kids? That's the 

17 other thing that's left out of this whole equation in 

18 Dr. Roemer's head, the children. How many children 

19 complained? How many parents complained? 

20 The test scores. On direct 

21 examination under his own attorney, he had great tests 

22 scores. 

23 Then I whipped out that document that 

24 showed that his test scores weren't as good as he had 

25 said they were. Liar, liar, pants on fire. 
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1 this man did to them, what he didn't do. What he 

2 didn't do, he didn't equip them to pass the .tests, the 

3 Regents. 

4 It's a very --physics. Yes. Mr. 

5 Field is right. We do need physics teachers. There's 

6 a shortage in this area. No doubt about it. 

7 We're dying for them. We'll do 

8 anything to get qualified physics teachers. We don't 

9 want this one. He's not qualified. 

10 He can't teach. He's demonstrated he 

11 can't teach. He doesn't listen to his superiors. 

12 Insubordination all the way. 

13 Look at how many times he was told to 

14 come to the post observation conference. "I'm not 

15 going because of the conciliation. I thought the 

16 conciliation." You know what he can do with the 

17 conciliation process. I would tell you, but Mr. 

18 Edelman will yell at me. 

19 THE HEARING OFFICER: I will. 

20 MR. MAZZARIELLO: I could tell him 

21 what to do with it. I'd really like to tell him man 

22 to man, face to face on the sidewalk in the middle of 

23 the street what he could do with that conciliation 

24 process. 

25 When your boss tells you to do A, do 

ADEPT COURT REPORTING SERVICE 
(516) 689-0111 


